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VISION

The Group aspires to be a leading Chinese
property developer with a renowned brand
backed by cultural substance.
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MISSION

The Group is driven by a corporate spirit and fine
tradition that attaches importance to dedication, honesty
and integrity. Its development strategy advocates
professionalism, market-orientation and internationalism.
It also strives to enhance the architectural quality and
commercial value of the properties by instilling cultural
substance into its property projects. Ultimately, it aims
to build a pleasant living environment for its clients and
create satisfactory returns to its shareholders.
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CHOY Shu Kwan

WONG Ka Lun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
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LEGAL ADVISER

Morrison & Foerster

AUDITOR

BDO Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China Limited

Bank of China Limited

Bank of Communications Co., Ltd.

China CITIC Bank International Limited

China Construction Bank Corporation

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
China Everbright Bank Co., Ltd

Chong Hing Bank Limited

CMB Wing Lung Bank Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial Bank Co., Ltd

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Macau) Limited
The Bank of East Asia Limited

INVESTOR RELATIONS
CONSULTANT

Wonderful Sky Financial Group

SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

Room 2503, Admiralty Centre, Tower 1
18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE

www.polyhongkong.com
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
RS

Corporate Background

The Group is one of the foremost property developers in
China and is the real estate offshore listed flagship of
China Poly Group Corporation Limited (a state-owned
businesses include property

enterprise). Its major

development, investment and management. The Group
develops residential and commercial properties in the most
active areas in terms of economic development in China,
Delta, Delta,

other regions and Hong Kong.

including Yangtze River Pearl River

Southwestern region,
Projects of the Group are located in 24 major cities,
Hong Kong, Shenzhen, Guangzhou,
Harbin,

The Group maintains a high-

including Shanghai,
Wuhan,
Nanning, among others.

Suzhou, Jinan, Ningbo, Guiyang and
quality investment property portfolio in various cities
comprising landmark properties such as Shanghai Poly
Plaza, Shanghai Stock Exchange Building and Beijing Poly

Plaza.
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ERHE

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2019, the global economic growth remained weak.
Confidence in economic prospects was impacted by trade
protectionism, Brexit, geopolitical conflicts and other
factors. In view of significantly increasing domestic and
global risks and challenges, China continued to pursue
steady growth and focus on supply-side structural reform.
Efforts were made to keep employment, the financial
sector, foreign trade, foreign and domestic investments,
and expectations stable to maintain sustained and healthy
economic and social development. China’s GDP for 2019
was approximately RMB100 trillion and GDP per capita
exceeded US$10,000 for the first time. Under the policies
of “no speculation of residential properties” and “one
strategy for one city”, the provision of funding to
domestic real estate market was further tightened to
maintain reasonable housing demand. The growth of the
industry has slowed down in general while the divergence
among regional markets became more obvious. The land
market has also become more rational.

The Group recorded profit attributable to shareholders of
HK$3,833 million for the year, representing a year-on-year
increase of 71.0%, mainly attributed to an increase in
revenue. Revenue from Kai Tak Vibe Centro, the first
development project operated by the Group in Hong
Kong, was recognised during the year and had significant
contribution to our revenue and net profit. The gross
profit margin of projects in mainland China recognised
during the same period also showed impressive
performance. The board of directors (the “Directors”) of
the Company (the “Board”) recommended distribution of a
final dividend of HK20.9 cents per share to shareholders in

appreciation of their support.

According to the National Bureau of Statistics, the sales of
commodity properties during 2019 were approximately
RMB16 trillion, representing an increase of 6.5%, which
was 5.7 percentage points lower than the previous year.
The growth of prices of new residential properties in 100
cities in China continued to slow down. Expectation for
housing price growth declined when the real estate market
was under continuous regulation. Property developers had
to increase supply and enhance marketing activities to
improve sales.
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During the year, the Group achieved its annual sales target
of RMB42.0 billion and contracted sales of RMB43.2
billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 6%. The
average selling price of contracted sales was RMB18,303
per square metre and the average selling price of
contracted sales in mainland China was RMB17,780 per
square metre, representing an increase of 2% when
compared to last year. In 2019, while ensuring sales
growth and profitability, the Group focused on the sales of
completed projects, particularly commercial buildings and
parking spaces, striving to capitalise existing assets and

improve working capital.

Under strict capital regulation, the land market became
more rational in the second half of 2019. By closely
monitoring market changes, the Group made decisions on
land investment with the times were right. The Group had
acquired a total of 15 parcels of land in 2019. Shenzhen
Long Gang Project was acquired as a redevelopment
project in early 2019, while the rest of the projects were
acquired in the latter half of the year. New land reserves
were concentrated in first-tier and second-tier cities in the
Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Greater Bay Area and
Yangtze River Economic Belt strongly supported by
favourable policies. Quality output from these projects is
expected from the middle of 2020 onwards.

In 2019, the Group streamlined its management functions
and decision mechanism according to the practices
adopted by outstanding peers in the industry. The
management of real estate business as a whole has been
strengthened to strictly control development schedules and
completion targets. The project development efficiency
was significantly improved. Three major systems of the
Group were further improved. The performance appraisal
system was also improved. The application of information
technology in cost control, marketing and human resources
departments was enhanced. Product design, quality control
better

and production safety were enhanced for

compliance and risk management.
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BUSINESS OUTLOOK

In 2020, China will build a well-off society and the “13th
Five-Year Plan” will be completed. The economic work
conference of central government has emphasised that
efforts shall be made to maintain stable growth, promote
reformation, make structural adjustment, improve living
standards,

prevent risks, maintain stability and major

economic indicators at reasonable levels.

At the beginning of 2020, the epidemic of novel
coronavirus pneumonia broke out. The central government
has quickly adopted a series of positive, effective and
practical measures, and the epidemic has been contained
within the shortest possible period of time. Frontline
healthcare workers have worked day and night with great
courage and dedication while citizens of the whole country
have cooperated to fight against the disease. Together
with the fervent support from overseas Chinese people,
China and its citizens have been committed to curbing the
outbreak with unprecedented unity, courage and strength.
From Wuhan to Shanghai, and from Beijing to Hong Kong,
tens of thousands of employees of the Group have also
made

individual and collective efforts with drastic

measures in winning this battle against the epidemic.

Since mid-February, local governments have introduced
various fiscal, taxation, financial and economic policies to
support enterprises in resuming their operation and
production in an orderly manner and to maintain economic
stability. The Group believes that China will maintain its
steady and positive growth in the long run. The real estate
industry faces many challenges as well as increasing
opportunities. Despite a certain degree of negative impact
of the epidemic on its business operation in the short run,
the Group will take an active role in achieving its
operating goals for the year.

Under the new norm of the real estate industry, market

competition will become increasingly intense and
customers will have higher expectation on products and
services. The Group adheres to its philosophy of providing
high-quality products and services and further improve
customer satisfaction by strictly controlling the
development schedule of projects and converting new land
reserves into saleable products. The Group will also further

optimise its marketing approaches, carefully select target
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customers and capitalise market opportunities. In addition,
in order to improve liquidity, the Group will put great
efforts in destocking, in particular, commercial properties
and parking spaces and other products which have longer
sales cycle.

In respect of funding resources, in the face of increasingly
strict financial regulation in the real estate market, the
Group will adopt measures to secure sources of funding
and financial stability. On the one hand, the Group will
further explore financing channels and optimise its gearing
ratio by fully capitalising its advantages in financing costs
and reputation gained throughout the years, so as to
stable and
sustainable growth of operation results. On the other

provide sufficient funds for achieving
hand, to control its net debt ratio at satisfactory level, the
Group will improve its project cycle management and
maintain the balance between project development and
sales.

With the slow growth in industry scale, the market will pay
more attention to the quality of real estate enterprises.
The Group will continue to improve the efficiency of
corporate management and project development. In order
to improve management in various aspects, the Group will
standardise its internal

operation. Cost delicacy

management policies will be introduced to control
management expenses, operating expenses and financial
expenses for higher project profitability. The Group will
standardise the use of technology and quality control of
projects to enhance the competitiveness of projects in
respect of environmental protection, quality and customer

satisfaction and to consolidate the brand image of “Poly”.

The Group strives to become a first-class real estate
developer in China and maximise the values for its
customers, shareholders, employees and the society. Being
the only overseas-listed real estate flagship of China Poly
Group, the Group is confident of its business prospects
and believes that it will continue to receive continuous
attention and support from its parent company. The
Company will pay close attention to market conditions and
further push through innovative reform while maintaining
comprehensive risk control. It will adhere to the customer-
oriented development philosophy with quality as top
priority. Focusing on the objective of high-quality
development, the Group will seek to improve efficiency
and quality to provide greater returns for its shareholders.

R BEEBBRAA]
ZE-NFFR

RENEBAEER: W HEHERE - FALE
WA BEHEREH LEMSHRE AK
BESNHDEEFTE LEHEBEMNEN
SHEER BROEEER -

EESRETE BHFMEDSSREEH
BREBENES  AKESKRERE RE
RERMBSEMMHLE —HE NEEK
RNBERERNEZNE & ZFRILKANE
XEE REARZTLEOBERE BILAE
BEE RERRREFEERNEEXER
HRBEES: »—TH MRBEERHER
BHERMREHENCER  REFABEEXE
EEIRABKE -

BETERBIRERE MHEEEMIFEE
BHRERESE ASERBEBHELALXER
MIABF#® EMRERMTIF: MBERAE
B REBTHEEEKE BEXARBALE
BM-EEREZES CRAEBERNER: #E
RITRE(CNTIREEEE ERERE KB
MEMAMCETEHRAER D - RERN A

M E -

AEENBEEREANATE -—ROEHERR
BHoREP RR BIMHEGRAIEESHE
B-FRPERNEEME 1S ETHEBE
B AEBEEARNERARTMEL T
HEEESEARNBEBIMBESF K
SEBERED KEXRFLH 2EHER
B BREE/T BEFAANERES X
EIREERRIE—BR RAFKRAESR
AR AR EY (3 ¥ o

9



POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO. , LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

PROJECTS PORTFOLIO
HEME

YANGTZE RIVER
DELTA REGION

= AE

-

Shanghai ti§
Suzhou && /M

N

w

Ningbo 2%

4 Yuyao Rk
S,
I IIIFEm“. HI 5 Deqlng 1—r/ﬁ

T ﬂ.—.__h-__-_-‘-_::i;_-_ =
ihli ..--.u_‘m[.i i

. y : r.-..;_? F--;_-L,__

1 SHANGHAI POLY GREENLAND PLAZA
ERRFIRR 5

BB ILRFES

3 NINGBO ORIENTAL IMPRINT
BREES

1 SHANGHAI SHAN JIN POLY PLAZA




11

R BEEBERAR
—E-NEEFR

NINGBO SHENG MEI LU PROJECT

B R IERIER

3

YUYAO POLY JORDAN INTERNATIONAL
HRABEEERIER

S
R

J»HHHHW.H

e

e e B e B i e e e

I T
N\Rﬁhﬁ £ EFERRRRERN

R R L LI

A A g b e

gwmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmmw,

SUZHOU POLY YUE YING TING

ERMN R T BREE

2

=5




POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO. , LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

PROJECTS PORTFOLIO
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year”), the
Group recorded a revenue of HK$39,943,978,000 (2018:
HK$23,233,644,000), representing an increase of 71.9%
when comparing to last year. Profit attributable to
shareholders amounted to HK$3,832,948,000 (2018:
HK$2,241,590,000), while basic and diluted earnings per
share were HK104.68 cents and HK104.31 cents,
representing year-on-year increases of 71% and 70.4%,
respectively. The Board of Directors of the Company
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK20.9
cents per share.

As at 31 December 2019, shareholders’ equity of the
Group amounted to HK$32,552,160,000 (as at 31
December 2018: HK$29,889,095,000), along with a net
asset value per share of HK$8.89 (as at 31 December
2018: HK$8.16).

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

The total GFA of newly commenced construction of Poly
Property Group (the Group, together with
ventures and associated companies) during the year was
The total
contracted area sold amounted to approximately 2,360,000

its joint
approximately 4,209,000 square metres.

square metres. There were 80 continual launches and ten
debut launches during the Year. The GFA of construction
completed during the Year was approximately 3,446,000
square metres. As at 31 December 2019, Poly Property
Group had 67 projects under construction or planning,
representing a total GFA of approximately 21,732,000
square metres.
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PROPERTY SALES

In 2019, Poly Property Group recorded contracted area
sold of approximately 2,360,000 square metres, or
approximately RMB43.2 billion in value, achieving 103% of
its annual sales target of RMB42.0 billion. Ten projects
recorded contracted sales of over RMB1 billion, including
Shanghai Xijiao Jinmao Palace, Nanning Poly Town Phase
Il, Ningbo Prosperous Reflection, Shanghai Poly Greenland
Plaza, Wuhan Poly Up Town, Wuhan Poly Riverview,
Guangzhou Nansha Poly City, Suzhou Poly Lake Mansion,
Hong Kong Kai Tak Vibe Centro and Harbin Poly The
Water’s Fragrant Dike. During the Year, the average selling
price of contracted sales of Poly Property Group was
RMB18,303 per square metre, representing an increase of
1% when compared to last year. The average selling price

of projects in mainland China increased by 2% year-on-

R BEEBBRAR
ZE-NFFR

HERR

TE-NF O BESEERANHEEEEYD
23608 F HK  AHEESBEHARKAIE
TR EFHEBRZEARBLRETZ
103% - BERANHESTHBBAREI0ETLH
HEEIOE BRELEEABEEN BER
FMBEFHH _H B LEHHE EBRAK
ES - BOERF L8 BROZRFIE - EM
MmO RA - BINRFEHEER - &BRBUERE
ENHBAEARMNKERSE -FR BEEEA
HEEHEHARBE18,3037T, F X AL
BR1% - Ef - FERMHIHER HEEHER
Lb 1R B2% ©

year.
Contracted Contracted
Sales in Area Sold
2019 by in 2019 by
Region Percentage Region Percentage
—E—-AE —E-NF
an an
HESH HEENE
&5 7 &35 7 i
(RMB ('000 square
million) (%) metres) (%)
(AR¥
BETT) (%) (FF7K) (%)
Yangtze River Delta k=A 16,567 38% 520 22%
Pearl River Delta w=A 4,017 9% 196 8%
Southwestern ik 8,773 20% 681 29%
Others H 12,532 29% 958 41%
Hong Kong o 1,309 3% 4 0%
Total & &t 43,198 100% 2,360 100%
Notes: it -
1. Contracted sales include car parking sales; 1. ERHESHEEN
2. Since figures were rounded up, their grand total may not equal to 2. YN - BN —ERAGTETE -

the actual sum.
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In the second half of 2019, with the tightened regulations
on the funding of property industries as well as the market
expectation of a slower rise in housing price, competition
in the industry intensified and cities became increasingly
polarised. In Guizhou market, parking spaces were sold
through marketing approaches such as being sold at
largely discounted prices or even being given for free
upon house purchasing. Since the Group had relatively
large inventory of existing parking spaces and parking
spaces under construction in projects in Guizhou, after
and full

consideration of realisable value and capital efficiency of

careful evaluation of market conditions
such parking spaces, the Group decided to make inventory
provision of approximately RMB908 million for nearly
30,000 parking spaces. The Group believes that it will
formulate more flexible marketing strategies to promote
destocking of parking spaces and accelerate cash
collection in the future.

NEW LAND RESERVES

In 2019, 15 development projects were acquired by Poly
Property Group in Shenzhen, Suzhou, Hong Kong, Foshan,
Kunming, Ningbo, Wuhan
Guangzhou. The planned GFA of new land reserves for the

Tai'an, Huizhou, and
Year was approximately 5,665,000 square metres. The cost

of land was considered reasonable.

TE-NAFTHEF O BEHESREETREMN
mSEFEE LEANBENMER TEHRFNE
W EBAL - EMH S LR B AIENEH
EEEZERXBEMMNEHETN - ARBUNE
M BEREUEFMEREERA £HM S
REFAFGE ROZEEMNHAERER
MESWEARE RESEMNEHI=5E
BEUFRFERBEHAREIBET - AEE
MEERFTEHREAEEE  #PBEUE
£ ZEREOEER -

I T R

—E-nF BESEHINSISEAMEIER
DR RRY - FMN BB L ERH H
o B B BORMBEM o FARIE LR
AR B B EE B 4)566.58 F 7K - LHAKAR
RIFESIEKRF -



List of Land Reserve Acquired in

2019

RN EXEERREAF

23
ZE-NFFR

U 8 LRSI R

Interests
Attributable to
Land Plot/Project Site Area  Planned GFA the Group  Current Status
Wi, EE AR RIZEAR BEIFAREESZE BREEE
('000 square ('000 square
metres) metres) (%)
(T¥7 %) (T¥7 %) (%)
Shenzhen Long Gang Project Commercial and 283 2,101 50%  Under construction
Residential
RAY|EEER [E)E BRI
Suzhou Mu Du Project Residential 36 105 49%  Under construction
FNAEEE FE=E ERLI
Hong Kong Kai Tak 6553 Project ~ Commercial and 9 93 35%  Under planning
Residential
BB MIE65531E A A A
Foshan Lun Jiao Project Commercial and 75 256 100%  Under planning
Residential
flmBER [E)E EE L
Kunming Guan Du Project Commercial and 189 1,073 90%  Under construction
Residential
EHAREER ) BRI
Tai'an High-speed Train New District Commercial and 73 269 60%  Under planning
Project Residential
RLBENRER )i e
Suzhou Hu Shu Guan Project Residential 42 124 45%  Under planning
BMHERIER EE BElT
Huizhou Shui Kou Project Commercial and 60 230 100%  Under planning
Residential
BNKAIER [ Bl
Foshan Jiao Yu Lu Project Commercial and 31 124 100%  Under planning
Residential
BILHERER A e
Ningbo Sheng Mei Lu Project Residential 71 190 100%  Under planning
EREERAR EE Bl



24 POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENwmEDT

Interests
Attributable to
Land Plot/Project Site Area  Planned GFA the Group  Current Status
i, B s fEEE RIBZEER FELAKERERZ RAEE
('000 square ('000 square
metres) metres) (%)
(TFIK) (TFIK) (%)
Wuhan Jing He Lu Project Commercial and 63 225 100%  Under planning
Residential
EOEEERIAR Al RElT
Guangzhou Pingbu Avenue Project Commercial and 62 184 37.5%  Under construction
Residential
EMFFRERR A BRI
Guangzhou Shangye Avenue Project Residential 34 153 100%  Under planning
EMNEEAERR E=E BEls
Wuhan Jing Xi Ba Lu Project Commercial and 47 179 100%  Under planning
Residential
RETEREN\KER A s
Suzhou Wang Ting Project Residential 96 359 20%  Under construction
HME=EA E=E [y
Total &t 1,169 5,665
Notes: Bt
1. Since figures were rounded up to the nearest thousand, their total 1. BFEENEREONTRLE  SENET—ERE
may not equal to the actual sum. FEF -

2. As at 31 December 2019. 2. EHE#EHEZE-_Z-NF+=-A=+—H-



SUMMARY OF NEWLY ACQUIRED
PROJECTS IN 2019

Shenzhen Long Gang Project

The project is located in the north to the center of
Longgang, Shenzhen and is well-positioned with
convenient transportation and thriving commercial
activities and comfortable living environment. As the
region is one of the most vibrant districts in
Shenzhen, the project is expected to have ample
market capacity and high sell-through rate. The
project, with a planned gross floor area of
approximately 2,101,000 square metres, is an urban
renewal project and will be developed into rigid
demand products of the first-tier city.

Suzhou Mu Du Project

The project is located in Mudu Town, Wuzhong
District, Suzhou. It is close to Metro Line No. 5 which
is under
transportation. The region is well surrounded by
commercial, educational and medical facilities. Mudu

construction and enjoys convenient

is a key development area in Wuzhong District with
adequate demand in the residential market. The
project,
approximately 105,000 square metres, is intended to

with a planned gross floor area of

be developed into high-rise residential buildings.

Hong Kong Kai Tak 6553 Project

The project is located in the runway of the former Kai
Tak airport, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The site enjoys the
Harbor
development potential. The Hong Kong government

fascinating Victoria view with great
plans to develop Kai Tak region into a unique,
vibrant,
project,
approximately 93,000 square metres, is intended to
be developed into high quality residential buildings.

aesthetic and sharing community. The
with a planned gross floor area of

—
.

R BEEBBRAR
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ZE-NEHFERBREB FN
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B B AL RR YT R R DL B
BeRERE BENEERERE A
EERRYSERNBEE, — THEE
A ECRER AER AW T EHE
B EfA—SATREES - HE R
BRHEEAA210.18 F 77X -

&k N A EE B
BRAUREHMNTRPBEAER  XBRE
BoROERTHOMEDRR - FRAR
ERELE HENEERREER KNE
RRRRTFEEREH EEMHFRR
R-HEBREBREERMBEMNOSEF T
KoBERESELENE -

& B 8655315 B
BEMREBENEREERSHNE 4
—REEER BARREN - FERA
AESREERA—EEERE ¥RE
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EREEEBNIIB TR MERIES
BEENEE)E-
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Foshan Lun Jiao Project

The project is located in Lunjiao Street, Shunde
District, Foshan, adjacent to the station of Metro Line
No. 3 with access to convenient transportation. The
site is close to Foshan Poly Central Park and Foshan
Shun De Project, surrounded by well-developed
educational, commercial and medical facilities. The
project, with a planned gross floor area of
approximately 256,000 square metres, is intended to
be developed into high-rise residential buildings.

Kunming Guan Du Project

The project is located in Fangwang Area, Guandu
District, Kunming. Situated at the intersection of the
airport highway and the East Third Ring, the project
is well-positioned with convenient transportation.
Fangwang Area has a number of public and private
schools, offering abundant educational resources. The
project, with a planned gross floor area of
approximately 1,073,000 square metres, mainly
targets first-time buyers and first-time upgrade
buyers. The project is relatively sizable and can be
developed in phases, providing room for increases in
selling prices in the future.

Tai'an High-speed Train New District
Project

The project is located in the midwest of the central
district of Tai’an, Shandong Province. It is situated in
the prime area of the High-speed Train New District,
with a well-developed road network and convenient
transportation. The project is surrounded by
comprehensive ancillary facilities and is close to
Affiliated Experimental School of Taishan College,
enjoying abundant natural landscape resources. The
project, with a planned gross floor area of
approximately 269,000 square metres, is intended to
be developed into mid to high-end residential
buildings.

HLfmHIEE
HREURFBLTIERRBHREE B8t
B = SRARUERE - BB - IR SE AT 5 1L
RAFPRABEMGLIEEER  FiEHR
B AENBREETE HARIAER
EHEEN25.68F K RERESEF
FEM-e

EHEEERR
HEHUREABERTEAE  HEKS
BRERTIRRINO  HWBAERLT R
BEAEMN - TERNRBEZM AL ML
BR-#HEEAREE -HARIBEER
BHN073ETF K UEENMERNERPR
T-RERBRAASHMAE  KKREE
AERT=ER -

RLZSHEHNEEE

HEMNRWURERLZ MR OMETRESE -
BReEFEEZORE  FABEEEEE
REEMN - EEREED  BEBHRUBKR
MEERSR BASEBEREE  -HA
B BREEELN2698F 7K BHER
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Suzhou Hu Shu Guan Project

The project is located in the IKEA business circle of
Hu Shuguan, Suzhou New District, with convenient
transportation. It is surrounded by well-developed
commercial facilities and abundant educational
resources. The Beijing-Hangzhou Grand Canal and
scenic belts of canals under construction are situated
in the west of the project, offering exterior
landscape. The project, with a planned gross floor
area of approximately 124,000 square metres, is
intended to be developed into high-rise residential
buildings.

Huizhou Shui Kou Project

The project is located in the centre of Shuikou,
Huicheng District, Huizhou, about five kilometres
from the downtown of Huizhou, enjoying
geographical advantages. Adjacent to Lujiangli
Wetland Park with an area of 1,800,000 square
metres, the project is supported by all-round
educational, commercial and medical facilities within
a radius of three kilometres. The project, with a
planned gross floor area of approximately 230,000
square metres, is intended to be developed into a
high-rise residential community mainly comprising
small and medium units.

Foshan Jiao Yu Lu Project

The project is located in Lunjiao Street, Shunde
District, Foshan and the northeast of Foshan Poly
Central Park. It is adjacent to Lunjiao Secondary
School, supported by convenient transportation and
surrounded by comprehensive commercial and
medical facilities. The project, with a planned gross
floor area of approximately 124,000 square metres, is
intended to be developed into a high-rise residential
community.

R BEEBBRAR
ZE-NFFR

M EEEE

HRURGMNEFTRAEEEREE 2
AZBEN - BAE2RERERSKA K
BEEREE - HABAAARMAENRE
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RIUEBETZER -
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HEMREMNEREKOFRLE - BEEE
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10. Ningbo Sheng Mei Lu Project

11.

12.

The project is located in the east of Ningbo Eastern
New City and is a new political, economic, cultural
and commercial centre of Ningbo. The area is 2.2
kilometres from the office of Ningbo Municipal
Government, enjoying well-developed ancillary
facilities of Ningbo Eastern New City. The project,
with a planned gross floor area of approximately
190,000 square metres, is intended to be developed
into a residential community mainly comprising high-
rise and multi-storey residential buildings.

Wuhan Jing He Lu Project
The project is located in Wuhan Airport Economic
Zone. Surrounded by comprehensive ancillary
facilities and scenic landscape, the project has a well-
developed living environment. The area is close to
Jinghelu Station of Metro Line 1,

transportation.

with convenient
The project, with a planned gross
floor area of approximately 225,000 square metres, is
intended to be developed into a high quality

community.

Guangzhou Pingbu Avenue Project

The project is located in the north of Pingbu Avenue,
Huadu District, It is three kilometres
from Cultural Tourism City and 3.5 kilometres from
the office of Huadu District Government, and is close

Guangzhou.

to Poly Zephyr City of the Group. The area is
surrounded by a well-developed transportation
network and is supported by basic commercial and
educational facilities. With the opening of Wanda
Tourism City as well as the completion and operation
of light rail, it is expected that there will be room for
value appreciation of the project. The project, with a
planned gross floor area of approximately 184,000
square metres, is intended to be developed into a
high-rise residential community.

10.

11.

12.
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13.

14.

15.

Guangzhou Shangye Avenue Project

The project is located in the northwest of the
intersection of Shangye Avenue and Fenghuang
Road, Xinhua Town, Huadu District, Guangzhou. It is
situated in Ma'anshan Park in Huadu New City
District and the central axis of Huadu District, about
two kilometres from the office of Huadu District
Surrounded by well-developed

commercial and educational facilities, the project has

Government.

convenient transportation as it is close to Ma'anshan
Station of Metro Line 9 which has commenced its
operation. The project, with a planned gross floor
area of approximately 153,000 square metres, is
intended to be developed into a high-rise residential
community.

Wuhan Jing Xi Ba Lu Project

The project is located in Wuhan Airport Economic
Zone, four kilometres from the office of Dongxihu
District Government. It has convenient transportation
as it is adjacent to Sandian Station of Metro Line 1.
The area is surrounded by large comprehensive
public facilities such as municipal, recreation and
sports, and medical facilities, offering abundant
educational resources and well-developed commercial
facilities. The project, with a planned gross floor area
of approximately 179,000 square metres, is intended
to be developed
community.

into a high-rise residential

Suzhou Wang Ting Project

The project is located in the centre of Wangting
Town of Xiangcheng District, Suzhou. It is adjacent to
north Taihu,
Xiangcheng District Traditional Chinese Medicine

less than one kilometre from

Hospital. The area is surrounded by comprehensive
commercial and educational facilities and supported
by convenient transportation. With limited supply of
new projects in the area, the demand is mainly from
local buyers. The project, with a planned gross floor
area of approximately 359,000 square metres, is
intended to be developed into multi-storey and high-
rise residential products.

13.

14.

15.
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PROJECTS UNDER CONSTRUCTION
AND PROJECTS UNDER PLANNING

As at 31 December 2019, Poly Property Group had a total
of 67 real estate development projects in 24 cities. Among
which, approximately 34% of the total GFA was located in
Yangtze River Delta and Pearl River Delta Regions,
approximately 37% in Southwestern Region, approximately
28% in Other Regions,
Kong. Meanwhile, 51 projects were under construction,

and approximately 1% in Hong

with a total GFA of approximately 10,117,000 square
metres (attributable area amounted to approximately
6,911,000 square metres), GFA of
approximately 11,615,000 square metres (attributable area
amounted to approximately 8,176,000 square metres) was

and a total

under planning.

List of Projects under Construction and
under Planning as at 31 December 2019

EERGZEER

—NE+ZA=1+—HB BEX&EE#24
BT R H7TEFEHWERZEER - Eh ot
ER=ZANK=_AMRNERLEEMEEER
BLEAANRIM% DI EREM RN
Mlm e IR B BREEBEG LD R A R37%M

28% N EBBHMENIARBRETMBAEL
WR1% > R ERZBASUE  £RAREEE

491,011. 7%?%%()‘&“15%‘ & L691.18 F
FK) FENBIABREAEBEN16158F
#(Hﬂ%&“ M & #9817.68 F 75 K) »

R-EB-AF+ZA=+—H2ZH%&
RZEBRFSRERIX

Interest
GFA under  GFA under attributable
Project construction planning to the Group
ERARE FREERE g - |
HA & & B G &
('000 square  ('000 square
metres) metres) (%)
(FFAXK)  (FFHXK) (%)
Yangtze River Delta Region REAKE
1. Shanghai Shan Jin Poly Plaza 1. EBILSRIES 1M1 — 50%
2. Shanghai Xijiao Jinmao Palace 2. LAREBEKMN 226 — 14.9%
3. Shanghai Jiading Affordable Housing 3. LERTERER 159 — 100%
4. Suzhou Poly West Bank Villa 4 BMEMNBERR 6 — 100%
5. Suzhou Poly Lake Mansion 5. BRNGRAIE M ER — 90 100%
6. Suzhou Wei Tang Project 6. HMEBREEE 155 — 100%
7. Suzhou Majestic Mansion 7. BEMELIEER 176 — 40%
8. Suzhou Poly Yue Ying Ting 8. ERINMRA AR — 100%
9. Suzhou Mu Du Project 9. HMAREEE 105 — 49%
10. Suzhou Hu Shu Guan Project 10. ﬁ)\\/ﬁﬁ F%IEH — 124 45%
11. Suzhou Wang Ting Project 1. BME 274 85 20%
12. Ningbo Poly City 12. f&ﬁ%ﬂm 73 245 100%
13. Ningbo Prosperous Reflection 13. BREHASE 139 — 33%
14. Ningbo Oriental Imprint 4. BRHERR 110 — 33.3%
15. Ningbo Sheng Mei Lu Project 15. EREGRIER - 190 100%
16. Yuyao Poly Jordan International 16. RKRFBEEREE 13 299 100%
17. Deging Poly Origin 17. EERFIRS — 68 100%
18. Degqing Poly Pearl Bay 18. EERFBERE 85 — 100%
Sub total & et 1,714 1,101
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Interest
GFA under  GFA under attributable
Project construction planning to the Group
ERARE GREERE r&EE
BH [ & FE 15 R 2%
('000 square  ('000 square
metres) metres) (%)
(FFHK)  (FEHK) (%)
Pearl River Delta Region L=AHE
19. Guangzhou Poly Gratified West Bay 19. BRI T E — 446 75%
20. Guangzhou Nansha Poly City 20. EMEDRME 376 - 85%
21. Guangzhou Pingbu Avenue Project 21. BMNFHREER 11 73 37.5%
22. Guangzhou Shangye Avenue Project 22. EM@mEXNEER — 153 100%
23. Foshan Poly Tongji Mansion 23. 8 LR A ] 7 T 140 - 100%
24. Foshan Shun De Project 24, BILIEEIEE — 108 100%
25. Foshan Lun Jiao Project 25. #IfRHER - 256 100%
26. Foshan Jiao Yu Lu Project 26, BILHEKREE — 124 100%
27. Shenzhen Long Gang Project 27. RYEMIEE 267 1,835 50%
28. Huizhou Poly Sunshine Town 28. BMEFG K5 360 — 70%
29. Huizhou Shui Kou Project 29. EMkRER — 230 100%
Sub total &/ 1,254 3,224
Southwestern Regions Eﬁﬂ@
30. Guiyang Poly Spring Street 30. EBRAFRKE 133 — 66.5%
31. Guiyang Poly Park 2010 31, EBERF2E2010 467 555 100%
32. Guiyang Poly The Place of A Lake 32. aﬁﬁﬁﬂa‘:/ﬁﬂ 46 — 50%
33. Guiyang Poly Phoenix Bay 33. EBRTIEEE 72 198 51%
34. Zunyi Poly Metropolis of Future 34, BERFARHET 483 2,090 35%
35. Nanning Poly Crescendo 35 HERMLEHS 115 — 100%
36. Nanning Poly Dream River 36. MERMERE 210 — 30%
37. Nanning Poly Hearty 37. MERFLE 126 — 100%
38. Nanning Poly Town 38. MERMEEAM 581 74 83.5%
39. Nanning Poly Town Phase I 39. BERMEAFH _H 639 1,128 100%
40. Kunming Poly One Family One World 40. BBRNARK 89 — 73%
41. Kunming Guan Du Project 4. EHEEER 300 772 90%

Sub total i & /it 3,261 4,818
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Interest
GFA under  GFA under attributable
Project construction planning to the Group
ERARE FRARE r&E
A & H& FE 15 1 &
('000 square  ('000 square
metres) metres) (%)
(FEHK)  (FEHK) (%)
Other Regions Hitth &
42. Wuhan Poly City 42. BOERFH 279 452 68%
43. Wuhan Poly Riverview 43. FROERFMLE 137 — 51%
44. Wuhan Poly Park 44, RERNRER — 286 55%
45. Wuhan Poly Up Town 45, BOERF L 290 75 100%
46. Wuhan Jing He Lu Project 46, ROETCUKIER — 225 100%
47. Wuhan Jing Xi Ba Lu Project 47. RETAENKRIEE — 179 100%
48. Harbin Poly The Water's Fragrant Dike 48. MBERMKBRE 230 — 58%
49. Harbin Poly City 49. WREERFH 87 34 100%
50. Harbin Qun Li 022 Project 50. WREAE 02215 B 148 — 100%
51. Harbin Poly Tin Yor 51. RBRARFRN 146 — 100%
52. Mudanjiang Poly Landscape 52. HATRANT LS 307 34 100%
53. Jinan Phili House 53. EEEELMH 198 83 25%
54. Jinan Hai Zi Wa Project 54, EEEFEER 188 — 60%
55. Jinan Poly Sheng Jing Tai 5. BERAERA 147 - 51%
56. Jinan Zhong Lu Mansion 56. EEPERN 287 — 33%
57. Jinan Huai Yin Project 57. EREMREIERE 445 192 75%
58. Yantai Poly Ocean Luxe 58. EaREAERE 131 — 70%
59. Weihai Caixin Poly Masterpiece 5. BEMERNAZE 304 31 30%
60. Zibo Poly Mansion 60. JEERFZER 158 — 65%
61. Zibo Poly City 61. JETE R 234 — 65%
62. Weifang Zoina Poly Mansion 62. MR 113 158 30%
63. Tai'an High-speed Train New District Project 63. Z& =¥ EER — 269 60%
64. Wanning Poly Peninsula No.1 64, BERAFEEIHR — 360 100%
Sub total WENE 3,828 2,379
Hong Kong EEME
65. Hong Kong Tuen Mun Project 65. BEHWFIER 17 — 100%
66. Hong Kong Yau Tong Project 66. BB HIEEER 42 — 70%
67. Hong Kong Kai Tak 6553 Project 67. EBRIE65537 B - 93 35%
Sub total WE N 60 93
Grand total &t 10,117 11,615
Note: et -
1. Since figures were rounded up to the nearest thousand, their total 1. BFEEMNETREONTRLE  SENET—ERE

may not equal to the actual sum or the sum in each group. TS ENFEET o
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“E-NFER
COMPLETED CONSTRUCTION W ITIEH
In 2019, the Poly Property Group has achieved a total GFA =T —hF BXSER T EEL344.68F 7
of approximately 3,446,000 square metres in completed K - F AL TIEF H4F -
construction. The construction of all phases of four
projects has been completed in the Year.
List of Major Completed Construction in TE-NAFEFTERIFEBIR

2019

Accumulated
Completed GFA completed GFA by

Project in 2019  the end of 2019
BZE
“E-NEE
—F-hF HHERFE
BRIZEER BRIZEER
("000 square ("000 square
metres) metres)
(FF 75 K) (FF 75 K)
Yangtze River Delta Region R=AHE
Suzhou Poly Lake Mansion R M AR ) #5787 B B 234 953
Ningbo Prosperous Reflection TR EMEE 116 340
Degqing Poly Origin =I5 RF R4 25 430
Degqing Poly Prime Regency ZFRANPERER 49 49
Pearl River Delta Region K=AE
Guangzhou Poly Gratified West Bay & M AR F 78 438 /& 26 99
Foshan Poly Central Park LR RAE 196 663
Huizhou Poly Sunshine Town AR T F5 e 35k 202 513
Southwestern Region Cif=p: A=
Guiyang Poly Park 2010 E5 R A2 E2010 113 1,180
Guiyang Poly The Place of A Lake B (5 RFE 112 820
Guiyang Poly Phoenix Bay SR E R E 415 1,143
Zunyi Poly Metropolis of Future B R AR R 405 2,503
Nanning Poly Crescendo MERMWLEE 52 535
Nanning Poly Hearty MERN L E 42 179
Nanning Poly Town B AR T B 55 AT 582 1,081
Kunming Poly One Family One World ~ EB{RF| KX 278 613
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Project

Completed GFA
in 2019

—E-hEF
RIEEMEME
("000 square

Accumulated

completed GFA by

the end of 2019
BZE
—E-NFR
HE R E
RIEEMEME

("000 square

metres) metres)
(FF 75 K) (FF 75 K)
Other Regions Hithith &
Wuhan Poly City EUZ R H 5 113 1,087
Wuhan Poly Up Town FUZ R F 95 171 460
Yantai Poly Ocean Luxe e RMNERE 72 72
Weifang Zoina Poly Mansion Dy P R R A 153 153
Hong Kong and Overseas Regions ERRBIIEE
Hong Kong Kai Tak Vibe Centro HERMEEE 74 74
UK London Cambium Project REfmPOELLBIAE 16 16
Grand total &t 3,446 12,963
Note: it -
1. Since figures were rounded up to the nearest thousand, their total 1. HFRENERELINTAE  WANMEBET—ERE

e -

HEIRE

—E-NF BEEEEBFHS0EBERE ERE
EEE FECHENARKISSEL  FEEE
#2034 F 5K #HEHEHAEARE16,474
TL K e IREE SR EBEEE85%
BIEF(53% - B H1H6% © B FE 1% - Bi{h
4% B D MH E E=ZA1516%  HK=A1E
17% @ FAR IR (527% - bR 1514% @ B8
% 1526% °

may not equal to the actual sum.

RECOGNISED PROPERTY SALES

The sales of over 50 projects of Poly Property Group have
been recognised in 2019, with a total sales value of
RMB33.5 billion and a total
2,034,000 square metres. The recognised average selling

GFA of approximately

price was approximately RMB16,474 per square metre.

Among the sales recognised, ordinary residential
properties accounted for 85%, villas accounted for 3%,
retail shops accounted for 6%, offices accounted for 1%
and parking spaces accounted for 4% of the total value. In
terms of geographical distribution, Yangtze River Delta,
Pearl River Delta, Southwestern, Other Regions and Hong
Kong accounted for approximately 16%, 17%, 27%, 14%

and 26%, respectively.
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List of Major Projects with Sales “TE-NAFFTEFBEBIE
Recognised in 2019

Sales recognized

Project in 2019
—E-NE
"R HELHE
(RMB million)
(ARBBHET)

Yangtsz River Delta Region R=EAKE
1. Shanghai Poly Deluxe Mansion 1. EBRANXREFS 632
2. Shanghai Poly Elegant Mansion 2. LEBRAXIEER 49
3. Shanghai Jiading Project 3. LEmEMAER 45
4. Suzhou Poly West Bank Villa 4. wHMERNIBEEE 83
5.  Suzhou Poly Lake Mansion 5. ERMARFIER B B R 3,190
6. Ningbo Poly Wonderland 6. ERRFNENIE 82
7.  Yuyao Poly Jordan International 7. %@H%ﬂ%”‘.[i’%?ﬁ 806
8. Deging Poly Origin 8. U/IEJ B R F R 45 35
9. Degqing Poly Prime Regency 9. RBERMNFEREMN 550
10. Others 10. EfthEA&IEH 15
Subtotal i & /) 5t 5,489

Pearl River Delta Region K=AE
11. Guangzhou Poly Golf Shire 1. BINRT & 8 KA 59
12. Guangzhou Poly Zephyr City 12, BEMARFTE 37
13. Guangzhou Poly Gratified West Bay 13. BEINRA A E 464
14. Guangzhou Nansha Poly City 14. BN E R T 1,045
15. Guangzhou Poly Jade Hills 15. BEINR A E5 28 L 130
16. Foshan Poly Prestige City 16. FILARFI B 22
17. Foshan Poly Central Park 17. BFILERNBP RAE 1,617
18. Shenzhen Poly Up Town 18. RYIMRA L IEE 41
19. Shenzhen Poly Joy-Zone 19. RIMRFIHEEE 37
20. Huizhou Poly Deutch Kultur 20. FMARH L 7KK 147
21. Huizhou Poly Sunshine Town 21. FENARFIEZ 5k 2,196
22. Others 22. HhE&IER 29

Subtotal i & /N E 5,824
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Sales recognized

Project in 2019
—E-NEF
15 B HETHE
(RMB million)
(ARBHET)

Southwestern Regions ARt E
23. Guiyang Poly Spring Street 23. EBRABFRAKRE 115
24. Guiyang Poly Park 2010 24. BESRHMAE2010 589
25. Guiyang Poly The Place of A Lake 25. EBRFDEMN 476
26. Guiyang Poly Phoenix Bay 26. ESRTERE 2,009
27. Zunyi Poly Metropolis of Future 27. BHERNARK T 1,518
28. Nanning Poly Crescendo 28. MERHNWLESE 814
29. Nanning Poly Aegean Sea 29. mERNEESE 239
30. Nanning Poly Hearty 30. AERMNLE 329
31. Nanning Poly Town 31. FERMNES AT 1,016
32. Liuzhou Poly Merization World 32, HPMAR A AT AR 65
33. Kunming Poly Sky and Earth 33. BBRRAINE R 324
34. Kunming Poly One Family One World 34. BEHRMAR 1,425
35. Others 35. HfhZ&IEH 70
Subtotal i & /5t 8,989

Other Regions Hithith &
36. Wuhan Poly City 36, BOE R FIK 1,297
37. Wuhan Poly Blue Ocean District 37. BUERNE B 21
38. Wuhan Poly Up Town 38. FUEMRH L5k 1,723
39. Harbin The Tsinghua Summer Palace of Poly 39. & &R T )5 EREE 29
40. Harbin Poly The Water's Fragrant Dike 40. " RBERFIKE RS 21
41. Harbin Poly Up Town 41. B ERBRF L 19
42. Harbin Poly City 42. e @B R 52
43. Jinan Poly Garden 43. FHERNIEE 62
44. Jinan Poly Hyde Mansion 44. BEERMNEGERE 23
45. Jinan Poly Center 45. B R T A D 508
46. Jinan Poly Elegant Garden 46. PR EE RE 57
47. Yantai Poly Champs Elysees Mansion 47. BERMNEWENE 37
48. Yantai Poly Ocean Luxe 48. EERFE HE 470
49. Weihai Poly Maple Valley 49. BUBRFIALER 34
50. Wanning Poly Peninsula No. 1 50. BERMFE S5 70
51. Others 51. HEA&RIEAR 41
Subtotal i & /) 5t 4,533

Hong Kong ERHE
52. Hong Kong Kai Tak Vibe Centro 52. BERMEREE 8,674
Subtotal i & /N Et 8,674
Grand total &t 33,509




Note:

1. Since figures were rounded up to the nearest million, their total may
not equal to the actual sum or the sum in each group.

Recognised Sales in 2019 by Property Type

R BEEBBRAR
ZE-NFFR

Bt

1. eSS TS s il IR YA
stekp AR BT

CHAMBRT-ERA

“E-NFREBYREHIR

Sales
recognized
Property type in 2019 Percentage
—E-NF
MERR HESHE ER
(RMB million) (%)
(ANR®
EX- ) (%)
Ordinary residential property LTRE=E 28,617 85%
Villa 7l £2 1,167 3%
Retail shop [kl 2,087 6%
Office BFE2 271 1%
Parking space B 1,367 4%
Total aF 33,509 100%
Note: Kt at -
1. Since figures were rounded up to the nearest million, their total may 1. HTFREVEKEINBEM.  WHENET—ERE

not equal to the actual sum.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The Group has various investment properties and hotels
located in first-tier cities and second-tier provincial
capitals. The investment properties had a total GFA of
approximately 803,000 square metres and an asset value
of approximately HK$12.1 billion. In 2019, the occupancy
rates for the Group’s office buildings and shopping malls
remained steady. The rental rates achieved higher as
compared to the corresponding period of last year. The
hotel operations achieved satisfactory results.

AR a2l

BREY=

AEERBZELN—BETN _KESHT
MIREMEREE  HPhREMEEEETE
#BOIEBF WK BEEBNNRUER L = F
—NEFE - AKEBRTSFENRSHEXER
REFFR HEXKPREFRYPEME B

[EREBRRIE R -

37



38

POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO., LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENwmEDT

List of Major Investment Properties and
Hotels as at 31 December 2019

Region

i E

Project

HHE

GFA held

REEEER
('000 square

Average
occupancy
rate of 2019
= i
FHmAER

Average
occupancy
rate of 2018
—E-NF
AR

Interests
attributable to
the Group
X5E
EiEEs

R-ZE-NAF+ZA=1+—HFE
REVERBEIEINR

Property type

NEBE

metres)
(TF77K)
Investment properties
REME
Beijing Beijing Poly Plaza 15 99% 100% 75%  Office
gl EREMAE YN
Shanghai Shanghai Poly Plaza (partial) 34 89% 92% 100%  Office and
commercial
L8 LBRMES (D) (NN TSRS
Shanghai Shanghai Stock Exchange 48 87% 88% 100%  Office
Building (partial)
L8 LEBEFKE(ED) N
Shenzhen Shenzhen Poly Cultural Plaza 135 100% 100% 100%  Commercial
(partial)
3l RINRM XA &% (D) GES
Wuhan Wuhan Poly Plaza (partial) 97 75% 80% 100%  Office and
commercial
B RERMES(BD) MRABRER
Guiyang Guiyang Poly International 52 100% 100% 66.5%  Commercial
Center
&f5 ERRMERES GES
Hotels
iy
Beijing Beijing Poly Plaza Hotel 63 78% 78% 75%  Hotel
b ERRFAREE & BE
Wuhan Wuhan Poly Hotel 28 73% 77% 100%  Hotel
i3 RERMAEE BE
Guiyang Guiyang Poly Hot Spring 39 48% 52% 66.5%  Hotel
Hotel
£ EGRAERRBEE B
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PROPERTY MANAGEMENT MEERE

The Group has various property management companies A%SBEFEEZRWEETE QR ¥BK 5 R{E
engaging in the management of residential, commercial, % %  WAE BEMNBERSEZEHEY
offices, hotels, theatres and other property types. They XMELERERE E2BEWEERTEFSR
have been the leading players in the property JIAI% @ WESZ([ELRBFEIE -
management industry of China and have received

numerous titles and awards.

In 2019, the Group's property management companies —Z—NF AEEYPEEELAERIKAL
recorded total revenue of RMB810 million. The companies 5t A R¥8.10(E7C - EIE W E1H B 22218 - 5t
managed a total of 222 property projects with an JEZEMEE3 76898 F 7 K BEAFRBHAE K
aggregate GFA of 37,689,000 square metres, representing 11.4% °

an increase of 11.4% when comparing with the

corresponding period of last year.
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR REAL ESTATE

PROJECTS

Yangtze River Delta Region

As at 31 December 2019, the Poly Property Group
had 26 projects in the Yangtze River Delta Region, of
which eight were completed,
construction and four were under planning. The total
GFA was approximately 2,815,000 square metres,
accounting for 13% of Poly Property Group's total
land reserves. Among which, approximately 1,714,000

square metres were under

TEFHERBREMBN

14 were under

1. R=AKE
AZE-AE+_A=1+—"08 BX£H
RE=ZAMEF E2HE26FFE 0 ER IR
B EfsEHEEERT 14EAHBEEER
MIPEER  AEEEREF -HELEER
BEBMBMTIABF X  FRAEER
E#11018 T H K At EE D
2815BF AKX HEXEEBA T HHEE

construction while

#13% °

1,101,000 square metres were under planning.

Project

Location

Property type

Current Status

Yangtze River
Delta
k=A

HHE

Poly Deluxe
Mansion

RIREFE

Poly Elegant
Mansion

R RHEER

Shanghai
==

Jiading Project
EER#AER

WEAE

Located in the prime area of
Jiading District, close to Metro
Line 11

IRETERAUGZLRE A1
S H R

Residential Delivered with
buildings sales of remaining
E= apartments
INERHE
Residential Delivered with
buildings sales of remaining
FE apartments
INERHE

Residential and
commercial
buildings, hotels
and theatres
Fx HmE BE
R &Ik

Delivered with
sales of remaining

apartments

INERHEE

Poly Greenland
Plaza

RAEIBES

Located at Dalian Road, Yangpu
District, CBD of waterfront Inner
Loop, Golden Triangle of
Lujiazui

RGHRAER BRRET
CBDMR I - EXEES = AR

Residential
buildings, offices
and commercial
buildings

FTx B¥E-
GES

Delivered with
sales of remaining
apartments

INBRHEE

Poly Phili House
RABERE

Located in Sijing, Songjiang,
near Sijing Station of Metro
Line 9 with access to
convenient transportation and
full-fledged ancillary facilities
RIS - A3 E O RN
Bub RBEF RETE

Residential and
commercial
buildings

TE B

Delivered with
sales of remaining
apartments

TNEERHEE




Yangtze River
Delta
R=A

R BEEBBRAR
ZE-NFFR

Project Location Property type Current Status
BH wEMLE NEER R HR
Shan Jin Poly Located within the inner ring at | Offices and Under construction
Plaza the waterfront of the Eastern commercial and prepared for
&R A ES Bund, in proximity to buildings sale
Yangshupu Road Station of BFE BE EEFE
Metro Line 4
IR ARAR - RIVEET
& S EHAR RSB R U
Poly Phili Regency | Located within the Eastern Bund | Residential Delivered with
RUEBFE in Yangpu District buildings sales of remaining
LB R R ANER 5 FE apartments
Shanghai INBRHE
g Xijiao Jinmao Located in New Jiading, 800 Apartments and For sale
Palace metres from New Jiading villas EE
ERE KM Station of Metro Line 11 REAE
REEHM - Ein#E11RER
TE #4800k
Jiading Affordable | Located in Huangdu Town of Affordable Under construction
Housing Project Jiading District, one kilometre housing and prepared for
ETRERER from the east of Jiading campus | RIERE sale
of Tongji University EEFE
RETREEHE REASER
ERERA-LE
Poly West Bank Located in the economic Apartments and For sale (partially
Villa development zone of Wuzhong | villas delivered
REBEREF District, the project stands ona | A& Bl & EE (BRA)
peninsula of Dushu Lake
RRPEERERE  XARE
BB
Poly Lake Mansion | Located in the economic Residential and For sale (partially
R 8 B IR development zone of Wuzhong | commercial delivered)
Suzhou District and the northern tip of | buildings, offices EE#HHRN)
" Yinshan Lake and hotels
: IRRPEBERERE  FIHL | £ B% BF
[ BRBE
Wei Tang Project Located in Weitang Town, in Residential and Under construction
BIEIER proximity to transportation commercial and prepared for
terminal and with access to buildings sale
Metro Line 9 which is under FE E% ERGE

planning
IRERE EBFERSH
R BB 10 B9 47
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Project Location Property type Current Status
EH wENE ES i B
Majestic Mansion Located in Luzhi Town, close to | Residential For sale
IfER Lake East of Industrial Park of buildings &
Suzhou, with access to Metro F=
Line 6 which is under long-term
planning
URAER BENIXERM
RRBEE - EHREE R
=
Poly Yue Ying Ting | Located in Shishan Street, Residential Under construction
R A E adjacent to the old town and in | buildings and prepared for
proximity to Metro Line 3 under | =% sale
construction EEGE
UREHREMLEE EBEH
B AR RR T e ERR R
Mu Du Project Located in Mu Du Town of Wu | Residential Under construction
KEEE Zhong District, close to Metro buildings and prepared for
Line 5 which is under £ sale
construction ERGE
Suzhou URRBEAEE BARR
M 9 3 55 4%
Hu Shu Guan Located in the IKEA business Residential Under planning
Project circle of Hu Shuguan, New buildings @
Yangtze River HEMER District, with Beijing-Hangzhou | %
Delta Grand Canal and scenic belts of
£-g canals under construction
situated in the west
URBHENEREZRER A
AARMAET REREM R
&
Wang Ting Project | located in the centre of Residential Under construction
2=EA Wangting Town of Xiangcheng buildings and prepared for
District, Suzhou, close to north E sale
Taihu and near Xiangcheng TEGFE
District Traditional Chinese
Medicine Hospital
URHEMNERBEESATOE
B B AR SRS
B
Poly City Located in the prime location of | Residential and For sale (partially
RFIH Zhenhai New Town, facing the commercial delivered)
new administrative and cultural | buildings and EE(@HRM)
centre of Zhenhai offices
Ningbo RESHAROE MRS | £ BERBTF
i FABE R D 2

Poly Wonderland
RAENT R

Located at Shuixiang Lane,
Dongshang New Town, Ningbo
AR B R A K E

Residential and
commercial
buildings

Tx -B%

Delivered with
sales of remaining
apartments

INEREE




Yangtze River
Delta
R=A

R BEEBBRAR
ZE-NFFR

Project Location Property type Current Status
R wENE NEER R HR
Prosperous Located in the central area of Residential and For sale (partially
Reflection Eastern New City and less than | commercial delivered)
iz two kilometres from the office of | buildings and EE(BHRMA)
Ningbo Municipal Government offices
with access to convenient Fx BERBT
transportation and full-fledged | &
ancillary facilities
URRBIHZOE  BERT
BRTR2AE  RBEN RE
Ex
Ningbo Oriental Imprint Located in the centre of Beilun | Residential For. sale
i IR District, the project is close to | buildings e
o the government of Beilun £
District, with square boundary
and convenient transportation
RitERRTL  BHILEE
B R I REER
Sheng Mei Lu located in the east of Ningbo Residential Under planning
Project Eastern New City, 2.2 buildings g
RIGHRIER kilometres from the office of =
Ningbo Municipal Government
URERRBIHZOBARS
B BEERTBEM22AE
Poly Jordan Located in the Southeast of the | Residential and For sale (partially
International intersection of Chengdong Road | commercial delivered)
Yuyao RMBEBIEEE | and Tanjialing Road, Yuyao buildings and EE(BHRMA)
Rk IR R RBEEFRER LN | offices
BOREA FEE BERBF
2
Poly Origin Located in the Eastern New Residential For sale (partially
RM R 45 Town in Deging, five-minute buildings, hotels delivered)
driving distance from the and commercial EE(BHRAM)
Nanjing-Hangzhou High-speed buildings
Railway station and with Fx BEREE
superior scenery and landscape
MRF I EEMRESD &
ER BB LEERRE
Deging Poly Prime Located in Fuxi Street, the Residential Delivered with
. Regency central of the Eastern New buildings sales of remaining
R RAIFERES Town and the Southwest of the | % apartments
Poly Origin project RNEREE
MRERFREOEBREE
RAMREIE B A
Poly Pearl Bay Located in Fuxi Street, Deging Residential For sale
RMAFRE Old Town s situated in the buildings rE
south FE

fip B EHE BAAREET
D&
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2. Pearl River Delta Region

As at 31 December 2019, Poly Property Group had
21 projects in the Pearl River Delta Region, of which
10 were completed, five were under construction and
GFA was
approximately 4,479,000 square metres, accounting
for 21% of Poly Property Group’s total land reserves.
Among which, approximately 1,254,000 square metres
were under construction while 3,224,000 square

six were under

metres were under planning.

Pearl River Delta

k=8

Guangzhou

&M

planning. The total

Project

HHE

Poly Golf Shire
REERKE

2. K=AHE

R-E—NFE+-A=+—H B%X£E
RE=-ZAEFEHE21EEHER IR
B - HEA10EBEERT 5EBEEER
MIPEER 6MEEREFT -FEEER
BEMBENI25.4BF K FEREEER
TE#32248 T K- At EHE LD
447 9B F H K HEEEBEE I MFEE
#21% °

Current Status

BEMRR

Location

WEAE

Property type
VES b

Located in Huadu District; Residential Delivered with
adjacent to the Asian Games buildings and sales of remaining
New Stadium at Fengshen offices apartments
Avenue and the Metro Line 9 Tz B¥E INERHE

fUREHE  RHEEREEE
SRR ERHHIR R

Poly Zephyr City

Located in the centre of Xinhua | Residential and Delivered with

RATES Town of Huadu District, east to | commercial sales of remaining
the district government buildings apartments
URTEHERZERL THE | F2 BE RNEBERIEE
BUR R 2

Poly Up House Located in Huadu District, in Residential Delivered with

R L proximity to Metro Lines 3 and | buildings sales of remaining
9 which are accessible to the FE apartments
whole city XNBBEE
fLRTERBE - 4B 3 3t S35 F95%
5omEDW

Poly Gratified West
Bay
RAELE

Located in the South of Liwan Residential and For sale (partially

District, adjacent to the commercial delivered)
Guangzhou Metro Line 1 with buildings and EE (B RM)
commercial and educational offices

facilities A2 BERET
MNRZERBH MOEMOE | B
19E EERMBEREES

Nansha Poly City
YR

Located in Toyota Auto City in Residential and For sale (partially

Huangge Town, Nansha commercial delivered
connecting to a comprehensive | buildings EE(BHRMA)
transportation network Tx B

UREYERRERAER R
BRETE




Pearl River Delta

K=f

Project

HHE

Poly Jade Hills
RAZER

Location
BN E

Located at the junction of North
Jianshe Road and Sandong
Avenue in Huadu
fIREBRRILBEA=RRER
'

R BEEBBRAR
ZE-NFFR

Property type
nERR

Residential
buildings, offices
and commercial
buildings

Tz BFERH
ES

Current Status
BN
Delivered with

sales of remaining
apartments

TNREHE

Pingbu Avenue

Located in the north of Pingbu

Residential and

Under construction

Project Avenue, Huadu District and is commercial and prepared for
FHREEE 3.5 kilometres from the office of | buildings sale
Huadu District government Fx m% ERGE
Guangzhou IREHETF KB - BB
EM EHBRHF3SAE
Shangye Avenue Located in Xinhua Town of Residential Under planning
Project Huadu District, is approximately | buildings HE
BERERR 2 kilometres from the office of | =
Huadu District, government and
adjacent to Ma'anshan Park
station of Metro Line 9 which is
in operation
MREBEREE BPRLHE
BIF#2AE SO BEMNME
IREBHILRE
Poly Cullinan Located at the centre of Residential Delivered with
Garden Chancheng District buildings, offices sales of remaining
RIXERE neighbouring the Asia Arts Park | and commercial apartments
in the west buildings INBERIEE
EREHEROEE AREE | £ BFERA
yNE ES
Poly Prestige City | Located in Longjiang Town, Residential and Delivered with
RFI L Shunde District, with an commerecial sales of remaining
extensive transportation network | buildings apartments
Foshan and thriving commercial Fx ®m% RTERBEE
BB activities

IRIBERETE B%E.

Poly Central Park
RAHRRE

Located in the north of Shunde
New City, the project stands in
the heart of Pearl River Delta
and enjoys convenient
transportation

R IEEE ML E Rk = A
B RBEF

Residential and
commercial
buildings and
hotels

EE BELBE

Delivered with
sales of remaining
apartments

XNRRHEE
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Project

HHE

Location

WENE

Property type

Poly Tongji Located in old town district in Residential and

Mansion Chancheng, with the benefit of | commercial

RARER the thriving commercial buildings
activities and adjacent to Tongji | £ &%

Street Station of Guangzhou-
Foshan Railway

R ERERERE BERS
RE - BB ERE R

Current Status

BEHRR

For sale

EE

Shun De Project
IE#= 7 B

Located at the junction of

Residential and

Daliang Road and Lunjiao Street | commercial
in Shunde District, east to the buildings
First People’s Hospital FE BE

Pearl River Delta | Foshan URIEERARBHENGRHHE
L=f il RER E-ARBRER

Under planning
fFE

Lun Jiao Project
mHIEE

Located in Lunjiao Street,

Residential and

Shunde District and close to commercial
Metro Line 3 buildings
NRBEERGHGE Bl | £ B2

MR

Under planning

(54

Jiao Yu Lu Project

Located in Lunjiao Street,

Residential and

YEREE Shunde District, northeast to commercial
Poly Central Park Project and buildings
adjacent to Lunjiao Secondary € HE

School
URIEERBHEE  RAlPR
AEEERLA ERRHATE

Under planning
e




Pearl River Delta

K=f

Project

HHE

Poly Up Town
RA LHAE

Location
BN E

Located in the prime
commercial area of Longgang
District, the project is easily
accessible by Metro Line 3 and
is also complemented with
ancillary facilities
UREHARER LR hE
Sty RBEN KEXE

R BEEBBRAR
ZE-NFFR

Property type
MERR
Residential and
commercial

buildings
ERSRNEE S

Current Status
BN
Delivered with

sales of remaining
apartments

TNREHE

Poly Joy-Zone

Located in Longhua, Bao'an

Residential and

Delivered with

REEBER District, close to the commercial sales of remaining
transportation terminal and the | buildings apartments
metro station, with FE -BE THEREE
Shenzhen ) .
4 comprehensive business and
community facilities
LURERRREE ZHFEAE
UoEY BEEE RER
B
Long Gang Project | Located in the north to the Residential and Under construction
BERIER center of Long Gang with prime | commercial and prepared for
location, convenient buildings sale
transportation, and thriving FE -BE TEGFE
commercial activities and living
environment
B REROLE  wREM
RBER BENEREAERE
Poly Deutch Kultur | Located in the prime area of Residential and Delivered with
RA LK Huibo and the northern bank of | commercial sales of remaining
East River, only 10-minute drive | buildings apartments
from downtown of Huizhou Tz B INERHE
UREERL  RILE BE
MELEEEI0 EER
Poly Sunshine Located next to the Shenzhen Residential and For sale (partially
Town Shantou Expressway and Palm commercial delivered
) RAG Island Golf Course, the project | buildings EE(BHRMA)
Huizhou . . . .
ot enjoys an environment of TE B

natural scenery
IRRNBEARS  BEFH
ERMAMG BRARREX

Shui Kou Project
KAEH

Located in the centre of
Shuikou, Huicheng District,
Huizhou and adjacent to
Lujiangli Wetland Park
URBEHEKOROES - B8
BILEZD AR

Residential and
commercial
buildings

tx HE

Under planning

(54
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3. Southwestern Region
As at 31 December 2019, Poly Property Group had
19 projects in the Southwestern Region, of which
seven were completed
The total

construction.

and

GFA was approximately

12 were under

3. AMHE

R-Z—AE+_A=+—8 B%&£H
R m R B E19EFE i &= 5 318
B HFA7EEBEER T - 12EEER
M TPEER - 55 7 B 4R 72 SR T 18 £9326.1

8,079,000 square metres, accounting for 37% of Poly BFFK SREEEEELNIBIEETH
Property Group’s total land reserves. Among which, Ko BRI EBEL807.9BFE A K  HE

approximately 3,261,000 square metres were under

construction while 4,818,000 square metres were

under planning.

Project

HHE

Location

WEAE

Property type
VES b

FEBB L WRHEBRIZT% o

Current Status

BEMRR

Southwestern

il

Guiyang
£

Poly Hot Spring
Newisland

TR AR R 300

Located in Wudang District
amidst a picturesque setting at
the centre of lake areas
UREER WERY REE
ES

Residential and
commercial
buildings

T Bm%

Delivered with
sales of remaining
apartments

INERHEE

Poly International

Located in the heart of

Residential and

Delivered with

Center Nanming District and standing commercial sales of remaining
RFER %5 on the bank of Nanming River buildings and apartments
with a shoreline of offices RNEREE
approximately 300 metres TE BHERBT
UREREERRERIH & | #
B 300K 742
Poly Clouds Hill Located in Yunyan District and a | Residential and Delivered with
International five-minute drive from the commercial sales of remaining
= downtown, which is convenient | buildings apartments
and easily accessible Tx -#HE RNBBEE

IREER  EMF LD EE
B EEAERE

Poly Spring Street
RIFRKE

Located in the south of Wudang
District and is one kilometre
from the centre of the district
NREEEEH ESERFL
1RERRE

Residential and
commercial
buildings
Tx-Bm%

For sale (partially
delivered)
EEFHrRM)

Poly Park 2010
R 2 E2010

Located in Wudang District and
in close proximity to the district
administration centre, the
project incorporates an 18-hole
international standard golf
course and enjoys
comprehensive community
facilities in the neighbourhood
REERTETOE #E
TRBEREESARLS B
BEERETE

Residential and
commercial
buildings

Tz -®m%

For sale (partially
delivered

EE @ RHM)




Southwestern

il

Project

HHE

Poly The Place of
A Lake
RAME B

Location
BN E

Standing against the backdrop
of Huaxi National Wetland Park
and in the prime location in the
scenic eco-tour zone of Huaxi
District
URERREEREARRT L
W BRTERTKERLD

R BEEBBRAR
ZE-NFFR

Property type
nERR

Residential and
commercial
buildings

Fx B

Current Status
BRMRR

For sale (partially
delivered

EE(BARN)

Guiyang Poly Phoenix Bay Located in Nanming District Residential and For sale (partially
g5 FHBRE built on the site previously commercial delivered)
occupied by Guiyang Power buildings and EE (B RMA)
Plant, the project is a offices
transportation hub linking the T BERET
downtown of Guiyang, Xiaohe 8
and Huaxi Districts in the south
UREHE HEREGERE
i REEELTROEBL )
e ERNBER
Poly Metropolis of | Located in the south of Zunyi, Residential and For sale (partially
Future the project is close to the commercial delivered)
R T T centre of transportation hub buildings and EE#HAIRMN)
Zunyi developed by the government offices
Bx and links to the old town of FE BERET
Zunyi 4
IR EER - RBHFTED
EREZZHENIBBRR
Poly Crescendo Located in the north of Residential and For sale (partially
R E Nanning, the project is commercial delivered
approximately 20-minute drive buildings EE (B RM)
from the city centre Tx B
UREETRILE  BHE4L20
DEER
Nanning
HE Poly Aegean Sea Located in Xiuxiang Avenue and | Residential and Delivered with

RMEZE

adjection to the Lion Hill Park,
the project enjoys convenient
transportation and community
facilities

fIREEMSRAAL  EAMW
NE RBERMN EEE2

commercial
buildings
FE BE

sales of remaining
apartments

INREHE
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Project

HHE

Location

WENE

Property type
NERR

Current Status

BEHRR

Southwestern

il

Nanning
HE

Poly Hearty
RAL R

Located at Mingxiu Road near
the original site of Chongzuo
CPC Academy, the project is a
premium residential
development in Beihu
Subdistrict

IR AR R R R E AL
foRLEBAFREERR

Residential and
commercial
buildings and
offices

Tz BERST
2

For sale (partially
delivered

EE#BIRN)

Poly Dream River

RIBHE

Located in the heart of the
Liusha Peninsula, the project
neighbours the state
guesthouse Liyuan Resort and
Qing Xiu Mountain Golf Course
in the east, Liusha Eco Park in
the west with a planned gross
floor area of over a thousand
acres, as well as a spectacular
view of river in the south
MRMAEERLEN  REE
ERFELENEFURREIR
% RERETEMNNDEED
CEHELEIS MEUEER
it

Residential
buildings
Fx

For sale

EE

Poly Town
RABFEEIM

Located at the junction of
Qinghuan Road and Fengling
South Road in Qingxiu District,
in proximity to the three CBDs
of Dongmeng, Longgang and
Wuxiang, facing Qingxiushan
Park in the west and
overlooking Yong River in the
south
UREERFREEBEEHER
B RE B IR=K
CBDF L AHEAUAE &
mET

Residential and
commercial
buildings and
offices

FE BERET
:

For sale (partially
delivered)
EEHHRMN)

Poly Town Phase Il
(R A B F AT = 4

Located in the arm of Yong
River in the eastern region of
Dongmeng Business Zone in
Qingxiu District, and is adjacent
to Qing Xiu Shan, a 5A-level
scenic area
REFEREFBERERBNHE
TEN HASHUSARERE

Residential and
commercial
buildings and
offices

Tz HERBT
2

For sale

EE




Southwestern

il

Project

HHE

Poly Merization
World

Location
BN E

Neighbouring the old town of
Liubei on the west and the

R BEEBBRAR
ZE-NFFR

Property type
nERR

Residential and

commercial

Current Status
BRMRR
Delivered with
sales of remaining

RI:ATE business district on the south, buildings, offices apartments
and standing on the Liu River and hotels RNBREE
Liuzhou bank with a shoreline of more E%: BE BTF
. than 200 metres, the project BRBE
boasts a prime location and
natural scenery
EEtENE BEATE
CBRIIEREEB00K - L E
B RBEX
Poly Lakeside Located in Ninghu Xincheng of | Residential and Delivered with
Mansion Datun District in Anning City, commercial sales of remaining
RAMEHE R the project shares the same buildings apartments
neighbourhood of “Kunming A€ -m% REESHE
Sunny Lake & Splendid Life”
which is one block away
IREZEREHRERNG &
EHRRE BB EEARM
EHER R
Poly Sky and Earth | Situated in the prime area of Residential and Delivered with
RANE R Renmin Road in the downtown | commercial sales of remaining
area, the project is next to the | buildings and apartments
City Stadium Station serviced by | offices RNRREE
Metro Line 3, which is currently | £%  HERET
under construction. The i
neighbouring area offers
comprehensive ancillary facilities
) UREHBEARBRZOME &
E“H"ﬂm'”g ERSRE  BLBERETE
j=4

B ARLEEREREESR

Poly One Family
One World
RAMAR

Located in the intersection of Er
Huan Bei Road and Puji Road
MR ZRIEEEALTERRER

Residential and
commercial
buildings and
offices

Tz HERBT
2

For sale (partially
delivered)
EE#BHRHN)

Kunming Guan Du
Project

RAERER

Located in Fangwang Area,
Guandu District. Standing at the
intersection of the airport
highway and the East Third
Ring, well-positioned with
convenient transportation.
Fangwang Area has abundant
educational resources
REERAERRE HEES
BREAR=ZRIXA AR
MeREHEERER

Residential and
commercial
buildings

TE BE

Under construction
and prepared for
sale

FEEE
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4. Other Regions
As at 31 December 2019, Poly Property Group had
34 projects in other regions, namely Wuhan, Harbin,
Jinan and other cities, of which 11 were completed,
18 were under construction and five were under
GFA was approximately
6,207,000 square metres, accounting for 28% of Poly
Property Group's total land reserves. Among which,
approximately 3,828,000 square metres were under

planning. The total

construction while 2,379,000 square metres were

H fth it &

RZE—NF+_A=+—H EX5H
FRE BREMEESHERTIEHFE34
BB E - ER1MEEESRT - 18(E1EH
BERELMREE SEEEREP -FEXE

AR EMIEL382.88F 7K » MR
LEEH23798F 7K At L HFHEELD

62078 FH K EEXEE R T HHE
#28% °

under planning.

Project

5HE

Location

WEAE

Property type
UES b

Current Status

BEHRR

Poly Plaza Located in Wuchang, the Offices and Delivered for lease
R E% project is a comprehensive commercial and for sale
commercial complex integrating | buildings TNER EE
commerce, fashion and culture | BF#E - HE
URRER REMK HiF-
XftR—RNESUBERES
Poly City The project is located in Residential For sale (partially
A Hongshan District and is buildings, offices delivered

complemented by a full range
of community and educational
facilities

e AR ERRAR
ERH

and commercial
buildings

Fx BFERE
S

A ICPES)

Poly Blue Ocean

Located at the prime area of

Residential and

Delivered with

ancillary facilities
IRRAEHREBAE  HEH25%
Rk BERRERE

District Wuchang District, the project commercial sales of remaining
RIMEGE boasts unparalleled panoramic | buildings apartments
Others Wuhan . U N o g
4 - lakeside views. Close to Wuhan | % B % RNRREE
Metro Line 2, the project enjoys
an excellent transportation
network
RREFOE  —REH 8
TRENEH S B ERY
Poly Riverview Located in Wuchang, the central | Residential and For sale
REDIEH district of the city and near the | commercial e
Yangtze River buildings
RERERE BORT T B%
Poly Park Located at Hongtu Avenue in Residential and Under planning
N UPNFER Dongxihu District close to Metro | commercial 3=
Line 2, the project is buildings
surrounded by numerous TE BE




Others
At

Wuhan

Project

HHE

Poly Up Town
RA £k

Location
BN E

Located in the newly emerging
Baishazhou area, the project is
adjacent to Wuchang District
and the new town of Nanhu.
Located within the Second Ring,
the project neighbours the
planned Metro Line 5
fIRHEHEDMAE - BE R
ERMEMARENNE fIR=
RA - BIER 1 ES5H R

ol

Property type
nERR

Residential and
commercial
buildings and
offices

EE BELEF

-

BEXEEBRAR

—NLFFR

Current Status

BB OR

For sale (partially
delivered)

Jing He Lu Project

Located in Airport Economic

Residential and

Under planning

. EMBEER Zone and close to Jinghelu commercial R
HE ) . S
station of Metro Line 1 buildings
URGEBEERMARR B | £ B%
ST 00 % 4 A B8 0
Jing Xi Ba Lu Located in Airport Economic Residential and Under planning
Project Zone and is four kilometres commercial HE
TEN\KER from the office of Dongxihu buildings
District government, close to Tx HE
Sandian station of Metro Line 1
RN e
BRRESRBGIAE  BHE
1R IE
The Tsinghua Situated in Nangang District, Residential and Delivered with
Summer Palace of | the central district and is the commercial sales of remaining
Poly cultural and education base for | buildings apartments
RAMEERE higher education, the project TE EE TRNRBHE
enjoys well-established
community amenities
. i RERHE - B5F
Harbin EERERERE
REE
Poly Up Town New residential community Residential and Delivered with
RF 3 located alongside Songhua River | commercial sales of remaining
in Harbin West, designated by buildings apartments
the government as a major Fx ®% RTEREE

residential area
ﬁﬁéﬁ%MNE/LuJ_ %K\
Eﬂ(ﬁi%ﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ’ﬂ%ﬁ%ﬁ@
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Project

HHE

Location

WENE

Property type

Current Status

BEHRR

Poly The Water's Located in Songbei District, the | Residential and For sale (partially
Fragrant Dike project neighbours major commercial delivered
REKERE provincial government offices in | buildings EE(#HARMA)
Harbin and is only 500 metres TE BE
from Songbei Avenue, with
improving municipal facilities in
surrounding areas
LRI E - B 480 B8 T UM
WAR - B KB ES00K - 7
ETHREERSTE
Poly City Located in Daoli District at the | Residential and For sale (partially
) AR junction of West Youyi Road commercial delivered)
Harb!n and Langjiang Road buildings EEBHRHA)
REA HREEERRARRNINR | £3 HE
I i
Qun Li 022 Project | Located on the west of Qunli Residential and Under construction
B H02218 New District in Daoli District, a | commercial and prepared for
key development area of Harbin | buildings sale
UREBERHNNERN 2h | £ BF ERAE
REBHERREY
Poly Tin Yor Located on the west of Qunli Residential and For sale
Others AKX New District in Daoli District, a | commercial rE
4 key development area of Harbin | buildings
a UREERFNNEAN =2h | £ BF
REEHEREN
Poly Landscape Located in Jiangnan New Residential For sale
AN L District, the project is adjacent | buildings EE
Mudanjiang to Mudanjiang and Convention | I%
"L and Exhibition Center
A RT R - EAAL TR R
gRM L
Poly Hyde Mansion | Located in the Honglou Residential and Delivered with
RIBEAE business area of Licheng commercial sales of remaining
District, a commercial centre of | buildings apartments
the new district in the east of | W% INERHE
Jinan
fIRERR  REFRBHER
Jinan £ HEEEE
Em Poly Center Situated at the west of Jinan, Residential and Delivered with
R the project is adjacent to Jinan | commercial sales of remaining
West Market renowned as a buildings apartments
hundred-year-old commercial Tz BE INERHE
market
UREETREANEFEER
ik




Others
Hit

Jinan

Em

Project

HHE

Location

WENE

R BEEBBRAR
ZE-NFFR

Property type
nERR

Current Status

BB OR

Poly Elegant Neighbouring the Honglou Residential and Delivered with
Garden business area, the project is commercial sales of remaining
R ERE located in Lixia District with buildings apartments
convenient transportation TE B INEBEIEE
IRETE BOLEHE X
BEM
Phili House Located at a prime location Residential and For sale
FELE within a distance of 3.5 commercial EE
kilometres from the New Jinan | buildings and
East Station and surrounded by | offices

four metro lines

MR BEEHRUISAERYEE
N BAEREENERERE
g RUEH

FE BERETF
B

Hai Zi Wa Project Located at Changging District, Residential Under construction
BFEEE with extensive scientific, buildings and prepared for
education and human resources, | {£F sale
excellent environment and ERGE
convenient transportation
URREE  FRAMAAMAN
BRES BRARR RBER
Poly Sheng Jing Situated at Changging District Residential For sale
Tai and in proximity to Metro Line | buildings EE
RAMERE R1 under planning, Changging £
Huanghe Bridge and Huayi
Studios
IRFER HBHAREFD
BRISGE - RBENABIARE
EFRM
Zhong Lu Mansion | Located at the downtown of Residential For sale
FER Zhanggqju, surrounded by a buildings EE
number of high schools with =
comprehensive ancillary facilities
and convenient transportation
REERIFR BEERE
& RERE RBEMN
Huai Yin Project Located in West Railway Station | Residential For sale
IREIER of Huaiyin District and is a key | buildings and EE
investment promotion project of | offices
the government of Huaiyin Fx BFiE

District
UARERARGAE  REK
FEHBESIEEER
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Project

HHE

Location

WENE

Property type

Current Status

BEHRR

densely populated with robust
business activities, the project is
easily accessible with convenient
transportation and
comprehensive ancillary facilities
IR EERMFEERERT LR
B EXMAOBRE -R@%

B RERE

Poly Champs Located next to the Phoenix Residential Delivered with
Elysees Mansion Mountain Reservoir, the project | buildings sales of remaining
RIBHENE enjoys a convenient FE apartments
transportation network INEREE
ZRBERILIKE  ZBEF
Poly Blossom Located in the core area of the | Residential Delivered with
Garden Southern New City, the project | buildings sales of remaining
eS¢ is about 500 metres from FE apartments
Guanzhuang Station of Yantai INERHE
section of the planned
Yantai Ciihgrorlngntgrcity Railwazl\
ma MR EZOE - BEEAR
ERUBHERERRBHEY
500K
Poly Ocean Luxe Situated in the core area in Residential For sale (partially
RME =8 High-tech District, the project is | buildings delivered)
north to Binhai Road and is = EE@HARAM)
approximately 300 metres from
the coastline, offering
unparalleled sea views
UREHRERLMLE LBES
% B BERRA00K - FE
REEX
Poly Triumph Situated in the Huancui District, | Residential Delivered with
Others Mansion the project is close to the buildings sales of remaining
EAh RAMSBE R 88 Xianguding Scenic Spot and is | FE apartments
east to the ocean, offering RNERREE
unparalleled sea views
URERE BBURTERS S
BE RERE FEEREEX
Poly Maple Valley | Located in the heart of Huancui | Residential Delivered with
RAMER District, the project is buildings sales of remaining
surrounded by hills in three £ apartments
directions and is easily INERHE
accessible with comprehensive
. ancillary facilities in the
Weihai )
. n\el\ghbggrho\od\ -
UREREEHE  ZHEERL -
RAEN BAEREREEZR
Caixin Poly Situated in the old town centre | Residential For sale
Masterpiece of the economic and technology | buildings EE
BERAELE development zone which is FE




Others
At

R BEEBBRAR
ZE-NFFR

Project Location Property type Current Status
BH wEMLE NEER R HR
Poly Mansion Located at Linzi District with Residential For sale
N E convenient transportation, buildings EE
comprehensive ancillary facilities | T%
and abundant nature resources,
the project is situated in a
densely populated area
IREEE RBEM EEX
E-BRARLE  AXREBR
E
Zibo
s Poly City Located in the core business Residential For sale
R circle of the central business buildings EE
district of Zibo, the project is F=
well supported by educational
resources, convenient
transportation and well-
developed facilities
fIRPLHEROER  EEE
EERER RBRMN EEX
#
Zoina Poly Strategically located at the Residential For sale (partially
Mansion intersection of Baotong Street buildings delivered)
Weifang B R ST and Weixian Road in High-tech | {£% EE#HAIRMN)
H District
RSHEEREEEGERIE
R E M
High-speed Train Located in the core area of the | Residential and Under planning
New District High-Speed Train New District commercial 53
Tai'an P:ojeft and adjacent to the Affiliated b\uildings
% mEEEE Experimental School of Taishan | {F%€ - # %
University
UREETRZOES  BB%
EEHBERER
Poly Peninsula Located in the resort district of | Residential and Under planning
No.1 Shenzhou Peninsula in Wanning | commercial &
RFEB15% City, Hainan Province, the buildings
Wanning project enjoys beautiful coastal | % EHH
g% resources

frm BRI A BE MM+ BIKE
ERE FHEEBEXNER
Bk
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5. Hong Kong and Overseas

As at 31 December 2019, Poly Property Group had
five projects in Hong Kong and overseas regions, of
which two were completed,
construction and one was under planning. The total
GFA was approximately 153,000 square metres,

two were under

5. BEBRENMME
R-E—NFE+-A=+—H B%X£E
EEAEREIIMNMEFEBSEER - HA2(E
HEE®R T  2EEE ERIELIREE - 1
HEREP - FEERERLEEMBEL60
BEARK FERAEERE

ER9.38F 7

accounting for 1% of Poly Property Group's total land Ko BE T MEBOISIE T K hE

reserves. Among which, approximately 60,000 square

metres were under construction while 93,000 square

metres were under planning.

FEBBELHREREDNI% -

Hong Kong and
overseas

BEREI

Hong Kong
BB

Project Location Property type Current Status
HHE WEAE NERR BEMRR
Kai Tak Vibe Located in the Kai Tak Residential Delivered with
Centro Development Area of Kowloon buildings sales of remaining
BERs near the Kai Tak Station along F=x apartments

the Shatin — Central MTR line INERHE

under construction and will take

only 10 minutes by MTR to

reach the core areas of Hong

Kong Island

IRNERERERRA 0

EROWED D RREY AR

0N EERAEEETOE
Tuen Mun Project | Located in the Castle Peak Bay | Villas Under construction
HFEA section of Castle Peak Road, GlE and prepared for

Tuen Mun, the project is a
low-density beachside
residential project encircled by
ancillary facilities such as
Harrow International School
Hong Kong, Gold Coast and
Tuen Mun Hospital in the
neighbourhood
UREMESLREEILER -
ARYBETELTEE B
ERENZ HeBFREME
RERERE

sale

EREE

Yau Tong Project
HEEE

Located in Yau Tong District,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon East,
about 10-minute walk distance
from Yau Tong MTR station
URNERBERBEIE &
TERBEHEIEH09 &

Residential and
commercial
buildings

Fx -BmE

Under construction
and prepared for
sale

TRRHE




R BEEBBRAR
ZE-NFFR

Hong Kong and
overseas

BEREI

Project Location Property type Current Status
BH wEMLE NEER R HR
Kai Tak 6553 Located in the runway of the Residential and Under planning
Project former Kai Tak airport, commercial i
BR#2655378 B Kowloon, Hong Kong, the buildings
project enjoys the fascinating TE BE
Hong Kong o . .
= Victoria Harbor view with great
development potential
IREBNEREERSNE -
FE-—RAERER BARRE
7
Cambium Project Located in Wandsworth, Residential Delivered with
HitBIER Southwest London, which is buildings sales of remaining
well-known for its high-quality = apartments
school district and tranquillity, THEBREE
the project is approximately
15-minute walk from the nearby
London .
~ subway station and
(GE

approximately 30-minute drive
from Central London
URAREZARE UEEE
RRBMRERE  £17155 8
AEEE L ERET L
FORER
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Capital Structure

As at 31 December 2019, total equity attributable to
shareholders of the Company amounted to
HK$32,552,160,000 (2018: HK$29,889,095,000), while the
net asset value per share was HK$8.89 (2018: HK$8.16). As
at 31 December 2019, the Group’s gearing ratio (on the
basis of the amount of total liabilities divided by the
amount of total assets) was 78.1% (2018: 78.1%).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had an outstanding
bank and other borrowings (including the notes payable) of
HK$64,217,191,000. In terms of maturity, the outstanding
bank and other borrowings (including notes payable) can
be divided into HK$15,349,243,000 (24%) to be repaid
within one year, HK$16,980,251,000 (26%) to be repaid
after one year but within two years, HK$24,493,099,000
(38%) to be repaid after two years but within five years,
HK$7,394,598,000 (12%) to be repaid after five years. In
terms of currency denomination, the outstanding bank and
other borrowings (including the notes payable) can be
divided into HK$52,492,107,000 (82%)
HK$3,900,000,000 (6%) in United State dollars,
HK$7,825,084,000 (12%) in Hong Kong dollars.

in Renminbi,
and

36.6% of the bank and other borrowings (including the
notes payable) of the Group are subject to fixed interest
rates and the remaining 63.4% are subject to floating
interest rates. Therefore, under circumstances of interest
rates uncertainty or fluctuations or otherwise as
appropriate, the Group will consider the use of hedging
instruments (including interest rates swaps), in order to

manage interest rate risks.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a net current
assets of HK$58,574,423,000 and total bank balances of
HK$27,914,326,000 (2018: HK$47,889,262,000 and
HK$27,354,481,000, respectively). With the available
banking facilities and cash revenue from business
operations, it is believed that the Group has sufficient
resources to meet the foreseeable working capital

demands and capital expenditure.

Bt %% B B

RBEERERERE
RZEBE-NAF+_A=+—8 ARFIZKRE
JE {25 4888 /532,552,160,0008 T (ZZ— N\

F 1 29,889,095,000/8 70)  MEREEFEA
88B T (ZE—NF:8168TT) - R_E—H

$+*ﬂ:+fEl KREBZEEARBLR GG
EEBABEABERINEELE) B78.1% (=
T—N\F :781%) °

RZE-—NF+_A=+—8 KEBHKE
BErROMEMNEEBEERESER A
64,217,191,000%8 7T ° IZ B EAR H 48 - REZEE
ThREMEE(BRENER IS AE—FA
B8 215,349,243,000 7T (24% ) ~ T —F 1. 18
A 9B 2 216,980,251,000/8 7T (26% ) - £
F 1518 7L F NEIE 2 24,493,099,0005% 7t (38% )
&E£¢ 1% 18 18 27,394,598,0005% 7T (12% ) °

BREES R REERTIEMEE(RIEE
NEE) D Ak AR E 252,492,107,000
7 7T (82% ) ~ 12 35 JT 51 18 2.3,900,000,000% 7T
(6%) X ¥& 7 JU 5 & 27,825,084,000/8 7T
(12%) °

$$l366%§E/_&E1‘@{ﬁ,§(&?EJEH%;%?F)L‘A
lmg st B T ER N 63.4%8I DAE B B

o E I Ef'JTTﬁEEY&@JT‘ﬁWLEF
/RT AEBEBERFEAE P TR (BEMERE
H)EEAERR -

R-ZEBE—NF+_A=+—"H AEBZRH
& EF{E A58,574,423,00008 70 © SRITHETR A
27,914,326,000 T (Z T — \NF: 5 5 &
47,889,262,000/ 7t }2.27,354,481,000/ 7T) - A
TAPHHARTEERLERWE HELAE
EEHETARTERENAEBRZEEESHT LK
BEARME -



The monetary assets and liabilities and business
transactions of the Group are mainly carried and
conducted in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi and United
States dollars. The Group maintains a prudent strategy in
its foreign exchange risk management, where foreign
exchange risks are minimised via balancing the monetary
assets versus monetary liabilities, and foreign exchange
revenue versus foreign exchange expenditures. The
management believes that the foreign exchange rate
between Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars is
relatively stable. Due to recent fluctuation of Renminbi
exchange rate against Hong Kong dollars, the Group
closely monitors the fluctuation and adopts policy to

minimise exchange rate risks, if necessary.

Pledged Assets
At the end of the reporting period, the carrying value of
the Group’s assets which were pledged to secure credit

facilities granted to the Group are as follows:

R BEEBBRAR
ZE-NFFR

AEBEZEREERABREBRITENR
T ARBEETREMIBERET - AEE
EHNERBRERETEAFERZ TS - EBF
BMEBEERTR B E A RIMNE WA EIHME R
X HINERBRERE - EEEMRE AT
ARETZEFHEHRE ARKRIARELE
TEXRRE AEEENERAEREY XA
5 B P BR R IR SRR M O R R g o

CEHEE
RBEK  AEBCEAERREBRERRD
EERENERNEAEREERT

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Investment properties "EY % 6,770,988 6,031,545
Hotel properties B JE ) 2 1,465,556 151,724
Buildings BF — 95,931
Right-of-use assets EREEE 96,370 —
Prepaid lease payments AT & R IE — 61,656
Properties under development BRPME 27,623,760 19,685,181
Properties held for sale BHIEHEWE 728,349 924,713
Bank deposits HRITIF R 433,580 4,201,597
37,118,603 31,152,347
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In addition to above pledge of assets, at 31 December
2019 and 2018, the Group’s interests in certain subsidiaries
was pledged to secure credit facilities granted to the
Group. The details of net asset value of subsidiaries are as

follows:

BREREERTIN RZF-AFER-FT-N
FT_A=+t—8 AKERETHERF K
RETCEMEALAEBEERNEERENE
Ro-MBRAEEFENFRAT

HK$'000 HK$'000

F@&xT FET

Total assets BEE 14,040,422 11,584,681
Total liabilities BEfE (13,221,788) (10,680,886)
Net assets value FEE 818,634 903,795

At 31 December 2019,
ventures were pledged to secure the credit facilities
granted to the joint ventures. At 31 December 2018, the
Group's interests in joint ventures were pledged to secure
the credit facilities granted to the joint ventures. The
pledged interests were amounting to HK$3,713,975,000.

no Group’s interests in joint

Contingent Liabilities

The Group arranged mortgage loan facilities with certain
banks for purchasers of property units and provided
guarantees to banks to secure obligations of such
purchasers of repayment. The maximum guarantees given
to banks amounted to HK$29,978,261,000 as at 31
2019 (2018: HK$24,775,663,000). Such
guarantees terminate upon the earlier of (i) issue of the

December

real estate ownership certificate; and (ii) the satisfaction of
the mortgage loans by the buyers of the properties. The
Group has not recognised any deferred income in respect
of these guarantees as its fair value is considered to be
minimal by the Directors. The Directors also consider that
the fair value of the underlying properties is able to cover
the outstanding mortgage loans generated by the Group in
the event the purchasers default payments to the banks.
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As at 31 December 2019, the Group had given guarantees
to certain banks in respect of credit facilities granted to
certain joint ventures of the Group amounting to
HK$3,062,527,000 (2018: HK$3,923,226,000), of which
HK$3,032,841,000 (2018: HK$3,909,068,000) had been
utilised by the joint ventures.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed about
11,571 employees with remuneration for the year
amounted to approximately HK$1,447,713,000. The Group
provides its employees with various benefits including
year-ended double-pay, contributory provident fund and
In addition,
discretionary bonuses are also granted based on the

medical insurance. share options and
Group's and individual's performance. Employee trainings

are also provided as and when required.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANC
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This corporate governance report (“CG Report”) presents
the corporate governance matters of Poly Property Group
Co., Limited (the “Company”, and together with its
subsidiaries, the "“Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2019 and up to the date of this CG Report
("CG Period”). The Company devotes to the best practice
on corporate governance, and to comply to the extent
practicable, with the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE CODE

Throughout the year under review, the Company has
complied with the code provisions as set out in the CG
Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, other
than code provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4 of the CG Code. The
reasons for deviations from such provisions are explained
below:

Code Provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4 of the CG

Code — Nomination Committee

Under code provisions A.5.1 to A.5.4 of the CG Code,
listed issuers should, among others, establish a nomination
committee with specific written terms of reference. The
Company has considered the merits of establishing a
nomination committee but is of the view that it is in the
best interests of the Company that the Board collectively
reviews, deliberates on and approves the structure, size
and composition of the Board, appoints or re-appoints of
any Director and assesses the independence of
independent non-executive Directors. The Board is tasked
with ensuring that it has a balanced composition of skills
and experience appropriate for the requirements of the
businesses of the Group and that appropriate individuals
with the relevant expertise and leadership qualities are
appointed to the Board to complement the capabilities of

the existing Directors.
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The Company considers that sufficient measures have been
taken to ensure that the Company’s corporate governance
practices are no less exacting than those in the CG Code.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE
SET OUT IN APPENDIX 10 TO THE
LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting
than the required standard of the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model
Code"). Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, all
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code and the code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions adopted by the Company
throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.

THE BOARD

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises seven executive directors
("ED(s)") and four independent non-executive directors
("INED(s)"). The four INEDs,
one-third of the Board, have constituted a proper balance
of power maintaining full and effective control of both the
Group and its management. The Company has received
from each of the INEDs a written confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to the requirements of the Listing

representing not less than

Rules and has considered that all INEDs are independent
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in
the Listing Rules. Biographical particulars of the Directors
are set out on pages 80 to 83.
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Chairman and Managing Director
In order to independence,
accountability and responsibility, the role of the Chairman

reinforce their respective
is separated from that of the Managing Director of the
Company. The Chairman provides leadership and is
responsible for the effective functioning of the Board in
accordance with good corporate governance practice and
ensuring the effectiveness of the Board. With the support
of the management, the Chairman is also responsible for
ensuring that the Directors receive adequate, complete
in a timely manner and

and reliable information

appropriate briefing on issues arising at Board meetings.

The Managing Director focuses on managing the Company
and its subsidiaries, developing and implementing
objectives, policies and strategies approved and delegated
by the Board.
charge of the Group’s day-to-day management and

In addition, the Managing Director is in

operations and is also responsible for developing strategic
plans and formulating the organisational structure, control
systems and internal procedures and processes for the
Board's approval.

Board Responsibilities and Delegation

The Board collectively takes responsibility for all major
matters of the Company, including the approval and
monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies, internal
control and financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant
and operational The day-to-day

management, administration and operation of the

risk management systems,

financial matters.
Company are delegated to the Managing Director and the
management. Approval has to be obtained from the Board
prior to any significant transaction entered into by the
officers.

Nomination of Directors

The Board shall be composed of members with mixed skills
and experience with appropriate weights necessary to
accomplish the Group’s business development, strategies,
operation, challenges and opportunities. Each member of
the Board shall possess, be recognised for and be able to
exhibit high and professional standard of a set of core
criteria of competence.
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The Company had adopted a nomination policy for the
nomination procedures and selection criteria regarding the
appointment of Directors.

Under the nomination policy, the board of EDs has been
delegated the full power to the administration of the
nomination policy and the appointment and the
termination of Directors, where the full Board remains to
have the full and overriding power and absolute right
thereover.

The Board adopted the board membership diversity policy
for maintaining the appropriate skills and experience
required by the Company's business and a diversity of
perspectives on the Board. In considering the new
appointment of Directors, the selection will be based on a
series of diversity scopes, including but not limited to
gender, background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge, and industry
and regional experience.

age, cultural and educational

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of

Directors

The appointment of the directorship is subject to, as to
EDs, retirement, rotation and re-election at least once
every three financial years and, as to INEDs, their specific
term of office or their retirement by rotation at annual
general meeting of the Company (“AGM"), at which they
being eligible can offer themselves for re-election.

Separate resolutions are proposed for the election of each
Director. One-third of the Directors, or if the number is
not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to one-
third, must retire from office at each AGM and their re-
election is subject to a vote of the shareholders. Any
Director appointed during the year to fill a casual vacancy
is subject to re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Han Qingtao, Mr. Ye Liwen, Miss Leung
Sau Fan, Sylvia and Mr. Wong Ka Lun shall retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM.

In accordance with Code Provision A.4.3 of Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules, Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia has been
served as a Director of the Company for more than 9
years. Miss Leung shall retire and, being eligible, offer
herself for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.
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Directors’ Training and Continuous

Professional Development
All Directors, INEDs,
understanding as to their collective responsibilities as
directors and the businesses and activities of the Group.
Each newly appointed Director would receive an induction
package covering the Group’s businesses and the statutory

including should have good

and regulatory obligations of a director of a listed
company. The Group also provides briefings and other
training to develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge
and updates all
developments regarding the Listing Rules
applicable regulatory requirements to ensure compliance
and to enhance their awareness of good corporate

and skills, Directors on the latest

and other

governance practices. During the CG Period, all existing

Directors have received relevant trainings on topics
relating to corporate governance and regulations and have
provided their training records. The Company is of the
view that all Directors have complied with code provision

A.6.5 of the CG Code based on the above.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities Insurance
The Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liabilities insurance in respect of legal action
arising from the business of the Group against the
Directors and officers.

Board Meetings and Attendance

The Board meets regularly to review the financial and
operating performance of the Group and to discuss future
strategy. Four regular Board meetings were held in 2019.
At the Board meetings, the Board reviewed significant
matters including the Group’s annual and interim financial
statements, proposals for interim and final dividends,
interim report and annual report. At least 14 days’ notice
is given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings and
all Directors are given the opportunity to include matters
for discussion in the agenda. The agenda and Board
papers for each meeting are sent to all Directors at least
three days in advance of every regular Board meeting. All
minutes of the Board meetings are kept by the company
secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) and
are available to all Directors for inspection. In addition, the
Chairman had an annual interchange with all the non-
executive Directors (including the independent non-
executive ones) of the Company without the other
executive Directors present.
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The attendance record of each Director at the Board T I AZESEN _ZET—NFEHFEEEaEN

meetings and AGM in 2019 is set out below:

Name of Director

EspR

Zhang Bingnan (appointed on 1 February 2019)

KRR —E—NF_A—HEZE)

Han Qingtao

B E S
E&/ﬁ I

Xue Ming

e

Wang Xu
e

Wang Jian (appointed on 1 February 2019)
IRR-FE-NFZHA—HEZF)

Ye Liwen

i 2R [

Zhu Weirong

LER

Ip Chun Chung, Robert
ZiRA

Choy Shu Kwan

Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia

Wong Ka Lun

EEN

BRBERE N FE AL :

Board Capacity Attendance AGM
REZEEZ5H HERX BRRBFAE

ED, Chairman 3/4 v
BITEE X%

ED, Vice Chairman 2/4 -
WITEEF BIEF

ED 1/4 -
HITES
ED 1/4 -
WITES
ED, Managing Director 3/4 v

WITES EFHRKE

ED 4/4 v
HTES

ED 4/4 v
HITEE

INED 4/4 v
BYFRTES

INED 3/4 -
BYFRTES

INED 3/4 v
BYFRTES

INED 3/4 v
BYFHTES
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the remuneration committee
(the “Remuneration Committee”) from the adoption date
and consisted of four INEDs, being Mr. Wong Ka Lun
(Chairman), Mr. Ip Chun Chung, Robert, Mr. Choy Shu
Kwan and Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia during the year
under review.

The role and function of Remuneration Committee include:
o formulating remuneration policy;

. recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
policy for the Directors;

. review of, approval of and recommendation for (if any)
the remuneration package of each Director including
benefits in kind, pension right, performance bonus
payment and compensation payable;

o review and approval of the compensation payment to
any Director upon his/her cessation of directorship in
or employment with the Company; and

o engagement of external professional advisers to assist
and/or advise Remuneration Committee on its duties
when necessary.

The terms of reference of Remuneration Committee had
been compiled since the establishment of Remuneration
Committee and were revised in December 2015 and
March 2019 and were endorsed and adopted by the
Board. It is available on the Company’s website.

The summary of the work performed by Remuneration
Committee for the financial period under review is as
follows:

o endorsement to the remuneration policy for the
Directors; and

o review and approval of the remuneration package of
each Director including benefits in kind, pension
right, bonus payment and compensation payable
taking in to account of their performance.
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DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid to and/or entitled by each of the
Directors for the financial period under review is set out in
note 11 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

In 2019, Remuneration Committee held one committee
meeting. The composition of Remuneration Committee and
the respective attendance of the committee members are

presented as follows:
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Name of Members Board Capacity Attendance
ZEHE REZBSZ254H R
Wong Ka Lun (Chairman) INED 171
BERMmW(EE) BUYFATES
Ip Chun Chung, Robert INED 1/1
ERE BIYERITES
Choy Shu Kwan INED 1/1
28 83 BYFATES
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia INED 1/1
RFE 5 BIYFERITES

BREEY

ARpAlzERZBR(ERZEEGDR
—NANF=ZRA+NBXZ - BRIAWEEETL
FHTETER BRERBFFPEERE) X
REEE BHHARERERMEL -

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) was established on 19 March 1999 and
currently consists of four INEDs, being Miss Leung Sau
Fan, Sylvia (Chairlady), Mr. Ip Chun Chung, Robert, Mr.
Choy Shu Kwan and Mr. Wong Ka Lun.

—NF ARAREERZESG - EX
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In 2019, the Company had maintained an Audit
Committee. The major functions of the Audit Committee

%
| |

include serving as a focal point for communication

between Directors and external auditors, reviewing the
Company's financial information as well as overseeing the
Company's financial reporting system and internal control

procedures.
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the Audit
Committee had performed the following duties:

For the financial period under review,

reviewed and commented on the audited full year

financial statements and the unaudited interim
financial results of the Group of the financial period
under review before submission to the Board for

adoption and publication;

o endorsed the policy on the engagement of external
auditor for non-audit services;

. met with the auditor to discuss the financial matters
of the Group that arose during the course of the
audit process, and reviewed the findings,
recommendations and representations of the auditor;

o reviewed and approved the remuneration and the
terms of engagement of the auditor for both audit
services and non-audit services for the financial
period under review; and

o reviewed the internal audit reports and the Company's
statement on internal control.

After due and careful consideration of the reports from the
management of the Group and the auditor, the Audit
Committee was of the view that the Group has an
effective internal control.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee had been
compiled since the establishment of the Audit Committee
and revised by the Board on 21 January 2009, 18
December 2015 and 29 March 2019. It is available on the
Company's website.
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Acknowledgement of Responsibility for the

Financial Statements

The members of the Audit Committee acknowledged their
responsibilities for reviewing the financial statements of the
Group. In reviewing the financial statements for the
financial period under review, the members have:

o based on a going concern basis;

o selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently; and

J made judgements and estimates that were prudent,
fair and reasonable.

Review of Internal Control
During the financial period under review, the Audit
Committee had arranged to conduct a review over the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group.

The review had been reported to the Board.

External Auditor and Their Remuneration

The external audit provides an objective assessment of the
financial information presented by the management. BDO
Limited was engaged as the external auditor of the
Company. Their independence and audit process are
reviewed and monitored by the Audit Committee which
considered the scope of the audit work, audit fees, non-
audit services as well as their appointment and retention.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the fees paid or
payable by the Group to the auditor (including
disbursements) in respect of their audit services and non-
audit services amounted to approximately HK$9,238,000
and HK$98,000, respectively. In addition, the Group has
also paid HK$3,124,000 to its network firm in respect of
other services provided to certain subsidiaries in the PRC.
Other services mainly consist of taxation services, advisory

and other professional services.
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In 2019, the Audit Committee had held three physical —ZT—NF FZZESLT T ZHEZES
meetings to (i) review and discuss the key audit matters, ZEHFEFZ2EH  UOHBEBERFTRAEE
audited full year financial statements and the unaudited M EEHBAFz BREEZEE LEZ2F

interim financial results of the Group of the financial BHMEEAECEZTHRUBESE BEXT
period under review before submission to the Board for ZEZEFHERTIE : (\EHANMBEZRE LA

adjustment and publication, (i) review the internal audit A& Z ANIPEFEARAT o

reports and the Company’s statement an internal control.

BEREZEGCHERUREEGZESEZH
TR

T

The composition of the Audit Committee and the
respective attendance of the committee members are
presented as follows:

Name of Members Board Capacity Attendance
ZEEHA REZEZ54H HE =R
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia (Chairlady) INED 3/3
REZ(LE) BYIFATES
Ip Chun Chung, Robert INED 3/3
L i BYIFATES
Choy Shu Kwan INED 2/3
2H 8 BUYFATES
Wong Ka Lun INED 3/3
EENG BYIFATES

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REEEZES

The risk management committee of the Company (the
“Risk Management Committee”) was established in
December 2015.
consists of two EDs, being Mr. Wang Jian and Mr. Ye
Liwen, and four INEDs, being Mr. Choy Shu Kwan
(Chairman), Mr. Ip Chun Chung, Robert, Miss Leung Sau
Fan, Sylvia and Mr. Wong Ka Lun.

In 2019, Risk Management Committee

AprmzERERZE2((RREREZES])
R-ZFB-—RAFE+T AR -R_FT—NLF &
REEZEeamMARTEFTAIRELR
ﬂJr?@l%ﬁf‘EE)&@%?%J_é‘FiﬂfTi%(Eﬂ%i k)
EE(ERE) ERDELE REFNDEARER
k)X e



In 2019, the Company had maintained a Risk Management
Committee. The major role and function of the Risk
Management Committee are as follows:

o monitor and review the process of the risk
management and advise to the Board about the
effectiveness of and improvements to be made to the
existing risk management system;

J provide guidelines to the management on risk
management and set up procedures to unveil, assess
risk factors; and ensure
responsibility to
implement an effective risk management system;

and manage material
management discharges its

o review and report to the Board the effectiveness of
the risk management system; and

o review with the Group’s management, external auditor
and internal auditor, the adequacy of the Group's
policies and procedures regarding risk management
system and any relevant statement by the Directors
to be report prior to
endorsement by the Board.

included in the annual

The terms of reference of the Risk Management
Committee has been compiled since the establishment of
Risk Management Committee and has been set out on the
Company's website.

During the CG Period, the Risk Management Committee
had held two physical meetings for discussing matters in
relation to the risk management of the Group.

In 2019, the Risk Management Committee reviewed macro
risks of the real estate industry and internal risks including
operating risks, financial risks and compliance risks and
made recommendations on improvements of risk control to
the Board.
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In 2019, the composition of the Risk Management RI-IZE—NFRRKREBZESZHERUREE
respective attendance of the E©ZEBZEZHBEERWNT :
committee members are presented as follows:

Committee and the

Name of Members Board Capacity Attendance
ZEHA REBSEZ254H HE =
Choy Shu Kwan (Chairman) INED 2/2
258 (EE) BUFATES

lp Chun Chung, Robert INED 2/2
ER& BIYFERITES

Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia INED 2/2
RF5 % BUFATES

Wong Ka Lun INED 2/2
EEN BUFATES

Wang Jian ED, Managing Director 2/2
T WITES EFAKHE

Ye Liwen ED 1/2
2R [# WITE=R

DNEMWE

NRAMEBRERGEERESTENZERER
HAeELs ERESFZEAEARER A

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping detailed
minutes of each meeting of the Board and the

Committees including any dissenting views expressed by
the Directors, which should be available to all Directors for
inspection. He is also responsible for ensuring that the
Board procedures comply with all applicable laws, rules
and regulations and advising the Board on corporate
governance matters. All agenda, relevant materials and
documents are required to be sent out at least three days
prior to the intended dates of the Board meetings or
Committees’ meetings. It is the responsibility of the
Company Secretary to send the draft minutes of the
meetings of the Board or the Committees to all Directors
for comments within a reasonable time after the aforesaid
meetings. Final versions of minutes of meetings of the
Board and the Committees are also required to be sent to
all Directors for record. All Directors have accessed to the
advice and services of the Company Secretary to ensure

that the Board procedures and all applicable laws are

MLl HE2BEZEH RIAAERRE
EeCRBEFETHMBEREZE RAUER
- ARREREAFTHANESTGROES -
FMEgRZRE AHENRXHEZEIRESR
EHALECCERBEMEAM=REL - Nt
SRERE AANWERAENRAERERER
EXZCUZBERRZYRERTHEESRE
i MEKNEFERZBEERALERAE
NAERXRSEEFE MAEFHANEQA
MENBERLRERERBZRY  ARERERE



followed. Moreover, the Company Secretary is responsible
for keeping all Directors updated on the Listing Rules,
regulatory requirements, as well as internal codes of
conduct of the Company.

During the CG Period, the Company Secretary had
confirmed that he had taken relevant professional training
in accordance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Set out below is a summary of certain rights of the
shareholders of the Company.

Procedures for Convening a General
Meeting

Shareholder(s) holding not less than 5% of the total voting
rights of all the shareholders have a right to vote at
general meetings can submit a written requisition to
convene a general meeting in accordance with Section 566
of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of
Hong Kong).

The written requisition must:

(i) state the general nature of the business to be dealt
with at the meeting;

(i)  contain the signatures of all the requisitionists (which
may be contained in one document or in several
documents in like form); and

(iii) be deposited at the Company’s registered office
(Room 2503, Admiralty Centre, Tower 1, 18 Harcourt
Road, Hong Kong) for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

RAEZEEARATA
ZE-NFFR
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If Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a
general meeting for a day not more than 28 days after the
date on which the notice convening the general meeting is
given, the requisitionists, or any of them representing
more than one-half of the total voting rights of all of
them, may themselves convene a general meeting, but any
general meeting so convened shall not be held after the

expiration of 3 months from the said date.

Shareholders’ Enquiries
Shareholders may at any time send their enquires to the
Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary
through the following methods:

(i)  in writing to the Company’s registered office at Room
2503, Admiralty Centre, Tower |, 18 Harcourt Road,
Hong Kong; or

(i)  fill in the enquiry form set out in the “Contact Us”
section of the Company’s website.

Proposing Directors for Election at General
Meetings

The provisions for a shareholder to propose a person for
election as a Director are laid down in Article 120 of the
Company's Articles of Association:

No person, other than a retiring Director, shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible for
election as a Director at any general meeting, unless there
shall have been lodged at the registered office of the
Company a notice signed by a shareholder (other than the
person to be proposed) entitled to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his/her intention
to propose such person for election and also a notice
signed by the person to be proposed of his willingness to
be elected. The period for lodgement of such notices shall
be no less than seven days and shall commence no earlier
than the day after the despatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and no later
than seven days prior to the date of such general
meeting.
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Accordingly, if a shareholder wishes to nominate a person
to stand for election as a Director of the Company at the
general meeting, the following documents must be validly
served on the Company Secretary at the registered office
of the Company:

(i) his/her notice of intention to propose a resolution at
the general meeting; and

(i)  a notice executed by the nominated candidate of the
candidate’s willingness to be appointed together
with:

(a) that candidate’s information as required to be
disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules and such other information; and

(b) the candidate’s written consent to the

publication of his/her personal data.

Shareholders’ Communication Policy and other Corporate
Governance Principles of the Company could be reviewed
at Company's website.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

ZHANG Bingnan, aged 47, holds a doctoral degree in
economics from Xi'an Jiaotong University. Mr. Zhang has
been appointed as the Chairman of the Company and the
chairman of Poly Property Group Co., Limited (a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company established in the PRC)
since February 2019. As the Chairman of the Board, Mr.
Zhang is primarily responsible for overall management,
major development of the Group. Mr. Zhang is also a
director and the general manager of Poly (Hong Kong)
Holdings Limited (“Poly Holdings”).

HAN Qingtao, aged 59, holds an Executive Master Degree
of Business Administration from Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law. Mr. Han was the managing director of
Poly Southern Group Co., Ltd. (“Poly Southern”) during the
period from December 2005 to September 2007, an
executive Director of the Company during the period from
October 2007 to August 2011, a senior officer of the Real
Estate Department of China Poly Group Corporation
Limited (“China Poly Group”) during the period from
August 2011 to October 2014, and the Managing Director
of the Company from October 2014 to February 2019, and
currently is the Vice Chairman of the Company. He is also
a director of Poly Holdings and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

XUE Ming, aged 58, holds a master’s degree in Economics
from Renmin University of China, a doctorate degree in
Management from Beijing Forestry University and is a
senior economist. Mr. Xue has been appointed as an
executive Director of the Company since April 2006, was
the Managing Director of the Company during the period
from July 2009 to October 2014, and was the Chairman of
the Board of the Company from April 2010 to February
2019. Mr. Xue is also a deputy general manager of China
Poly Group, the chairman of Poly Holdings and a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Group.
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WANG Xu, aged 60, has been an executive Director of the
Company since October 2007. Mr. Wang had been the
chairman of Poly Southern during the period from March
2003 to September 2007, the Managing Director of the
Company during the period from October 2007 to July
2009 and is also the chief economist of China Poly Group,
the deputy chairman of Poly Holdings and a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Group.

WANG Jian, aged 48, holds a master’'s degree in
Architecture from South China University of Technology.
Mr. Wang has been appointed as the Managing Director of
the Company and a director and the general manager of
Poly Property Group Co.,
subsidiary of the Company established in the PRC) since

Limited (a wholly owned

February 2019. As the Managing Director of the Group,
Mr. Wang is primarily responsible for the operation and
management of the Group. Mr. Wang is also a director of
Poly Holdings. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Wang
was the deputy general manager of Poly Developments
and Holdings Group Co., Ltd. (“PDHGCL"), the substantial
shareholder of the Company, for over 10 years.

YE Liwen, aged 49, holds a bachelor's degree from
Dongbei University of Finance and Economics and a
master's degree in Business Administration from Peking
University. Mr. Ye was a senior officer of China Poly Group
for the period from 1994 to 2001 and joined the Company
in 2001 as a manager of investment department. He has
been appointed as an executive Director of the Company
since November 2006, and currently also acts as the chief
financial controller of Poly Holdings, and a deputy general
manager of the Company, and a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.
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ZHU Weirong, aged 57, holds a master's degree in
International from the Department of
International Politics at Peking University. Mr. Zhu worked
for China Poly Group from 1994 to 2001, joined Poly
Holdings and the Company in 2001.

Relations

He has been
appointed as an executive Director of the Company since
August 2016 and currently also acts as a deputy general
manager of Poly Holdings and the Company, and a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR

IP Chun Chung, Robert, aged 63, joined the Company in
January 2001 as an independent non-executive Director
and a member of Audit Committee and was redesignated
to non-executive Director since July 2004. He has been a
member of Risk Management Committee since December
2015. Mr.
executive Director since February 2019 and is also a

Ip has redesignated to independent non-

member of Remuneration Committee. Mr. Ip has been a
practising solicitor in Hong Kong since 1985 and is a
consultant of Messrs. Cheng, Yeung & Co. Mr. Ip has over
35 years of experience in legal aspects and more than 20
years of experience in listing related and corporate
takeover, mergers and acquisition areas. He was an
independent non-executive director of Changhong Jiahua
Holdings Limited (Stock code: 08016), a company listed on

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd..

CHOY Shu Kwan, aged 65, holds a master’'s degree in
Business Administration and has over 20 years’ extensive
experience in financial business and investment
management. Mr. Choy worked for the CITIC Group Hong
Kong for over 20 years. Before his resignation in 2007, he
was the managing director of CITIC Capital Markets
Limited. Mr. Choy has joined the Company since July 2004
as an independent non-executive Director and currently is
the chairman of Risk Management Committee, a member
of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Mr. Choy is also an
executive director of Skyfame Realty (Holdings) Limited

(Stock code: 00059).

independent non-
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LEUNG Sau Fan, Sylvia, aged 56, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company. Miss Leung holds a
bachelor's degree in Accountancy from City University of
Hong Kong and had studied as an external student and
passed the accredited examinations and obtained a
bachelor of laws degree from the University of London.
Miss Leung was an independent non-executive director of
Prosper Construction Holdings Limited (stock code:
06816), listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd. Miss Leung is now a
responsible officer of an entity licensed to conduct, among

the shares of which is

others, type 6 (advising on corporate finance) regulated
activity under the Securities and Futures Ordinance. She is
also an independent non-executive director of China
Aerospace Holdings Limited (stock code:
00031), listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Ltd. She has over 20 years of

experience in company secretarial and corporate finance

International
the shares of which is

advisory. Miss Leung has joined the Company since
August 2010 as an independent non-executive Director
and is currently the chairlady of Audit Committee and a
member of each of the Remuneration Committee and the
Risk Management Committee.

WONG Ka Lun, aged 70, holds a bachelor's degree in
Social Sciences from The University of Hong Kong
majoring in Economics and Psychology. Mr. Wong had held
various executive and management positions with Cathy
Pacific Airways, John Swire & Sons (China) Limited and
Swire Travel Limited. He has joined the Company since
November 2012 as an independent non-executive Director
and currently is the chairman of Remuneration Committee,
a member of each of the Audit Committee and the Risk
Management Committee. Mr. Wong is also a director of
the board of The Hong Kong International Film Festival
Society Limited and a council member of The Hong Kong
Chinese Orchestra.
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COMPANY SECRETARY AND
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

WONG Cheuk Him, aged 55, joined the Group in 2007
and is currently the deputy financial controller and the
company secretary of the Company. He holds a bachelor’s
degree of Social Sciences awarded by The University of
Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is a fellow member of The Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and is a
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Wong has extensive working experience
in the areas of accounting, auditing, financial control,
Before joining the
Mr. Wong had over ten years of working

compliance and corporate finance.
Group,
experience in international certified public accountant firms
and had previously held the positions of financial
controller, company secretary and authorized
representative in other companies listed on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

WU Guangming, aged 58, holds a PhD in Business
Administration from China Academic Affairs Division of
Liberty University, U.S.A. and is a senior economist. Dr. Wu
joined China Poly Group in January 2005 and joined the
Group in September 2007. He currently acts as a deputy
general manager of the Group managing the Product
Management Centre, Guangxi
subsidiaries, and Yunnan subsidiaries.

subsidiaries, Guizhou

CHAN Hiu Lai, aged 57, holds a bachelor’'s degree in
Economics Management from Navy Engineering College.
Ms. Chan joined China Poly Group in February 2002 and
joined the Group in November 2012. She currently acts as
a deputy general manager of the Group managing the
Administration Centre in Mainland China, responsible for
union work, media work, property management companies
and business management companies.
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WAN Yuqing, aged 44, holds an EMBA degree from
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business and an EMBA
degree from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law.
Mr. Wan joined China Poly Group in 1997 and joined the
Group in September 2007. He currently acts as a deputy
general manager of the Group managing the Investment
Management Centre, Brand Marketing Centre, Cost and
Contract Centre, Guangdong subsidiaries, and Zhejiang
subsidiaries.

LIU Chen, aged 42, graduated from Nankai University in
Master
Administration Degree from Sun Yat-Sen University. He

Accountancy and holds a of Business
joined China Poly Group as treasury operation manager in
2004. Mr. Liu was the assistant general manager of
PDHGCL and the managing director of certain subsidiaries
of PDHGCL during the period from October 2018 to
September 2019, and the general manager of PDHGCL
strategic development centre during the period from
September 2019 to November 2019. Mr. Liu joined the
Company in November 2019 and is the assistant general
manager of the Group.

PUN Chi Ping, aged 53, holds a master's degree in
Finance Management from the City University of Hong
Kong. He is a member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Pun joined Poly Holdings in May
1994 and joined the Group in April 2000. He is a Director
and General Manager of Poly Property (Hong Kong) Co.,
Limited and an assistant to the general manager and the
financial controller of the Group and is in charge of the
financial affairs and compliance of the Group.

Note: Certain companies are Chinese entities incorporated in China and
their names have been translated into English for reference only.

The list of directors of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company during the financial year is available on the
Company's website at www.polyhongkong.com under the
“Corporate Governance” section.
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The board of Directors present its annual report and the
audited consolidated financial statements of Poly Property
Group Co., Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 50
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss on page 115 of this annual report.

No interim dividend was paid during the year (2018: Nil).
The Directors recommend payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.209 per share for the year ended 31 December 2019
(2018: HK$0.123).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
FOR ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
(IIAGMII)

In order to determine the entitlement of shareholders to
attend and vote at the AGM of the Company which is
scheduled to be held on 26 May 2020, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from 22 May
2020 to 26 May 2020, both days inclusive, during which no
transfer of shares will be effected. All properly completed
transfer forms accompanied by the
certificates must be lodged for registration with the

relevant share

Company's share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no
later than 4:30 p.m. on 21 May 2020. Shareholders whose
names are recorded in the register of members of the
Company on 26 May 2020 are entitled to attend and vote
at the AGM.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS
FOR PAYMENT OF FINAL DIVIDEND

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from 12 June 2020 to 15 June 2020 (both dates inclusive),
during which period no share transfer will be registered. In
order to establish the identity of the shareholders who are
entitled to the proposed final dividend, all duly completed
transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the
Company's share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, at Rooms 1712-16, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no
later than 4:30 p.m. on 11 June 2020. Shareholders whose
names are recorded in the register of members of the
Company on 15 June 2020 are entitled to receive the final
dividend in cash for the year ended 31 December 2019.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the year in the share capital
of the Company are set out in note 38 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

As at 31 December 2019, the investment properties of the
independent firm of
professional surveyor and property valuer on an open
market value basis at HK$12,115,132,000.

Group were revalued by an

Details of these and other movements during the year in
the investment properties of the Group are set out in note
16 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements during the year in the property,
plant and equipment of the Group are set out in note 17
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

The Company’s reserve available for distribution to
shareholders as at 31 December 2019 represented the
accumulated profits of HK$2,212,953,000 (2018:

HK$1,673,395,000).
FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and financial position of the
Group for the preceding five financial years is set out on
page 326 of this annual report.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The business overview for the year ended 31 December
2019 of the Group in the
Statement” on page 4 and “Management Discussion and

is set out “Chairman’s

Analysis” on page 20 of this annual report.

POTENTIAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES OF THE GROUP

The financial position, operating results, business and
prospects of the Group may be affected by various risks
and uncertainties. Major risks and uncertainties identified
by the Group are set out below. However, there may be
other material risks or uncertainties which are not known
to the Group or which may not be material now but could
turn out to be material in the future.
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BUSINESS RISK

A majority of the operational assets of the Group are
located in the PRC, and the Group expects that a
substantial portion of its turnover will continue to be
generated from the operations in the PRC. Operating
results and prospects are subject, to a significant extent,
to economic, political and legal development in the PRC.
The PRC economy differs from the economies of most
developed countries in many respects including the level of
government involvement, the level of development, growth
rate and government control of foreign exchange. The
Group are unable to predict whether changes on the
political, economic and social conditions, and laws,
regulations and policies of the PRC will have any material
adverse effect on the current or future business, operating
results or financial position of the Group.

FINANCIAL RISK

The financial risk management of the Group is set out in
note 7 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Zhang Bingnan (Chairman,
appointed on 1 February 2019)

Han Qingtao (Vice Chairman,
appointed on 1 February 2019)

Xue Ming

Wang Xu

Wang Jian (Managing Director,
appointed on 1 February 2019)

Ye Liwen

Zhu Weirong

Independent Non-executive Directors:

IP Chun Chung, Robert (Re-designated to Independent
Non-executive Director on 1 February 2019)

Choy Shu Kwan

Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia

Wong Ka Lun
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In accordance with Article 116 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Mr. Han Qingtao, Mr. Ye Liwen, Miss Leung
Sau Fan, Sylvia and Mr. Wong Ka Lun shall retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
Annual General Meeting.

In accordance with Code Provision A.4.3 of Appendix 14
of the Listing Rules, Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia has been
served as a Director of the Company for more than 9
years. Miss Leung shall retire and, being eligible offer
herself for re-election at the Annual General Meeting.

The term of office of Mr. Ip Chun Chung, Robert, the
independent non-executive directors, is three years from 1
February 2019, subject to retirement by rotation as
required by the Company’s Articles of Association.

The term of office of Mr. Choy Shu Kwan, the
independent non-executive director, is three years from 6
October 2017, subject to retirement by rotation as
required by the Company's Articles of Association.

The term of office of Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia, the
independent non-executive director, is three years from 11
August 2019, subject to retirement by rotation as required
by the Company’s Articles of Association.

The term of office of Mr. Wong Ka Lun, the independent
non-executive director, is three years from 23 November
2018, subject to retirement by rotation as required by the
Company's Articles of Association.

None of the directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which
is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation, than statutory
compensation.

other

The Company has received an annual written confirmation
from each of the independent non-executive directors
concerning their independence and considered that the
independent non-executive directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in
the Listing Rules.
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Changes to Information in respect of
Directors

In accordance with Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules, the
changes to required to be disclosed by
Directors pursuant to paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule
13.51(2) for the year ended 31 December 2019 and as at
the date of this report are set out below:

information

1. Mr. Ip Chun Chung, Robert retired as an independent
non-executive director of Changhong Jiahua Holdings
Limited (stock code: 08016) on 17 May 2019.

2. Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia ceased to be a responsible
officer of Celestial Capital Limited on 30 November
2019.

3. Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia was licensed to be a

responsible officer of Shang International Finance
Limited since 9 January 2020.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions
of the Directors and their associates in the shares of the
Company and its associated corporations, as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO"), or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies were as
follows:

Long position

Ordinary shares of the Company
Mr. Zhang Bingnan is holding 1,150,000 options to
subscribe 1,150,000 (0.03%) shares of the Company.

Mr. Han Qingtao is holding 1,150,000 options to subscribe
1,150,000 (0.03%) shares of the Company.

Mr. Xue Ming is holding 1,020,000 (0.03%) shares of the
Company.

Mr. Wang Xu is holding 1,150,000 options to subscribe
1,150,000 (0.03%) shares of the Company.
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Mr. Wang Jian is holding 1,150,000 options to subscribe
1,150,000 (0.03%) shares of the Company.

Mr. Ye Liwen is holding 850,000 options to subscribe
850,000 (0.023%) shares of the Company.

Mr. Zhu Weirong is holding 850,000 options to subscribe
850,000 (0.023%) shares of the Company.

Mr. Choy Shu Kwan is holding 300,000 (0.01%) shares of
the Company.

Miss Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia is holding 33,000 (0%) shares of
the Company.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in any
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations as at 31 December
2019.

SHARE OPTIONS

In order to provide incentives or rewards to the Directors
and certain employees of the Company and certain eligible
persons to contribute to the long term success of the
business of the Group, the shareholders of the Company
adopted a share option scheme (“Share Option Scheme”)
on 28 May 2014. As at 31 December 2019, 104,110,000
options were outstanding (each option entitles its holder to
subscribe for one share of the Company) under the Share
Option Scheme to certain executive Directors and
employees.

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are set out
in note 39 to the consolidated financial statements of this
annual report.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Other than the option holdings set out in note 39, at no
time during the year was the Company or any of its
holding
party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31
shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO shows that, other than the
interests disclosed above in respect of certain Directors,

December 2019, the register of substantial

the following shareholders had notified the Company of Z BBz
relevant interests in the issued shares of the Company:
Ordinary shares of the Company KPREBR

Number of shares

R4 & E

Beneficial

Name of shareholder owner

BRER

Long position

L)

Held by
controlled
corporation(s)

B % 42
Akl

Total number
of shares

IR 47 48 B

Approximate
percentage

of the issued
share capital of

the Company
EARDH
ERTREZ
BREDH

China Poly Group Corporation Limited 253,788,246 1,478,871,116 1,732,659,362 47.32%

FRERANEEEGR AT (Note 1)(fi15£1)

Poly Developments and Holdings — 1,478,871,116 1,478,871,116 40.39%
Group Co., Ltd. (Note 2) (f1:#2)

RABEREREERNHER QR

Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited 112,410,476 1,366,460,640 1,478,871,116 40.39%

RH (BB ERERRAF (Note 3) (#17£3)

Ting Shing Holdings Limited — 1,366,460,640 1,366,460,640 37.32%

(Note 4) (H7i%4)
Congratulations Company Ltd. 1,037,975,080 — 1,037,975,080 28.35%
Source Holdings Limited 228,398,760 100,086,800 328,485,560 8.97%

(Note 5) (H7i5)
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Notes:

Save

WG

China Poly Group Corporation Limited directly beneficial holds
253,788,246 shares of the Company and owns 50% issued share
capital of Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited, and is accordingly
deemed by the SFO to be interested in the shares directly and
indirectly owned by Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited.

Poly Developments and Holdings Group Co., Ltd. owns 50% of the
issued share capital of Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited and is
accordingly deemed by the SFO to be interested in the shares
directly and indirectly owned by Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited.

Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings Limited is deemed by the SFO to be
interested in 1,478,871,116 shares of the Company as a result of its
direct holding of 112,410,476 shares and
1,366,460,640 shares through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Ting Shing
Holdings Limited.

indirect holding of

Ting Shing Holdings Limited is deemed by the SFO to be interested
in 1,366,460,640 shares of the Company as a result of its indirect
holding of 1,366,460,640 shares through its subsidiaries, Source
Holdings Limited and Congratulations Company Ltd., of 328,485,560
shares and 1,037,975,080 shares, respectively.

Source Holdings Limited is deemed by the SFO to be interested in
328,485,560 shares of the Company as a result of its direct holding
of 228,398,760 shares and indirect holding of 100,086,800 shares
through its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Musical Insight Holdings
Limited and Wincall Holding Limited, of 44,658,800 shares and
55,428,000 shares, respectively.

as disclosed above, the Company has not been

notified of any other relevant interests or short positions in

the issued shares or underlying shares of the Company as

at 31

December 2019.
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DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

On 2 September 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, as borrower, and the Company, as guarantor,
entered into a facility agreement with certain banks for a
total term loan facility of HK$1,900,000,000. The final
maturity date of the facility will be the earlier of (a) the
date falling 48 months after the date of the facility
agreement and (b) the date falling 9 months after a
certificate of compliance is issued by the Director of
Buildings and Lands in respect of the development of Tuen
Mun Town Lot No. 542, Castle Peak Road, Castle Peak
Bay, Area 48, Tuen Mun, New Territories, Hong Kong.

Pursuant to the aforesaid facility agreement, the Company
undertakes with the banks that, if, among other things,
("China Poly
Group”) (a) ceases to be the single largest shareholder of
the Company; (b) ceases to maintain management control
of the Company; or (c) ceases to be under the control of
the State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration

China Poly Group Corporation Limited

Commission of the State Council of the People’s Republic
of China (“SASAC"”), the loan together with accrued
interest may become immediately due and payable.

On 23 May 2017, the Company (as the borrower) entered
into a facility agreement with China CITIC Bank
International Limited as facility agent (the “Facility Agent”)
and certain other banks for a 36-month term loan facility
of HK$3,900,000,000.

Pursuant to the above facility agreement, the Company
undertakes with the banks that, if, among other things,
China Poly Group (a) ceases to be the single largest
shareholder of the Company or ceases to hold, directly or
indirectly through its controlled corporations (as defined
under Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO")), at least 40% of the issued share capital of the
Company; (b) ceases to maintain management control of
the Company; or (c) ceases to be under the control and
supervision of the SASAC, the Facility Agent may declare
that all or part of the loan together with interest and any
other amounts accrued thereunder be immediately due and
payable.
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On 6 April 2018, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company (as the issuer), the Company (as the guarantor)
and China Poly Group entered into a keepwell deed in
relation to the US$500,000,000 5.2% notes due 2021 (the
“Notes”).

Pursuant to the keepwell deed and the terms and
conditions of the Notes, if China Poly Group (a) ceases to
be the single largest shareholder of the Company or
ceases to hold, directly or indirectly through its controlled
corporations (as defined under Part XV of the SFO), at
least 40% of the issued share capital of the Company; or
of the
Company, this will constitute an event of default under the

(b) ceases to maintain management control
Notes.

On 10 July 2018, the Company (as the borrower) entered
into a facility agreement with China Everbright Bank Co.,
Ltd. Hong Kong Branch for a committed revolving facility
of HK$1,000,000,000. The final maturity date of the
revolving loan facility shall be the date falling 24 months
from the date of this facility agreement.

Pursuant to the facility agreement, the Company
undertakes with the bank that, if, among other things,
China Poly Group (a) ceases to be the single largest
shareholder of the Company; or (b) ceases to maintain
effective management of the Company, the loan together
with accrued interest may become immediately due and
payable.

On 6 September 2018, the Company (as the borrower)
entered into a facility agreement with Industrial Bank Co.,
Ltd. Hong Kong Branch for a revolving loan facility of
HK$2,000,000,000. The final maturity date of the loan will
be the earlier of (a) the date falling 24 months after the
date of the facility agreement and (b) the bank’s prevailing
annual review date.
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Pursuant to the facility agreement, it shall be an event of
default, among other things, China Poly Group (a) ceases
to be the single largest shareholder of the Company or
ceases to hold, directly or indirectly, through its controlled
corporations (as defined under Part XV of the SFO), at
least 40% of the issued share capital of the Company; (b)
ceases to maintain management control of the Company;
or (c) ceases to be under the control and supervision of
the SASAC.

In an event of default under the above facility agreement
occurs, the bank shall entitle to (a) demand for immediate
repayment together with interest and any other amounts
accrued under the loan and (b) terminate or cancel all or
any part of the loan.

On 3 July 2019, the Company (as the borrower) entered
into a facility agreement with Chong Hing Bank Limited for
a 12-month revolving term loan facility of HK$780,000,000.
Pursuant to the facility agreement, it shall be an event of
default, among other things, China Poly Group ceases to
be the largest ultimate shareholder of the Company,
Chong Hing Bank Limited may declare that all part of the
facility together with interest and any other amounts
accrued thereunder be immediately due and payable.

On 30 July 2019, a 35% indirectly owned joint venture
company (as the borrower) and the Company (as one of
the guarantors) entered into a facility agreement with
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
(the "ICBC Asia”) for a 12-month bridge term loan facility
of HK$5,166,400,000. Pursuant to the terms and conditions
of the facility agreement, the Company would provide
ICBC Asia with the guarantee in proportion to its ultimate
beneficial interest of 35% in the joint venture company.

Pursuant to the facility agreement, if, among other things,
China Poly Group ceases to (a) be the single largest
shareholder of the Company; (b) maintain control of the
Company; or (c) be under the control of the SASAC, the
bank may declare that all or any part of the advances
made by the bank under the facility agreement together
with interest and any other amounts accrued thereunder
be immediately due and payable.
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On 9 September 2019, the Company, a 70% indirect
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
entered into a facility agreement for a term loan up to
HK$2,900,000,000. The final maturity date shall be the
earlier of (i) the date falling 60 months after the date of
the facility agreement; and (ii) the date falling 9 months
after the date of the certificate of compliance of the
government grant concerned. Pursuant to the terms and
conditions of the facility agreement, the Company shall
provide the facility bank with the guarantee in proportion
to its ultimate beneficial interest in the said subsidiary.

Pursuant to the facility agreement, if, among other things,
China Poly Group ceases to (a) be the single largest
shareholder of the Company; (b) maintain management
control of the Board of the Company; or (c) be under the
control of the SASAC, the bank may declare that all or any
part of the advance(s) made by the bank under the facility
agreement together with interest and any other amounts
accrued thereunder be immediately due and payable.

On 27 December 2019, the Company (as the borrower)
and Bank of Communications Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
(as the lender) entered into a facility agreement for an
uncommitted revolving loan facility of up to
HK$400,000,000. The final maturity date of the banking
facility shall be the date the bank reviews the banking
facility, which shall fall on or before the date falling one
year from the date of the facility letter or at such other
times as the bank deems fit.

Pursuant to the banking facility, if among other things,
China Poly Group ceases to: (a) be the single largest
shareholder of the Company, or, directly or indirectly
through its controlled corporations, hold at least 40% of
the issued share capital of the Company; (b) maintain
management control of the Company; or (c) be under the
control and supervision of the SASAC, all outstanding
principal, accrued interests and any other monies owing by
the Company to the bank under the banking facility shall
be repaid in full immediately.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTION

We set out below the continuing connected transaction of
the Group during the year pursuant to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”):

Financial Framework Agreement

On 20 December 2016, the Company and Poly Finance
Company Limited (“Poly Finance”) entered
financial framework agreement (the “Financial Framework
Agreement”) for a term of three years from 1 January
2017 to 31 December 2019. Pursuant to the Financial
Framework Agreement, the Group will utilize financial

into the

services including deposit services, unsecured loan
financing services, unsecured guarantee services and

settlement services offered by Poly Finance.

According to the terms and conditions of the Financial
Framework Agreement, the Group will place deposits with
Poly Finance from time to time, and the interest rates
should be higher than the interest rates offered by
independent third parties for the similar services obtained
in the PRC. The Group and Poly Finance will monitor the
deposit of the Group’s member entities from time to time.

The proposed annual cap of the deposit services (i.e.
maximum daily deposit balance) under the Financial
Framework Agreement is RMB410,000,000 for each of the
three years ending 31 December 2019.

Poly Finance is owned as to 82.83% by China Poly Group,
the controlling shareholder of the Company, and its
associates. Therefore, Poly Finance is an associate of a
connected person of the Company. The Financial
Framework Agreement and the deposit services
contemplated thereunder therefore constitute a continuing
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.
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As all the applicable percentage ratios of the annual cap
for the deposit services under the Financial Framework
Agreement are less than 5%, the Financial Framework
Agreement and the deposit services contemplated
thereunder are subject to reporting and announcement
requirements but are exempt from the independent
shareholder’s approval requirement under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, deposits placed with Poly
Finance did not exceed the maximum daily balance of
RMB410 million. For the year ended 31 December 2019,
the average deposits of RMB394.5 million (approximately
HK$438.3 million) were placed with Poly Finance.

On 5 December 2019, the Company and Poly Finance
entered into a new financial framework agreement (the
“New Financial Framework Agreement”) for a term of
three years from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2022.
Pursuant to the New Financial Framework Agreement, the
Group will utilize financial services including deposit
services, unsecured loan financing services, unsecured
guarantee services and settlement services offered by Poly
Finance.

According to the terms and conditions of the New
Financial Framework Agreement, the Group will place
deposits with Poly Finance from time to time, and the
interest rates should be higher than the interest rates
offered by independent third parties for the similar
services obtained in the PRC. The Group and Poly Finance
will monitor the deposit of the Group’s member entities
from time to time.

The proposed annual cap of the deposit services (i.e.
maximum daily deposit balance) under the New Financial
Framework Agreement is RMB460 million for each of the
three years ending 31 December 2020, 2021 and 2022
respectively.

Poly Finance is owned as to 82.83% by China Poly Group,
the controlling shareholder of the Company, and its
associates. Therefore, Poly Finance is an associate of a
connected person of the Company. The New Financial
Framework Agreement and the deposit services
contemplated thereunder therefore constitute a continuing
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.
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As all the applicable percentage ratios of the annual cap
for the deposit services under the New Financial
Framework Agreement are less than 5%, the New Financial
Framework Agreement and the deposit services
contemplated thereunder are subject to reporting and
announcement requirements but are exempt from the
independent shareholder’'s approval
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

requirement under

ANNUAL REVIEW AND CONFIRMATION
REGARDING CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTION IN
PURSUANCE OF RULE 14A.55 AND
14A.56 OF THE LISTING RULES

The independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the
continuing connected transaction (the “Transaction”) set
out above and confirmed that:

1. the Transaction was entered into in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group;

2. the Transaction was conducted on normal commercial
terms or better; and

3. the Transaction was entered into in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Board of Directors of the Company has engaged the
auditor of the Company and the auditor of the Company
had reviewed the Transaction and provided an unqualified
letter to the Board in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules and confirmed, inter alia, that the Transaction
has been entered into in accordance with the relevant
agreements governing the Transaction and the Transaction
has not exceeded their respective annual caps as disclosed
in the relevant announcements and circulars.
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OTHERS

A summary of significant related party transactions during
the year are disclosed in note 47 to the consolidated
financial statements. Transactions as disclosed in note 47(a)
“Transactions and balances with China Poly Group” to the
consolidated financial statements also constitute
connected/continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules (where applicable) with respect to the
connected transactions
transactions entered into by the Group during the year.

and continuing connected

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the financial year and as at the date of this report,
a qualifying indemnity provision made by the Company for
the benefit of the Directors is in force as required by
section 470 of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the laws of Hong Kong).

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No Director nor any entity connected with a Director is or
was materially interested, either directly or indirectly, in
any transaction, arrangement or contract, which is of
significance to the business of the Group and to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries, its parent company
and the subsidiaries of its parent company was a party,
subsisting at any time during, or at the end of, the year
ended 31 December 2019.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, both the aggregate sales attributable to
the Group's five largest customers and the aggregate
purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest suppliers
were less than 30% of the Group's sales and purchases,
respectively.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is
set up by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of
their merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the
Remuneration Committee, having regard to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to Directors and eligible employees, details of
the scheme is set out in note 39 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company'’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s Articles of Association, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT ARBREREZHEE

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float REZ-_FT—NAF+_A=+—HIEFE &
throughout the year ended 31 December 2019. NE—HHBERERAZABRIFRE -
AUDITOR %= 4

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the A&SBHEZE—_ZT— NG+ _A=+—HBHIFE

year ended 31 December 2019 have been audited by BDO Ziﬁ/\ﬁﬁfﬁzﬂﬁﬁﬁEEE/%_M#?%?’;HEW%f%
Limited (“BDO"). The term of office of BDO will expire FIERAR([BEBILENEZ BB ILEZE
upon the forthcoming Annual General Meeting of the HIBRARREEBRREBFASEER -
Company.

A resolution will be submitted at the forthcoming Annual ZARREREERRAFAS LIRE—HRH
General Meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO as FRUNEREFBI(EHAD R ZZEEAE -
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board RERESS
ZHANG Bingnan E
Chairman RIAE

Hong Kong, 26 March 2020 BB —E_TF=A=-+XAH
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BDO

FEE : +852 2218 8288
{EE : +852 2815 2239

Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

25" Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
HEETHER1115R
JKRHI2548

www.bdo.com.hk

TO THE MEMBERS OF POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO.,
LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Poly Property Group Co., Limited and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”) set out on pages 115 to 325,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2019,
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of

the consolidated

comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 2019,
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated

December and of its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements”
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's “Code of Ethics for
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other

section of our
Professional

ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the consolidated financial statements for the
current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and, in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

(i) Revenue recognition from sales of
properties
The Group recognised revenue arising from sales of
properties of HK$37,743,573,000 for the year ended
31 December 2019.

Revenue is one of the key performance indicators of
the Group which gives rise to an inherent risk that
revenue could be recorded in the incorrect period or
subject to manipulation.

Sales of properties are recognised as revenue at the
point in time when the buyer obtains the control of
the completed property. Determination of this point
in time is dependent on the contractual
arrangements for a sale, the laws in the relevant
jurisdiction and may require management judgement.
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Refer to note 8 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies on pages

177 to 181.
Our response:

Our procedures involved sampling
transactions for the sale of properties and specifically

included:

revenue

o Obtaining evidence regarding the transfer of

substantial risks and rewards of ownership

(including, where relevant, completion
certificates, occupation permits and acceptance
letters);

o Reading the signed sales and purchase
agreements to identify contractual
arrangements;

o Reconciling the amounts from the ledger and

agreeing the corresponding contracted terms to
the signed sales and purchase agreements; and
final

o Agreeing the deposits, payments or

mortgage receipts to bank statements.

Valuation of investment properties
Management has estimated the fair value of the
Group's investment properties to be
HK$12,115,132,000 at 31 December 2019, with a
revaluation loss for the year ended 31 December
2019 recorded in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss of HK$7,933,000.

Estimations of fair value are dependent on certain
key assumptions and unobservable inputs that require
significant management judgement, including
capitalisation rates and market transaction prices for

comparable properties.
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Favourable or unfavourable changes to these
assumptions would result in changes in fair value of
the Group’'s investment properties and the
corresponding adjustments to the gain or loss
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. As a result, the financial performance can be
greatly affected by the assumptions and
unobservable inputs.

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies on pages
148 to 149.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s
valuation of investment properties included:

o Evaluating the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of independent external valuers;

o Obtaining external valuation reports and
meeting with external valuers to understand the
results of their work. We assessed and
challenged the valuation methodologies used
and the appropriateness of the significant
assumptions, including market transaction prices
for comparable properties and capitalisation
rates. We benchmarked these assumptions to
relevant market evidence including specific
property sales and other external data; and

. Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used as supporting
evidence.

The significant inputs have been appropriately
disclosed in note 16.
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(iii) Impairment of properties under

development and held for sale

The net carrying amount of the Group's properties
under development and held for sale as at 31
December 2019 was HK$86,983,568,000. Impairment
loss of HK$1,020,281,000 was recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Estimations of net realisable value of the Group's
properties under development and held for sale are
dependent on certain key assumptions that require
significant management judgement, including current
schedules of the projects, construction progress by
contractors, estimated costs to completion, intended
use and management’s expectation on future
property market.

Favourable or unfavourable changes to these
assumptions would result in change in net realisable
value of the Group’s properties under development
and held for sale and the corresponding adjustments
to the impairment recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss. As a result, the financial
performance can be greatly affected by the
assumptions.

Refer to note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies on pages
157.

Our response:

Our
assessments of the net
properties under developments and held for sales
included:

procedures in relation to management’s

realisable value of the

o Assessing the valuation methodologies used;

o Challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions, specifically including future market
value, estimated costs to completion, intended
use and current market environment, based on
our knowledge of the Group’s business and

property industry; and
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. Reconciling, on a sample basis, the input data
used as supporting evidence, such as approved
budgets of the project and most recent
transaction prices of comparable properties in
the their
reasonableness.

market, and considering

We also assessed the recoverable amount of properties we
deemed at high risk of impairment by reviewing
independent publicly available information, such as
property industry reports for potential impairment triggers.
Where the market environment or estimated costs to
completion significantly,
management as to whether this indicated impairment had

occurred.

changed we challenged

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included
in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
responsibility is to
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,

statements, our read the other

based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process. The Audit Committee
assists the directors in discharging their responsibility in
this regard.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with Section 405 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if,
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

individually or in the

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or

error, design and perform audit

procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion,

forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of

internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the

purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
3 evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies

used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.
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o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the Group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that
a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants
Amy Yau Shuk Yuen

Practising Certificate No. P06095

Hong Kong
26 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFTT OR LOSS

= /\ = N4

— PARN

e Em
For the year ended 31 December 2019
HE=F— N = =1 —FILFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

(Decrease)/increase in fair value of
investment properties

Increase in fair value of
financial assets

Other gains, net

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Gain on step-up acquisition of
subsidiaries

Impairment loss on properties under
development and held for sale

Other operating expenses

Finance costs

Share of results of associates

Share of results of joint ventures

Profit before income tax expense
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company
Non-controlling interests

Earnings per share
(expressed in HK cents)
— Basic

— Diluted
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Notes
Ff 5%

16

52

24

10

14

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$’000
TR TR
39,943,978 23,233,644
(26,409,985) (14,715,439
13,533,993 8,518,205
(7,933) 278,932
54,636 14,389
155,592 349,184
(1,196,022) (693,000)
(1,921,418) (1,606,298)
478,617 —
(1,020,281) (10,909
(391,540) (346,418
(1,473,608) (1,275,566
(20,630) (53,954
498,341 250,369
8,689,747 5,424,934
(4,901,118) (2,823,486)
3,788,629 2,601,448
3,832,948 2,241,590
(44,319) 359,858
3,788,629 2,601,448
104.68 61.22
104.31 61.22
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2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FAET
Profit for the year F R 3,788,629 2,601,448
Other comprehensive income H {2 @ A
Items that may be reclassified subsequently A & A 5 & #7 7 48 =
to profit or loss: BmayEE -
Exchange differences arising on translation /& ¥} 3 7% 2 81 7% = %
of financial statements of foreign BREESZIEXZHE
operations (932,988) (908,196)
Items that will not be reclassified to TEEFSEE B m I
profit or loss: HE :
Surplus arising on revaluation of MEEB LR
properties 130,368 547,454
Other comprehensive income ez EEE KA
before income tax effect (802,620) (360,742)
Deferred tax liability arising on MEBMES ZRELERIA
revaluation of properties =L (32,592) (136,863)
Other comprehensive income FREMBEHYRA
for the year, net of tax HERREAXE (835,212) (497,605)
Total comprehensive income FAZEBRAERE
for the year 2,953,417 2,103,843
Attributable to: T3 FE AR
Owners of the Company ZIN/NECIEZ N 3,088,981 1,831,558
Non-controlling interests FEVE IR & (135,564) 272,285

2,953,417 2,103,843
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

ara MEORR

As at 31 December 2019
R-FE—NF+=—HA=+—H

Non-current assets

Investment properties
Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Prepaid lease payments
— non-current portion
Interests in associates
Interests in joint ventures
Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss
Loan receivables

Deposits paid for acquisition of

land use rights
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Properties under development
Properties held for sale

Other inventories
Contract costs

Trade and other receivables
Prepaid lease payments

ERBDEE
BREME
ME - BB REE
EREEE
BN EE IR
- ;E/}IL@J EIBB
F%%@TZ%H
REELRZES

BAFESABRZ

TRLEE

JiE U & 3R

U B + b {55 PR A
EffiEs

FRBEELR

RBEE
BRTME
RIELEME
Hiir &
BRI

& W 5 B B AR R

TR EFRIE
— R

— current portion

Amounts due from associates

Amounts due from joint ventures

Amounts due from non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Taxation recoverable

Pledged bank deposits
Bank balances, deposits and cash

Total current assets

JE W Bt & R B 5RIB

FEW & & > FKIB

JE i BT B8 X B 3E 1 AR
HX%W\

A 4g = B 1E

B IRITFER

Notes

Bt

16
17
18

19
20
21

22
28(a)

23
41

24
24
25
26
27

19
20
21
32

33(a)

RiITHERT FREEE 33

MBEERE

2019 2018
—E-AEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FABT
12,115,132 12,571,809
3,755,234 3,878,612
365,040 —
— 372,363

291,900 264,576
7,429,659 7,773,395
544,624 426,941
195,666 216,021
2,948,333 1,921,839
285,286 327,848
27,930,874 27,753,404
65,667,447 52,885,536
21,316,121 28,197,992
81,391 46,478
390,816 465,069
5,741,095 5,151,482
— 11,995
2,516,118 1,228,259
5,080,256 3,015,072
605,146 862,587
2,040,047 1,691,067
433,580 4,201,597
27,480,746 23,152,884
131,352,763 120,910,018
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As at 31 December 2019
RoE—NF+-H=1+—H

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables

Contract liabilities

Property rental deposits

Amount due to an associate

Amounts due to joint ventures

Amount due to the ultimate holding
company

Amount due to an intermediate
holding company

Amounts due to fellow subsidiaries

Amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries

Taxation payable

Bank and other borrowings
— due within one year

Total current liabilities
Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities

RBAE

e B 5 K EMERR
BHERE
mMERERE
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A& ERERA
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Notes

B &

37

20
21

29

30
31

32

S5

2019 2018
—E-nE  —F-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHR THR
20,583,403 19,694,131
27,185,777 31,110,373
130,162 122,336
81,722 —
1,688,741 3,518,574
20,925 52,571
3,102 3,209

539 1,377
2,491,584 2,395,404
5,243,142 2,282,487
15,349,243 13,840,294
72,778,340 73,020,756
58,574,423 47,889,262
86,505,297 75,642,666
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Capital and reserves attributable to XA FHEHABHERR

owners of the Company
Share capital
Reserves

Equity attributable to owners of
the Company
Non-controlling interests

Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Bank and other borrowings
— due after one year
Notes payable
Lease liabilities
Loan from a fellow subsidiary
Deferred tax liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Notes
=2
#E
& 7K 38
1
ARTHEEAEGRE
IF 422 IR E 5
REAE
kRBEE
RITREMEER
— —F & EH 35
R EE 36
HEAE 18
—HMERMEATEZR 40
EXERIBEE 41
FRBEERE

—E-NFFH

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$’000
TR TR
17,685,677 17,685,677
14,866,483 12,203,418
32,552,160 29,889,095
2,364,979 2,670,318
34,917,139 32,559,413
44,190,170 36,460,925
4,677,778 4,704,598
1,579 —
200,000 206,897
2,518,631 1,710,833
51,588,158 43,083,253
86,505,297 75,642,666
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Notes:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Statutory reserves are reserves required by the relevant laws in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and are applicable to the
Group's PRC subsidiaries.

Included in other capital reserve at 31 December 2019 is deemed
capital contribution arising on acquisition of subsidiaries of
HK$113,093,000 (2018: HK$238,162,000) and deemed capital
contribution arising from interest-free loans provided by a fellow
subsidiary of HK$62,678,000 (2018: HK$62,678,000).

Other reserve represents the difference between the fair value of
consideration paid and payable and the carrying amount of net
assets attributable to the changes in ownership in the subsidiaries
being acquired or disposed from non-controlling interests without
change of control.

The share options reserve represents the cumulative expenses

recognised on the granting of share option during the period.

Hrat -

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

RAEZEEARAA
“E-NEFR
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RZZE-hAE+-A=+—80 EMEAREERER
YEUEE T /B8 A &) B = & & 2113,093,000/ 70 (= F
— J\4F : 238,162,000/ 7T) & B — [ B R I /& 2 & 12
HEETTBERMEEZ L E 262,678,000 7T (=
T — )\ 4 : 62,678,000/ 7T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
\\/T\/\EEEEUILE?%

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—F-NF+_A=1—HILFE

2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Uik TERT FiEL
Cash flows from operating activities REKETINEERE
Profit before income tax expense BB HE Z AR F 8,689,747 5,424,934
Adjustments for: MUATEBELFZ:
Bank interest income AT S A 9 (227,455) (152,126)
Interest income from loans to joint ventures ~ERTFAECEERZ
MEKA 9 (54,093) (119,413)
Interest income from loans to associates EXRTHELATRZAE
H&z/\ 9 (41,554) (69,095)
Interest income from non-controlling ATHBRERTRL
interests ﬂ WA (9,153) (19,513)
Dividend income from investments in BHEREREWA
securities 9 (9,931) (7,665)
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments BB NMEENE — 10,764
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 18 16,923 —
Depreciation of property, plant and mE BERRENE
equipment 17 170,557 138,205
Equity-settled share-based payment NEREERND R
expenses F S'Z 24,453 —
Finance costs REKA 10 1,473,608 1,275,566
Reversal of impairment loss on trade and ERESREMER L
other receivables WEERERE (86,441) —
Impairment loss on properties under RERPRBELENFEL
development and held for sale EEE 24 1,020,281 10,909
Impairment loss on trade and other ERESREMERZ
receivables AEER 56,115 3,105
Decrease/(increase) in fair value of REMEZ NTFERD/
investment properties (1) 16 7,933 (278,932)
Increase in fair value of financial assets at BRAOYEFABEZ
fair value through profit or loss TREEZNTFEEM (54,636) (14,389)
Gain on disposal of investment properties HEREME 2 s (5,265) (3,822)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEMS  BEREEL
equipment BB 3,547 15,667
Gain on step-up acquisition of subsidiaries BB DR 2 Yas 52 (478,617) —
Share of results of associates AEBEDRER 20,630 53,954
Share of results of joint ventures DHEBRLCEES (498,341) (250,369)
Amortisation of incremental commission BEE MRS 570,521 —
Increase in capitalisation of incremental REEBUBRELED
commission according to HKFRS 15 FI5FEMBEL 2
BAMELE (392,112) (153,302)
Operating profit before working capital EEESEHHLERR
changes 10,196,717 5,864,478




Increase in deposits paid for acquisition of
land use rights

Decrease/(increase) in properties under
development and held for sale

(Increase)/decrease in other inventories

Increase in trade and other receivables

(Decrease)/increase in trade and other
payables

(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities

Increase in property rental deposits

Cash generated from operations
PRC income taxes paid
Interest paid

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Investments in joint ventures

Disposal of joint ventures

Acquisition of joint ventures

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash
acquired

Acquisition of additional interests in a
subsidiary

Acquisition of associates

Acquisition of financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Net cash outflows arising on de-registration of
a subsidiar

Net cash out?llows arising on dissolution of
subsidiaries

Partial disposal of interest in a subsidiary
without loss of control

Decrease/(increase) in loan receivables

Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank deposits

Bank interest income received

Interest income received from loans to joint
ventures

Interest income received from loans to
associates

Interest income received from loans to
non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries

Dividend income received from investments in
securities

Dividend income received from a joint venture

(Advance to)/repayments from joint ventures

Repayments from non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries

Advance to associates

Proceeds from disposal of investment
properties

Deposits refunded for acquisition of
subsidiaries

Net cash generated from/(used in) investing
activities
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20

RIEFEBEERAF]

T NFFR

2019 2018
—E-RE ZE-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THET
(1,090,555) (334,621)
2,647,955 (8,661,677)
(36,462) 5,715
(97,287) (561,778)
(933,180) 3,781,850
(9,126,546) 5,947,209
11,636 279
1,572,278 6,041,455
(2,440,949) (2,606,353)
(3,821,583) (3,059,816)
(4,690,254) 375,286
(41,354) (123,484)
(5,154) (22,989)
- 5,892

— (10,690)
1,027,284 (3,749,739)
— (165,070)
(56,453) (30,037)
(77,777) —

- (5,386)
(136,606) —
— (3)

20,355 (103,438)
3,768,017 (3,872,360)
227,455 152,126
54,093 119,413
41,554 69,095
9,153 19,513
9,931 7,665
468 31,414
(2,157,422) 1,031,689
228,688 44,613
(1,328,751) (496,959)
34,743 15,321
- 238,095
1,618,224 (6,845,319)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
/\/\ Eﬁ/i/}lb%%

For the year ended 31 December 2019
B2 _FE—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

2019 2018
“E-hE —T-)\#
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P TER TEX
Cash flows from financing activities REMETDNRERE
Borrowings raised MEREE 30,181,963 27,806,144
Notes payable raised MEENZER - 4,704,598
Repayments of borrowings EEEX (22,543,588) (19,141,926)
Capital contribution by non-controlling L=INGE T
shareholders of subsidiaries ﬂ%% ) 5,000 31,207
Repayments to fellow subsidiaries BRTRZNBD (792) (566,221)
Advances from/(repayments to) non-controlling 1 /& 72 7] 3£ 2 % % % Rn(&
shareholders of subsidiaries RTHB ARG Hxﬂx?) 114,898 (94,192)
Payments of lease liabilities HEBEMNK (4,956) —
Repayments of notes payable EEENZE — (3,900,000
Repayment to ultimate holding company BRFREERAA (29,894) (344,828)
Repayments to an intermediate holding BT —HPEER
company NG| - (17,100
Advances from joint ventures BEGERN 1,062,271 1,338,161
Advance from an associate —HEERRBR 81,722 -
Dividends paid to owners of the Company ENARAEAEANRS 49 (450,369) (494,308)
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders 2 {ff /& 2 7] 3F £ fi% % 7 )
of subsidiaries 2 (315,527) (79,429)
Net cash generated from financing MEEHFMEHEEE
activities 8,100,728 9,242,106
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents BHE&REFHEESHNFE 5,028,698 2,772,073
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FHzHERERAESE
the year 23,152,884 20,921,650
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash EXZHHBERER
and cash equivalents Revg (700,836) (540,839)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the FHRZEERERRE
year 27,480,746 23,152,884

Represented by bank balances, deposits and ~ EHRIT&EF  FHAKREE
cash 27,480,746 23,152,884
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE IR R MYt

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—T—NGF+=—A=1—HAIFE

GENERAL

Poly Property Group Co., Limited (“the Company”) is
a public limited company incorporated in Hong Kong
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The
addresses of the registered office and principal place
of business of the Company are disclosed in the
“Corporate Information” section of the annual
report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries (together “the Group”) are engaged in
property development, property investment and
management, hotel operations and its related
services, manufacturing and sales of digital discs and
others. The principal activities and other principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 50.

The directors consider the Company's immediate
holding company is Poly (Hong Kong) Holdings
Limited (“Poly Holdings”), a company incorporated in
Hong Kong. The ultimate holding company is China
Poly Group Corporation Limited (“China Poly”), a
state-owned enterprise established in the People's
Republic of China (the “PRC"). China Poly and its
affiliated companies, other than members of the
Group, are hereinafter collectively referred to as
China Poly Group.
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ABEMRILZARERAR  ERNDES
BHMERZMARAR ([BRFT]) L e
ARBIFEM P =R it I = B R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= =+ KV
ArE BRI T
For the year ended 31 December 2019
B2 —FE—NF1=—A=1—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2019

The HKICPA has issued a number of new or
amended HKFRSs that are first effective for the
current accounting period of the Group:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features and Negative
Compensation

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKFRS 3,

HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and

HKAS 23

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16
Leases have been summarised in note 2(c). The
other new or amended HKFRSs that are
effective from 1 January 2019 did not have any
significant impact on the Group's accounting
policies.

2. B EBMBREEAUN(E
BB HREER]

(a)
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements,
have been issued, but are not yet effective and
have not been early adopted by the Group. The
Group’s current intention is to apply these
changes on the date they become effective.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a business'

Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of material’
and HKAS 8

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform’

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its

Associate or Joint Venture®

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021
8 The amendments were originally intended to be

effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018. The effective date has now been deferred/
removed. Early application of the amendments

continue to be permitted.
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e %

AR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
B2 _FE—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 —

Definition of a business

The amendments clarify that a business must
include, as a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs,
together with providing extensive guidance on
what is meant by a “substantive process”.

Additionally, the amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are
capable of replacing any missing inputs or
processes and continuing to produce outputs,
whilst narrowing the definition of “outputs” and
a "business” to focus on returns from selling
goods and services to customers, rather than on
cost reductions. An optional concentration test
has also been added that permits a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS
8 — Definition of material

The amendments clarify the definition and
explanation of “material”, aligning the definition
across all HKFRS Standards and the Conceptual
Framework, and incorporating supporting
requirements in HKAS 1 into the definition.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39
and HKFRS 7 — Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform

The amendments modify some specific hedge
accounting requirements to provide relief from
potential effects of the uncertainties caused by
interest rate benchmark reform. In addition, the
amendments require companies to provide
additional information to investors about their
hedging relationships which are directly affected
by these uncertainties.

HKFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts

HKFRS 17 will replace HKFRS 4 as a single
principle-based standard for the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure of
insurance contracts in the financial statements
of the issuers of those contracts.

RAEZEEARAA
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iR SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
B2 _FE—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective
(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28 — Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or
losses to be recognised when an entity sells or
contributes assets to its associate or joint
venture. When the transaction involves a
business the gain or loss is recognised in full,
conversely when the transaction involves assets
that do not constitute a business the gain or
loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the joint
venture or associate.

The Group has already commenced an
assessment of the impact of adopting the
above standards and amendments to existing
standards to the Group. The Group is not yet in
a position to state whether these new
pronouncements will result in substantial
changes to the Group’s accounting policies and
financial statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
This note explains the impact of the adoption
of HKFRS 16 Leases on the Group’s financial
statements and discloses the new accounting

policies that have been applied from 1 January

2019 in note 2(c)(i) to

(i)

(v) below.

Impact of adoption

HKFRS 16 brings significant changes in
accounting treatment for lease accounting,
primarily for accounting for lessees. It
replaces HKAS 17 Leases (“HKAS 177),
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease, HK(SIC)-Int
15 Operating Leases-Incentives and
HK(SIC)-Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of
Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a
Lease. From a lessee’s perspective, almost
all leases are recognised in the statement
of financial position as right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, with the narrow
exception to this principle for leases which
the underlying assets are of low-value or
are determined as short-term leases. From
a lessor's perspective, the accounting
treatment is substantially unchanged from
HKAS 17. For details of HKFRS 16
regarding its new definition of a lease, its
impact on the Group's accounting policies
and the transition method adopted by the
Group as allowed under HKFRS 16, please

refer to section (ii) to (v) of this note.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

(i)

Impact of adoption (Continued)
The Group has applied HKFRS 16 using
the cumulative effect approach, under
which the cumulative effect of initial
application is recognised in the opening
balance at 1 January 2019. As permitted
by the transitional provision of HKFRS 16,
comparatives for 2018 were not restated.
The Group has used the following
practical expedients permitted by the
standard:

o the use of a single discount rate to a
portfolio of leases with reasonably
similar characteristics in the same
region;

o the accounting for operating leases
with a remaining lease term of less
than 12 months as at 1 January
2019 as short-term leases;

. the exclusion of initial direct costs for
the measurement of the right-of-use
asset at the date of
application; and

initial

o the use of hindsight in determining
the lease term where the contract
contains options to extend or

terminate the lease.

At initial application, the opening balances
of lease liabilities and the corresponding
right-of-use assets are adjusted to
HK$10,436,000 and HK$394,794,000,
respectively, after taking into account the
effects of discounting as at 1 January
2019.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG 2. RMERUBBREERN(F
FINANCIAL REPORTING BB REER]E)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (c) BFtBXREH (&
(Continued)
(i) Impact of adoption (Continued) (i) RN E(E)
The following table summarised the TRPMBEEBEEMBERSE
impact of transition to HKFRS 16 on ZRB16FEBE_T—/)\F
statement of financial position as of 31 TZA=+—HBEZZE—AF
December 2018 to that of 1 January 2019 —A—HMBMBRARNZE
as follows (increase/(decrease)): (3&Em, Crd))
Consolidated statement of —ZE-hFE—HA—HH® HK$'000
financial position as at 1 January 2019 #R& B AR R & TET
Right-of-use assets presented in prepaid FBff LA ENFEHEEE
land leases 384,358
Right-of-use assets presented in property, Y13 * B /5 M &% & & (£ A #&
plant and equipment A E 10,436
Prepaid lease payments (non-current) T ERIE (GERE) (372,363)
Prepaid lease payments (current) BNEEREORE) (11,995)
Trade and other payables (current) e E 5 R EMERRORE) 4,613

Lease liabilities (non-current) HEBBEGERE) 5,823
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG 2. RRMEHB! ﬁ%iﬁiﬁﬂwﬁ
FINANCIAL REPORTING BYBREER]DE)
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies (c) BEtBERE2H (B)
(Continued)
(i) Impact of adoption (Continued) (i) HRANEE(E)
The following table shows the TRERR-_Z—-N\F+H
reconciliation from operating lease =t+—BAREBEERFE17
commitments disclosed under HKAS 17 SR E R 2 2B E A
Leases as at 31 December 2018 to lease E-EHR T -NF—H—A8
liabilities upon adoption of HKFRS 16 BB G EERFE 1657
recognised in the statement of financial BERUMBRAXRERNEES
position as at 1 January 2019. EmEHiR -
HKFRS 16
ERMBHRE
ERAIE1655
HK$'000
FHET
Operating lease commitments RZZE-N\F+ZA=+—H
disclosed under HKAS 17 as at REB G ERE175%
31 December 2018 I E € EMEAE 36,726
Discounted using the leases incremental FA-Z—NAF— 8 —HH
borrowing rate at 1 January 2019 HEE S E A XA
(varied from different regions, ranging (T FEH[E Y F4.02% =
from 4.02% to 5.59%) 5.59% ) (591)
Less: short-term and low value leases are Jil : IHE R AR A HH
recognised on a straight-line basis RHLREEEEE
as expenses (25,699)
Lease liabilities recognised as at R=B-hAE-HA—H
1 January 2019 BRAZHEER 10,436
Current lease liabilities mEBEEAE 4,613
Non-current lease liabilities FnBEEAR 5,823

10,436




2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

(ii)

The new definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a lease is defined as a
that
conveys the right to use an asset (the

contract, or part of a contract,
underlying asset) for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. A contract
conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time when
the customer, throughout the period of
has both: (a) the right to obtain

substantially all of the economic benefits

use,

from use of the identified asset and (b)
the
identified asset.

right to direct the use of the

For a contract that contains a lease
component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, a lessee
shall in the
contract to each lease component on the
basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate

stand-alone price of the non-lease

allocate the consideration

components, unless the lessee apply the
practical expedient which allows the lessee
to elect, by class of underlying asset, not
to separate non-lease components from
lease components, and instead account for
each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component.

The Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and account for all
each lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease
component for all leases.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)
(iii) Accounting policies as lessee

Under HKAS 17, a lessee has to classify a
lease as an operating lease or a finance
lease based on the extent to which risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of a
lease asset lie with the lessor or the
lessee. If a lease is determined as an
operating lease, the lessee would
recognise the lease payments under the
operating lease as an expense over the
lease term. The asset under the lease
would not be recognised in the statement
of financial position of the lessee.

Under HKFRS 16, all leases (irrespective of
they are operating leases or finance
leases) are required to be capitalised in
the statement of financial position as
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but
HKFRS 16 provides accounting policy
choices for an entity to choose not to
capitalise (i) leases which are short-term
leases and/or (ii) leases for which the
underlying asset is of low-value. The
Group has elected not to recognise right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities for low-
value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term
less than 12 months. The lease payments
associated with those leases have been
expensed on straight-line basis over the
lease term.

The Group recognised a right-of-use asset
and a lease liability at the commencement
date of a lease.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)
(iii) Accounting policies as lessee
(Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be
recognised at cost and would comprise: (i)
the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease
liability); (ii) any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received; (iii) any
initial direct costs incurred by the lessee
and (iv) an estimate of costs to be
incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories. The
Group measures the right-of-use assets
applying a cost model. Under the cost
model, the Group measures the right-to-
use at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liability.

The Group has leased a number of
properties under tenancy agreements
which the Group exercises it judgement
and determines that it is a separate class
of asset which is held for own use. The
right-of-use asset arising from the
properties under tenancy agreements are
carried at depreciated cost.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)
(iii) Accounting policies as lessee
(Continued)
Lease liability

The lease liability should be recognised at
the present value of the lease payments
that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease
payments shall be discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that
rate can be readily determined. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, the Group
shall use the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right-to-
use the underlying asset during the lease
term that are not paid at the
commencement date of the lease are
considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives
receivable: (ii) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at
commencement date; (iii) amounts
expected to be payable by the lessee
under residual value guarantees; (iv) the
exercise price of a purchase option if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
that option and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

(iii)

Accounting policies as lessee
(Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)

Subsequent to the commencement date, a
lessee shall measure the lease liability by:
(i) increasing the carrying amount to
reflect interest on the lease liability; (ii)
reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the (iii)
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect
any reassessment or lease modifications,
e.g., a change in future lease payments

lease payments made; and

arising from change in an index or rate, a
change in the lease term, a change in the
in substance fixed lease payments or a
change in assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.

Accounting policies as lessor

The Group has leased out its investment
property to a number of tenants. As the
accounting under HKFRS 16 for a lessor is
substantially unchanged from the
requirements under HKAS 17, the
adoption of HKFRS 16 does not have
significant
statements.

impact on these financial
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs") (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

(V)

Transition

As mentioned above, the Group has
applied HKFRS 16 using the cumulative
effect approach and recognised all the
cumulative effect of initially applying
HKFRS 16 as an adjustment to the
opening balance of lease liabilities and the
corresponding right-of-use assets at the
date of initial application (1 January 2019).
The comparative information presented in
2018 has not been restated and continues
to be reported under HKAS 17 and
related interpretations as allowed by the
transition provision in HKFRS 16.

The Group has recognised the lease
liabilities at the date of 1 January 2019
for leases previously classified as
operating leases applying HKAS 17 and
measured those lease liabilities at the
present value of the

payments, discounted using the lessee’s

remaining lease

incremental borrowing rate at 1 January
2019.

The Group has elected to recognise all the
right-of-use assets at 1 January 2019 for
leases previously classified operating
leases under HKAS 17 as if HKFRS 16 had
been applied since the commencement
date, but discounted using the lessee's
incremental borrowing rate at the date of
initial application. For all these right-of-
use assets, the Group has applied HKAS
36 Impairment of Assets at 1 January
2019 to
impairment as on that date.

assess if there was any
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

(c) Changes in accounting policies
(Continued)

(V)

Transition (Continued)

The Group has also applied the follow
practical expedients: (i) the use of a single
discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics in the
same (ii) the accounting for
operating leases with a remaining lease
term of less than 12 months as at 1
January 2019 as short-term leases; (iii) the
exclusion of initial direct costs for the

region;

measurement of the right-of-use assets at
the date of initial application and (iv) used
hindsight in determining the lease terms if
the contracts contain options to extend or
terminate the leases.

In addition, the Group has also applied
the practical expedients such that: (i)
HKFRS 16 is applied to all of the Group’s
lease contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease and (ii) not
to apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were
not previously identified as containing a
lease under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int4.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a)

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable HKFRSs, which
collective term includes all applicable individual
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the provisions of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622), which concern the preparation of financial
statements. In addition, the financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing
Rules”).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except
for investment properties, hotel properties,
financial assets, which are measured at their fair
values or revalued amounts, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Functional and presentation

currency
The financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company. These
consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars
("HK$'000”), unless otherwise stated.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2019 comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries and the Group’s interest in

associates and joint ventures.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling

interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only sustainable rights (held
by the Group parties)
considered.

and other are

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from

of during the year are included
the date that control commenced or up to the
date that control ceased. When the Group loses
control of a subsidiary, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary,
with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at that date when control is
lost is recognised at fair value and this amount
is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or, when
appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associates or joint venture.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. EEEFHEEGE)

POLICIES (Continued)

(b) Subsidiaries and non-controlling b) MEBATRFEZERER
interests (Continued) (&)
Changes in the Group’s interest in a subsidiary WASRBERMBAR 2 E=ZHT
that do not result in a loss of control are SERARELETE AKZEE2S
accounted for as equity transactions. The AARRR G AEEMER LI
carrying amounts of the Group's interest and TRERNEEEE D TUAE
the non-controlling interest are adjusted to A 2 Bl 1% 55 7 BfS /&8 & =) 4R 2 7 2= &Y
reflect the changes in their relative interests in 2o FERERBEENARER
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the ENKEWMRKEQATFEZANE
amount by which the non-controlling interest is B DRARREAEARERZE
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration BHER ©

paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the MEFRE  WBAAF 2B RES
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring SEHARE FEASTHREERLRSE
their accounting policies in line with those used EFERAE -2 -

by the Group.

Inter-company transactions, balances and cash EERQRRIZCAATRRR S « itk
flows and any unrealised profits arising from BB RREERRZHEAANE R A
inter-company transactions are eliminated in full ROREBERGMNERRELEEMB
in preparing the consolidated financial BREZHEE SELAZENA
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from HBRARAXSHGAEREET —WNER
inter-company transactions are eliminated in the WASE BEEABEFBEBARER
same way as unrealised gain but only to the BEREERR -

extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FEGSTHEE(BE)

POLICIES (Continued)
(b) fMBARRFERESR

(b) Subsidiaries and non-controlling

interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity or
deficiency in a subsidiary not attributable
directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any
additional
interests which would result in the Group as a
whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a
liability.
combination, the Group can elect to measure

terms with the holders of those

financial For each business
any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at the
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net

identifiable assets.

non-controlling interests’

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position
equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling in the
results of the Group are presented on the face
of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
the
comprehensive income as an allocation of the

within

interests

and consolidated statement of
total profit or loss and total comprehensive
income for the year between non-controlling
interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company.

Loans from holders of non-

controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are
in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

presented as financial liabilities

In the company’'s statement of financial
position, interests in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less impairment losses, if any.

(%)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group
has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, its management, including
participation in the financial and operating
policy decisions.

over

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the
Group and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have
rights to the net assets of the arrangement.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture
is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements under the equity method, unless it is
classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for
sale). Under the equity method, the investment
is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any
excess of the Group's share of the acquisition-
date fair values of the investee’s identifiable net
assets over the cost of the investment (if any).
Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for the
post-acquisition change in the Group's share of
the investee's net assets and any impairment
loss relating to the investment. Any acquisition-
date fair value excess over cost, the Group's
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of
the investees and any impairment losses for the
year recognised
statement of profit or loss whereas the Group'’s
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of
the investees’ other comprehensive income is

are in the consolidated

recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its
interest in the associate or the joint venture,
the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the
carrying amount of the investment under the
equity method, together with any other long-
term interests that in substance form part of the
Group’s net investment in the associate or the
joint venture (after applying the expected credit
loss (“ECL") model to such other long-term
interests where applicable.)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from
transactions
associates and joint venture are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interest in the
except where unrealised
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset

between the Group and its

investee, |osses
transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

Associates and joint ventures
(Continued)

In all other cases, when the Group ceases to
have significant influence over an associate or
joint control over a joint venture, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire
interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or
loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former investee at the
date when significant influence or joint control
is lost is recognised at fair value and this
amount is regarded as the fair value on initial

recognition of a financial asset.

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, investments in associates and joint
venture are stated at cost less impairment
losses, if any.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to
earn rental income and/or for capital

appreciation. These include properties that are
being constructed or developed for future use
as investment properties.

On initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are
measured at their fair values using the fair value
model. Any gain or loss arising from a change
in fair value of an investment property is

recognised in profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d) Investment properties (Continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment property is
permanently withdrawn from use or no future
economic benefits are expected from its
disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is
recognised in profit or loss in the year in which

the asset is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment including
buildings and leasehold land held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes, other than hotel
properties and construction in progress, are
stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment
losses.

Advantage has been taken of the transitional
relief provided by paragraph 80A of HKAS 16
“Property, Plant and Equipment” from the
requirement to make regular revaluations of the
Group’s buildings which had been carried at
revalued amounts prior to 30 September 1995,
and accordingly no further revaluation of land
Prior to 30
revaluation

and buildings is carried out.
1995, the
arising on the revaluation of these assets was

September increase
credited to the revaluation reserve. Any future
decreases in value of these assets will be dealt
with as an expense to the extent that they
exceed the balance, if any, on the revaluation
reserve relating to a previous revaluation of the
same asset. On the subsequent sale or
asset, the
corresponding revaluation surplus is transferred
to accumulated profits.

retirement of a revalued
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Hotel properties are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at their revalued
amounts, being their fair value at the date of
the any subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses.

revaluation less

Revaluations are performed with sufficient
regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of
these assets does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at
the end of the reporting period.

Any revaluation increase arising on the
revaluation of hotel properties is generally dealt
with
accumulated as a separate component of equity

in other comprehensive income and

(hotel properties revaluation reserve), except to
the extent that it
decrease of the same asset previously

reverses a revaluation
recognised as an expense, in which case the
increase is credited to profit or loss to the
extent of the decrease previously charged. A
decrease in net carrying amount arising on the
revaluation of such buildings is dealt with as an
expense to the extent that it exceeds the
balance, if any, held on the hotel properties
revaluation

reserve relating to a previous

revaluation of that asset.

Depreciation on revalued hotel properties is
charged to profit or loss. On the subsequent
sale or retirement of a revalued hotel property,
the attributable revaluation surplus remaining in
the hotel
transferred directly to accumulated profits.

properties revaluation reserve is
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FEGSTHEE(BE)

POLICIES (Continued)

(e) Property, plant and equipment (e) ME - -BERFKE(E)

(Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
or valuation of items of property, plant and
equipment, other than construction in progress,
less their estimated residual value, if any, using
the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives.

Construction in progress represents property,
plant and equipment in the course of
construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at
less any recognised
Construction in progress is classified to the

appropriate category of property, plant and

cost impairment loss.

equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on
property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

the same basis as other

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item)
is recognised in profit or loss in the year in
which the item is derecognised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f) Payments for leasehold land held for

own use under operating leases
Payments for leasehold land held for own use
under operating leases represent up-front

payments to acquire long-term interests in
lessee-occupied properties. These payments are
stated at cost and are amortised over the
period of the lease on a straight-line basis as an
expense.

(9) (i)

Leasing (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2019)

All leases (irrespective of they are
operating leases or finance leases) are
in the
statement of financial position as right-of-
liabilities, but
accounting policy choices exist for an

required to be capitalised

use assets and lease
entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases
which are short-term leases and/or (ii)
leases for which the underlying asset is of
low-value. The Group has elected not to
recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for low-value assets and leases
for which at the commencement date have
a lease term less than 12 months. The
lease payments associated with those
leases have been expensed on straight-
line basis over the lease term.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(9) (i)

Leasing (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2019)
(Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be
recognised at cost and would comprise: (i)
the amount of the initial measurement of
the lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease
liability); (ii) any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received; (iii) any
initial direct costs incurred by the lessee
and (iv)
incurred by the lessee in dismantling and

an estimate of costs to be

removing the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories.
Except for right-of-use asset that meets
the definition of an investment property or
a class of property, plant and equipment
the
revaluation model, the Group measures
the right-of-use assets applying a cost
model. Under the cost model, the Group

to which the Group applies

measures the right-to-use at cost, less any
and any
impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liability.

accumulated depreciation

The Group has leased a number of
properties under tenancy agreements
which the Group exercises it judgement
and determines that it is a separate class
of asset which is held for own use. The
right-of-use asset arising from the
properties under tenancy agreements are

carried at depreciated cost.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(9) (i)

Leasing (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2019)
(Continued)

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the
present value of the lease payments that
the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease

are not paid at
payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that
rate can be readily determined. If that rate
cannot be readily determined, the Group
uses the Group's incremental borrowing

rate.

The following payments for the right-to-
use the underlying asset during the lease
that paid at the
commencement date of the lease are

term are not
considered to be lease payments: (i) fixed

payments less any lease incentives
receivable; (ii) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at
commencement date; (iii)

expected to be payable by the lessee

amounts

under residual value guarantees; (iv) the
exercise price of a purchase option if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise
that option and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term
reflects the lessee exercising an option to
terminate the lease.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(9) (i)

Leasing (accounting policies
applied from 1 January 2019)
(Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

Subsequent to the commencement date,
the Group measures the lease liability by:
(i) increasing the carrying amount to
reflect interest on the lease liability; (ii)
reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments and (iii)
remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect
any reassessment or lease modifications,
e.g., a change in future lease payments

made;

arising from change in an index or rate, a
change in the lease term, a change in the
in substance fixed lease payments or a
change in assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.

Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment
property to a number of tenants. Rental
income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-
line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of
the leased asset and recognised as an
expense on the straight-line basis over the

lease term.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FESHBE(B)

POLICIES (Continued)

(g) (ii) Leasing (accounting policies (9) (i) B (=ZFE—NF+=

applied until 31 December
2018)

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss on a straight- line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases
are charged to profit or loss using a
straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Benefits received and
receivable as an incentive to enter into an
operating lease are recognised in profit or
loss as a reduction of rental expense over
the lease term using a straight-line basis.

Leasehold land and building
The land and building elements of a lease
of land and building are considered
separately for the purpose of lease
classification, unless the lease payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the
land and building elements, in which case,
the entire lease is generally treated as a
finance lease and account for as property,
plant and equipment.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(h) Properties under development

Properties under development developed for
future sale in the ordinary course of business
are included in current assets at the lower of
cost and net realisable value. It comprises the
consideration for development expenditure
(which
construction costs and capitalised
directly contributable to the development of the
properties.

includes cost of land use rights,

interest)

Properties held for sale
Properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value.

Other inventories

Other inventories are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at
bank and on hand, demand deposits held at call
with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, having been within three
Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand and

months of maturity at acquisition.

form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component
of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of
the consolidation statement of cash flows. Cash
and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL in
accordance with the policy set out in note

4(1)(ii).

RAEZEEARAA
“E-NEFR

4. FESHBERE)

(h)

BREPUE
RERNABEXEBFHEMRR 2
BRPWETIAKANE R ] &1 F
EMERPZREEFARDEE -
HERMEREMEERGEZIER
R 2RE(BELHMERERAR
BREXNARERELZME) -

RELEWR
BIEHEME IR ABERATZE
FEME R 2 BIEE IR -

Hitz&
A L EN ELL B
2 BAE AR o AR (8 A0 4R
FIEHE ¢

BeRkERBEE

RehFERASBRERITATFER
T HFRRBTREMSBEREZ
B ANTE R - A K AT B B L R X AT A
BEHRE UAXBEEBEED
R ErBAR=EARNIHZE
HarnBtRE -IGeREeRE
xME REeEhkFRARSTEREA
REEBAKEEIBERAEER
TERB-—BAOZRTEX BHER
% [/ 3R & 1R B % M SEA() () T 8 R 2R
HEEREERE-

157



158

POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO. , LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

= AT X 2
ArE BRI T
For the year ended 31 December 2019
B2 _FE—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(I

Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets
A financial (unless it is a trade
receivable without a significant financing

asset

component) is initially measured at fair
value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its
acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component
is initially measured at the transaction
price.

All regular way purchases and sales of
financial assets are recognised on the
trade date, that is, the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

with embedded
derivatives are considered in their entirely

Financial assets
when determining whether their cash flows
are solely payment of principal and

interest.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. EEEFBEGE)
POLICIES (Continued)
() Financial instruments (Continued) ) €@ITA(E)
(i) Financial assets (Continued) (i) TMEE (8B)
Debt instruments BEFELE
Subsequent measurement of debt B LTHE Z&EFTEHIUARK
instruments depends on the Group's SEEEREEECXBEARE
business model for managing the asset EZReERERH - AKEH
and the cash flow characteristics of the HEBEIASBER=EiER
asset. There are three measurement Al
categories into which the Group classifies
its debt instruments:
Amortised cost: Assets that are held for BHEAAR : WAKRAaHRS
collection of contractual cash flows where MEMBEANEEZRERE
those cash flows represent solely BERASEMENT  BZSFE
payments of principal and interest are BEERBHKANGTE - 1REH
measured at amortised cost. Financial AT EN S @MEEHLZRA
assets at amortised cost are subsequently ERFEEAE - FEWA -
measured using the effective interest rate NG S Y= RN RENNE=E
method. Interest income, foreign WHER o R EREE 2 EM
exchange gains and losses and WaHRIB & TR -
impairment are recognised in profit or
loss. Any gain on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.
Fair value through other comprehensive BRATFEGFAEMEERA
income (“FVOCI"): Assets that are held for MAEKRRENEesRERLE
collection of contractual cash flows and for TREEMBENEECH®
selling the financial assets, where the REE/RE EMBERK 8
assets’ cash flows represent solely ZEBEERRATEFAEME
payments of principal and interest, are EHWAGE - ATFEAAR
measured at FVOCI. Debt investments at fh 2 E WA ER T EERIK
FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair ATEFE - FKABERFNEE
value. Interest income calculated using the STEBNSUA - INE Y R K
effective interest rate method, foreign BEEMBERERARER - H
exchange gains and losses and s RERFENEMEE
impairment are recognised in profit or WATER - R IEFEREE - RN E
loss. Other net gains and losses are fib 2 EUA Rt 2 Wz R BB
recognised in OCI. On derecognition, BEFOBEERE -

gains and losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to profit or loss.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(I

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"):
Financial assets at FVPL include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at
FVPL,
required to be measured at fair value.

or financial assets mandatorily
Financial assets are classified as held for
trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing in the
Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also

classified as held for trading unless they

near term.

are designated as effective hedging

instruments. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not solely payments of
principal and interest are classified and
measured at FVPL, irrespective of the
Notwithstanding the

instruments to be

business model.
debt
classified at amortised cost or at FVOCI,

criteria for

as described above, debt instruments may
be designated at FVPL on
recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces,
mismatch.

initial

an accounting
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial
investment that is not held for trading, the
Group could irrevocably elect to present

recognition of an equity

subsequent changes in the investment's
fair value in OCI. This election is made on
an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at FVOCI are measured at fair
value. Dividend income are recognised in
profit or loss unless the dividend income
clearly represents a recovery of part of the
cost of the investments. Other net gains
and losses are recognised in OCI and are
not reclassified to profit or loss. All other
equity instruments are classified as FVPL,
whereby changes in fair value, dividends
and interest income are recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial

assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit loss (“ECL") on trade
receivables, financial
assets measured at amortised cost and
debt investments measured at FVOCI. The
ECLs are measured on either of the
following bases: (1) 12 months ECLs: these
are the ECLs that result from possible
default events within the 12 months after
the reporting date: and (2) lifetime ECLs:
these are ECLs that
possible default events over the expected
The
considered when

contract assets,

result from all
life of a financial instrument.
maximum period
estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is

exposed to credit risk.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(I

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial

assets (Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate
of credit Credit
measured as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and

losses. losses are

all the cash flows that the Group expects
to receive. The then
discounted at an approximation to the
assets’ original effective interest rate.

shortfall is

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for trade receivables and
contract assets using HKFRS 9 simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based
on lifetime ECLs.
established a provision matrix that is
based on the Group’s historical credit loss

experience, adjusted for forward-looking

The Group has

factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs
are based on the 12-months ECLs.
However, when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the allowance will be based

on the lifetime ECLs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial

assets (Continued)

When determining whether the credit risk
of a financial asset has increased
significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECL, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information
that

undue cost or effort. This includes both

is relevant and available without

quantitative and qualitative information
analysis, based on the Group’s historical
experience and informed credit
assessment and including forward-looking

information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on
a financial asset has increased significantly
if it is more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to
be credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower
is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security
(if any is held); or (2) the financial asset is
more than 90 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired
financial assets is calculated based on the
amortised cost (i.e. the gross carrying
loss allowance) of the
financial asset. For non credit-impaired
financial

amount less

assets interest income s
calculated based on the gross carrying

amount.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(I

Financial instruments (Continued)
(iii) Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the
liabilities were incurred. Financial liabilities
at FVPL are initially measured at fair value
and financial liabilities at amortised costs
are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at FVPL

Financial liabilities at FVPL include
financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial
recognition as at FVPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held
for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term.
including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified
as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities

Derivatives,

held for trading are recognised in profit or
loss.

Where a contract contains one or more
embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid
contract may be designated as a financial
liability at FVPL, except where the
embedded derivative does not
significantly modify the cash flows or it is
clear that separation of the embedded
derivative is prohibited.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, FEGTTEHE(E)
POLICIES (Continued)
() Financial instruments (Continued) ) €MITA(E)
(ili) Financial liabilities (Continued) (i) eMEE (&)
Financial liabilities at FVPL BRATEFABRZ
(Continued) TR EEE)
Financial liabilities may be designated HERTHEEZEREBEIR
upon initial recognition as at FVPL if the MR T R A FE
following criteria are met: (i) the A BBz ¢ ()75 5E #5H FR S B &

BALEZETREENEEFEK
TR U 7= W%EﬁLWMF@
FER—BIER ; (i) IEB XA
IZ@@%E%%’Q%E%

designation eliminates or significantly
reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the

liabilities or recognising gains or losses on B A I T R TR A
them on a different basis; (i) the liabilities THIETLREEY — :B
are part of a group of financial liabilities 5 RiNEEeRmAaBEeS
which are managed and their performance i ﬁi]\,ﬁ\EZm)\Tmil
evaluated on a fair value basis, in Ho

accordance with a documented risk
management strategy; or (iii) the financial
liability contains an embedded derivative
that would need to be separately

recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial R P ERE - RAFEFTA
liabilities at FVPL are measured at fair B Ziﬁﬂ?ﬁfﬂfﬁ@$ﬁ B
value, with changes in fair value = ’A$1§5‘=§§pﬁ(\€§6$,ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁq
recognised in profit or loss in the period EA;LE SHERR EARREARSF N

EERBAEL N KK EE
REMEEEBAZY - HER
SEHMOEERER -NER
KRIERA ’A\ﬁfﬁqﬁlﬁﬁﬁgﬂﬁ/?

in which they arise, except for the gains
and losses arising from the Group’s own
credit risk which are presented in other

°°:Prehe”5'vel neome i " U ROERZELBABY
Su sequent reclassitication to the HXE"]EE'{E_[*U/%\"

statement of profit or loss. The net fair
value gain or loss recognised in the
statement of profit or loss does not
include any interest charged on these
financial liabilities.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(I

Financial instruments (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities at amortised

cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
including trade and other payables,
borrowings, certain preference shares and
the debt element of convertible loan note
issued by the Group are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method. The related
interest expense is recognised in profit or

loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the amortisation

process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income or interest
expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts or payments through the
expected life of the financial asset or
liability, or where appropriate, a shorter

period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Financial instruments (Continued)

(V)

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recorded at the proceeds received,
net of direct issue costs.

The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
Cap. 622, came into operation on 3
March 2014. Under the Ordinance shares
of the Company do not have a nominal
value. Consideration received or
receivable for the issue of shares on or
after 3 March 2014 is credited to share
capital. Commissions and expenses are
allowed to be deducted from share capital

under s. 148 and s. 149 of the Ordinance.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the future
cash flows in relation to the financial asset
expire or when the financial asset has
been transferred and the transfer meets
the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when
the obligation specified in the relevant
cancelled or

contract is discharged,

expires.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(I) Financial instruments (Continued)
(vi) Derecognition (Continued)

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a
financial liability in whole or in part as a
result of renegotiating the terms of that
liability, the equity instruments issued are
the consideration paid and are recognised
initially and measured at their fair value
on the date the financial liability or part
thereof is extinguished. If the fair value of
the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments
are measured to reflect the fair value of
the financial liability extinguished. The
difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability or part thereof
extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.

(m) Employee benefits

(i)

Retirement benefits scheme

contributions
Payments to Group’s defined contribution
retirement benefits schemes and
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are
charged as expenses when employees
have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions. Payments made to
state-managed

schemes are dealt with as payments to

retirement benefits

defined contribution schemes where the
Group's obligations under the schemes are
equivalent to those arising in a defined
contribution retirement benefit scheme.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(m) Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

Equity-settled share-based
payment transactions

The fair value of services
determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the grant date
is expensed on a straight-line basis over

received

the vesting period, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share option reserve).

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group revises its estimates of the number
of options that are expected to ultimately
vest. The impact of the revision of the
estimates during the vesting period, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss, with a
corresponding adjustment to share option
reserve.

At the time when the share options are
the
recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share capital. When the
share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at

exercised, amount previously

the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be
transferred to accumulated profits.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax
and movements in deferred tax assets and
liabilities.

Current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that they relate to
items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the
relevant amounts of tax are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity,

respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arises from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Income tax (Continued)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all
deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred tax
assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those
that will arise from the reversal of existing
taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the
expected reversal of the deducible temporary
difference or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be
carried back or forward. The same criteria are
adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate
to the same taxation authority and the same
taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of
deferred tax assets and liabilities are those
temporary differences arising from goodwill not
deductible for tax purposes, the initial
recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit (provided
they are not part of business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries, and interests in associates and joint
ventures, to the extent that, in the case of
taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future, or in the case of deductible differences,
unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Income tax (Continued)

Where investment properties are carried at their
fair value, the amount of deferred tax
recognised is measured using the tax rates that
would apply on sale of those assets at their
carrying value at the reporting date unless the
property is depreciable and is held within a
business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather
than through sale. the
amount of deferred tax recognised is measured

based on the expected manner of realisation or

In all other cases,

settlement of the carrying amount of the assets

and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period. Deferred tax assets and

liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the
extent that it becomes probable that sufficient
taxable profits will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

Income tax (Continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein,
separately from each other and are not offset.
Current tax assets are offset against current tax

liabilities, and deferred tax assets against

are presented

deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set
off current tax assets against current tax

liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:
o in the case of current tax assets and

liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

° in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on

either:
. the same taxable entity; or
o different taxable entities, which, in

which

significant amounts of deferred tax

each future period in

liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle

simultaneously.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Financial guarantees issued,
provisions and contingent liabilities

(i)

Financial guarantees issued

A financial guarantee contract is a
contract that requires the issuer to make
specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the original
or modified terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract issued by the
Group and not designated as at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised initially
at its fair value less transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the issue of the
financial guarantee contract. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures
the financial guarantee contact at the
higher of: (i)
allowance, being the ECL provision
measured in accordance with principles of

the amount of the loss

the accounting policy set out in note 4(l)
(ii); and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate,
amortisation recognised in accordance
with the principles of HKFRS 15.

cumulative

Contingent liabilities assumed in

business combinations
Contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination which are present
obligations at the date of acquisition are
initially recognised at fair value, provided
the fair value can be reliably measured.
After their initial recognition at fair value,
such contingent liabilities are recognised
at the higher of the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation
where appropriate, and the amount that
would be determined in accordance with
(iii) below. Contingent liabilities assumed
in a business combination that cannot be
reliably fair valued or were not present
obligations at the date of acquisition are
disclosed in accordance with (iii) below.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(o) Financial guarantees issued,
provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

(iii) Other provisions and contingent
liabilities
Provisions are recognised for other
liabilities of uncertain timing or amount
when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as
a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate can be made. Where the
time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value
of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or
the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. EEEFHEEGE)

POLICIES (Continued)

(p) Contract assets and contract (p) EHREERENAE
liabilities
Upon entering into a contract with a customer, EHEPITVANR AEEAE
the Group obtains rights to receive WHRKBEFPHRE AAEKE
consideration from the customer and assumes MABBBBEEPHNBHNRLE -
performance obligations to transfer goods or ZERNEBHNEERLRBBUFE
provide services to the customer. The EXFEE KRTHNAENERD
combination of those rights and performance BE 2 FE AR AT E o fis Fl 84 #E 7
obligations gives rise to a net asset or a net Wt EBARKRBENEENGTE
liability depending on the relationship between AlZeR—REE YHRARE
the remaining rights and the performance WEBEE -RZ WHNBKREBEHEED
obligations. The contract is an asset and ATEBBRREMNNGE  BIZE
recognised as contract assets if the measure of HWR—IBEE THEIARAHNEE-

the remaining rights exceeds the measure of the
remaining performance obligations. Conversely,
the contract is a liability and recognised as
contract liabilities if the measure of the
remaining performance obligations exceeds the
measure of the remaining rights.

The Group recognises the incremental costs of fir 78 &= [ 78 B 1 U 21 B B A 2N - Al
obtaining a contract with a customer within RENEEARESEFEHNER
contract assets if the Group expects to recover RN »

those costs.



4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

() Contract costs

The Group recognises an asset from the costs
incurred to fulfil a contract when those costs
meet all of the following criteria:

(@) The costs relate directly to a contract or
to an anticipated contract that the entity
can specifically identify;

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources
of the entity that will be used in satisfying
(or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future; and

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset recognised is subsequently amortised
to profit or loss on a systematic basis that is
consistent with the transfer to the customer of
the goods or services to which the cost relate.
The asset is subject to impairment review.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the
sales of properties and services in the ordinary
course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is
shown, net of discounts and after eliminating
sales with the Group companies. The Group
recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured; when it is
probable that future economic benefits will flow
to the entity; and when specific criteria have
been met for each of the Group’s activities, as
described below.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with

customers

Revenues are recognised when or as the control
of the asset is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and the
laws that apply to the contract, control of the
asset may transfer over time or at a point in
time. Control of the asset is transferred over
time if the Group's performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

or

. creates and enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the Group performs;
or

. do not create an asset with an alternative

use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the
contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance
obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at
a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the asset.

If contracts involve the sale of multiple services,
the transaction price will be allocated to each
performance obligation based on their relative
stand-alone selling prices. If the stand-alone
selling prices are not directly observable, they
are estimated based on expected cost plus a
margin or adjusted market assessment
approach, depending on the availability of
observable information.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. EEEFBEGE)
POLICIES (Continued)
(r) Revenue Recognition (Continued) r) WAERE)

Revenue from contracts with HEFFTILEHAHMBA

customers (Continued) (&)

a) Sales of properties and a) HEVWEREERS
construction services
Revenue from sales of properties is MASERTHESHLTE
recognised over time when the Group's EREEEEMARNEE
performance under the sale contract does BEREEBAITRENRE R
not create an asset with an alternative use ERITEEERNT  HEY
to the Group and the Group has an ERMBRALE —REHES®
enforceable right to payment for R BAHEMEMBRARL
performance completed to date; otherwise — & 5E B ) HE R o
revenue from sales of property is
recognised at point in time.
The progress towards complete EERBOEBREERASE
satisfaction of the performance obligation ETKBEANEBMMNLENS N
is measured based on the Group's efforts HRANREGHEREE R
or inputs to the satisfaction of the EHREEENES LKL
performance obligation, by reference to TR Z LI = o
the contract costs incurred up to the end
of reporting period as a percentage of
total estimated costs for each contract.
For property development and sales HRMERBREX —KHE
contract for which the control of the BYEEHIENHEESH I
property is transferred at a point in time, ARBEFPESEMFRERESKE
revenue is recognised when the customer RTITYERNEEMBEAERSE
obtains the physical possession or the ] 25 B B R S AL AR AT e e [e]
legal title of the completed property and HERER -
the Group has present right to payment
and the collection of the consideration is
probable.
In determining the transaction price, the EHREXZERK EREMNX
Group adjusts the promised amount of MEBEKR  AEBEEREREK
consideration for the effect of a financing MDRAEEENRE -

component if it is significant.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

a)

Sales of properties and
construction services
(Continued)

For construction services, the Group's
performance creates or enhances an asset
or work in progress that the customer
controls as the asset is created or
thus the Group satisfies a
performance obligation and recognises
by reference to

completion of the specific transaction

enhanced,
revenue over time,

assessed on the basis of the actual costs
incurred up to the end of the reporting
period as a percentage of total estimated
costs for each contract.

Sales of goods

Revenue from sales of goods are
recognised when goods are delivered at
customers’ premises which is taken to be
the point in time when the customer has
accepted the goods and the related risks
and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales
taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Building management service

income

Building management service income is
recognised over the relevant period in
which the services are rendered.

Hotel operation
Revenue from hotel operations and related
services is recognised when the relevant
services are provided.

(r)
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Revenue Recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

e) Interest income from a financial

asset

Interest income from a financial asset is
recognised as it accrues on a time basis,
by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the
financial asset to that asset’s net carrying
amount.

f) Dividend income
Dividend income from investments is
recognised when the Group’s rights to
receive payment is established.

g) Rental income
Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each
individual group entity,
currencies other than the functional currency of
that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the the
currency of the primary economic environment

transactions in

respective functional currency (i.e.
in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies

transactions.

are retranslated at the rates
prevailing on the statement of financial position
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value
that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are not

retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the translation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise. Exchange
differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period except
for differences arising on the retranslation of
non-monetary items in respect of which gains
and losses are recognised directly in equity, in
which cases, the exchange differences are also

recognised directly in equity.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies
(Continued)

the of presenting
consolidated financial statements,

the
the assets

For purposes
and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations
are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the rate
of exchange prevailing at the end of the
reporting period, and their
expenses are translated at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange

income and

rates fluctuate significantly during the period, in
which case, the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in OCI
and accumulated as a separate component of
equity (the translation reserve). Such exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which the foreign operation is
disposed of.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of
that asset. Other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and
activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in
progress. Capitalisation of borrowing costs is
suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying
sale are

asset for its intended use or

interrupted or completed.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Government grants

Government grants are recognised as income
over the periods necessary to match them with
the related costs. Grants related to depreciable
assets are presented as a deduction from the
carrying amount of the relevant asset and are
released to income over the useful lives of the
assets. Grants related to expense items are
recognised in the same period as those
expenses are charged in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and are reported

separately as other income.

Impairment of assets (other than

financial assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following
assets to determine whether there
indication that those assets have suffered an

is any

impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may

have decreased:

—  property, plant and equipment/investment
property under cost model;

—  interests in leasehold land held for own use
under operating leases; and

—  investments in subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FEGSTHEE(BE)

POLICIES (Continued)

EERE(ZREERM)

(v) Impairment of assets (other than (v)

financial assets) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of
the fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use) of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount under another HKFRS, in
which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to the
recoverable amount, to the extent that the

impairment
revised estimate of its

increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been
determined had no
recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as

impairment loss been

income immediately, unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount under another
HKFRS, of the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase under that HKFRS.

in which case the reversal

Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows expected to be derived from the
asset discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset or cash
generating unit.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. FESHBE(B)

POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Related parties (w) BEATL

(@) A person, or a close member of that (@) ETHBERT  ZALHZA
person’s family, is related to the Group if TREZEREREEEH
that person: e

(i)

has control or joint control over the

(i)

HAKEEFZEGELH

Group; FEHEZ2 AL
(iiy has significant influence over the (il AEEBEEATEN
Group; or Z AT s

(iif)

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or the

Group's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i)

the entity and the Group are
members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary

(iii)

F A T HE AR

AEBIAEEE QA
ZEBREEAS -

=113
N
puit
El

i:

k

EAREEERE

(i)

ZERBMASERR—
SEKERF (AR
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and fellow subsidiary is related to BARISBEBBE) :
the others);

(i) one entity is an associate or joint iy EP—EERAE—F
venture of the other entity (or an BEEF-—HEEKE
associate or joint venture of a ’R P A /NE A=
member of a group of which the ’Z\\Tﬁﬁj:—;g g RK 8
other entity is a member); RAEIZ ) ZHE R A

aEPE:

(iii) both entities are joint ventures of the (i) MEZEBRRA—F=
same third party; ArEEhE:

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Related parties (Continued)
An entity is related to the Group if any of

(b)

the

following conditions applies:

(Continued)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in

(a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the entity
or is a member of the key

management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to
the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person

are those family members who may be

expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

that person’s children and spouse of
domestic partner;

children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and

dependents of that person or that

person’s spouse or domestic

partner.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
the directors of the Company are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in
which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning
the future, and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimated net realisable value of
properties under development and held
for sale

Management reviews the net realisable value of the
Group’s properties under development and held for
sale with reference to its estimated costs to
completion, intended use and current market
environment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of
the assets exceeds its net realisable value.
Appropriate write-off to estimated net realisable
value is recognised in profit or loss when there is
objective evidence that the asset is impaired.

In determining whether write-off of properties under
development and held for sale is required, the Group
takes into consideration the intended use of the
properties, the estimated costs to completion, the
current market environment, the estimated market
value of the properties and/or the present value of
future cash flows expected to receive. Write-off is
recognised based on the higher of estimated future
cash flows and estimated market value. If the market
environment/circumstances or estimated costs to
completion changes significantly, resulting in a
decrease in the net realisable value of these
properties interest, additional write-off loss may be
required. As at 31 December 2019, the carrying
amounts of properties under development and held
for sale are HK$86,983,568,000 (2018:
HK$81,083,528,000) (net of accumulated impairment
loss of HK$1,308,745,000 (2018: HK$335,619,000)).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimated impairment of short-term loan

receivables and other receivables

In determining whether there is objective evidence of
impairment loss, the Group takes into consideration
the estimation of future cash flows. The amount of
the impairment loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). Where the actual future cash flows are
less than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amounts
of loan receivables and other receivables are
HK$195,666,000. (2018: HK$216,021,000) (net of
allowance for doubtful debts of HK$25,121,000 (2018:
HK$25,121,000)) and HK$5,595,985,000 (2018:
HK$4,921,711,000) (net of allowance for doubtful
debts of HK$92,610,000 (2018: HK$123,548,000)),
respectively. More details are given in notes 27 and
28.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment
properties

Investment properties were revalued as at 31
December 2019 based on the appraised market value
by independent professional valuer. Such valuations
were based on certain assumptions, which are subject
to uncertainty and might materially differ from the
actual results. In making the estimate, the Group
considers information from current prices in an active
market for similar properties and uses assumptions
that are mainly based on market conditions existing
at the end of each reporting period.

The fair value measurement utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs
used in determining fair value measurements are
categorised into different levels based on how
observable the inputs used in the valuation
technique utilised are (the “fair value hierarchy”):

e Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for
identical items (unadjusted);

e Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other
than Level 1 inputs;

e Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from
market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has
a significant effect on the fair value measurement of
the item. Transfers of items between levels are
recognised in the period they occur.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment
properties (Continued)

The principal assumptions for the Group's estimation
of the fair value include those related to current
market rents for similar properties in the same
location and condition, appropriate discount rates,
expected future market rents and future maintenance
costs. The carrying amount of investment properties
at 31 December 2019 was HK$12,115,132,000 (2018:
HK$12,571,809,000). More details are given in note
16.

PRC enterprise income tax and deferred

taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in Mainland
China. As a result of the fact that certain matters
relating to the income taxes have not been
confirmed by the local tax bureau, objective estimate
and judgment based on currently enacted tax laws,
regulations and other related policies are required in
determining the provision of income taxes to be
made. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts originally recorded, the
differences will have impact on the income tax and
tax provisions in the period in which the differences
realise.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
The outcome of their actual utilisation may be
different.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING
JUDGMENTS AND KEY SOURCES
OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT")

The Group is subject to LAT in Mainland China. The
provision of LAT is based on management's best
estimates according to the understanding of the
requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws
and regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject
to the determination by the tax authorities upon the
completion of the property development projects.
The Group has not finalised its LAT calculation and
payments with the tax authorities for its certain
property development projects. The final outcome
could be different from the amounts that were
initially recorded.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sales of properties is recognised over
time when the Group’s performance do not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date; otherwise, revenue
is recognised at a point in time when the buyer
obtains control of the completed property. The
Group may not change or substitute the property
unit or redirect the property unit for another use due
to the contractual restrictions with the customer and
thus the property unit does not have an alternative
use to the Group. Significant management’s
judgements were involved in determining whether
there is an enforceable right to payment which
depends on the terms of sales contract and the
interpretation of the applicable laws governing the
sales contracts. The Group obtained legal counsel
opinion regarding the enforceability of the right to
payment for sales contracts. Management uses
judgements in interpreting the applicable laws, based
on legal counsel opinion, to identify sales contracts
with right to payment and those without.
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities
in the Group will be able to continue as a going
concern while maximising the return to owners of the
Company through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debt,
which includes the borrowings disclosed in notes 35
and 36, lease liabilities disclosed in note 18, cash
and cash equivalents and equity attributable to
owners of the Company, comprising issued share
capital, reserves and accumulated profits and non-
controlling interests.

The directors of the Company review the capital
structure on a semi-annual basis. As part of this
review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associated with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will
balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, new share issues and share
buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total bank and
other borrowings, notes payable and lease liabilities
less bank balances, deposits and cash. Total capital is
calculated as “equity”, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position, plus net debt.
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6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6. EXEMERE(E)

(Continued)

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2019 and 2018 RZE-NFERZZE-N\F+ZA=+—

were as follows: AzBEABBLERNT
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHET
Total bank and other borrowings HITREMEELRE
(note 35) (H17£35) 59,539,413 50,301,219
Notes payable (note 36) & AR (K7 5236) 4,677,778 4,704,598
Lease liabilities (note 18) HESEHF18) 5,703 —
Less: Bank balances, deposits and & : SR1T41F « TR K&
cash (note 33) W& (K75233) (27,480,746) (23,152,884)
Net debt BERIFRE 36,742,148 31,852,933
Total equity i 7 48 58 34,917,139 32,559,413
Total capital BB 71,659,287 64,412,346
Gearing ratio EEBRALE 51% 50%
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 7.
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a) Categories of financial instruments (a)

The following table shows the carrying amount
of financial assets and liabilities:

Financial assets EtRMEE
Loans and receivables B 3K e Uk BR 3R
— Loan receivables — EWER
— Trade and other — ERE S Kk E AR
receivables
— Amounts due from — JE U B 2 R B 5B
associates
— Amounts due from joint — RS ERERE
ventures
— Amounts due from non- — BT B A A
controlling shareholders FE 12 iR AR R I8
of subsidiaries
— Pledged bank deposits — EEMRITER
— Bank balances, deposits — RUTEF FX
and cash MR &
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFTAERZ
through profit or loss TEEE
Financial liabilities o=
Amortised costs X SN
— Trade and other payables — [E{JE 5 Rk EMEER
— Property rental deposits — EHESES

N — R A

— Amount due to an

associate FRIE

— Amounts due to joint — ENEERENRE
ventures

— Amount due to the ultimate — BN &A&EIER A
holding company IR

R — P e e

— Amount due to an
intermediate holding A A RIE
company

— Amounts due to fellow — ENRBRRNEB QT
subsidiaries FRIE

— Amounts due to non- — KB A R e

controlling shareholders fi% R 18
of subsidiaries
— Bank and other borrowings — BT REMEE
— Notes payable — ENER
— Lease liabilities — HEAE
— Loan from a fellow — *F'al@%%%@ﬁj

subsidiary =

EtWMIEBESSE
TERIGRHAERE ENERE

TRITAERMEERER

2019 2018
—E2-NF -2 N\E
HK$’'000 HK$'000
TR B
195,666 216,021
5,538,236 4,896,468
2,516,118 1,228,259
5,080,256 3,015,072
605,146 862,587
433,580 4,201,597
27,480,746 23,152,884
544,624 426,941
20,527,911 19,616,373
130,162 122,336
81,722 —
1,688,741 3,518,574
20,925 52,571
3,102 3,209

539 1,377
2,491,584 2,395,404
59,539,413 50,301,219
4,677,778 4,704,598
1,579 —
200,000 206,897
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 7. e@MIARBKERER
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (&)
(Continued)

I

il

BHERARBEEERERRBE

(b) Financial risk management

objectives and policies

Exposure to market risks (currency risk, interest
rate risk and other price risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

Market risk

The Group's activities expose it primarily to the
financial risks of changes in foreign currency
rates, interest rates and equity security prices.
Market risk exposures are further measured by
sensitivity analysis. There has been no
significant change to the Group’s exposure to
market risks or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risk. Details of each type of
market risks are described as follows:

(i) Currency risk

Currency risk refer to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of
charges in foreign exchange rates. The
Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and
the PRC. The functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries are HK$ and
RMB. The Group is exposed to currency
risk arising from fluctuations on foreign
currencies against the functional
currencies of the Group entities.

AEEEREEBBEFREERETS
Rk (B8R - FERRREMME
KRR -EERRETEBE SR
aoﬂﬂzﬁﬂ R 2 BUSR IR # I an
T-ERESE KT FR K-

LAREIR A] & BE A UMb B e i 2 5 6 ©

™ %5 & B

AREBZEBETEELER - FI X
REAFSEREE 2 M BRR -
W5 E R E — AR E D E
E-AKEEHEZTERRIEE
ERFERRzIAALBESKE
o BEMBARFBIRMMT

(i) EEER
ERRERESRTANRFE
SRR & B R R
FHER AREEZEETE
MR E  ARBERKTE QA
MINEEERRAETHEARE -
$El%xﬁ%$ﬁlﬂﬂﬂ
T RE B 1 SN IE R B L B
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(i)

Currency risk (Continued)

The Group’s revenue are mostly
denominated in ("RMB"),
however, the Group also undertakes

certain transactions denominated in

Renminbi

foreign currencies, hence exposures to
currency risk. In addition, the currency risk
also arises from funding to its subsidiaries
in the PRC. These loans to its subsidiaries
are normally denominated in RMB while
the sources of funding are usually
denominated in Hong Kong dollars and
United States dollars (“US$").

Since Hong Kong dollars is being pegged
to US$, material fluctuations in exchange
rates of Hong Kong dollars against US$
are remote.

The Group currently does not use any
derivative contracts to hedge against its
The
management manages its currency risk by
closely monitoring the movement of the
rate and consider

exposure to currency risk.

foreign currency
hedging significant foreign currency

exposure should the need arise.

7.

THTARMEERER

(#&)

(b) BHEREEREREE

(#&)

5 E b ()

(i)

B Rk (&)

AEBEZWARE D AARE
TARBDIME A A&
BIRETAINESIEZE TR
S HEEBHEERR- Ut
S - & B EL B 7T 2R 8 [7) B Y
BRARRHKES K THEBR
AlZER—MRUARKEIE -
& & HR A — A TR E
T(ExTHIE-

BB TTE R TTHS BT
ETEFHRABEBORE
108 -

A % B B A1 3 4% 8 R (E 47 4
TEAWYHEEBAR -
1B )5 B E ) B RSN E
BHUEBENMERR L E
REBBEZEHMEA LS
A% -
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 7. TRIARMBEARERE
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (48
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management b) BEEBREEEEREEK
objectives and policies (Continued) (%&)
Market risk (Continued) i E ke (E)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) (i) EERER(E)
The following table details the Group's TRANAEER=ZZ—NF
exposure as at 31 December 2019 that TZA=+—HRBUBEEBEE
the currency risk arising from recognised B EERETUINZEE
assets or liabilities denominated in a Bz EARABEENBEME
currency other than the functional EZE%ER -
currency and US$ of the entity to which
they relate.
2019 2018
—E-hF AN
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR¥ET AR T T
Bank balances, deposits and  R1T41F T3 &
cash Be 23,722 13,863
Short-term loans to BETHEARZ
subsidiaries RHE R 7,320,531 7,615,665

Gross exposure arising from BREREEMEEZ
recognised assets [7\ B 42 58 7.344,253 7,629,528
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 7. SMIARMBEERREE
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (#&)
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management (b) BIBEBREERBFEREER
objectives and policies (Continued) (&)
Market risk (Continued) ™is E bk (E)
(i) Currency risk (Continued) (i) E¥RER(E)
The following table indicates the TRIRHAEEBR RS ER
approximate change in the Group’s profit [EE2E-PNER 0PN i i3
after tax and accumulated profits that HERE B KEERKRRE
would arise if foreign exchange rates to AR R RN BHES
which the Group has significant exposure (BRRPTA E b [ B B B4 5
at the end of the reporting period had NE) - BRRE H T RE S
changed at that date, assuming all other KEXZHEANELRETEE
risk variables remained constant. The & BIRFF A I IMNE R,
sensitivity analysis assumes that the RHERIA BEAEER
change in foreign exchange rates had 25~ &) 6 e SRIE K e MR
been applied to re-measure those financial B ZERBUNEFNERH
instruments held by the Group which M EEINEEIIE -

expose the Group to foreign currency risk
at the end of the reporting period,
including inter-company payables and
receivables within the Group which are
denominated in a currency other than the
functional currencies of the lender or the

borrower.
2019 2018

—E-hE —E-)\%
Increase/ Increase/
Appreciation/  (decrease) in  Appreciation/  (decrease) in
(depreciation)  profits after (depreciation) in profits after tax
in foreign tax and foreign and
exchange  accumulated exchange  accumulated
rate profits rate profits
BH&ER BRERT
HEEER REFHER HME[E & REFHRT
HE/(RE)  #h/GRY)  AE/(EE) #n/0RD)
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET
Renminbi ARE 5% 408,014 5% 438,480

(5%) (408,014) (5%) (438,480)




7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value
interest rate risk in relation to pledged
bank deposits, fixed-rate bank and other
borrowings and notes payable (see notes
33, 35 and 36 for details of these
deposits, borrowings and notes). The
Group aims at keeping borrowings at
variable rates. Currently, the Group does
not have hedging policy. However, the
management monitors interest rate
exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate risk should the
need arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on
financial liabilities are detailed in the
liquidity risk management section of this
note. The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the
fluctuation of HIBOR and benchmark rate
in the PRC arising from the Group’s HKD
and RMB borrowings. Benchmark rate is
the prevailing benchmark lending interest
rate promulgated by People’s Bank of
China being 4.15% (2018:4.35%) per
annum (the “benchmark”).

I
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TERBHKERER

(b) B EABREEBEERBX

(%)
5 E R ()

(ii)

A == b
AEEREEBETHER - E
TE R ER1T R EAEE A K E
NEE(BEBZEGER EE
FEEREZFHE 280
33 - 35K36) H & A FEF =
B g o AEEE EAHERLOZH)
FEEE - NEB B Al &
FHER AT BEEESER
FlERER TerRERER=E
B R E AR ERE R o

AEEG SR A EmEE 2 Fl=
ERFBEEHRRAN RS E
TRRBREE—f -AEBEZR
EREMERE E ZEEHRNK
BAEEETRARBEEE
EZEBRITRERERTH
EER KRG E) - HEF K FF
BARBITAMHBETEEER
HEMKLAS% (ZF— )\ F :
4.35% )([EEFIEK]) o
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

It is the Group’'s policy to keep its
borrowings at floating rate of interests so
as to minimise the cash flow interest rate
risk. The Group is also exposed to cash
flow interest rate risk in relation to
amounts due from/(to) related parties with
variable interest rates, loan receivables,
bank balances and variable-rate bank and
other borrowings (see notes 20, 21, 28(a),
29, 32, 33 and 35 for details of these

balances, bank balances and borrowings).

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to
interest rates for both derivatives and
non-derivative instruments at the end of
the
prepared assuming the amount of asset
and liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis points increase or

reporting period. The analysis is

decrease is used when reporting interest
rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

7.

THTARMEERER

(#&)

(b) BHEREEREREE

(#&)

5 E R ()

(ii)

F =& e (48)
REEBZHREEHBTLZH
FEEE ZEUBRERER
REREERIE - AEBE G
TFENF R EY S (FE) BAE A
THE BRER RTER
NEBRRETREMEER
(EEZEEF BAOEER
BEZHE  FLHME20-
21~ 28(a) ~ 29 ~ 32 - 33 }435)
HERESREFNERR -

PR T

AT BURE BT T R AT R
IT 4 T AR &5 HK 2 F
RIREE « WL D 78 T
BN R 2R RBAE R
AEERBELEARZELE
e NEBEEAANBER
FI%ERE  EASOEEL 2
- HRRERBHHEA
LET DRETE
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis (Continued)
If interest rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's profit for the
year ended 31 December 2019 would
decrease/increase by HK$50,038,000
(2018: HK$43,013,000). This is mainly
attributable to the Group’s exposure to
interest rates on its variable-rate bank and
other borrowings and bank balances.

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk
listed
financial assets at FVPL. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different
risks.

arising from its investment in

The Group's equity price risk is
listed equity
the Stock
the Group has

mainly concentrated on
quoted in
In addition,
appointed a special team to monitor the
price risk and will consider hedging the
risk exposure should the need arise.

instruments
Exchange.

7.

RAEZEEARAA
“E-NEFR

THTAERMEERER

(%

I

=)

il

)

BHERARBEEERERRBE

(#&)

5 E R ()

(ii)

(i) H

MERE R (E)

B JZ T (BE)

i ¥ = _EF /T BR501E & 26 M
FEEMAI S HERZTE X
EEBEE_ZT-AFE+_-A8
=T+—BLEFEZEHNE
B 4 # Hn50,038,0007% JT
(= Z — )\ £ : 43,013,000/
T WELLEBREAEE
REFHFRBTREMEER
LA R SR 1T 45 77 BT B8 2 71 2 &

& o
AA

L {8 15 R
ARG B AL IR A K LA
BARBRATANAMLL S
B4 2 T O G AR (A LR
R AR TARRL A
BEANERZSRAR - £ %
B2 B R b B
EMXFAREL EHRET
B o tsh - AEEEE R
Y T AR R 0%
B E YA E 2 A
% -
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management
objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(iii) Other price risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to
equity price risks at the end of the
reporting period.

If the prices of the respective equity
instruments had been 5% higher/lower:

Profits after tax and accumulated profits
would increase/decrease by HK$467,000
(2018: profits after tax and accumulated
profits would increase/decrease by
HK$753,000) for the Group as a result of
the changes in fair value of listed financial
assets.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation
to its trade and other receivables and cash
deposits with banks.

The carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables, restricted cash, and cash and cash
equivalents represent the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets.

%EIE&J%E%%E

(b) BHEREEREREE

(%)

sk (&)

(iii) EMERRER (&)
& B E 5T
A TR FE 2 7 o R R 5 5
5 BT T B 2 RS HE B 1% B IR
= .

MERETIAEZ2EBR LA T
F#5% :

RNEEZBRRIZRF R R
F ¥ 38 00 R 1467,0007 T
(ZE—N\F BRERF R
2 5% F 1 0% 4°753,000
BT PHARLETEMEE
ZATFEBLERS-

FERR
AEBEGEABLERE SR E
ERMRITREFROEERR -

EWE S REMERNR  ZRHAS
MAERERAREZEEAE/SAE
EpecREEMEBRIAGEERR -
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 7. TRIARMBEARERE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (&

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management (b) BIKEREEEEREE
objectives and policies (Continued) (&)
Credit risk (Continued) FEERR(E)
To manage this risk, bank deposits are mainly REEBZERE ROGEREEEE
placed with state-owned financial institutions REEBEERSNEEREER
and reputable banks which are all high-credit- BELIZNRT - AEEEERED
quality financial institutions. The management of ZE—<BEKEEETEERSE
the Group has delegated a team responsible for EEMZERAMEREF - LR
determination of credit limits, credit approvals SHMBRETEW O S BERS - 1t
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that SN REEERNEREPREHNS
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue HEREZER 2K E S LA
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the T 4R Bt 1 AT 4 B FRIE (B 2 49 2 R
recoverable amount of each individual trade EERE -HUEMS XAFREER
debt at the end of each reporting period to RAEETESEREEST AR
ensure that adequate impairment losses are BEARRSBMRAEHFARE
made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, P-stEMEKERMS  EBE
the directors of the Company consider the EHRBEBEBNLHERBER
Group has no significant concentrations of credit Bz B H M B AR Y AT Wk @ A2 2
risk, with exposure spread over a large number fEH BB AT LA KA R FF b o A2
of counterparties and customers. For other AIEERRANEEH M ERERD
receivables, management makes periodic HAERERITEEENENEE
collective assessments as well as individual [ g o
assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables based on historical settlement
records and past experience. The directors of
the Company believe that there is no material
credit risk inherent in the Group’s outstanding
balance of other receivables.
The credit risk on liquid funds is limited B F 7 DB E 5 B T AR
because the counterparties are banks with high BRETEEEMRZRIT WU
credit ratings assigned by international credit- HESEERRBRAR -
rating agencies.
Other than concentration of credit risk on liquid R RN ZHASEETR R
funds which are deposited with several banks TRBESEEZEFEER
with high credit ratings, the Group does not o REBUEBEMBEAZEE

have any other significant concentration of SRR -
credit risk.
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7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of, a financial asset and
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period. To assess whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It
considers available reasonable and supportive
information.

forward-looking Especially the

following indicators are incorporated:

o internal credit rating
J external credit rating
o actual or expected significant adverse

changes in business, financial or economic
conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the debtor's ability
to meet its obligations

o actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of the debtors

in the expected
of the
debtors, including changes in the payment

o significant changes
performance and behaviour
status of debtors in the Group and

changes in the operating results of the

debtors.

7.

£

(4

E‘E
1=}

BMTAERVHEREREE

)

MERAREEEREREE
(%)

FERR(E)
AEERNS RS BEAERZE
BOBERRERENNEELEE
BRA TR EBER M BT
BERRESBELN FEELR
AENRE AR EEONERE
RS BREHEONRR - K%
B AR A R A R AR
BER - REMATIIEE

. NEEETR

o  IINEEEFR

s TEHEBIEBABITEMENEE
NHIRBEBREHNE - 815
IRBERANERKBHEKX
) &

s BEBRARZXENERNEM
BEREH

s BEBANBHMRRLITANE
REY BREBARAEE
NHARRNEE REFALE
KEWNE
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 7. TRIARMBEARERE
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (%8
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management b) BEEKREEEEREE
objectives and policies (Continued) (&)
Credit risk (Continued) FEERR(E)
Trade receivables JE W B 5 BR 3K
The Group applies the simplified approach to AN BER A BB 5 S 2RI 295
providing for ECL prescribed by HKFRS 9, which Findrz Bt A A IRIERAGEES
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss B ZAEATREWRE S BRERE
provision for trade receivables. R GFERBERE -
As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the loss RZE-—NARZZT-—NE+=A
allowance provision was determined as follows. =E+—H EBEREBEGEEOT N
The ECL below also incorporated forward THEREEEBITES THENLE
looking information. ko
2019 —E-NF
90 days to
Trade receivables 0-30days 31-90days 1 year Total
B W E 5 R 0Z30% 3MEX  REIF Gl
Expected credit loss BHEEER 2% 2% 20%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) REEE(FAT) 68,738 25,002 66,753 160,493
Loss allowance provision (HK$'000) BREE(TETL) (1,503) (500) (13,380) (15,383)
2018 —2-N\F
90 days to
Trade receivables 0-30days 31-90days 1 year Total
EKE SRR 0230K 31290K 90K E1F CH
Expected credit loss HHEEER 2% 2% 13%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) FHSETAT) 110,705 10,756 127,393 248,854
Loss allowance provision (HK$'000) BEEE(TET (2,541) (190) (16,352) (19,083)
Expected loss rate are based on actual loss EHERLEXRENBEBEHMFNE
experience over the past years. These rates are BREEETE EAMAENRME
adjusted to reflect differences between ELHBEHABREBERARANER - B
economic conditions during the period over Bk R AR &R B P AR 7= B UK BR FR B
which historic data has been collected, current 17 HA 9 £ B AR R o

conditions and the Group's view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 7. TRIARMEERERER
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (&)

(Continued)

BERREEEERKE

(b) Financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the gross carrying
amount of trade receivables was
HK$160,493,000. (2018: HK$248,854,000) and
thus the maximum exposure to loss was
HK$15,383,000 (2018: HK$19,083,000). The
Group made no write-off of trade receivables
during the year (2018:nil).

For the amounts due from associates, joint
ventures and non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries, the Group considered the ECL
impairment was insignificant as there have been
continuous payments with no history of default.
In the opinion of the management, it is not
probable that default payment would result and
accordingly, the Group credit risk in this respect
is remote.

(%8)

EERK (&)

EWE SRR (E)
ﬁé:%—n¢+:ﬂz+—a ' fE
Ik 2 5 *ﬁmﬁﬁﬁaﬁfﬁ%
160,493, 000,% T(Z ZE — )\ F
248,854,000/ 7T) ' M & N E B &
15,383,000%% ;t(=— & — J\ &F :
19,083,000/ T) ° ztxﬁl N EFE R

EMHEERE SRR (ZFE—N\F:
&)

EYEENE AELERMEBAR
W#Tkkﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ FZRIARINE S
BEHBERT BEENLE K
AEBERREREESERREL T
EX-BEEERRBTAAREEMNK
EX - AEAKENEERRTA -
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 7. ERMIARBERKRER
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (&
(Continued)
(b) Financial risk management (b) B EREE B ZERBEK
objectives and policies (Continued) (&)
Liquidity risk REBEEERE

The Group has net current assets amounting to
approximately HK$58,574,423,000
(2018:HK$47,889,262,000) at 31 December 2019.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group's operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation
of bank and other borrowings and ensures
compliance with loan covenants.

The Group relies on bank and other borrowings
as a significant source of liquidity. As at 31
December 2019,
unutilised bank loan facilities of approximately
HK$22,759,377,000 (2018: HK$15,566,987,000).
Details of which are set out in note 35.

the Group has available

The following table details the Group's
remaining contractual maturity for its financial
liabilities. For non-derivative financial liabilities,
the table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group
can be required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows.

AZZE—RAE+=-A=1+—8 &
SE#HBRYEEFEY
58,574,423,000/8 jt (=& — J\ F :
47,889,262,0007 7T) °

REERBDESRRIE  ~&HE
ERREFRERERARENER
BRATREZKFE AXNAEH
LEMFH LRERSRENDLZ
FE - BEEEERRTAREMEER
ZRE NERTAERRO 2R
F o

AEERBRITREMBEEI(ELSE
ERPEESRE- R —NLF
+—A=+—HB AEBZXFH
RITE R E X B22,759,377,00078
TT(=ZF — N\ F 1 15,566,987,000/8
TT) ° B B FE 1B E A M 5E35 ©

TRHAJNAKE 2 2@ B &2 R
EBHHR -RIFETEEREEM
FroRRIREBEEMABEZIRTR
BERENAKEAIWERKERLZ
RREAHREERHE -ZREIA
NERAEHRERE -
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management

7.

objectives and policies (Continued)
Liquidity and interest risk tables

2019
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Trade and other payables
Property rental deposits
Lease liabilities (note)
Amount due to the ultimate
holding company
— interest-free
Amount due to an
intermediate holding
company
— interest-free
Amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries

1
=11
HE |
[hess
SRR @
ke
B o
=)
S

&t BB ST et
ZTMRME =T
e

R

>

=1

S

i)

&ﬂmﬁmr?ﬁ)ung
735w D> Nm

=i
=

B+
U m GO
D)
B
5B

o=k |
P

=

jl

=0 =

T
=z

=S

B0

| >
el
s
s

— interest-free REE

Amount due to an associate & — Rkl & A &7
— interest-free — T &

Amounts due to non- FEATIN B A Al R IR
controlling shareholders of &R E
subsidiaries
— interest-free — T3 &

— fixed rate — BEF|®
— variable rate — B

Amounts due to joint ventures fEff A & & XFE
— interest-free — T3 &

— fixed rate — EEMH=

Bank and other borrowings 1T R Efufs &

— fixed rate — EEF|®
— variable rate — BYi=

Notes payable LS
— fixed rate — [EE A&

Loan from a fellow subsidiary —FFZHEA A

L&

Financial guarantee issued in B % [t 5Bt 2 A 7 ]k
respect of credit facilities to A2 RFMEREE
associates and joint BE B ER
ventures _

— maximum amount — RaERE
guaranteed (note 44) 1:#44)

iﬁlﬂ&%ﬁ@%%ﬂ

(b) BHEREEREREE
(&)
RBEERANERERXR

Note: Lease liabilities include amounts recognised at the date

of transition to

HKFRS

previously classified as operating lease under HKAS 17
and amounts relating to new leases entered into
during the year. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated.

Weighted
average On demand or Total
effective less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1-5 years  Over 5 years cash flows amount
NEYY  BERS RHAES
BERA=Z SR-% -ERf RENE RELAE REE
%  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TER g B B B
20,527,911 - - 20,527,911 20,527,911
130,162 - - 130,162 130,162
4.99% - 1,827 - 1,827 1,579
20,925 - - 20,925 20,925
3,102 - - 3,102 3,102
539 - - 539 539
81,722 - - 81,722 81,722
1,207,469 - - 1,207,469 1,207,469
8.28% 981,527 - - 981,527 933,255
5.01% 361,850 - - 361,850 350,860
671,566 - - 671,566 671,566
4.35% 1,044,830 - - 1,044,830 1,017,175
6.18% 2,809,274 14,529,832 8,311,888 25,650,994 18,808,789
5.16% 13,020,449 28,675,168 5,366,233 47,061,850 40,730,624
5.21% - 5,448,182 - 5,448,182 4,671,778
- 200,000 - 200,000 200,000
40,861,326 48,855,009 13,678,121 103,394,456 89,363,456
3,032,841
Wit HEAEREBEEREMBIREE
16 in respect of leases AlE169E Bt Z AR B A E Rt %
AE7RGRAAKEHENEEMD
BRI MR FEMI LN EED
;ﬁ:gggﬁ e AR b5 AT EFILL
B



7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Continued)

(b) Financial risk management

objectives and policies (Continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

(Continued)

2018
Non-derivative financial
liabilities
Trade and other payables
Property rental deposits
Amount due to the ultimate
holding company
— interest-free
— variable rate
Amount due to an
intermediate holding
company
— interest-free
Amounts due to fellow
subsidiaries
— interest-free
Amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries
— Interest-free
— fixed rate
— variable rate

Amounts due to joint ventures &

— interest-free
— fixed rate
Bank and other borrowings
— fixed rate
— variable rate
Notes payable
— fixed rate
Loan from a fellow subsidiary

Financial guarantee issued in

respect of credit facilities to

associates and joint

ventures

— maximum amount
guaranteed (note 44)

(RFIE ZEMERAT
— T hEER

7. %EIE&M&@@%E

(b) BEEMEEREREE
(%&)
REBE SRR EERK
(%)
Weighted
average  On demand Total
effective  or less than Over  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 1-5 years 5 years cash flows amount
MmEFY EEX FARRE
ERFIX PR-F ik RENE MELH REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR TEL TAR TEL TAR
=t X
FiESREAR
R85 R AR 19,616,373 — — 19,616,373 19,616,373
nEREES 122,336 - — 122,336 122,336
N RLER
NAEFE
—PHE 21,647 — — 21,647 21,647
— FBA 4.37% 31,769 - - 31,769 30924
JE— R MRk
NAEHE
— T8 3,209 - - 3,209 3,209
EFRZNE
ARIHE
— T3 & 1,377 - — 1377 1,377
TR E A RIFER
BRI
—AHE 1,445,635 — — 1,445,635 1,445,635
— B 7.12% 147,223 - — 147,223 140,949
— FEFx 5.92% 838,730 — — 838,730 808,820
EREEREHE
— T3 & 741,562 - — 741,562 741,562
— EEf = 5.68% 2,875,571 — — 2,875,571 2,777,012
ROREMEES
— B 4.53% 7,305,123 7,957,210 5,329,046 20,591,379 17,044,936
o — 2= 3.92% 6,859,413 26,911,334 3,715,805 37,486,552 33,256,283
=
i
— BEHE 5.21% — 5,479,479 — 5,479,479 4,704,598
—HRZHEA
B
— 206,897 - 206,897 206,897
40,009,968 40,554,920 9,044,851 89,609,739 80,922,558
EEHABEAT
Supsrazes
HEZHBER
— RARERE
(Hiit44) 3,909,068
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

B2 —FE—NF1=—A=1—HIFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 7. *RMIARMERERKRER

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (%)

(Continued)

(c) Fair values (c) A¥E

(i) Financial instruments carried at i) ADFEFEZEHE

fair value ITA
The following table presents the fair value RIBBE BN B REERIFE135%
of financial instruments measured at the [AFEFEIMAEHN=MA
end of reporting period on a recurring FEEBR NBEPERRE
basis, categorised into the three-level fair BUHEEFENERIANA
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, FEZINR TR AFEFE
“Fair Value Measurement”. The level into FIsEmERT2BIATHE
which a fair value measurement is T35 B o A\ SR A 1] B R AR
classified is determined with reference to ELREBZREEMERE :

the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as

follows:

o Level 1 (highest level): fair values ) F—R(HZEeER): FA
measured using quoted prices s B ™iS RS
(unadjusted) in active markets for TERFHRECREHAE)
identical financial instruments FEATE

. Level 2: fair values measured using . E_HR:NBAEERT
quoted prices in active markets for BREUeR I AENR
similar financial instruments, or using B -AMBEEZH ALY
valuation techniques in which all BEEIEEERTHR
significant inputs are directly or T 35 BUR 2 il 8 B o &1
indirectly based on observable EQATE

market data

o Level 3 (lowest level): fair values . E=M(RESEL): FIB
measured using valuation techniques BHEEZRAYEER
in which any significant input is not B RMIS IR ME

based on observable market data FirstE A FE



7.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c) Fair values (Continued)
(i) Financial instruments carried at

fair value (Continued)

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the
Group had following financial instruments
carried at fair value all of which are based
on the Level 1 and Level 3 of the fair
value hierarchy:

RUBEEEARAT 213
T NEEH

7. TRMIARMBRARERE

(c)

Fair value at
31 December

&)

AEEE)

iy UAFEFEZSH
TEE)
RZE—NLEER_ZFT—N\F
+=—A=+—H X&EBEMUT
ERMITEAEZURATFESHEE
CE—RMERE=ZMFEZRAF
BEARR:

Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2019
categorised into

R2019E12A31AN A FEHES ES

2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
A20195
12A31H
WA FE EF—R BFZR E=R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THERT THERT FHERT
Assets EE
Financial assets at fair & A F(EFT AR
value through profit or Z & @& E
loss
— Listed — k™ 9,349 9,349 — -
— Unlisted — LW 535,275 — — 535,275
544,624 9,349 —_ 535,275
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND 7. ﬁjﬂl AERMHEEREE
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (%)
(Continued)
(c) Fair values (Continued) (c) A¥E(E) _
(i) Financial instruments carried at (i) A QSFEEFEZ%%Q
fair value (Continued) TA(E)

Fair value measurements
as at 31 December 2018
categorised into

R2018F12A31B M AT EFES

Fair value at
31 December

2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
20184
12A31H
R TE — % B, E=R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHExT FHET FET
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair &2 FEF AExR
value through profit ZERMEE
or loss
— Listed — k™ 15,053 15,053 — —
— Unlisted —JEm 411,888 — — 411,888
426,941 15,053 — 411,888
During the year ended 31 December 2019 BE_Z-NFRZZE-N\F

and 2018, there were no significant
transfers between financial instruments in
Level 1 and Level 2, or transfer into and
out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to
recognise transfers between levels of fair
value hierarchy as at the end of the
reporting period in which they occur.

The fair values of financial
assets and financial liabilities
are determined as follows:

The fair values of financial assets with
standard terms and conditions and traded
on active liquid markets are determined
with reference to quoted active bid prices
and ask prices respectively; and the fair
values of other financial assets and
financial liabilities are determined in
accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash
flow analysis using prices or rates from
observable current market transactions as
input.

TZA=+t—BHLFE F—

BRE-BSMILTMHILE
EMEANE  F=MINED
AR - A EERERNE
WBEATEER SEREH
RET -

.

]
L
5w

e
bl

R

ER
B

N
R

12

%

ERMAERERR G - I
RERBRBMEEEZSRE
B AR ETIRT S 2 &R
EERREET MAMmESH
BEGREBEZATETIR
BARZEBRA - AAIEE
ZEHTISER S EERE ARE
BRITRBERENTMET °
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8. REVENUE 8. WA

WABRE =T WM IRFER A
MR 2 P BEIBIR) - FARERK
ABBREEFENMBERAD B AKRNA

Revenue represents the aggregate of the net
amounts received and receivable from third parties,
net of tax payable in the PRC. Disaggregation of

revenue from contracts with customers by timing of T
revenue recognition for the year is set out as
follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF —T-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FETT
Revenue from contracts with ERIAVRABESEF
customers disaggregated by EBRFBRAD B AR
timing of revenue recognition
Point in time — RABR
— Sales of properties — MEHE 37,743,573 21,207,257
— Sales of goods — HEEm 87,874 76,505
— Others — Hitp 137,218 99,538
Overtime o HABR
— Income from hotel operation — BEEEWRA 354,573 236,009
— Building management services — BFEERBEKA
income 929,690 934,017
Revenue from other sources H I A ROR
— Rental income — HeRA 691,050 680,318
39,943,978 23,233,644

RERWARE M TISEEP & QM
B A D BIABRTE M 513 55 -

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers by the timing of revenue recognition and
by geographic markets is disclosed in note 51.
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9. OTHER GAINS, NET

9. HibWAFHE

2019 2018
S = T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Gain on disposal of investment &R E Y E W=
properties 5,265 3,822
Dividend income % 8 0 A 9,931 7,665
Exchange loss ME W 18 (265,668) (281,254)
Government subsidy BT 43 B 7,106 17,080
Interest income from banks RITH B U A 227,455 152,126
Interest income from loans to BT H A QR E R
associates 2 A B WA 41,554 69,095
Interest income from loans to joint ERFTAEBEGRL
ventures B U A 54,093 119,413
Interest income from non-controlling FE4E R #E &7k 2
interests M B WA 9,153 13,421
Others Hity 66,703 247,816
155,592 349,184
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. B E B A
2019 2018
—E-hE — N\
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FET
Finance costs on interest bearing FFEEERERA
borrowings 3,543,530 3,285,328
Interest on lease liabilities HEAEFE 383 —
Less: amounts capitalised B B AR FRIE (2,070,305) (2,009,762)
1,473,608 1,275,566

Borrowing costs capitalised during the year arose
from specific borrowings.

The capitalisation rate of borrowings was 5.48%
(2018: 5.21%) for the year ended 31 December
2019.

FREMZBERARNRAEFEREE

HE-_ZT—NWF+_A=+—HILFE"
BEERLL R AE5.48%(ZF— )\ F :
5.21%) °



11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors emoluments disclosed pursuant to Section
383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap.
622) and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of
information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation
(Cap.622G) is as follows:

1M1.EEMME

BIE R B QA K H (F622%F ) 5383(1) %
RRAR(BBEEEFEER) RHI (622G

RABEEEERAT
T NEEH

B)F_HNEENESEHEO T

Other emoluments

HitM &
Share-based
payment Retirement
Salaries and expenses benefit scheme Total
Fees other benefits Bonuses (note i)  contributions emoluments
HeR R X AR X BHKER

he HitEH i (Hiiii) BE [ aMe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TAR TER TER

2019 “2-nE
Zhang Bingnan RIfE - 4,420 - 270 9 4,699
Han Qingtao BEE - 4,420 - 269 18 4,707
Xue Ming £ - 1,638 - - 18 1,656
Wang Xu Tl - 4,420 - 269 18 4,707
Wong Jian IE - 4,420 - 270 9 4,699
Ye Liwen bl - 4,012 - 199 18 4,229
Zhu Weirong BER - 4,012 - 199 18 4,229
Ip Chun Chung, Robert RS 339 - - - - 339
Choy Shu Kwan £ 339 - - - - 339
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia RE5 339 - - - - 339
Wong Ka Lun EXRf 339 - - - - 339
Total At 1,356 27,342 - 1,476 108 30,282
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11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

1. EEME(E)

(Continued)
Other emoluments
Hi i &
Retirement
Salaries and benefit scheme Total
Fees  other benefits Bonuses contributions emoluments
Hek RIKEF
we H @A e BEIRE ZHe
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEL TET AL THEL THET
2018 “B-N\§
Han Qingtao BEE — 2,774 — 18 2,792
Xue Ming £9 — 480 — 18 498
Wang Xu I8 — 3,216 — 18 3,234
Ye Liwen ] — 2,809 - 18 2,827
Zhu Weirong SRR - 2,743 - 18 2,761
Ip Chun Chung, Robert ERE 314 - - - 314
Choy Shu Kwan 9] 314 — - - 314
Leung Sau Fan, Sylvia REXK 314 - - - 314
Wong Ka Lun BXf 314 — — - 314
Total CHI 1,256 12,022 - 90 13,368
Notes: et

(i)

(iii)

In each of the two years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors, as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as a
compensation for loss of office. None of the directors has
waived any emoluments during each of the two years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, there
were, no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of
directors of the Company, controlled bodies corporate by
and connected entities with such directors.

These amounts represents the estimate value of share options
granted to the directors under the Company’s share option
scheme. The value of these share options is measured
according to the accounting policies for share-based
payments as set out in note 4(m)(ii) to the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the options granted
are set out in note 39 to the consolidated financial

statements.

(iii)

REBE-_ZE-hhER-_E-N\E+-_A=1+—
BIEMBEFESF ASERERENESS
15 B <& 1 7% % B 0 B8 sk 5 0 BE 7K 4 B B 2 4%
BSERAEE  REE_E-NEFE_ZE—N\
F+_A=+—BLRMETEST HEES
WELME -

REBEE-_Z-NEFR-Z-NF+_A=+—
BIUEEE UEANRARAESFREEHME
R EREEERNER  BUBERSHEM

ZECRIEEERBEARBBRET S ER
MR A EE ZFEREBERES
B 75 SR 2% MY B 4(m) (i) P8R BAL AR 10 ST A9 Y & &t
BRAE - EREHNBREFBEERGEY
T AR M 39 ©



RAEZEEARAA 219
“E-NEFR

12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 12 ENERSEHMA L

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments AEBRUGEeFMALH HE (2T
in the Group, four are directors (2018: none of them —N\FE UE)EARAQAREF(EMEEHR
is the director) of the Company whose emoluments EXHFE1) e = (ZZ—N\F: AfL)
are included in the disclosure in note 11 above. The EamgMALTzZMeBBOT

aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other
one (2018: five) highest paid individuals are as

follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Salaries and other benefits e kEMER 2,940 15,538
Bonuses TE4T 1,319 1,742
Share-based payment expenses & 15 2 1~ B 32 176 —
Retirement benefits scheme B ORAR A 5T &8 4 5k
contributions 289 536
4,724 17,816
The emoluments of the one (2018: five) highest paid — U (ZE—N\F: A EaHFMALTZ
individuals were within the following bands: B & /> F A T AR
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NHF
Number of Number of
employee employee
EEBAH B8 A
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/% 7t £3,000,000/% 7T —_ —
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001/ 7t £3,500,000/% 7T — 3
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001/% 7t £4,000,000/% 7T — 2
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001/ 7t £4,500,000/% 7T —_ —

HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7T 5,000,000/ 7T 1
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BE T NF+=—A=1—HIFE

13. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 13.

EXPENSE

Profit before income tax expense is arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

Staff costs
— directors’ emoluments (note 17)
— other staff costs
— other staff equity-settled share-
based payment expenses

— other staff’s retirement benefit
scheme contributions

Amortisation of prepaid lease
payments (included in
administrative expenses)

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
(note)

Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment

Total depreciation and amortisation

Auditor’s remuneration
— audit fee
— disbursements

Cost of inventories recognised as
expenses

Gain on disposal of investment
properties

Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Impairment loss on other receivables

Impairment loss on trade receivables

Impairment loss on properties under
development and held for sale

Short term leases expenses

Low value leases expenses

Total minimum lease payments for
leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17

Property rental income and building
management service income, net
of direct expenses of
HK$800,621,000 (2018:
HK$630,632,000)

& (Krat11)
B AR

LA % #E 45
’ﬁ%WZ

RARTEF

S0
[ 1| H

oS
e e

@\
/

-
-

ﬂ$HHW

mo 34 535 oo Y =
St pets Xt 3

|
fnt

N
/]

ik

#HTA N HE KA
GIATBHE®2R)

EREEEZIE (Ait)
ME - BEREBITE

WENEBHAER

=% BLED B &

— BB

— B R
BRREAXZFERAR

HEREWMEZ W

E?%‘@%&%ﬁz
& Uit B K 2 R (B /5 48

% 5 2 2 6 B F A

% @&ﬁﬁﬁ%%%Z
BEE

% HIAE 49 B X2

ﬁﬁﬁﬂmﬁi
EEF%%EJEE
FI7THR D ERKCERNN
ﬁ%rﬁﬂ%%ﬁ@%

MERLKARBFEE
REWA GIBREEMRY)
800,621,000/ 7T
(ZZE—NF:
630,632,0007% 7T)

i &

i)
= f
I
i3
il

BR At 16 % BA 32 A& 7

BRASRBAXAEME R, (FA):

2019 2018
—g2-n% —E-N\F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
TR T
30,282 13,368
1,225,858 1,016,506
22,977 —
168,596 146,376
1,447,713 1,176,250
— 10,764

16,923 —
170,557 138,205
187,480 148,969
8,350 8,350

888 880
24,822,952 13,240,545
(5,265) (3,822)
3,547 15,667
51,956 378
4,159 2,727
1,020,281 10,909
17,939 —
1,184 —

— 38,080
(820,119) (983,703)




13. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
EXPENSE (Continued)

Note:  The Group initially applied HKFRS 16 using the cumulative
effect approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1
January 2019 to recognise right-of-use assets related to
leases which were previously classified as operating lease
under HKAS 17. After initial recognition of right-of-use
assets at 1 January 2019, the Group as a lessee is required
to recognise the depreciation of right-of-use assets, instead
of the previous policy of recognising rental expenses
incurred under operating leases on a straight-line basis over
the lease term. Under this approach, the comparative
information is not restated.

14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The charge comprises: X B :
Hong Kong Profits Tax EEMEH
PRC Enterprise Income Tax XS
PRC Withholding Income Tax H B R0 PR 15
LAT TR E R

Deferred taxation iR FE T IR

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2018:
16.5%) based on the estimated assessable profit for
the year. No provision for Hong Kong Profit Tax has
been made for the year ended 31 December 2018 as
there is no assessable profit for the year.

RAEZEEARAA
“E-NEFR

13. BRFTE BB aa R (48)

K AEBRBEATEZIERERTEYBH
SREANF1FRL AR _T—NF—F—BEH
NER  WHERBERENERERE 66/
HEAERBEEBGENEITRDEREE
HE -R-ZE-NF—A—BNISHREME
BER AEBERFBANRERCAEEE
ZHE - MIERER SR A B AOAR AR
REHEMEENHSRANEER - %0 AB
BB AALBRER -

14. TEHBAX

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-N\F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FH T FE T

560,899 —

i) 1,424,517 1,168,499
i 1,385 991
3,121,646 1,628,112

5,108,447 2,797,602

(207,329) 25,884

4,901,118 2,823,486

EBFNER IR AFE Gt ERTOEFIZ
THE165% (= F — \F : 16.5%) & -
HRBE_T—\F+_A=+—HILHF
EEERT M MU ERESFEHIE
B o
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14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 14. FiB8H B X (&)

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for 2019 is
taken into account a reduction granted by the Hong
Kong SAR Government of 75% of the tax payable for
the year of assessment 2018-19 subject to a
maximum reduction of HK$20,000 for each business
(2018: a maximum reduction of HK$30,000 was
granted for the year of assessment 2017-18 and was
taken into account in calculating the provision for
2018).

The PRC Statutory Enterprise Income Tax is
calculated at 25% (2018: 25%) based on the
estimated assessable profit for the year.

The PRC Withholding Income Tax of 10% has been
levied on dividend income from a fellow subsidiary.

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 41.

Certain PRC subsidiaries are also subject to the PRC
LAT which is levied at progressive rates ranging from
30% to 60% on the appreciation of properties, being
the proceeds from sales of properties less deductible
expenditure including costs of land use rights and
development and construction.

ZE-NENEBHESHBEETREE
BFREFR - N\E—NLFRERFE
JEETIERNTS% R % (BE AR &R=RAE
B 5200008 )(ZE—N\F: 2T —+
FE-)N\FERDFERSREEL
30,0008 7 - ERETE — T — )\ F B {HK
HE R

h B 5 4 2 P 1S B T AR B S 4 (3 A
SR R B 25% (= B — \4F : 25% )
5

[ & i B 2 A IR B IR A =ik 10% 7 B Fa 40
Fiig®t

EER AR IS SN M 5541 -

ATHENERRINAMRZTH LI E
WoWHBEBLDREABSS (BNEHEY
EMERERAIRAY  BFELER
MERK AN AN 3 R EE K A) BN T30%E
60% 2 2 T EEUK -
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—E—NEFR
14. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 14. Fi8# B X (&)
The income tax expense for the year can be FRNFGERAXEGEEBRERT ZRE
reconciled to the profit before income tax expense in B AE PSR T ¢
the consolidated statement of profit or loss as
follow:
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before income tax expense B P45 350 B 2 A g A 8,689,747 5,424,934
Tax at PRC statutory tax rate of 25% 3% " Bl JE Ft 25%++ &
(2018: 25%) ZHRB(ZF—N\EF:
25% ) 2,172,436 1,356,234
Tax effect of share of results of DI ERNAREEZ
associates M 5,158 13,489
Tax effect of share of results of joint D{hA &R EEE Y
ventures MBEE (124,585) (62,592)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible 7~ A VE 7% F1 s 2 B 2 2
for tax purpose MG & 434,149 263,583
Tax effect of income not taxable for HZER T 2 WA Z Fi 7%
tax purpose za (445,877) (549,192)
Tax effect of tax losses not RHERBIEEE 2 W5
recognised TE 709,943 407,042
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses )8 Z Al 7 72 Fi 18 &5 18
previously not recognised BB (70,595) (43,202)
Effect of different tax rates of REMAEEREE 2
subsidiaries operating in other MEBAR Z TRMEZ
jurisdictions A (238,697) 81,103
Effect of tax already subject to LAT B &M b ER 2
MBEE 2,341,235 1,241,955
PRC Withholding Income Tax PEFEHAEH 1,385 991
Statutory tax concession EEHBESR (20) —
Others H Al 116,586 114,075

Income tax expense PS TR X 4,901,118 2,823,486
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15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15.
The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per
share for the year is based on the following data:
Earnings: BA
Profit for the year attributable to RRBEEARBIEFER
owners of the Company il
Number of shares: RAEE :

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue for the purposes of basic
earnings per share

BREFN

6 IR B R R R AR 18 T 5 R
e

AESREAREN B ®T
BRI F

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares B[ FT )% I 2 3 % 2 & 1E

on share options By e

Weighted average number of ordinary T EGR#EFERF 2 B 1T

shares in issue for the purpose of L w5 &
diluted earnings per share
Basic earnings per share BREREF
(HK cents per share) (B RRAEAL)
Diluted earnings per share BREERM
(HK cents per share) (FRRAE)

The diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2019 is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares. The Company’s potentially
dilutive ordinary shares comprised of share options.

The diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2018 are the same as basic earnings per
share presented as there were no potentially dilutive
ordinary shares in 2018.

2019 2018
—®-nE —TN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT T
3,832,948 2,241,590
2019 2018
—g-hf —E2-N\F
3,661,537,046 3,661,537,046
13,165,878 —
3,674,702,924 3,661,537,046
104.68 61.22

104.31 61.22

BHE_ZT-NAF+_A=1+—HLEFEHXN
BRESANDBBARRTEIING B
Bry OB ERABRMEALBBEE
BYEBCEARGE ARRABEREE
BEEZERRBREBERE -

HR-_ZE-NFUEEFEE#HETE Y
LAWK B E—E—N\E+=-_A=+—
B IF F [E 5 R85 2 7 815 /% 2 AN 2 F 18
|E-| o
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16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. BREY
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Level 3 fair value measurement F=ZRATEFT=
At beginning of the year F 1) 12,571,809 10,904,879
Transfer to property, plant and HEME - BE R
equipment B — (40,240)
Transfer (to)/from properties held for # (Z|) “B#HF{EHE
sale W) % (6,878) 1,811,977
Change in fair value NEEES (7,933) 278,932
Disposals L& (29,477) (11,499)
Exchange adjustments ME 5, 58 (412,389) (372,240)
At end of the year FR 12,115,132 12,571,809

The fair values of the Group's investment properties
at 31 December 2019 and 2018 were arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out on that date by
AA Property Services Limited, an independent
professional surveyor and property valuer not
connected with the Group. AA Property Services
Limited is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors, and has appropriate qualifications and
recent experiences in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valuation
were determined either on the basis of capitalisation
of rental income derived from existing tenancies or
by reference to comparable sales transactions as
in the
property manager and the chief financial officer have

available relevant market. The Group’s

discussions with the valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results twice a year when
the valuation is performed for interim and annual
financial reporting.

AEBREMER_T-NFR-_FT-N
FHT_A=1T—HAZRAVELRBIEREE
AEMFRYEGHEMRSVEERERA
AEASEHERE) RZBENGBEE
E-REMFEBHEAERARTIEBREM
BEeZKE  BEREERKINE AR
2 FRE Y RETHE KR - &b
BENRREREHEZHEWAZERE
HEEYRZ2EREEMBASZAELR
HEXFMETE AKEVEEEARE
&I 7B B EF MR (kB 6 G (E A &
wiEERKREGEELER  KEZ25FHR
FEMBHRS -

225



226 POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO. , LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ArE BRI T

For the year ended 31 December 2019

B2 —FE—NF1=—A=1—HIFE

16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 16. REWE(B)
(Continued)
All of the Group's property interests held under AEBARELEHEERBURNRES
operating leases to earn rentals or for capital FIEERBEREIMERER  BAMAR
appreciation purposes are measured using the fair FEEXGE L EARINIEREY
value model and are classified and accounted for as X

investment properties.

The fair value of the Group's investment properties RMEARAECAEEREMEZ AT
measured at the end of the reporting period is BENHEIBRREBY B R EHERFE13
categorised as level 3 of fair value hierarchy as FRMEEHAFTESRHESE =44

defined in HKFRS 13.

The carrying amounts of investment properties REWEZREBEBRE
comprises:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
Properties held under TE R 5475 AT %1 5 =
REZME
— long-term leases in Hong Kong — REBZ EHALD 189,000 187,000
— medium-term (10-50 years) land — R P 2 Ef
use rights in the PRC (10Z504F) + i
155 P A 11,926,132 12,384,809

12,115,132 12,571,809




16. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value

measurements

Fair value as at

RAEZEEARAA
“E-NEFR
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16. REW X (FB)

RRE=RAFEFEZEH

31 December Significant Range or weighted Relationship of unobservable
2019 Valuation techniques* unobservable inputs average inputs to fair value
RZB-h#
+=B=t+-AH EXAT TUBRBAHEE
WATE HERE BEBABE EEAMETHT ATENBR
HK$'000
FEL
Completed properties in Hong Kong 189,000 Direct comparison Transaction price HK$24,941  The higher the transaction price,
RAEBNRINE ERER (HKS/square feet) (2018: HK$24,667) the higher the fair value
2 5ER UMETL RFERER ATEES
(Brx/FAR) (ZE-NF:
26675 TT)
Completed properties in the PRC 11,492,799 Direct comparison Transaction price RMB350-RMB46,500  The higher the transaction price,
RAEEMNETYSE BENE (RMB/square (2018: RMB350- the higher the fair value
meter) RMB46,600) XHERHEE ATEMS
RHER ARE30TE
(A\R®T/ AR 46,5007
FHK) (ZB2-N\%:
ARB350TE
AR #46,60070)
Completed properties in the PRC 433,333 Income approach Capitalisation rate 5% to 8.3% (2018:  The higher the capitalisation rate,
R EMETI YR W& BRI = 27% to 85%)  the lower the fair value
5%%8.3% EALLXER ATFEMLE
(ZE-NF:
2.7%%8.5%)
12,115,132
& Fair value of completed properties is generally derived using * BRIMENLAFE—REAEZLBEFH
the direct comparison approach unless reliable market (BRI ERHEREMBRE Al EMIHERD
information is not available for certain properties due to their HETWMERIN) -

locations or specialised function uses.

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is
recognised in the line item “(decrease)/increase in
fair value of investment properties” on the face of

=7
E0Y

the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during

the year.

BREWMEZ AFEFABEDINESBERA
[REWE 2 X TFECRD) EMIEB #

REAF=HRALBEMEAREL -
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT

Cost or valuation:
At 1 January 2018

Additions

Transfer

Transfer from properties held for sale

Transfer from investment property

Disposals

Surplus arising on revaluation

Less: Elimination of accumulated
depreciation

Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2018 and
1 January 2019

Additions

Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 52)

Disposals

Surplus arising on revaluation

Less: Elimination of accumulated

depreciation
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2019
Comprising:

At cost
At valuation — 2019

FAFME
R=2-N\§-F-H

RE

g8
gaRHENE
ZaRANE
&

EfAH

B HBRHTE

EXBE

RZB-N\E+ZfA=1-8
k=2-h1%-A-H

HE

WEHBAABEA
(H#52)

e

Bl

W HERHTE

EXHE

BB — —B-N%F

17. ¥ - BERRZRHE

Furniture,
Hotel  Leasehold fixtures and Motor  Plant and  Construction
properties land  Buildings equipment vehicles  machinery  in progress Total
B
BE BE %E BE

nE i BF K& RE REH ERIE &t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TR TER TER TR TER TR
986,904 169,230 905,263 276,164 128,001 235,607 371 2,701,540
— — 9,059 96,924 1,720 15,743 38 123,484

- — - - — 38 (38) -
1,471,548 — 16,933 - — — — 1,488,481
- 31,524 8,716 - — — — 40,240
- — (19,612) (27,832) (13,528) 2.171) (170) (63,313)
547,454 — — - — — — 547,454
(54,634) — — - — — — (54,634)
(34,031) - (29,808) (8,053) (3,944) (8,099) (10) (83,945)
2,917,241 200,754 890,551 337,203 112,249 241,118 191 4,699,307
- - 5,322 29,151 5113 1,768 - 41,354

- - - 1,149 115 - - 1,264
- - (1,207) (16,047) (6,455) (2,826) - (26,535)
130,368 - - - - - - 130,368
(91,479) - - - - - — (91479
(97,241) - (28,237) (10,379) (3,368) (8,007) (M) (147,239)
2,858,889 200,754 866,429 341,077 107,654 232,053 184 4,607,040
- 200,754 866,429 341,077 107,654 232,053 184 1,748,151
2,858,889 - - - - - — 2,858,889




17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Accumulated depreciation:

At 1 January 2018
Charge for the year
Disposals

Elimination on revaluation
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2018 and
1 January 2019

Charge for the year

Acquired on acquisition of subsidiaries

(note 52)
Disposals
Elimination on revaluation
Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2019

Carrying amounts:
At 31 December 2019

At 31 December 2018

REHE:

R=2-N§-5-H
FEME

&

EfBHE

EXHE

R-B-N\%§
+ZA=t-AR
“Z-7A%5-A-H

FEMR

KENBAAREA
(Hiit52)

HE

SR HE

ERAZ

RABEEEERAT
T NEEH

17. W% -BERKEE)

Furniture,

Hotel  Leasehold fixtures and Motor  Plant and Construction

properties land  Buildings equipment vehicles  machinery in progress Total
B
B JE HE ®E BB

L/ES T it BF EkRE RE R#HE EEIR &5t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
THET THET THET THERT TET TER FET FTERT
- 49,199 256,236 193,423 98,818 213,022 — 810,698
55,269 3,700 26,543 39,905 8,755 4,033 - 138,205
— — (5,900) (27,320) (12,815) (1,611) — (47,646)
(54,634) — — — — — — (54,634)
(635) - (8,652) (6,191) (3,078) (7.372) - (25,928)
- 52,899 268,227 199,817 91,680 208,072 - 820,695
92,507 4,015 23,565 37,516 6,871 6,083 - 170,557
- - - 870 60 - - 930
- - —  (14713)  (5592)  (2.684) - (22,989)
(91,479) - - - - - - (91479
(1,028) - (8,769) (6,360) (2,779) (6,972) - (25,908)
- 56,914 283,023 217,130 90,240 204,499 - 851,806
2,858,889 143,840 583,406 123,947 17414 27,554 184 3,755,234
2,917,241 147,855 622,324 137,386 20,569 33,046 191 3,878,612

The above items of property, plant and equipment
are depreciated using the straight-line basis at the
following rates per annum:

Hotel properties

Leasehold land
Buildings

Furniture, fixtures and

equipment
Motor vehicles

Plant and machinery

2%

over the lease term

2%-18%
20%

20%
5%—-23%

Ly - BERREBEBHREGET
E ARWEFEMT:

R YES
HE L
BF

Bl KERRE

"
5 M 25

2%
RENF D
2%ZE18%
20%

20%
5% % 23%

229



230 POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO. , LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR R Rk M

For the year ended 31 December 2019

B2 —FE—NF1=—A=1—HIFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 17. ¥ -BERRZRE(E)

EQUIPMENT (Continued)

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FET
The carrying amounts of hotel BT 575 AT 51 75 S FF
properties, leasehold land and BzBEM% HELH
building located at: REFZREE :
— long-term leases in Hong Kong — R&B 2 KEAL 173,263 178,138
— medium-term land use rights in  — B 2 A 4 i
the PRC 15 I 1 3,412,872 3,509,282
3,586,135 3,687,420

The fair value of the Group’s hotel properties at 31
December 2019 and 2018 was arrived at on the basis
of a valuation carried out on that date by AA
Property Services Limited, an independent
professional surveyor and property valuer not
connected with the Group. AA Property Services
Limited is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors, and has appropriate qualifications and
recent experiences in the valuation of similar
properties in the relevant locations. The valuation
were determined by either discounting the
construction cost or arrived by the income approach,
whereby the income derived from the hotel
operations with regard to past trading accounts are
capitalised at an appropriate rate of return to arrive
at the value of the property interests with due
allowance for outgoings and expenses. The Group's
property manager and the chief financial officer have
discussions with the valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results twice a year when
the valuation is performed for interim and annual
financial reporting.

The fair value of the Group’s hotel properties
measured at the end of the reporting period is
categorised as Level 3 of fair value hierarchy as
defined in HKFRS 13.

AERBEPER_ZE-NFR-ZF-N
FH_A=1T—HZRAVFERBILEXA
BERMELEMREINEBRRERAA
(BASEHERE) B ZHEEE -
ROMEBHAEARARNERBNEMES
ZRE AR EERIIHEARBE
ZRBBYZETHEZER - %EETD
BRI IRERAKEKBRALETE - B
REEOHRETEBERSKRE L& EE
EBBABER UBHYMEERZE
B WHARRXRERFEEERE - K
SENEXEEAREFEMBECREEM
RfEER BEEMN REERKRGES
RUNBE2IPHARFERBRS

RBEMRABZAREBENEZRF
ETESBREEEV B REERFE135%
FEENRATFESREIEE =4
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (Continued)

“E-NEFR

17. W% -BERKEE)

Relationship of
unobservable inputs to
fair value

ATEERABER
AYEHEE

Fair value as at Significant Range or
31 De;:mber 231; Valuation techniques unobservable inputs weighted average
N :‘g -

tZA=t-8 EXTTBE #EY
WAYE fERE BAlE hE¥S

HK$'000

TET
Hotel properties in Beijing, 352,222 Income approach Capitalisation rate 8.3% (2018:9.8%)

the PRC

R B RABEN % LN TN (A 8.3%
(ZB-N\F:
9.8%)

Hotel properties in Wuhan, 2,506,667 Cost approach
Shunde, Shanghai and

Guiyang, the PRC

REERE BE FER A

ERMEENR

2,858,889

Surplus on revaluation and exchange adjustment of
properties held for own use are recognised in
consolidated statement of comprehensive income in
“Surplus arising on revaluation of properties”.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during
the year.

Estimated profits from  RMB7,200 (2018:

operations (RMB/ RMB6,900)

square metre)
2B R ARET,2001
(AREBT/FAK) (ZB-N\E:
AR %6,9007)

2.9%-46.8% (2018:
0%-44%)

Adjustment to
construction cost,
with reference to
the remaining useful

life
RERARE 22 2.9%%46.8%
BTEREH (ZB-N\%F:
0%244% )
Construction cost per RMB8,250-

RMB17,000 (2018:
RMB9,500-20,000)

square meter

B¥nKRERE  ARMBS0TE
AR 17,0007

(CE-N%F:

AEH®95007 E

A %20,0007T)

The higher the
capitalisation rate, the
lower the fair value

BRLLEHS
AFEBE

The higher the estimated
profits, the higher the
fair value

fhErEREm -
AT{ERE

The higher the discount
rate, the lower the fair
value

TREER -
RFEBE

The higher the
construction cost, the
higher the fair value

BERAER
RTEER

FIFERMEZEGRBGNRELAETIR
FETHKRAERZ(MEREGRRKRIER -

REAF=BALBEMEALEL -
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BE-—F-NFT-A=1—HILFE

18.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES

HKFRS 16 was adopted 1 January 2019 without
restatement of comparative figures. For an
explanation of the transitional requirements that were
applied as 1 January 2019, see note 2(c). The
accounting policies applied subsequent to the date of
initial application, 1 January 2019 as disclosed in
note 4(g)(i).

Nature of leasing activities (in the

capacity as lessee)

The Group leases a number of properties in the
jurisdictions from which it operates. The periodic rent
is fixed over the lease term.

The values in the table below reflect the current

proportions of lease payments that are fixed.

31 December 2019

Property leases with fixed payments

—E2-hAE+=-A=+-H

BEMRONERE

18. ERBEEEREERE

ARAR-T—NE—A—BRAEBHY
5 98 & 2 R 165 - 830 1 B 5 b B
e AM-F AT —A—ERNBN
e B0 B89 - 8 RLMY B2 © BRUE
BAME=F—hF—A—B)2&EA
0 B BRI W EEA(Q) ()RR -

HEETHNAE (IEABEANE
1)
AEERQEFERZEERESEY
% -THASERANEETE -

TRAHERRT EREENRE ML
7l -
Lease Fixed monthly
contracts payments
HEEHK BlE A&
HK$'000
TER
165 to 247
2 1652247
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18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 18. E A EERHEEEE (HB)
LIABILITIES (Continued)
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE
The Group leases a number of office premises and REBRGEMERVEER (BERE R
prepaid the land lease payments in the jurisdiction BEB)HEZERAEYE  WEN T
from which it operates, including in the PRC and HEMKIHE -
Hong Kong.
Leasehold 2019
land Buildings Total
—E-hF
HE L BF e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FTERT
Initial application of HKFRS 16 & X F& F B R B 7% i 5
and restated balances at HERE16R RN =E
1 January 2019 —hWE—-—HA—BKE
5I] # £R 384,358 10,436 394,794
Depreciation provided during & R & & 5
the year (12,129) (4,794) (16,923)
Exchange adjustments A (12,673) (158) (12,831)
At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF
+=ZA=+—8~ 359,556 5,484 365,040

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use

REBEESRRNE DO EAREERTDF

assets by class of underlying asset is as follows: BEoMMT:
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
—E-0F —E-NF
+t=ZB=+-H —HA—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx TET
Ownership interests in leasehold land of 7 & &) Fr 5 4 # 2 I 24 78 58
amortisation with remaining lease term B DA T € (B /9 4 b
of: 8
— Between 10 and 50 years — 10&50%F 359,556 384,358
Other properties leased for own used RerBEN A T&EE A
carried at depreciation cost with EE A MM - Ui
remaining lease term of: E AR
— Less than 10 years — TEEI10F 5,484 10,436
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18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 18. F AR EERHEHES B (&)
LIABILITIES (Continued)

Lease liabilities HEAE
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
—B-NF —E-NF
+=—HA=+—H —HA—H
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FET
Lease liabilities HEER
— Current (included in other — B (GF A H AL E
payables) (note 34) RIB) (Mt 234) 4,124 4,613
— Non-current — ERE 1,579 5,823
5,703 10,436
2019
—E-hEF
HK$'000
FTERT
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—-—N\FE+ZA=+—8 —
Recognition upon initial application of EPNEES L E SR
HKFRS 16 165 K R 10,436
At 1 January 2019 RZE-—NAFE—H—H 10,436
Additions during the year FARE -
Interest charged to profit or loss Mk BaE=NAE 383
Payment during the year FARMRK (4,956)
Exchange adjustments M 5, 8 B (160)

At 31 December 2019 RZE—NF+_A=+—H 5,703




18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued)
The following table shows the remaining contractual
maturities of the Group's lease liabilities at the end
of the current and previous reporting periods and at
the date of transition to HKFRS 16:

31 December 2019
Sg-AEtZAZt-R
Present value
of the minimum
lease  Total minimum
payments lease payments

RAEZEEARAA
“E-NEFR

18. ERAEEERBAERE(E)

HE&REGE)

TR BB A R 6 0 R 1 R s R R
B RBEE BB WS LA F 16 B
MAEEREEESTAHBMIER:

1 January 2019 (Note) 31 December 2018 (Note)
ZE-nE-RA-A(NE) “E-NEtZA=t+-B(HH)

Present value
of the minimum
lease payments

Present value
Total minimum ~ of the minimum ~ Total minimum
lease payments  lease payments lease payments

RERE EERE REEE HERE HERE HEMEE
RERE HELE HERE TELE TERE NELE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TERL TR TET TAT TAT
Within 1 year —FR 4,124 4,293 4,613 5,002 — —
After 1 year but within —EREMER
2 years 1,579 1,608 4,190 4,362 — -
After 2 years but within ~ WERBRLER
5 years - - 1,633 1,664 - -
5,703 5,901 10,436 11,028 — -
Less: total future interest  Jii: BAF SFHY A%
expenses (198) (592 -
Present value of lease MEBERE
liabilities 5,703 10,436 -
Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the cumulative Hiet - AEBERBRAZE LT RERS B M KR

effect approach and adjusted the opening balances at 1
January 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating to leases
which were previously classified as operating leases under
HKAS 17. These liabilities have been aggregated with the
brought forward balances relating to leases previously

classified as finance leases, if any.

Comparative information as at 31 December 2018 has not
been restated and relates solely to leases previously
classified as finance leases. The Group has no finance lease
as at 31 December 2018. Further details on the impact of the
transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in note 2(c).

Information on operating leases as at 31 December 2018 are
set out in note 42.

EEREISE UHABR-_ZE-AFE—A—HK
BT UERBERBEESSHERE7
HHOMERAKEHENHEHEEERE %F
BREHABAESEARENENHELSE
Her(nA) -

TR N\ET A=+ BNEBREHLE
By EFRBESEAREEENHE - A
EER-_T - \F+-_A=+—BLERE
HE -ARBEEEBEMBREERNE165EM
FEFBRNME2c) ©

FR—_Z-N\F+_A=+HNKRLHEE
B KT EE42
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18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE 18. F AR EERHEHES B (&)
LIABILITIES (Continued)

Lease liabilities (Continued) HES®E(E)
2019
—E-hEF
HK$'000
TERT
Short-term lease expense EEAERX 17,939
Low-value lease expense KEEHERX 1,184
19. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 19. BN HENKE
2019 2018
ZB-hF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
The Group’s prepaid lease payments 7ZN% [ ~ 78 (4 1 & U
comprise: BAE
— medium-term land use rights in ~ — B 2 A 8 £ #h
the PRC {52 FA 4 —_ 384,358
The Group's prepaid lease payments ZN% [ 2 78 4 1 & 718
comprise: BiE
— current asset — REEE — 11,995
— non-current asset — ERBEE — 372,363
— 384,358
Upon the transition to HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019, RZZFE—NF— A —BBEEBBYBR
the prepaid lease payments were regarded as HREBIE 1655 1% - EANHEERERERER

right-of-use assets. BEE -
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ety
20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. REFE R R 2=
2019 2018
—E-nE T N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE& T FET
Cost of unlisted investments in REE R Al zIEL™
associates & B AR 397,966 353,070
Share of post-acquisition losses and 2 {5 Y fE 14 B 18 K
reserves, net of dividends received #1% 2 Y% 2 (108,036) (90,532)
Goodwill EES 1,970 2,038
291,900 264,576
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Amounts due from associates: JrE Ui B N B FIR
— Interest-free — st A 2,309,451 63,245
— Fixed rate of 6% — BEE R E6% — 725,402
— Fixed rate of 8% — EE ) Z*E8% 206,667 213,793
— Fixed rate of 10% — EEF*E10% — 225,819
2,516,118 1,228,259
2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-N\HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Amount due to an associate: FEA — R B = A R FRE ¢
— Interest-free — TEE 81,722 —
The amounts are unsecured and repayable on EEFELHRERT  BAREREEK

demand or within one year. R—FRNEE-
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. Rt NE 2R (8)
(Continued)
Details of the Group’s principal associates as at 31 ARBRZF-NFR=F-\F+=A
December 2019 and 2018 are as follows: ZST-BZEEBRERRZHBOT

Proportion of ownership
interest by the Group

AEBERRS LD
Place of
establishment
Name of associates and business 2019 2018  Principal activities
BENTHB RYREE®RYE —ZT-nF —T-\F FEXH
MEMIPEHERERARDE PRC 30% 30% Property development
((EENDPEBE] ] MEER

BEt XA ETEXZARAA PRC 25% 25%  Property development
(MEmEEK]) o B MEER

BEEEEXERAA PRC 30% 30% Property development
(BB #]) B MEER

MG ESRHEMEREERAR  PRC 30% 30% Property development
(T el h MEHR

BMNERBXERAA PRC 40% 40%  Property development
(&M E=R]) i MEHR

BMNFKEXREBRAA PRC 45% —  Property development
(&R MRF ) 5 MEER

HMNmKEHEREERAA PRC 49% —  Property development
(RXEHE]) ] MEER

Notes: HaE -

(i) The above table lists the associates of the Group which in the @i EERR LRINHHAKEZRBAXNAESR
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results or BARVEZAREBEAR  WRBPHHA
assets of the Group. To give details of other associates HEARCANFENE g2 EBRT
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of o
excessive length.

(i) For the initial application of HKFRS 16 leases, there was no (ii) BR E P A 15 R 5 2 R 551 657 A B R
material impacts to associates and no retrospective ARG BEALE  BAFHERAE

adjustments required.
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—T-NEFR
20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. REE DT 2w (8)
(Continued)
Additions during the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_Z-NLFRZZ-N\F+=A
and 2018 mainly included the investments in a =T BLEFEENEZZEREMRAE=H
number of property development companies together REBXMEERQR - HAEEM S M
with third parties. None of the acquisition was BAEMKEEENER - WEBEMNT
individually significant to the Group. Summary of the
acquisitions are as follows:
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE-Z-hAWF+=ZA=t+-
BLEFE
Total
BMNGE RHEEHE a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THERT THER
Identifiable net assets: AR FEE:
Identifiable assets and liabilities AR & E R
assumed BREERE
Assets BE 1,596,143 1,712,100 3,308,243
Liabilities BfE (1,541,128)  (1,657,874)  (3,199,002)
Identifiable net assets A B BHE E 55,015 54,226 109,241
Reconciliation to the Group’s HASERBEE AT
interests in associates: MR :
Cash consideration for the acquisition 853 & X & 25,000 27,222 52,222
Fair values of the Group's share of 7N & [® fE 15 7] & 5
identifiable net assets FEEZAYE (25,000) (27,222) (52,222)

Goodwill il

I
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. REtE DT 2= (BB)
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z-N\F+ZA=+-—
HIEFE
Total
sk R BMNER &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FET
Identifiable net assets: ARBFEE:
Identifiable assets and liabilities AHANEER
assumed BAREERE
Assets BE 886,939 2,517,343 3,404,282
Liabilities BE (887,945)  (2,466,170)  (3,354,115)
Identifiable net assets AI &Rl & B (1,006) 51,173 50,167
Reconciliation to the Group’s HEASERBEE AT
interests in associates: WS :
Cash consideration for the R e RE
acquisition 3,448 23,449 26,897
Fair values of the Group's share of 7N & B & 1§ 7] &4 7
identifiable net assets FEELATE (3,448) (23,449) (26,897)

Goodwill il

I
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—T—NEFR
20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. REtE N TR 2= (58)
(Continued)
Summarised financial information of BEABELQNANKEERNBE
material associate
Summarised financial information in respect of the AREEE RS QAR I 15 E R ZE55)
Group’s material associate is set out below: wm
HEMDEE
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
As at 31 December R+=-—BA=+—H
Current assets mENE E 1,686,143 1,733,253
Non-current assets EMBE E 7,132 7,554
Current liabilities mEaE (1,164,098) (1,024,739)
Non-current liabilities EMBAEE — —
Included in the above amounts are: AT A _F it A EAIIEH 5
Cash and cash equivalents RekERARE 36,846 12,665
Current financial liabilities (excluding R & & & (T8 E
trade and other payables) FERTE 5 K& A fih BR 3K (989,291) (814,751)

Non-current financial liabilities FnBeRMmAE(TEE
(excluding other payables) H h & 1 BR 3K — —
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20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20. REEE N R 2R (18)
(Continued)
Summarised financial information of EABEQNANKEERGE
material associate (Continued) (&
Summarised financial information in respect of the REESE A E QAT BE R ZH 7
Group’s material associate is set out below: R
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FAT
Year ended 31 December BEZ+=-A=+—H
IFFE
Revenue WA — 834

Net loss and total comprehensive ERFERETERRER
income (132,420) (103,953)

Included in the above amounts are: Ff A _F#iZXTEAIIE B 7 -

Depreciation and amortisation rEE R iH (155) (151)
Interest income M BB A 384 150
Interest expense M BB X (114,604) (93,144)

Income tax expense TSR A — (1,407)




20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 20.

(Continued)

Summarised financial information of
material associate (Continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in
the associate recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

Net assets BEFE
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 7<% B % A # 2 Lt 5l
interest

Group's share of net assets REBEHHEEFE
Goodwill g =
Carrying amount in the consolidated #r& B 75 3R 2% Bk @ 1B

financial statements

Aggregate information of associates
that are not individually material

Carrying amount in the consolidated 4R 4 B 7% 7 5% BR M (B
financial statements

Group's share of profit/(loss)

AEEDMEEN, (EER)

RAEZEEARAA

T NEEH

=)

REBEQNT 2= (&)

EXBEQARMBERBE

(#8)

tRMBERBREEDR

AN
I8

RHBERBEANREENER -

B 75 R

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$’000
TR TR
529,177 716,068
30% 30%
158,753 214,820
1,457 1,507
160,210 216,327

FEHNEXANEE X RAEME

|
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT F& T
131,690 48,249
19,096 (22,768)
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B2 _FE—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21. REELEZRR
2019 2018
=F-hF —TN\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Cost of unlisted investments in joint RAZMCEZIELEMEE
ventures AR 7,084,719 7,635,284
Share of post-acquisition profit and 7l Y % 12 & 7| & (& 4 -

reserves, net of dividends received kB W B 344,940 138,111
7,429,659 7,773,395
2019 2018
—E-NF —FE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Amounts due from joint ventures: B & & ERIE :
— Interest-free — TEEE 4,245,175 867,988
— Fixed rate of 5% — [ E F #&5% — 308,580
— Fixed rate of 7% — BEEFET% 271,251 360,632
— Fixed rate of 8% — B EF *E8% 201,289 435,437
— Fixed rate of 10% — [E 7 *&10% — 503,885

— 110% of benchmark rate in the — 110% B & %
PRC A =& 362,541 538,550
5,080,256 3,015,072

Amounts due to joint ventures: et & & ¥ FIE -
— Interest-free — TEEE 671,566 741,562
— Fixed rate of 4.35% — [EE I *&4.35% 1,017,175 1,154,023
— Fixed rate of 5.34% — [ E F %5.34% — 243,678
— Fixed rate of 6.85% — [EE F %6.85% — 1,379,311
1,688,741 3,518,574

The amounts are unsecured and
demand.

repayable on

BEHREAAEER BARERER

o
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—E-NFFW
21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21. REELR 2w (E)
(Continued)
Details of the Group’s principal joint ventures as at AEBR+ZA=T—HZEEEEDE
31 December, are as follows: ZEBWMT
Proportion of ownership interest
by the Group
AEERTREELA
Place of
establishment and
Name of joint ventures business 2019 2018  Principal activities
RELERR RYREEHLE “E-NF “Z-N\E FEEH
RITRAEIELEEFRA A PRC 45% 45%  Theatre management
H BlltER
FERERMEREERAR( LERE]) PRC 50% 50% Investment holding
i REEK
FBRMEBREBERAA PRC 50% 50%  Investment holding
HE REEKR
ERRMNEEZREFRAA PRC — (i) 46.7%  Property development
(TBERMES]) HE NEER
ERRFIXCREERERAA PRC 50% 50%  Investment holding
H REEK
FBRZREERARAA PRC 50% 50%  Property investment
i NERE
FEREAREERERAA PRC 50% 50%  Investment holding
i REEK
FESEREBRAA PRC 50% 50%  Investment holding
H REEKR
RYTRBEHEREERA A PRC 50% 50%  Property development
(MR R HE D) HE NMEER
RYTREEHEREERAR PRC 50% 50%  Property development
(TRINREFHE 1) Rlc NEER
RERGENRHEREERAR PRC — () 64.3%  Property development
(IREEHEAND e NEER
EHEREEEHEREFRAA PRC 33% 33%  Property development
(MEEER]) HE NEER
EREHEZERAA PRC 33% 33%  Property development
(T=g L#1) i NMEER
Win Loyal Development Limited HK 30% 30% (iij)  Property development
([ Win Loyal |) BB MEERE
Joy Best Enterprises Limited BVI 35% — Investment holding

([ Joy Best ) RERAHE REZR
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21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21. RE ¥R (B)

(Continued)

The above table lists the joint ventures of the Group EERA ERIEEAEEZEEXE

which in the opinion of the directors, principally ERFEAREBZAEBEEGERE URA

affected the results or assets of the Group. To give MEHEMmEErEZEHNFMAIL &<

details of other joint ventures would, in the opinion ERBRITK -

of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

Notes: Bt

(i) The Group acquired an additional 35.7% equity interest of & (i) AEBR -_ZT-NAFURBERZETHBHEHEIN
EFI5HE 7 in 2019 and thus accounted for as a subsidiary of 3B57%kE AMEFERASENERAA
the Group. For details, please refer to note 52. iR - 1B 7 2B k52 -

(i) The Group acquired an additional 36.8% equity interest of /& (i) REBER T — NG WEERRFESEIN
FA{RFI%EF in 2019 and thus accounted for as a subsidiary of 36.8%M 1 A EIEAAREENBE QA A
the Group. For details, please refer to note 52. iR o S 15 2B 7E52 o

(iii)  The Group acquired 30% equity interest in Win Loyal through (iii) REBRZZ— \FULR(ES 749,739,000
acquired a fully owned subsidiary, Active Success Consultants T — B & & M B 2 FlActive Success
Limited at a total consideration of HK$3,749,739,000 in 2018 Consultants Limited * # It 4 BWin Loyal
in expand business in property development in Macau. 30% 1% HE LA 17 A B P B 4 3 B B 2K TS o

(iv) For the initial application of HKFRS 16 leases, there were no (iv) HAERAEBYBREENFZ1KAELEE
material impacts to joint ventures and no retrospective CEVEEAYE BAEHENRAE-

adjustments required.
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21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21. AEELEZRR(B)
(Continued)
Summarised financial information of BEAGELXKERBE
material joint ventures \ \ \
Summarised financial information in respect of the AREERGERRNABERB R
Group's material joint ventures are set out below: m
YR B E e E
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
As at 31 December R+=-—A=+—H
Current assets mENE E 4,423,712 3,412,523
Non-current assets ERBEE 17,688 18,241
Current liabilities mENaE (144,813) (558,263)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (2,376,111) (886,667)
Included in the above amounts are: i A _F LB IEH 5 -
Cash and cash equivalents He hZERIR® 615,625 45,698
Current financial liabilities mEEmaE
(excluding trade and other (TREENES X
payables) H i BR 50) (143,653) (557,342)
Non-current financial liabilities EnsemasE(teiE
(excluding other payables) H {th p& 1 BR 3%) (2,376,111) (886,667)
Revenue A — —
Net profit/(loss) and total wmAl () F8E R

comprehensive income S HEK = 4REE 845 (22,926)




248 POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO. , LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB B ERR M

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FE-NF+_A=+—HIFE

21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21. REghE R (E)
(Continued)
Summarised financial information of ERAGECENKERNME
material joint ventures (Continued) (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial LA BERSEED NGRS B SRR
information to the carrying amount of the interest in ROALCEEENERENS K

the joint venture recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TETT

Net assets BEFE 1,920,476 1,985,834

Proportion of the Group’s ownership 7N & [H % 5 # 2= Lt I

interest 50% 50%

Group's share of net assets and AEEHHEEFER

carrying amount ARE B 960,238 992,917
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—T—NEFR
21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21. AEELEZRR(B)
(Continued)
Summarised financial information of BEAGELXKERBE
material joint ventures (Continued) (&
tiEERiE
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FETRT FET
As at 31 December R+=—B=+—H
Current assets MEEE 5,432,787 5,136,656
Non-current assets ERBEE 201,445 122,030
Current liabilities mEBEE (2,967,021) (2,546,585)
Non-current liabilities EmBAE —_ —
Included in the above amounts are: i1 A _F LA EAIIEH 5 -
Cash and cash equivalents RekFRRE 410,489 109,430
Current financial liabilities (excluding &Rl & &
trade and other payables) (TEEENES R
H th BR 5%) (2,449,086) (1,312,184)
Non-current financial liabilities EnBemaE
(excluding other payables) (N B 45 E A FE T AR 5R) — —
Revenue WA 675,931 3,435,888
Net profit/(loss) and total mA (BB FER

comprehensive income 2HEW 425 244,841 (257,623)
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21. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 21. REghE R (E)
(Continued)
Summarised financial information of ERAGECENKERNME
material joint ventures (Continued) (&)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial LA BERSEED NGRS B SRR
information to the carrying amount of the interest in ROALCEEENERENS K

the joint venture recognised in the consolidated
financial statements:

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Net assets BEEFE 2,667,211 2,712,101
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 7~ & B # 7 ## z= Lt 1
interest 50% 50%
Group's share of net assets and AEEHSLHEEFER
carrying amount REE 1,333,606 1,356,051
Aggregate information of joint ventures FEREARPNESLELXERE
that are not individually material P
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAET
Carrying amount of not individually %R & B4 % 3 355 & 3E (& Bl &=
material joint ventures in the EECENREE
consolidated financial statements 5,135,815 5,424,427

Group's share of profit N & B 1l 5 A 375,497 390,644
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22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 22. AT EFABZ2ERE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss BE

— Equity securities listed in Hong

— Unlisted equity securities (note)

Note:

1 s
R

Kong

(B1at)

The unlisted equity securities are mainly represented
shares in Poly Finance Company Limited (“Poly Finance”),
a company incorporated in the PRC and engaged in
financial management services. The Group held 11.35%
equity interest of Poly Finance during the year 31
December 2019 and 2018. The Group irrevocably
designated its investment in Poly Finance at FVPL as the
investment is held for strategic purposes. The fair value of
the unlisted equity securities are determined based on
transaction price and factors or events that have occurred
after the acquisition date. Dividend of HK$9,931,000
(2018: HK$7,665,000) was received on this investment
during the year.

— REBEB LW ZBRA

— FEMBAE S

E

BAFEFAABRZZEE®

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$’'000
FET TR
9,349 15,053
535,275 411,888
544,624 426,941

Hat

FETRAZLFFZAFARIMBER
AR (MRF ) BRG  RFM B A —
R A AR B R Al B Sz S 1 S R B R TS A
AAEl - BEZZT-NER=T—/\F+=
A=+—BLEFEAEEFERATBH
11.35% 2= o AR E Ty AKX B /M #F
A ¢ AN SR B 7T AT HD S AR ) B 7S B
BEETREAFE;ABZE - FLETR
RBHZAFEERRZERRKEE A H
BEENEARABEENEHEMEE - F
A AEEREIZIZE 2 RS 49,931,000
BT (ZZF — \4F : 7,665,000/ 7T) °
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23. DEPOSITS PAID FOR ACQUISITION 23. Wt {FHAES RS

OF LAND USE RIGHTS

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FER FHET

At beginning of the year F 4 1,921,839 1,643,905
Deposits paid Eftike 1,090,555 334,621
Exchange adjustments BE W, 8 B (64,061) (56,687)
At end of the year F R 2,948,333 1,921,839

ASEEFECOHRAEDERRAZ 2N
iE(—F—/\F : MiE) L2 BERFE
BREERX MRS -

The deposits were paid by the Group to PRC
government authority in connection with the bidding
of four (2018: two) pieces of land in the PRC for
property development purpose.

24. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT
AND HELD FOR SALE

24, BERIPRFEHEWRE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FET
Properties under development located iz 7 Bl &9 2 [& # 4 %
in the PRC
— Medium term land use rights — I A 59,574,490 47,241,309
Properties under development located fif 74 & /5 ) % & b 4 2
in Hong Kong
— Medium term leases — FHIFEA 6,092,957 5,644,227
Properties held for sale located in the fiz A A Bl Ay 45 1 1 & ) %
PRC
— Medium term land use rights — HER b fh A A 19,667,734 20,946,116
Properties held for sale located in URBEBNFIEEHEMSE
Hong Kong
— Medium term leases — FHED 1,648,387 7,251,876
86,983,568 81,083,528
The impairment loss on properties under BE_Z-—NF+A=1T—BILFE"

REZTERAERTPRBFELEVERE
&5 481,020,281,0005% T (— & — J\ &F :
10,909,0007% 7T) (M1 5E13) - HE=-ZT— N
F+-_A=+—H BRALEBELHEYD
% 2 =135 181,308,745,000/% T (=& — )\
£ : 335,619,000/ 7T) °

development and held for sale of HK$1,020,281,000
(2018: HK$10,909,000) (note 13) is recognised in
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2019.
As at 31 December 2019, the accumulated
impairment of property under development and
property held for sale is HK$1,308,745,000 (2018:
HK$335,619,000).



25.

26.

OTHER INVENTORIES

Raw materials B Rt
Work in progress 8 m
Finished goods 2UAK
CONTRACT COSTS

Contract costs ER PN

Contract costs capitalised as at 31 December 2019
relate to the incremental sales commissions paid to
property agents whose selling activities resulted in
customers
agreements for the group’s properties which are still
under construction at the reporting date. Contract
costs are recognised as part of “selling expenses” in

entering into sale and purchase

the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
related property sales is
recognised. The amount of capitalised costs

revenue from the

recognised in profit or loss during the year was
HK$570,521,000 (2018: HK$332,053,000). There was
no impairment in relation to the opening balance of
capitalised costs or the costs capitalised during the
year (2018: Nil).

25.

26.

RFBEREEBRAR
—TNEFER
Hit 7 &
2019 2018
—F-hF —T-N\%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
57,365 21,219
29 687
23,997 24,572
81,391 46,478
CRIIEN
2019 2018
=F-hF —T-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TRz TAET
390,816 465,069

N-ZE—AE+t-A=+—HB2zE&KRLAE
HRANEENYWERBZHEERSENE
B ZEERENHEETHRERFH
AREEBRREAPNEEZNDEIVESE
Wik o BN ARBEMEEE KARER
HENERRTRRABEER N —3F
Do FARBEBARNERLKASEA
570,521,000 T(= T — )\ %:
332,053,000 L) ° & A & ANk B 2 /) HA
MiEBR S E RN ERAS ERE(ZT—N
&) e
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

B2 —FE—NF1=—A=1—HIFE

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27. EWE S REMERR

2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT
Trade receivables FEUE 5 BR 5K 160,493 248,854
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B R BR B (15,383) (19,083)
145,110 229,771
Other receivables EL i, 18 W BR Sk (F0 BR B 4
(net of allowance of HK$92,610,000) 92,610,000/% JT)
(2018: HK$123,548,000) (ZF—N\F:
123,548,000/ 7T ) 5,595,985 4,921,711
5,741,095 5,151,482
(a) Aging analysis (a) BRER DT
The credit terms in connection with sales of HEEVERTEPZEEHEAR
properties granted to the customers are set out EEmZ BB RE 2 EESRY
in the sale and purchase agreements and vary BRTRE HRASEEEAERSE
from agreements. There is no concentration of FrHUHELENEELEZRKES
credit risk with respect to trade receivables ERUTEESHEERR -SRAES
arising from sales of properties as the Group EFHEEMmME AEBE A 30
has numerous customers. In respect of sales of REQORPTEZEZFHEER - N
goods granted to trade customers, the Group SHREWRE S ERRGOR R R
allows an average credit period of 30 to 90 BHREDWOT
days. The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts
at the end of the reporting period:
2019 2018
ZB-hEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAET
0 to 30 days T 30K 67,235 108,164
31 to 90 days 31290k 24,502 10,566
More than 90 days 18 1B90K 53,373 111,041

145,110 229,771
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iy

27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

27. EWWESREMBRR(E)

(b) BHMERREZERE S

(b) Aging of trade receivables which are

past due but not impaired fRR 2 BRiR
2019 2018
—E-h%E  —T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET
91 to 365 days 91E365K 53,373 111,041

Included in the Group’s trade receivable
balances are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$53,373,000 (2018:
HK$111,041,000) which are past due at the end
of the reporting period for which the Group has
not provided for impairment loss. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these
balances. The balance arises from sales of
properties of HK$46,201,000 (2018:
HK$103,686,000), sales of goods of
HK$6,349,000 (2018: HK$6,723,000) and rental
income of HK$823,000 (2018: HK$632,000).
Based on past experience, the directors
consider that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there
has not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered to
be fully recoverable.

The Group applies the simplified approach to
provide for expected credit losses prescribed
by HKFRS 9. As at 31 December 2019, a
provision of HK$15,383,000 (equivalent to
RMB13,845,000) (2018: HK$19,083,000
equivalent to RMB16,602,000) was made against
the gross amounts of trade receivables.

AEEERKEZRAEHANBIER
M {E A $£53,373,0008 £ (ZZ— \
£ : 111,041,000 JT) 2 FE U X
H ZERBERBESEREBH -
B 7N & B R E B R e R -
AEBEWERZELERFTEEMIE
Home-zE®&sBm0EYE
46,201,0008 (= T — J\ F:
103,686,000 JT): i & & m
6,349,000 T(= T — J\ £F:
6,723,0007% 7T) & # & U A 823,000
BIC(=ZZF — /\ & : 632,000/ 70) E
E-REBEBELR EFERAEEBE
MZEERELERERE  REZ
CEEEUESEREE  MEKD
AR AT 2 HUmE o

AEEHAEBY I wE LR FER
iRt 2Bl A AT IRTEHEES
B-RZZE—-—NEF+=ZA=+—
H - # %15,383,000/% 7t (48 & B A
K #13,845,000C)( = & — \ &F :
19,083,000/ TT(f & K A R ¥
16,602,0007T) T3 5t FE L& 5 AR Sk 48
SEEL -
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28. LOAN RECEIVABLES

(a)

Non-current loan receivables

Non-current loan receivables

Loan receivables are mortgage loan receivables
which are secured on properties and repayable
by monthly instalments with various tenors not
more than 25 years and carry interest at rates
with reference to banks’ Best Lending Rates. As
at 31 2019,
receivables have been overdue but not

December none of the loan
relate to a number of
independent customers for the
creditworthiness, and subsequent
settlement after reporting date are assessed
and there has not been a significant change in

credit quality and the amounts are still

impaired. These
whom
collateral

considered recoverable. Impairment losses in
respect of loan receivables are recorded using
an allowance account unless the Group is
satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote,
in which case the impairment loss is written off
against loan receivables. The balance and
movement of the impairment allowance as at 31

December 2019 and 2018 is not significant.

FERBEWERK

28. EIRE R

(a)

FRBEWER

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FET
195,666 216,021

EURERRERIZBER WYX
RER RB5FAKRTRFH &
APHER MEZ2ERTRER
EFRMEX-R_F—-AhF+_-A
=t+t—B HMERKEREAHE
ERE ZERBREZHEFNERE
AR EfRmERNHmE AHRE
RZBUEFER FEERYE
EXEY FRADEI/AKE -
FE U E SR 2R B B B BB RS
B BERMARERAZRATKA
gEmE - AREBESE R ERK
EXME - BE-_T-—NFR=F
—“NF+ZA=+—HLEE &
BERBIZESRTNEHLTEKXN -
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—ET-NEFFH
28. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 28. EWE R (&)
(b) Short-term loan receivables (b) EWEHER
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Other loans (note) H A &R (A at) 25,121 25,121
Less: Impairment loss recognised J&, : E 58 2 ik (B /&5 18 (25,121) (25,121)
There is no movement in the allowance of HE_Z—NEFEZZE—N\F+=
short-term loan receivables for both years A=+—H8 It M1EFE I EEWRE
ended 31 December 2019 and 2018. HERZBEEEE -
Note: Haz -
In accordance with loan agreements, the other loans carry REBEERBE  HMERRI2%(ZFT - N
interest at 12% (2018: 12%) per annum and repayable on F12%)FMEFGFE WEBRBERER R
demand. No interest was accrued for the two years ended 31 HE-_T - NANFER-Z—NF+ZA=1+—

December 2019 and 2018. B 1k /S E I EER R R o
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HE=E—NE+ A=t —FULFE

29. AMOUNT DUE TO THE ULTIMATE 29. ENBRAERARARE
HOLDING COMPANY
2019 2018
—EB-hEF —ET-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET
Interest-free TEHE 20,925 21,647
92% of benchmark rate in the PRC R EERE 292% —_ 30,924
20,925 52,571
The amounts are unsecured and repayable on ZEFELSBEEMLEARERIN—FA
demand or within one year. BE -
30. AMOUNT DUE TO AN 30 BN —EPEZERAFKE
INTERMEDIATE HOLDING
COMPANY
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THER FET
Interest-free TEr B 3,102 3,209
The amounts are unsecured and repayable on ZEFERBEERRARERIRN —FA
demand or within one year. BE -
31. AMOUNTS DUE TO FELLOW 3. BENRAKE 2 RE
SUBSIDIARIES
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Interest-free Es 539 1,377

RHEnBEEAMRARELREER -

The balances are unsecured and repayable on
demand.
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32. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) NON- 2. Bl (N HMBATEER

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS OF g R I
SUBSIDIARIES
2019 2018
—EZE-AF —ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FET
Amounts due from non-controlling JE Uit Bf /BB 2 &) FE 2R %
shareholders of subsidiaries: % 3 RIH
— Interest-free — TEHE 535,209 709,089
— Fixed rate of 10% — (& E A *E10% 54,222 137,241
— Fixed rate of 12% — EEAMZE12% 15,715 16,257
605,146 862,587
Amounts due to non-controlling JE <F B B8 1 B 3 12 R
shareholders of subsidiaries: A% R EIE ¢
— Interest-free — Tt A 1,207,469 1,445,635
— Fixed rate of 6.85% — [EE M %6.85% 56,876 68,535
— Fixed rate of 7.38% — [EE M *7.38% — 72,414
— Fixed rate of 8% — BEIE ) E8% 474,260 —
— Fixed rate of 8.5% — [&E A %8.5% 367,328 —
— Fixed rate of 12% — EE A ZE12% 34,791 —
— Benchmark rate in the PRC — B EERN X 178,889 185,057
— Movement of Benchmark rates in — FREFHER| & 7 &
the PRC plus 7.27% hn7.27% — 258,621
— 120% of Benchmark rate in the — PEEEFE 2120%
PRC 171,971 325,027
— 130% of Benchmark rate in the — R EEFE7130%
PRC —_ 40,115
2,491,584 2,395,404
The amounts are unsecured and repayable on ZERELRBEERARBEREZREE -
demand.
Benchmark rate in the PRC represented the Fp B ELE R AR B A R SR 1T 28 46 89 3R B
prevailing benchmark lending interest rate BEEEFFH XIIBR(ZT — /\F:
promulgated by People’s Bank of China being 4.15% 4.35%) °

(2018: 4.35%) per annum.
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33. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND
BANK BALANCES, DEPOSITS AND
CASH

(a)

Pledged bank deposits represents deposits
pledged to banks to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group. Deposits
amounting to HK$433,580,000 (2018:
HK$4,201,597,000) have been pledged to secure
general banking facilities and are classified as
current assets.

The pledged bank deposits carry interest at a
fixed rate ranging from 0.30% to 2.75% (2018:
0.13% to 2.75%) per annum. The pledged bank
deposits will be released upon settlement of
relevant bank borrowings.

Bank balances include HK$300,053,000 (2018:
HK$1,280,375,000) which carry interest at fixed
rates ranging from 1.15% to 3.77% (2018: 0%
to 3.3%) per annum and HK$27,179,740,000
(2018: HK$21,871,253,000) which carry interest
at variable rates ranging from 0% to 4.05%
(2018: 0% to 2.03%) per annum.

Pledged bank deposits and bank balances,
deposits and cash denominated in RMB
amounted to approximately HK$27,129,056,000
(2018: HK$21,273,949,000) as at 31 December
2019. The RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies.

BPEEMFRITER RTE

e

(a)

FRREE

BEEFRITEREARBSETASE
By —RBTEEMERTRTZ
17 3 o /A& 81433,580,000/8 7T (= &=
— J\4E : 4,201,597,000/& 7T) Z 17X
EERE URB—REFTEE
WEHREABRDEE -

B 1 R 17 17 I N F0.30%=E
275% (= T — J\ F:0.13%%
2.75%) 2 B EFFEFTE - EEA
BOTERBRESEBRTEER
fE B o

ERITHFH - /& %300,053,00078
7T(=— & — )\ 4 : 1,280,375,000/8
TN F1.15%E3.77% (ZF— )\
F:0%=E3.3%) 2 B E F F X5
B A #27,179,740,000/8 T (= =
— J\ £ : 21,871,253,000/% 7T) &2
T0%ZE4.05% (= F — J\F : 0% =
2.03%) 2 )F B FFI KRB o

—E-AE+-A=+t—H KA
REFEHNEEFRITFER  R1T
# 77 X K B & 48 B
27,129,056,000/%8 T (= & — J\ £F :
21,273,949,000/%8 7T) ° A R E A
ERHERSEME -



33. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND
BANK BALANCES, DEPOSITS AND
CASH (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising
from Financing Activities
The table below details changes in the Group’s
liabilities from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities

RAE

EREEBAT
T NEEH

3P.EERRITER - RITH

=

FREBEE(E)

b) MEERBELE 2BEEHK

TREJIAKEREZDHELE A

BEEBFE

BEReRIREE

H-METHELAZABRRADR

arising from financing activities are liabilities for = _Ji BB ERERNAEELLEER
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will ERMERSBEREKERETHNOR
be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash ERENEE-
flow statement as cash flows from financing
activities.
Amount Amount
due to the due to an Amounts due to
Amounts Amounts ultimate  intermediate Amounts  non-controlling Loan from
duetoan  due to joint holding holding  due to fellow shareholders of Bank and other Notes a fellow
associate ventures company company g payable subsidiary  Lease liabilties
[note 2!7‘ [note 27 ) (note 29) [note 30) [note 31) [note 32) ﬂo*e 5 [note 36 [ o*e 4) [note 18) Total
E5-8 (4] BfBE  E4-ERE EREE  BARELD ik BE% N
&%Nﬁ@ m%%\;@ EEMHIE E‘Eﬁﬂid it | ﬂl%\;lé #Eﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁz ﬁﬁf”ﬁ Eﬁ%ﬁ Wiﬂﬁn ﬁ%ﬁf’ Ait
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK{'OQP HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK{'OQP HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TEL TET TEL £n TEL TEL TEL TET TET TET TET
At 31 December 2018
- 3,518,574 52,51 3,209 1377 2,395,404 50,301,219 4,704,598 206,897 - 61,183,849
Impact on initial application of
HKFRS 16 (note)
- - - - - - - - - 10436 10436
At 1 January 2019 RZZ-NE-F-B - 3,518,574 52,51 3,209 1377 2,395,404 50,301,219 4,704,598 206,897 10,436 61,194,285
Ch?‘nges from financing cash &R 2R EE
ows:
Borrowings raised HERE - - - - - - 30181963 - - - 30181963
Repayments of borrowings (& SE - - - - - —  (22,543,588) - - - (22,543,588)
Capite contrbution by non- KB A FEERRR
controlling shareholders HE
of subsidiaries - - - - - 5,000 - - - - 5,000
Dividends paid to ERHEATEER
non-controlling BERORS
shareholders of
subsidiaries - - - - - (315,527) - - - - (315,527)
Advances from joint ELEER
ventures - 1,062,271 - - - - - - - - 1,062,271
Advances from an associate  —EE R E 51 81722 - - - - - - - - -
Advances from HEAREERRR
non-controlling 2%
shareholders of
subsidiaries - - - - - 114,898 - - - - 114,898
Repayments to the ultimate & FRRERAT
holding company - - (29,894) - - - - - - - (29,894)
Repayments to fellow ERTAZNEAA
suﬁswdlanes - - - - (192) - - - - - (192)
Lease payments BENE - - - - - - - - - (4,956) (4,956)
Total changes from finencing BAREFEZBAE
cash flows 81,722 1,062,271 (29,894) - (192) (195,629) 7,638,375 - - (4,956) 8,551,097
Exchange adjustments EiRE - (117,286) (1,752) (107) (46) 250,680 (1,372,495) (26,820) (6,897) (160) (1,274,883)
Other changes: Af2g:
Acaquisiton of subsidiaries, net MEH B2 T M
of cash acquired BhERS - (2,774,818) - - - - 2972314 - - - 197,496
Interest expenses LELES - - - - - n19 - - - 383 4512
Total other changes 2 2geE - (2,774,818) - - - 0129 2,972,314 - - 383 239,008
As at 31 December 2019 RZT-NE
tZA=1-H 81,722 1,688,741 20925 3102 539 2,491,584 59,539,413 4,677,778 200,000 5,703 68,709,507
Note:  The Group has initiall Japlied HKFRS 16 using the Mat: REBERRATEEERERED
cumulative effect method and adjusted the opening MG ERE165E - FHE_T—NF
balance at 1 January 2019 to recognise lease — A B8 E 4 A8 B DARE A IR IR
liabilities relating to leases which were previously EESHEAZ7R D HRLEMEY
classified as operatmg leases under HKAS 17. See WEANHEHEEE - B2 E2(c) &
note 2(c) and 1 18 °
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33. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND

BANK BALANCES, DEPOSITS AND
CASH (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of Liabilities Arising
from Financing Activities

(Continued)

At 1 January 2018

Changes from financing cash flows:
Borrowings raised

Notes payable raised

Repayments of borrowings
Repayments of notes payable

Capital contribution by non-controlling

shareholders of subsidiaries

Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders

of subsidaries
Advances from joint ventures

Repayments to the ultimate holding company
Repayments to an intermedate holding company

Repayments to fellow subsidiaries

Repayments to non-controlling shareholders of

subsidiaries

Total changes from financing cash flows

Exchange adjustments
Other changes:
Interest expenses

Total other changes

As at 31 December 2018

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= AP

ARE SRR MR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
BE—FE-NF+_A=+—HIFE

33. BHEMBITHR - BITH
B ERRRS (8

(b) MEEFHELE2RBEHK

(#&)

Amount due o Amount due Amounts due to
Amounts  the ultimate toan Amounts  non- controlling Loan from &
due to holding ~ intermediate  due to fellow  shareholders of  Bank and other fellow
Joint ventures company  holding company subsidiaries subsidiaries borrowings  Notes payable subsidiary
(note 21) (note 29) (note 30 (note 31) (note 32) [note 35 (note 36) (note 40) Total
fff Ef-8 JEfY EAHE
EfiRg BRER HEER REKE DAFER &R -BEEHE
AERA PR AERE RR#E AR B PELES
(H#2) %) (Wit31) iz 5/ (fii%) (i) At
HK§'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000 HKS'000
Thx T T AL T TAn Thx T T
RZ2-N\§-A-H 2,058,285 41,592 21,04 587,869 2,529,004 42925236 3,900,000 214,286 52,847,306
BERERELY:
LELL - - - - - I8 - - Ak
FEENRE - - - - - - 4,704,598 - 470459
ERER - - - - - (19,141,926) - - (19,141,926)
EREEER N N - - - - (3,900,000} - (3,900,000)
HEARDEERBRLE
- - - - 31207 - - - 31,200
BRWBATFERRRARE
- - - - (19.429) - - - (19.429)
aEREEH 1,338,161 - - - - - - - 1338161
ERTREBRAF - (344,828) - - - - - - (344,828)
ERT-ERRERAT - - (17,100 - - - - - (17,100
ERFRZNEAR - - - (566,221) - - - - (566,221)
ERTHEADEERER
- - - - (94,192) - - - (94.192)
BEREREZDET 1,338,161 (344,828) (17,100) (566,221) (142414) 8,664,218 804,59 - 9736414
Ergg (11812) (14193) (725) (20.21) (38,985) (1,288,235) - (7,389) (1,447,670)
AfpRE:
HERR - - - - 479 - - - 7%
AHRBAE - - - - 479 - - - a9
RZE-N\E+ZA=1-H 3,518,574 52,571 3209 1317 2,395,404 50,301,219 4,704,598 26,897 61,183,849
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34. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 4. ENESZ R HEMRMR
31 December 1 January 31 December
2019 2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NEF —E-N\F
+=ZH=+-—H —H—HB +ZH=+—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FAT
Trade payables FETE 5 BR K 11,249,376 11,199,699 11,199,699
Bills payables FE T R 1% 52,635 42,587 42,587
Other payables H h & < BR 3K
(note i and ii) (B ati Rii) 9,281,392 8,456,458 8,451,845
20,583,403 19,698,744 19,694,131
Notes: Hat -
(i) On the date of transition to HKFRS 16, accrued lease (i) RBEEEAVBRELERNE16RER © 5TA
payments of HK$4,613,000 included in other payables was the H i & 5 FR I8 B9 FE 51 FH & 5X184,613,0007% 7T
lease liabilities recognised at 1 January 2019. See note 2(c). ER=ZZT—NF—A—HBERAHEGE B
2B M 3 2(c) ©
(i)  The lease liabilities of HK$4,124,000 was included in other (iy HEAE4L124,0008 TEFFABLEE=Z—N
payables as at 31 December 2019. FT_A=T—HHHEMERIE-
As of the end of the reporting period, the aging RBEHARREZBRZNN 2 ENEFER
analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date HERE DT
is as follows:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
0 to 30 days ESEX{IPN 5,229,598 4,965,999
31 to 90 days 31290 434,500 121,024
More than 90 days B 890K 5,585,278 6,112,676
11,249,376 11,199,699
The average credit period is 90 days. The Group has FHEEHRRIOKR - AEEE E i %R
financial risk management policies in place to ensure RERIE  HRABENERRTBEE

that all payable is within the credit time frame. BHR -
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35. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 35.

Bank and other loans
— Secured
— Unsecured

RITREMEK
— B
— B

The bank and other loans are repayable as follows:

Within one year or on demand

After one year but within two years
After two years but within three years
After three years but within four years
After four years but within five years
After five years

Less: Amounts due within one year
shown under current liabilities

Amount due after one year

—FAREEK
—FRETBAME
MERBTBB=F
—FRERNBANF
MERBTBBAE
AFEE

B ARRBREL
—FREHR

—FRBIHFOR

4= k=

ROTRHEMEER
2019 2018
—B-nE T N\F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT TR
22,100,737 22,922,951
37,438,676 27,378,268
59,539,413 50,301,219

BERTRAMERZIHAALT :

2019 2018
—E-NF —EB-N\F
HK$'000 HK$’000

TR TER
15,349,243 13,840,294
13,080,251 17,291,725
14,673,810 10,198,448
4,082,596 1,553,544
4,958,915 1,901,149
7,394,598 5,516,059
59,539,413 50,301,219
(15,349,243) (13,840,294)

44,190,170

36,460,925




35. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(Continued)

Fixed rate TE Fl) &=
Variable rate B Fl &
— Benchmark rate in the — PR EER X
PRC
— Hong Kong Interbank — BAERITEZE
Offered Rate (HIBOR) KE(BE
RITAZEFE)
Notes:
(i) The balance carries interest charged at fixed rates from 4.62%

to 8% (2018: 4.8% to 8.8%).

(ii) The balance carries interest charged at variable rates based
on benchmark rate in the PRC ranging from 90% to 140% of
benchmark rate in the PRC (2018: 90% to 140% of
benchmark rate in the PRC).

(iii) The balance carries interest charged at variable rates based
on HIBOR ranging from HIBOR plus 1.05% to 2.5% (2018:
HIBOR plus 1.1% to 2.5%).

RAEZEEARAA
“E-NEFR

3/ RTRAEMBE (B)

2019 2018
—E-AF —T-N\F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P & TRER TET
(i) 18,808,789 17,044,936
(ii) 32,905,540 23,139,075
(iii) 7,825,084 10,117,208
59,539,413 50,301,219

wiz -

(i)

(iii)

AR IR B E A R4.62%E8% (=T — )\ F ¢
4.8%%8.8% )&t R °

EARABRBREEENENFTHRBEEEFRXR
90%ZE140% (=T — )\ F : TP B EEF X2
90%ZE140% ) ZENF K58 ©

ERBEBEEASBRTRAEFRENTEARTRA
IR EMN1.05%F25% (ZT—N\FE: REFB
RITRIZER BN 1%ZE2.5% ) F B F L5 8 °
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35. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS
(Continued)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
the following undrawn borrowing facilities:
Variable rate FE A =X
— expiring within one year — —FRNEm
— expiring beyond one year — —FREm
Fixed rate [ £ A &
— expiring within one year — —FRNE®
— expiring beyond one year — —F1&[Em

Several banking facilities are subject to the fulfilment
of covenants relating to certain of the Group's
financial position ratios which are commonly found in
lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the
Group was to breach the covenants, the drawn down
facilities would become repayable on demand.

The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants and repayments are made according
to the loan agreements. Further details of the
Group’s management of liquidity risk are set out in
note 7(b). As at 31 December 2019 none of the
covenants relating to drawn down facilities had been
breached (2018: none).

35.

ROTRHEMEE(E)

RBEHR  AEEETIAREREER

Z
2019 2018
—®-nxE —E-NE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FAT
5,923,664 2,389,057
14,536,824 10,386,895
— 624,138
2,298,889 2,166,897
22,759,377 15,566,987

ZRRTEEABRTERETAEEME
ML R 2 Res - MLFF RN LS R
BRI 2 BN - AR EE R
EXHMZEENRABERERER -

AEETHERE
BE NG EEE R

S
=

i

EERBE

TRBRAE - FFBHRMEI0) - R =
E-NF+-_A=+—8 AEEAEE
RERBAEERENRBZ (TN
FE) -



36. NOTES PAYABLE

The Group has issued the following notes payable:

(i)

(i)

(iif)

On 10 April 2018 and 7 May 2018, the Group
issued the 5.2% notes due in 2021 in the
aggregate principal amount of US$500,000,000
(equivalent to HK$3,900,000,000)
(2018:US$500,000,000 equivalent to
HK$3,900,000,000). The notes bear interest at
the rate of 5.2% per annum, which are payable
semi-annually in arrears on the interest payment
dates falling 10 April, and 10 October, in each
year.

On 22 August 2018, the Group issued the 5.28%
notes due in 2021 in the aggregate principal
amount of RMB700,000,000 (equivalent to
HK$777,778,000) (2018:RMB700,000,000
equivalent to HK$804,598,000). The note bears
interest at the rate of 5.28% per annum. The
notes are payable annually in arrears on the
interest payment date falling 13 August, in each
year.

On 16 May 2013, the Group issued the 4.75%
notes due in May 2018 in the aggregate
principal amount of US$500,000,000 (equivalent
to HK$3,900,000,000). The notes bear interest at
the rate of 4.75% per annum, which are payable
semi-annually in arrears on the interest payment
dates falling 16 May, and 16 November, in each
year. The notes were settled in May 2018.

RAEZEEARAA
“E-NEFR

36. EHEE

AEBEHRTUATRENRER:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

R-ZE-N\FEHATAER-Z-N
FAAELtH AKEEBHTR_-F
“FHHFENERB52%RE
7N & 42 %8 /500,000,000 7T (18 &
$£3,900,000,000/ T)(= T — N\
% :500,000,000% (4 & K
3,900,000,000% 7T)) * &% R & & F
ME52%:H B MEEARBFAE
FERARMNEXZMNA (BIMA+H
K+ A+B)Xf-

R-ZZE—N\FENA=-+=-H &%
BRTR-_Z - —FIHERNRA
5.2 B2 A BB AEARE
700,000,0007T (48 & mM777,778,000
BN ZE - NF: AR K
700,000,0007T (48 & 7804,598,000
B IT)) o % B IR % F F E5.28%5
B AMBEREBFUSFEARF
BYNBEINA+=H)Z1T -

R-ZZE—ZFRA+,B ' A&£H
BAN_ZT—)\FEA ABEEFEH =R
BATS%Z ZE B A & B B A
500,000,000% Jt( A & »R
3,900,000,000/ 7T) ° % &= 1% 4
FZRA75%:TE - FIBZARBENS
EEREARFEZMAFRBIREA LR
BE+—A+B)%ff - ZZEE
RZE—N\FRALE-
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36. NOTES PAYABLE (Continued) 36.

The movements of the note are set out below:

At 1 January

Issuance of notes
Settlement

Exchange adjustments

At 31 December

37. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Contract liabilities related to:
Sale of properties

Impairment

BNRE(E)

EESBHIIMT -

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-)N\F

HK$'000 HK$’'000

FHE T F#& T

R—A—H 4,704,598 3,900,000
BITERE — 4,704,598
e — (3,900,000)
E H (26,820) —
R+-—A=+—H 4,677,778 4,704,598

37. aHNEE

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E—N\F

HK$'000 HK$’'000

FHET FH& T

BHAHEE:

SEEY R 27,185,777 31,110,373
B — —
27,185,777 31,110,373




RAEZEEARAA 269
“E-NEFR

37. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued) 37. 80 && (&)

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount TEAHNBESEN —RIMERAT :

of contract liabilities are as follows:

HEWE
AEERBEONTEZNRLEBRTFPK
BURIE - (B EES WENRETKA
W2 FBREHFEDE -

Sales of properties
The Group receives payments from customers based
on billing schedule as established in a contracts.
Payments are usually received in advance of the
performance under the contracts which are mainly
from sales of properties.

Movements in contract liabilities EHNEEREH
2019 2018
—E-nE T N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Balance as at 1 January m—H—B#&&R 31,110,373 25,906,757
Addition on acquisition of subsidiaries Ui Fff /& /2 &) & 3 A1 6,027,086 —
Increase in contract liabilities as a A 55 & ) 2 B 3R i E A4
result of billing in advance of sale GO R OR=Ri=g: il
of properties 30,434,519 26,888,367
Decrease in contract liabilities as a H M RE AU A M E £/
result of recognising revenue during & 4 & &
the year
— the amount was included in the  — F#5t AR
contract liabilities at the GHAE
beginning of the year (24,777,924) (20,957,196)
— the amount was included in the — FREFAR
contract liabilities during the BHEE
year (14,783,141) —
Exchange adjustments BE 5 58 % (825,136) (727,555)
Balance at 31 December Rt+=-—_B=+—H#&% 27,185,777 31,110,373
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38. SHARE CAPITAL 38. I

39.

2019 2018
—E-0E —E-N\F
No. of shares HK$'000  No. of shares HK$'000
RHHE TER e tn & B TEL
Ordinary shares, issued EER EZTRAR:
and fully paid
At 1 January and R—RA—BK
31 December +-A=+-AH 3,661,537,046 17,685,677 3,661,537,046 17,685,677

In accordance with section 135 of the Companies
Ordinance, the ordinary shares of the Company do
not have a par value.

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with
regard to the Company’s residual assets.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

In order to provide incentives or rewards to the
directors and certain employees of the Company and
certain eligible persons (the “Eligible Participants”) to
contribute to the long term success of the business
of the Group, the board of directors of the Company
considers that it is in the best interest of the

Company to adopt a share option scheme.

At the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 28 May 2014, the shareholders of the Company
adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”), pursuant to which the Eligible Participants
may be granted a maximum of 364,463,704 options
to subscribe for shares of the Company upon and
subject to the terms and conditions of the rules of
the Share Option Scheme. The Share Option Scheme
shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on the adoption date of 28 May 2014
and expiring on 27 May 2024.

39.

RIBCR B R HI) 13505
BreBEE-

2NN R

ERBRNEROZFAESARQRTEEIR
MEERARAERZLERE —RoE
Me2HEBRRARRANNBEELR

M SE o
=T

BREE

REBEARBARREERETRERENUR
ETRERAL((AERZ2EEDHAK
BEBRENKMELER  ARAFES
ERREMBRESETEANRRRKER

N2
o

B

RZTE—NFRAZFTNAETHEARF]
BREBFARE L ARBBRIRRNERE
sEI(TEREE]) Bl e ER2H
FARR I X R RE AR At 8155 B B0 1R R
RAG R ER /R364,463,7041 FE AR -
PARBEAR AR B dn o B BOHE AT 81 /8 mh 5R 4
BB -_ZT—mNMFRA-+/\BEFTAHE
BMEEWHR T _MFEFRA=-+tHE
e



39. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

(Continued)

According to the Share Option Scheme, the board of
directors of the Company may grant options to (i)
any director and employee of the Company or
subsidiaries, or an entity in which the Group holds an
interest (“Affiliate”); (ii) any customer, supplier,
agent, partner, consultant, adviser or shareholder of
or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate; (iii) the
trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which or any
discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which
include any director, employee, customer, supplier,
agent, partner, consultant, adviser or shareholder of
or contractor to the Group or an Affiliate; or (iv) a
company beneficially owned by any director,
employee, consultant, customer, supplier, agent,
partner, shareholder, adviser of or contractor to the
Group or an Affiliate to subscribe for shares in the
Company for a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of
share options granted.

Share option granted should be accepted within 28
days from the date of grant. The board of directors
may at its absolute discretion determine the period
during which a share option may be exercised; such
period should expire no later than 10 years from the
date of grant of the relevant option. The board of
directors may also provide restrictions on the
exercise of a share option during the period a share
option may be exercised.

The exercise price is determined by the board of
directors of the Company, and shall not be less than
the highest of: (i) the closing price of the Company'’s
shares on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing
price of the Company’s shares for the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company
shall not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the total
number of shares in issue.

RAEZEEARAA
“E-NEFR

9. BRESE ()

REBRETSE ARBEEEARINAT
ENBREARBARA RN ZERE M
BFREZBEREZRERIBL §H
BEHBE ()ARBKMERARKAEE
HEED BERB(BMBAR ZENES
FEE :(WAEEHBB AR ZEMNE
F-ftrem K2 SEBH FHA
B BRIEREHE  (IXEABBAT
ALZEAERZZFEAN IRWBERE
BATATZERABBELE: BRAALE
BEAKEXBBARCENES EE -
EF -HE®B KRB BN -&H
A BB BRRIABRE (VA EEL
BEARZEMNES EE HRAA T
F#tEm K2 AFEEHF KR E
M ABHEREBHNRA -

IRz BRERRREZBEF =TAN
BRAEERN E=ZSr2RERNBEEEBER
BATITECHE MARBPRRERAR
REARBREZ DR TFRER -EF
ENAREEBRER] TITEZARITE
B RS -

ARREFEEEZTEENSERAT
RRJEE  ()VARAERMNEEERZ
WiE: (ERFRLAHMAEZEEAR
RAEPfn 2 FHWTH(E e

FE A HE A 81 A AR 1 R ] A B AR R AT
ET 2B R ARTTEZBRE
BOUERATERTZROESHE a1
THRBBEHITRNMBRZ30% °
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 39 BRAESTE(E)

(Continued)

The total number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to each
individual under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company
(including both exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1%
of the total number of shares in issue of the
Company.

The fair value of share options granted to Eligible
Participants is recognised as staff costs with a
corresponding increase in share option reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at grant date using
the Binomial model, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the options were granted.
Where the Eligible Participants have to meet vesting
conditions before becoming unconditionally entitled
to the options, the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
statement of profit or loss for the year of the review,
unless the original staff costs qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the
share option reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of options that vest (with a
corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not
achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market
price of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share option reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is included in the
amount recognised in share capital for the shares
issued) or the option expires (when it is released
directly to accumulated profits).

FEER+ —EA M REERE I
Fe R BE AR B b s B R AT &1 i e 18 Bl A
ITREZBRE(BRECITE  FHERE
RTEZBRE) ETESEETRAT
BT BN RAE  TREBEARFDET
Bein 8 821% ©

BRTRER2EENBEREAFERRR
BITRA Az BB AR e
e ZAFEDFRA ZBENXNERREKE LB
HAAR 2 89X 8 PR P AR B O R SR B MR 1
FE-AEMSEERASWERB KN
77 AR T R RO - RIRE AR 2 (At
AV EERERBHEASER Wit kB
P #E 5 5% B EY FT BE M o

REBHESEEERNRENBRER
B-BRIERBEEIXNAAERERRE
B BANEBEFREERNEARF AT
ERBESINGKRE FABERFENES
O UHEABRBRERFEG NEEA
B R#EBEIRAINESE URRER
BENOBRERE - MBREREITEE
FEFRE - FRIFEDR A ZE BB AR A R B D
mERBNEB R MRK - S BN
BREREER BE=BREETEED
FARBITRORBRAER 22 HE) K
BREE R (ERRERFENE)
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 39.

ERESE(E)

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, no share option was
granted under the Share Option Scheme. As at 31
December 2019, 104,110,000 options were granted
and are outstanding under the Share Option Scheme.
The total number of options available for grant is
254,713,704 (2018: 364,463,704), representing
approximately 6.95% (2018: 9.95%) of the issued
shares of the Company. Details of such interests and
movements of share options granted by the
Company under the Share Option Scheme are shown
below:

RZZE-—NE+-A=+—H HBELE
EREFSIREERE - R_E—N&F
+=—A=+—8 BEBREFIESELY
104,110,000173 B B4 » AT (3% 0 A0 B8 A
48 B 5254,713,70400 (= & — )\ £ :
364,463,70417) G AR A B BT KD 4
6.95% (= ZF— \F :995%) - AKX RN
RIBIEBRET SR ZEES B
EEBFBOT

BREXE

Number of share options

Name or category of grantees Date of grant Exercise price  Exercise period

Balance as at
1 January 2019

Granted
during the year

Cancelled/lapsed
during the year

Exercised
during the year

Balance as at
31 December 2019

(HKS)
—R-NE —B-NE
-A-H TZA=+-8
RREARASER RHAH fkR(ER) TS HRTE REREE  AEAHHE/ XN EERTR HWRTE
Directors:
Mr. Zhang Bingnan
RREEE 10/1/2019 2520 10/1/2021-9/1/2023 - 379,500 - - 379,500
10/1/2022-9/1/2024 - 379,500 - - 379,500
10/1/2023-9/1/2025 - 391,000 - - 391,000
Mr. Han Qingtao
BEREL 1011/2019 2520 10/1/2021-9/1/2023 - 379,500 - - 379,500
10/1/2022-9/1/2024 - 379,500 - - 379,500
10/1/2023-9/1/2025 - 391,000 - - 391,000
Mr. Wang Xu
IREE 10/1/2019 2520 10/1/2021-9/1/2023 - 379,500 - - 379,500
10/1/2022-9/1/2024 - 379,500 - - 379,500
10/1/2023-9/1/2025 - 391,000 - - 391,000
Mr. Wang Jian
IhiEs 1011/2019 2520 10/1/2021-9/1/2023 - 379,500 - - 379,500
10/1/2022-9/1/2024 - 379,500 - - 379,500
10/1/2023-9/1/2025 - 391,000 - - 391,000
Mr. Ye Liwen
HRELE 10/1/2019 2520 10/1/2021-9/1/2023 - 280,500 - - 280,500
10/1/2022-9/1/2024 - 280,500 - - 280,500
10/1/2023-9/1/2025 - 289,000 - - 289,000
Mr. Zhu Weirong
2RREE 10/1/2019 2520 10/1/2021-9/1/2023 - 280,500 - - 280,500
10/1/2022-9/1/2024 - 280,500 - - 280,500
10/1/2023-9/1/2025 - 289,000 - - 289,000
Sub-total
Nt - 6,300,000 - - 6,300,000
Employees:
E&:
In aggregate
At 10/1/2019 2520 10/1/2021-9/1/2023 - 34,138,500 (1,861,200) - 32,277,300
10/1/2022-9/1/2024 - 34,138,500 (1,861,200) - 32,277,300
10/1/2023-9/1/2025 - 35,173,000 (1,917,600) - 33,255,400
Sub-total
At - 103,450,000 (5,640,000) - 97,810,000
Total
L - 109,750,000 (5,640,000) - 104,110,000

273



274 POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO. , LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR R Rk M

For the year ended 31 December 2019

B2 —FE—NF1=—A=1—HIFE

39. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 39 BRAESTE(E)

(Continued)

The closing price of the shares of the Company
immediately before the date of grant as quoted on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) was HK$2.49 per share.

Fair value of share options and

assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted on 10 January 2019 is measured by
reference to the fair value of share options granted.
The estimate of the fair value of the share options
granted is measured based on Binomial model. The
contractual life of the share option is used as an
input into this model. Expectations of early exercise
are incorporated into the model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions are as
follows:

Share price (HK$)
Exercise price (HK$)

2.52 per share
2.52 per share

Grant date 10 January 2019

Total number of share options 109,750,000
granted

Number of share options 4,000,000
granted to Directors*

Number of share options 105,750,000
granted to employees

Share option period (years) 6

* Mr. Zhang Bingnan and Mr. Wang Jian were appointed as the

Directors of the Company on 1 February 2019, and
accordingly, they were classified as employees when the
relevant share options were granted on 10 January 2019.

EEREBHINESHAIZEREA
a) (B3P ) FTsR iy AR A R BR (D U (B &
FH2.498 7T ©

BRENAFERRBER

ER-E-NF-ATERLBEREMNE
ERBHOAFE  H2RERHBERED
RFEFE CELOBRENGTATE
TiRE-_BRAREAE - BRESOFH
AR R e — R AR - TRERA
TTEAAZIRE o

BERENRTFERBRRAOT

f% (& (& oT) & H%2.52
TEBGET) & A%2.52
# H B 5 —E—NEF

—A+H
B 1% B8 A% A 48 2 109,750,000
RTEEWERESE 4,000,000
KTEBEMERESAE 105,750,000
B AEEIE (FE) 6

* RREEERERAEER_F—NAF_A—
BEZERARAESE BR_F—NLF—A
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39. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES 39. BRERE(E)
(Continued)
Share Options
i IR R
Lot 1 Lot 2 Lot 3
Fit P Eiid FE3it
First exercise date BRITER 10/1/2021 10/1/2022 10/1/2023
Maturity date 2 H B 9/1/2023 9/1/2024 9/1/2025
Expected volatility (%) & HA R 18 (%) 40.631 40.657 36.160
Dividend yield (%) 1% B 2 (%) 4.122 4.122 4.122
Risk-free interest rate (%)  #& /& B2 F X (%) 1.744 1.769 1.808
Fair value (HK$) A¥EGET) 22,679,000 24,365,000 25,268,000
Notes: W
(i) The expected volatility is based on the historic volatility, which (i) T8 B R R T AR R SE K R - He B AR A 0 AN T
is calculated based on the weighted average remaining life of HRAFHFTE  ERFAFERERTRE
the share options and adjusted for any expected changes to B {E fr] T EA 2 B 4t T 2E o
future volatility based on publicly available information.
(ii) The expected dividend yield is based on the dividend payout (ii) EHREEERE—FIXNORERE—F

B 4 B (B 3 -

in the previous year and the average share price in the

preceding year.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, total equity-
settled share-based payment expenses recognised
were as follows:

HE_ZT-hF+_A=+—HLFE-
BERARSEEEARN REROF X #5E
LN

HK$'000
TERT

Total equity-settled share-based payment LAREZ 45 H DARR (0 /5 B 7
expenses ol 72,312
Lapsed during the year FRKM (3,717)
Amortisation during the year FREH (24,453)

At 31 December 2019

—ET-NAFE+A=+—H

44,142
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40. LOAN FROM A FELLOW

SUBSIDIARY

The amount represents loan from a subsidiary of the
ultimate holding company. The amount is unsecured,
interest-free and repayable upon expiration of the
joint venture term of Poly Plaza Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company, which is due to settled not earlier
than twelve months from the reporting date.

40. —ERAKBERARER

ZREERERRER AR —HNE AR
ZER - ZFAKEER - AR ERER
ARBMBRARRMNAEERRAB ZEE
HERKEE BRSBEHEFTIIR
TEARMER -

41. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 41. EEZEBIEEE BAE
The deferred tax assets/liabilities recognised by the REBRAFERBEFERARZELR
Group and the movements thereon during the BEE/BBEREZHUOT
current and prior years are as follows:
Expenses
recognised in
profit or
loss but
deductible in
subsequent
Deferred tax assets: EEBEEE: Tax losses period Others Total
BERA
ERIAET
RERDE
BHEBE R #Y B X Hit &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FTHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-N\F
—H—H 45,077 262,891 11,182 319,150
Credit to profit or loss STABR — 15,620 4,312 19,932
Exchange adjustments R (1,554) (9,245) (435) (11,234)
At 31 December 2018 and RZZE-N\F
1 January 2019 +=ZA=+—8°
kZZ—N%F
—A—H 43,523 269,266 15,059 327,848
Acquisition of subsidiaries W s o B A - 5,591 373 5,964
Credit/(charge) to profit or loss & A/ (F1%) BB % (14,812) (31,494) 8,352 (37,954)
Exchange adjustments (AR (1,286) (8,688) (598) (10,572)
At 31 December 2019 AT —NF
+=ZA=+—8° 27,425 234,675 23,186 285,286
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41. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 41. EZEBRIEEE &E (&)
(Continued)

Revaluation of properties

WEEMR
Properties
Investment Hotel under
Deferred tax liabilities: ELHEEE: properties properties  developments Others Total
REME EEWE BROUE Hity Rt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\&
—A—H 1,327,245 64,775 69,302 120,780 1,582,102
Charge to consolidated HEEHEE2E
statement of Yoz &
comprehensive income — 136,863 — — 136,863
Charge/(credit) to profit or R &/ (Gt A)BH
loss 79,192 — (30) (33,346) 45,816
Exchange adjustments I 5 3% (46,678) (2,233) (2,389) (2,648) (53,948)
At 31 December 2018 and RZ=Z—\F
1 January 2019 TZRA=+-BK
—T-NE—A—H 1,359,759 199,405 66,883 84,786 1,710,833
Transfer iz 32,859 — (32,859) — -
Acquisition of subsidiaries Ui I 2 & - - 1,051,841 34,286 1,086,127
Charge to consolidated HEEe&Ee2E
statement of W& R
comprehensive income - 32,592 - - 32,592
Charge/(credit) to profit or kR E / (Gt A) B
loss 18,773 — (209,667) (54,389) (245,283)
Exchange adjustments B K 30 % (46,629) (6,647) (10,493) (1,869) (65,638)
At 31 December 2019 RZT— HE
+ZA=1+— 1,364,762 225,350 865,705 62,814 2,518,631
At 31 December 2019, the Group other than its RZEBE—NF+_A=+—H ' &x&
subsidiaries in the PRC had unused tax losses of (TRREASEZHBENBAR) BXREA
approximately HK$2,184,878,000 (2018: T TH &5 18 492,184,878,000/8 7L (=& — )\
HK$1,535,725,000) for offset against future £ :1,535,725,0007% jr) - A 3 0 K 2K fE
assessable profits. Such unused tax losses may be Al c ZERBA 2B IEEETER

carried forward indefinitely. HA 45
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41.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES
(Continued)

In addition, at 31 December 2019, the Group's PRC
subsidiaries had unused tax losses of approximately
HK$5,989,984,000 (2018: HK$7,810,856,000) other
than those unused tax losses for which deferred tax
has been provided for, for offset against future
assessable profits.
unutilised tax losses can be carried forward up to
five years from the year in which the loss was

originated to offset future taxable profits.

The maximum benefit from

At 31 December 2019, deferred taxation has not
been provided
statements in respect of temporary differences
attributable to the profits earned by the PRC
subsidiaries amounted to HK$19,374,753,000 (2018:
HK$19,524,865,000) as the Group is able to control
the timing of the

in the consolidated financial

reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary

difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The deferred tax assets arising from the above
unused tax losses have not been recognised in the
consolidated financial statements due to the

unpredictability of future profit streams.

41.

EREBRIREE &BE(E)

o RZB-AF+-_A=+—H K
SEZHENBRAREAPA ZHEEE

495,989,984,000%% w(= & — N\ F:
7,810,856,0007% 7T ) (B 1 Hi iR RE B TR #
ZAREAFIBEERRAIN) - AR R E
REBREF c REAMIEEEZ & e e
Al EEERIIRRERT RN 2 EHIE 2
FERT HERZAF -

EA:; NE+ZA=+—H AR A%

REZIE R R EEE R MR mA
Eza FHEEEEABARNRREAGETE
[ H RN BB A R BRELZ & F e
i 2 B Z= £19,374,753,000/8 L (— =
— J\ 4% : 19,524,865,000% 7T) * £ 47
B BEHRERAELRTER BEME -

A 2R B TEORI R 2R 0% A 2 - Bt Eat R
BAMEEEMEE CBEERIBEEE WK
\lz\?éﬁjﬁk¥&i€ﬁqﬁ§u/u°
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42. OPERATING LEASES 42. EEHEY
The Group as lessee: RAEBEFEZEBEA:
At 31 December 2018, the total future minimum RZZBE-NF+A=+—8 RETA
lease payments under non-cancellable operating B EHAO RN 2 RIRFKEHRERIER
leases were payable as follows: LER U
Office
premises
WMAEYE
HK$'000
FAET
Within 1 year —FR 12,953
In the second and fifth year inclusive FE_ZELF(BREEEMF) 16,119
Over five years hF & 7,654
36,726
The Group as lessor: AEEERAHBEA:
2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Income from operating lease MAEREERBEE

arrangements in respect of office BAORTHZ WA
and management services 1,620,740 1,614,335
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42. OPERATING LEASES (Continued) 42. BEBRH(E)
The Group as lessor: (Continued) AEBEEAEEBEAE)
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RBERR AEBEBEPEITHN KK
contracted with tenants for the following future HEMEERELAT :

minimal lease payments:

Office and shop Management fee income
BAEREE £:3-LON
2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-NEF 2 ZE-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FET TER TET
Within one year —ER 531,231 385,445 23,918 20,126
In the second to fifth year HE-ZFEAF
inclusive (BREEME) 1,153,349 806,708 45,202 55,232
Over five years AF#% 1,199,080 669,267 5,716 10,976
2,883,660 1,861,420 74,836 86,334
Significant leases are negotiated for a lease term of HREAEOEBZTZHERR1E205F
1 to 20 years (2018: 1 to 20 years). Certain leases (ZE2E—NF M1Z2206) T ZF -5 THE
contain a contingent rental element. BEXAEEHD -
43. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 43. BEAREIE
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET

Capital expenditure contracted for but A # 3|5 IHE 54

not provided in the consolidated BARREGE M BREK
financial statements in respect of: BEIEARARAX
— property development — MEBERAX
expenditures 23,992,373 9,864,682
— acquisition of a land use right — YOS T PR A 436,111 —

24,428,484 9,864,682




44. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

45.

The Group arranged mortgage loan facilities with
certain banks for purchasers of property units and
provided guarantees to banks to secure obligations
of such purchasers of repayment. The maximum
guarantees given to banks amounted to
HK$29,978,261,000 as at 31 December 2019 (2018:
HK$24,775,663,000). Such guarantees terminate upon
the earlier of (i) issue of the real estate ownership
certificate; and (ii) the satisfaction of the mortgage
loans by the buyers of the properties. The Group has
not recognised any deferred income in respect of
these guarantees as its fair value is considered to be
minimal by the directors. The directors also consider
that the fair value of the underlying properties is able
to cover the outstanding mortgage loans generated
by the Group in the event the purchasers default
payments to the banks.

At 31 December 2019, the Group had given
guarantees to certain banks in respect of credit
facilities granted to certain associates and joint
ventures of the Group amounting to
HK$3,062,527,000 (2018: HK$3,923,226,000) of which
HK$3,032,841,000 (2018: HK$3,909,068,000) had been
utilised by the associates and joint ventures.

PLEDGED ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying
value of the Group’s assets which were pledged to
secure credit facilities granted to the Group are as
follows:

Investment properties wEME
Hotel properties B 5 4 %
Buildings BF
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Prepaid lease payments RS & RIE
Properties under development BRPME
Properties held for sale FIEHEWME
Bank deposits RITIF

44.

45.

RAEZEEARAA
“E-NEFR

HAREME

AEBCRYEEMEREE TRITLH
RRERRE  WARITIREEFRURER
ZEERBOERET R _ZT—NF
+ZA=+—H A TRINESERE
##29,978,261,0008 jo( = & — J\ F:
24,775,663,000/8 7T) ° BB ERER T 5
BREEBRARKIL  (VBHEHEMEE
BRI EEREMNZBER - A&H
WEZ S EREREMBELTEWA - L T5
HREERAEEQAFEILFAEAN - EEIN
RAE AFEERIERETEDR  HBED
EZRAFEMRUNEMASEELEZ ME
EBEBER-

R-_E—NE+-_A=+—H8 AEEH
AEBETHEATRAECEMERE
B @& A& $3,062,527,00078 7T (=& — /\
4 : 3,923,226,000/8 JT) [ & T 68 17 1R
R MBELERARMEECEDHHES
3,032,841,000% (= & — J\ F:
3,909,068,000/% 7T) °

EERH

RBER  BRESAKEREREER
MEZERIASEEEZREAENT ¢

2019 2018
—E—-hE —E—N\HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx FHET
6,770,988 6,031,545
1,465,556 151,724
— 95,931

96,370 —

— 61,656
27,623,760 19,685,181
728,349 924,713
433,580 4,201,597
37,118,603 31,152,347

281



282

POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO. , LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= AP

iR SRR

For the year ended 31 December 2019
B2 _FE—NF+_A=1+—HIFE

45.

46.

PLEDGED ASSETS (Continued)

In addition to above pledge of assets, at 31
December 2019 and 2018, the Group’s interests in
certain subsidiaries were pledged to secure credit
facilities granted to the Group. The details of net
assets value of subsidiaries are as follows:

Total assets BERE
Total liabilities BERER
Net assets value BEFE

At 31 December 2019, no Group's interests in joint
ventures were pledged to secure the credit facilities
to the joint venture. At 31 December 2018, the
Group's interests in joint ventures were pledged to
secure the credit facilities granted to the joint
ventures. The pledged interests were amounting to
HK$3,713,975,000.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Company and its subsidiaries in Hong Kong
operate a defined contribution retirement benefit
scheme for their qualified employees pursuant to the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance. The
assets of the scheme are held separately in a fund
which is under the control of an independent trustee.
The retirement benefit scheme contributions charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income represent the contributions payable by the
Group to the fund at rates specified in the rules of
the scheme. When there are employees who leave
the scheme prior to becoming fully vested in the
contributions, the amount of the forfeited

contributions will be used to reduce future

contributions payable by the Group.

45.

46.

EEEAF(E)

R EERRN RZF-—NER=F
—“NF+ZA=1t—B AEECHMKF
BEETWBARZEaERESAEEM
EREEREZER MBRAREEFE
ZEBmT

2019 2018
—E-NnEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T
14,040,422 11,584,681
(13,221,788) (10,680,886)
818,634 903,795

RZZ—hhF+ZA=+—0 KEER
EETENERTEERERZEELE
ERNEERENER - R_Z—-N\F
TZR=+—H TEERGELEMNE
mEERERZEECEERNEERE
B &R - B 5 R3,713,975,0007%
=

R KE R T E

ARABAEREBZMERRREBERNK
AHEERDI R G BRE BRI EBHFRIK
BAGFE - ZEBZEERABIIEAR
HESABYERE - AFa2HEERA
B 2 R K48 R FT 8 5R A &R B% IR % AT
BZRAMFIEZ L RABERNTESZ
HR-HWEEETENEEREIMHI
B AR & aT 8 - AP Mz #3008 A1
R, AN 5= 8 5 2K B A 2 AR o



46. RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

(Continued)

To comply with the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (the “MPFO"), the Group also
participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
("MPF Scheme") for its qualified employees in Hong
Kong. The MPF Scheme is registered with the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under
the MPFO. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of an independent trustee. Under the rule
of the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at rate specified in the rules. The only
obligation of the Group with respect of MPF Scheme
is to make the required contributions under the
scheme. No forfeited contribution is available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising
from the MPF Scheme charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss represent contributions
payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified
in the rules of the scheme.

The employees in the subsidiaries in the PRC are
members of state-managed retirement benefit
schemes operated by the PRC government. The
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefit
scheme to fund the benefit. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the required contributions under
the scheme.

At the end of the reporting period, there was no
significant forfeited contributions, which arose upon
employees leaving the retirement benefit scheme,
available to reduce the contribution payable in the
future years.

The total cost charged to consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2019
of approximately HK$168,704,000 (2018:
HK$146,466,000) represents contributions payable to
the schemes by the Group during the year.

46.

RAEZEEARAA
“E-NEFR

RKER B (E)

RETREMERREE G (BB K
1) AEETASERBEEZAERER
S2E-FRGMELEEFE(RES
&) - REDF &I RIZE RIS FRH 7 58
HEREEEEEBEM - BERF S
ZEERASBEENFAEAE  AABY
XEAREESERE -REBESTEZ
FMA BERHEEBHAZBRARE L
KA B - AREL TR D A 8 A&
2B ERRBEFEEL AR
B Z R A BEUR R R FE BN 2

AR o

ELBBETE 2 RINENEHKE
BB RN HERAKRERRZ
AR EZ L REN TES 2 H#

=5
A °

TENBARZEEDNTEBFEEZR
REEERARBEMAEZKE - HEBARA
BEEIBEZETEALERTZERIKE
Mt EIAEBNBRRER - AREFLERE
M8l 2 —BEERREZFEEHMA

K -

REEHIR - W& R E SR D RAKEHE
81 2 A R] P AR R 2R AR JE H0ORUFE A (R
ZERRWAK

BE-_Z-hE+-_A=+—BILFE
EReEarx R cBR DA
168,704,000 w(= T — J\ F
146,466,000/ 1) * HHE R A& B F A&
MZETEI T2 Hak e
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47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Transactions and balances with
China Poly Group

The following is a summary of principal related
party transactions and balances entered into by
the Group with China Poly Group Corporation
Limited and
transactions and balances disclosed in notes
20, 21, 29, 30, 31. Several transactions also
constitute connected transactions as defined
under Chapter 14A of Listing Rules. Further
details of these connected transactions are
“Connected
Transactions” in the Report of Directors.

its subsidiaries, apart from

disclosed under the paragraph

Transactions: R
Construction services fee 22 iR 15 &
Y EM S WA
Interest expenses FEFZH
Management fee income & 2 & g A
ENEEHRAX
& 2 M A

Property rental income

Rental expenses paid
Dividend income

Notes:

(i) The amount represents the construction services fee
paid or payable to China Poly Group for the
construction services in respect of property
development projects.

(ii) The amount represents rental income received for the
theatres which made with reference to market price.

(iii) The interest expenses derived from the loans advanced
from China Poly Group, which was unsecured, carried
interest at a variable rate of 100% and 110% of
benchmark rate in the PRC and repayable within two

years.

47. BEBAER 5

(a) HABFARINEEZXRZR

=R

%) A B M FE20 - 21 2 29 30231
FTHENR S REHIN AEEHE
FRERFIEEERARRENSB A
AFVNEZEBALIRZ KGR
ME-ZHEXZNBEKR LTRSS
VYAZETENBERS - ZS5HER
SHE—PHBEREZSRE(@E
RP|—BHE -

2019 2018

—E—AE —E-N\F

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B = FET FAT
(i) — 46,095
(i) 17,740 14,720
(iii) 66,796 28,503
1,249 1,292

2,379 2,489

9,931 7,665

Hiat

(i) EHRAEDEERRE ZENH
RERBENTHIHERIEEZZE
R &M -

(iy FBEFRELLSETERZIENREER
HEHBA -

(i) AMEXHRETHERIEERBRNZE
R R EE AR R B R R K100%
K110% 2 F B F K5t 8 RARMER

(i yom
8 A= °©



47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(a)

Transactions and balances with

China Poly Group (Continued)

Balances: R

Bank balances and RITEGFRER
deposits

Amount due from an & Uk — i B & A B R
associate

Bank and other RITREMEER

borrowings

Notes:

The amount represents the deposits placed by the
Group with China Poly Group.

Details of the terms are set out in note 20.

The amount represents loan from China Poly Group,
which was unsecured, carried interest at a variable
rate of 100% and 110% of benchmark rate in the PRC
and repayable within two years.

47. BBA LR

(a)

RABEEEERAT
T NEEH

285

& (%)

EAERMNEEZXER

mek (&)

2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P & TER TAET
(i) 455,000 460,926
(ii) 263,996 237,928
(iii) 436,667 1,278,544

Hrat -

EMRBEAREER R EREE
2B

1SR 15 SR B 7E20 -
ERRRETERNEEZER  BE

AR 2 B R R K100% 5110% 2
FBHERGFEREARBEAREE -
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47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(b) Transactions and balances with

other related parties

During the year, the Group entered into the
following transactions with related parties other

than China Poly Group:

Transactions: R

Interest income B WA

Interest expenses PNz T

Guarantee income ERIEA

Notes:

(i) The amount represents the interest income from loans

to associates, joint ventures and non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries. Details of the terms are

set out in notes 20, 21 and 32.

(ii) The amount represents the interest paid to joint
ventures and non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries. Details of the terms are set out in note

21 and 32.

(iii) The amount represents the guarantee income received

from a joint venture.

N

47. EBALTRZ ()

(b)

Notes

B =

(i)
(ii)
(iii)

BHMABALZRXER

w5 B
6 Py + 7K g B B e 4R S B A S0
HWAEBALTHLTAIRS

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

HK$'000 HK$’'000

TR THET

104,799 208,021

200,246 253,560

— 15,005

s

() HEREEERTHEAR ALY

R S B 2 A JF 438 A B 3R s 2R B B MR
A o IR F B BRI EE20 ~ 2132

(i) ABAEFREENTAELERMER
BISEEERR R Z A8 » RIS B
7t21%32 °

(i) BARAFABENR-—FMAELEZER
WA o



47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(c)

Material transactions with other

state-controlled entities in the PRC
Part of the Group’s operations is carried out in
an economic environment currently
predominated by entities directly or indirectly
owned or controlled by the PRC government
(“state-controlled entities”). In addition, the
Group itself is part of a larger group of
companies under China Poly which is controlled
by the PRC government. Apart from the
transactions with China Poly, other connected
persons and related parties disclosed in this
note, the Group also conducts business with
other state-controlled entities. The directors
consider those state-controlled entities are
independent third parties so far as the Group's

business transactions with them are concerned.

its pricing strategies and
approval process for transactions with other
state-controlled entities, the Group does not
differentiate whether the counter-party is a
state-controlled entity or not.

In establishing

RAEZEEARAA
“E-NEFR

A7. EBALTRZF (B)

(c)

ERBEHMRELRXCE
AR5

AEE TR B A BB BT E & X
MEHEAEEHN2EB(HZ D
RNETEZEEREPETHROX
Bo s REBEAXS T F BRA
PrEdl e hBEERMNEB T ZBRAEA
7] £8 B o B 7N B AT P B BR B2 AR B4R
A HEMBEEALTRAEBEBALET
ZRZI - AEETEEMEE P
RETXRH -BEFERB HAKH
HEZEEECXETIEERSM
B RFHECROBBIE =T

EAIVEAMBEECRETRSZ
EBRE LI EBRRES  AKEY
ERNHTBEECREST -
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47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(c)

Material transactions with other
state-controlled entities in the PRC
(Continued)

Material transactions/balances with other state-
controlled entities are as follows:

Transactions: R
Trade sales ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ
Trade purchases B 5L

In view of the nature of the Group’s hotel
operating business, the directors are of the
opinion that, except as disclosed above, it is
impracticable to ascertain the identity of the
counterparties and accordingly whether the
transactions were with other state-controlled
entities.

In addition, the Group has entered into various
transactions, including deposit placements,
borrowings and other general banking facilities,
with certain banks and financial institutions
which are state-controlled entities in its ordinary
course of business. In view of the nature of
those banking transactions, the directors are of
the opinion that separate disclosure would not
be meaningful.

Except as disclosed above, the directors are of
the opinion that transactions with other state-
controlled entities are not significant to the
Group’s operations.

N

47. EBALTRZ ()

EPEEMRECRCE
AR5 (#8)

BHME AL ERITIEARS
%%WT:

2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$’000
TR TAT
68,101 62,100
9,440 5,171

ERAEB 2 BEELEEBEE -
EERBE BKEXFEEEN
EX%%T?Z%@BT@JA%? H
BRR S B EEMBEE B FEET
M ER ©

AN ARBEREBEXRHKBIE
FERETRTRSBEE(BREZ
ﬁ%)ﬂﬁ%lﬁi% : @%E‘tﬁﬁﬁ

CEEREM-RBITEE-
75’\\.% SROTXRZ2MHEE E%
B RITEERBEYESS -

REXHBEEEN EERA &
HiBECRETZIRHHEAEH
ZREMELTERK -
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47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 47. BEBAEXR S (E)
(Continued)
(d) Compensation of key management d FEEBAEMS
personnel
The remuneration of key management during FR - FTEEBAEZBMWT:
the year was as follows:
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR T FET
Short-term benefits 52 Hi R A 44,531 33,381
Post-employment benefits BfE B3 12 4 A 1,105 687
Equity compensation benefits A% # % Bl 18 7 2,652 —
48,288 34,068
The emoluments of key management were FEEBABZME N FATHAR :
within the following bands:
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Number of Number of
employee employee
EEAH BEAH
HK$2,000,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,000,001 jt £3,000,000
BT 3 4
HK$3,000,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,000,001/% Jt £4,000,000
BT 2 6

HK$4,000,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,000,001;% 7t 25,000,000
77T 7 —
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 48. 7= 7] B AR R &
POSITION OF THE COMPANY
2019 2018
—E-nE  -T-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- BREREE 126 —
Interests in subsidiaries P NEIR: 2,304,853 589,794
Investment in an associate R—EBERR 2
®"E 3,140 3,140
Amounts due from subsidiaries & WY B8 A Bl 508 20,899,706 22,547,515
Financial asset at fair value BAFEFTARR
through profit or loss ZEREE 456,386 410,738
Total non-current assets ERBEERE 23,664,211 23,551,187
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H A AR R 8,885 29,868
Amount due from an associates - G /N
KIE 1,500 1,500
Amount due from a subsidiary FE W — FE Bt B A )
KIE 5,232,753 2,440,281
Bank balances, deposits and cash $R1T#51F * T3 &
H & 328,504 1,335,861
Total current assets MENE E 4R 5,571,642 3,807,510
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables H i F& <] BR 3K 21,997 11,980
Amounts due to subsidiaries XN EENGIE S 4,090,773 4,087,645
Bank borrowings-due within one  $R717f& & —
year —F N E|H 5,200,000 —
Total current liabilities mE B EAE 9,312,770 4,099,625
Net current liabilities REEEFEE (3,741,128) (292,115)

Total assets less current liabilities EELERAEBAE 19,923,083 23,259,072
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 48. AR A B BRI &R (58)
POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)
2019 2018
=F-hF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital % 7K 17,685,677 17,685,677
Share option reserve BERERE 24,453 —
Reserves 1 2,212,953 1,673,395
Total equity IR FE 458 19,923,083 19,359,072
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Bank borrowings |ITEE
— due after one year — —F1&RFH — 3,900,000
Total non-current liabilities ERBBEESE — 3,900,000
19,923,083 23,259,072
Approved and authorised for issue by the Board of RZEZTF=A -t AKBHEET2H
Directors on 26 March 2020 R R o
ZHANG BINGNAN WANG JIAN
KR T @
Chairman Managing Director

FE BEFHLE
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48. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY
(Continued)

The reserves of the Company are as follows:

Balance at 1 January 2018
Loss for the year
Dividend paid

Balance at 31 December 2018 and 1 January
2019

Profit for the year
Dividend paid

Balance at 31 December 2019

Notes:

48. AR A BB R &R ()

DB ZHBEWOT -
Total
a5t
HK$'000
FAT
RZE—N\F—HA—HBH&H 2,417,240
FEEE (249,537)
BEfEE (494,308)
RZE—N\F+-_A=+—H8XK
—E-NF—HA—BWN&E& 1,673,395
F E i F 989,927
BEfEE (450,369)
R—ZTE—NAFE+=_A=+—8
B 45 g4 2,212,953

Hit

As at 31 December 2019, in the opinion of the directors, the
reserves of the Company available for distribution to
shareholders amounted to HK$2,212,953,000 (2018:
HK$1,673,395,000).

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company
includes a profit of HK$989,927,000 (2018: loss of
HK$249,537,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company.

RZZB—AF+-—A=+—H EFRA XK
AR ISR T RE 2 7% £2,212,953,0007%
(=% — )\ F : 1,673,395,000% 7T.) °

ARFEEABEEE B EEDRARAF]
B 75 3R 3% P BR B 2 i 7989,927,000/8 Tt (=&
— J\4F : E518249,537,0007% 7T) °
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49. DIVIDENDS 49. B2
2019 2018
=F-hF —T-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Dividends recognised as a distribution £ N E R 55K 2
during the year: %2
2018 final dividend of HK$0.123 —E-NERBEER
(2017: HK$0.135) per share BR0.123B L (=
—+t%:0.13587T) 450,369 494,308
No interim dividend was paid for both years. A fE 5 2 15 R A R ERARE -
The directors of the company recommend the ARREFREAMRBE_ZE-—NEFET+=A
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.209 per share =+ —HIEFEIRZERHRE §R0.209
(2018: HK$0.123 per share) for the year ended 31 BT (ZZ—N\F : §R0.123%T) °

December 2019.
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50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 50. T EMH B A F]

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31 RZB-AFE+_HA=+—8H KRFE
December 2019 are as follows: EMBRARIZFBENT :

Attributable portion of the
Place of incorporation/ and paid up capital/ issued share capital/registered

Particulars of issued

Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activity
BRTR KARAFBDRT
HfAL/ BARE/ RE/ERRA
MELRERE FR 3L 4 B EMBRAFE L= TEER
Directly Indirectly
B Gk
Ace Alliance Development Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share — 70%  Property development
BB 1 RERR NEERE
Able Lucky Development Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100%  Property development
BRERARAA BB 1 RERR NEERE
Bassington Investments Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100% —  Property investment
AREREBRAR &8 2 REAR NERE
Big Nice Development Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share - 100%  Property development
EXERARAA BB 1 RERR NEERE
Big Support Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100% — Investment holding
REERAR ABRARE 157 REBR
CMIC Finance Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100% —  Financial services
&8 2 REAR T RRB
CMIC Management Services Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares 100% — Management services
&8 100 RERK EERH
Fainland Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100% —  Property investment
REERAR Bk 2 RERR NELE
Polymac Property Company Limited Macau 25,000 MOP - 100%  Investment holding
RREZ-ABRAF P 25,000 2% REERK
Qing Feng Ventures Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100%  Investment holding
BLARERAR ABRAEE (= REER



50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

RAEZEEARAA 295
“E-NEFR

50. T EM B QA (8)

Particulars of issued

Attributable portion of the

Place of incorporation/ and paid up capital/ issued share capital/registered

Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activity
BRTR RRAMEERT
HEREL/ BHRA/ RE/ERRAR
MELREH R4 5 ERBRAFE Bkt = TEER
Directly Indirectly
E& R
First Great Investments Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100% — Investment holding
EEREFRAHA B 2 REBR REER
Geldy Limited Hong Kong 1,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Property investment
B 1,000 i & @R NERE
Grandful International Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares — 100%  Investment holding
HEERERAA BB 2 REBR REER
High Wealth International Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100% —  Property investment
EXERERAA BB 2 REBR NERE
Honorlink Investments Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100% —  Property investment
EBRARRRA BB 2REBR NERAE
Hubei Poly Hotel Company Limited PRC Registered capital - 100%  Investment, management
("Hubei Poly") (note i) RMB62,000,000 and operation of a hotel
BARHMABEERR A e EMBREARE RE EBREE-REE
(T#3LRA ) B 2ti) 62,000,0007C
Johnsbury Limited British Virgin Islands US$9,600,000 100% — Investment holding
BERBERAR RBRRNE 9,600,005 7C REZRK
Poly Plaza Limited (“PPL") (note /i) PRC Registered capital — 75%  Investment, management
US$10,000,000 and operation of a hotel
complex
RIAEBRAR (RMAR]) e EMHRA RE EBREE-BEE
(i) 10,000,000% 70 N
Polystar Digidisc Co., Ltd. PRC Registered capital — 66% Manufacturing and
("Polystar”) (note i) RMB9,000,000 wholesaling of compact
discs, video compact
discs and digital video
discs
IRENERELRER A e EMBREARE BERBEAR HEER
(RME ) itiii) 9,000,0007T REBEE KK
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50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Particulars of issued

Attributable portion of the

Place of incorporation/ and paid up capital/ issued share capital/registered

50. T EMB AT (&)

Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activity
BRIR RRAFEERTT
HEREL/ BARE/ RE/ERER
WEAREH BRI 4 B ERBAGFE Bkt = TEER
Directly Indirectly
E& R

Poly (Hong Kong) Property Developments Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% — Investment holding
RH(BE)EHEERARAA BB 1RERR RAER

Poly (Hong Kong) Real Estate Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% — Investment holding
R (BB EHEREERAA BB 1RERR REER

Poly Property (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% — Investment holding
RANER(BR)BERAR BB 1RERR REER

Poly Treasure Holdings Limited Hong Kong 50,000,000 ordinary 100% —  Asset Management

shares

RAUZRTEERAF BB 50,000,000/ & B REER

Prime Brilliant Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100% —  Property investment
HEFRAA BB 2 xRk NERA

Propwood Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100% —  Property investment
EEARAT BB 2 xRk NERA

Saneble Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100% —  Property investment
AERRAR BB 2 REAR NERE

Smart Best Investments Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100% —  Investment holding
BERAFRAA BiE 1 RE &R REBR
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50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 50. X EfEAF (%)
(Continued)
Particulars of issued  Attributable portion of the
Place of incorporation/ and paid up capital/ issued share capital/registered
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activity
BRTR RAAMFERT
HEREL/ BHRE/ RE/ERRAR
WEARER R % EMRAFE it = TEXH
Directly Indirectly
E# &
RAIUBZEBBR A (note ) (H1iti) PRC Registered capital = 100%  Investment holding
RMB2,200,000,000
HE ERAARS REER
2,200,000,0007T
FRENEHERRERAE (ote ) (Hiti)  PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property investment
US$24,000,000
HE BRULES NERE
24,000,000 10
LEBREHERRAA PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property investment and
RMB5,000,000 investment holding
HE EMRAARS NERERRERR
5,000,0007T
TERNESEEEEARAR PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property investment
RMB200,000,000
HE HRRAARS NERE
200,000,0007t
FBRFERHEREERAR PRC Registered capital — 100% Property development
RMB150,000,000
HE EMRAARE NEER
150,000,0007T
FBRAEAERAR PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB1,000,000
HE HRRAARS NEER
1,000,0007C
FERANZBEEREEERAA PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property management
RMB50,000,000
HE BRIl IN NEER

50,000,0007C
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50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 50. T EMIB AT ()
(Continued)

Particulars of issued  Attributable portion of the
Place of incorporation/ and paid up capital/ issued share capital/registered

Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activity
BRITR KAAFRERT
ZREL/ BEHRA/ RE/ERER
WEARER B3t B TR RAFE Bt = TEEH
Directly Indirectly
EE B#
LBRFIEREXER LA PRC Registered capital — 50.10% Investment holding
RMB20,000,000
HE FHEAARE REER
20,000,0007%
FERFIHSEHESLEERAR PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property agency
RMBS,000,000
HE HRRAARS MERE
5,000,0007T
EBRAREEHEREERAR PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE HHRAARS NEER
50,000,0007T
LBRNNERHEREERAR PRC Registered capital = 100% Property development
RMB50,000,000
i HRRAARS NEERE
50,000,0007t
LBEEEHEREERAR PRC Registered capital — 100% Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE HHRAARS NERR
50,000,0007T
TRREAEREERERAR PRC Registered capital — 100% Property development
RMB100,000,000
HE FMEAARE NEERE
100,000,0007T
FREREEERERAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB200,000,000
i HRRAARS NERR
200,000,0007T
RAEX5E (L8 REERAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Investment holding
RMB580,000,000
HE FMEAARE REER

580,000,0007
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50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 50. TEM B QA (&)
(Continued)
Particulars of issued  Attributable portion of the
Place of incorporation/ and paid up capital/ issued share capital/registered
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activity
BRTR RAAMBERT
2R/ BEHRA/ RA/ZREE
WEARER B33t B S RAFE Bt = TEEH
Directly Indirectly
Ei B#
FRBTREERERAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property investment
RMB100,000,000
HE FMEAARE NERE
100,000,0007T
FERFVESLEEERAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property investment
RMB208,170,000
HE HRRAARS NERE
208,170,0007T
AERHNEZERAR PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development and
RMB100,000,000 investment holding
HE FHERARE NEERRRERR
100,000,0007T
MLERTEEIRBERAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Provision of construction
RMB120,000,000 service
HE HRRAARS RERERE
120,000,0007T
AERABZEGRAR PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development and
RMB100,000,000 investment holding
HE FRERARE NEERRRERR
100,000,0007T
BERNEREEZERAA PRC Registered capital — 68%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE FMEBEEARS NEERE
50,000,0007t
REEGRIENEREERAA PRC Registered capital — 100% Property development
RMB10,000,000
HE HHRAARE NERR
10,000,0007T
RERNEXERAF PRC Registered capital — 55% Property development
RMBA41,200,000
HE FMEAARS NEERE

41,200,0007C
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50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 50. T EMIB AT ()
(Continued)

Particulars of issued  Attributable portion of the
Place of incorporation/ and paid up capital/ issued share capital/registered

Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activity
BRAR RRAMEERT
ERAL/ BARE/ RA&/ERREK
WEAEER B3 3 TRRAFE Bkt = TEER
Directly Indirectly
E# &
REMZNEREAREEAA PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property investment
RMB100,000
HE EMRAARS ESIS
100,0007T
RERTIREERAERAR PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property management
RMB100,000,000
T HRAARS NEER
100,000,0007T
RERBEHEREARAR PRC Registered capital — 100% Property development
RMB10,000,000
EF EMRAARS NEERE
10,000,0007T
BERNNFEEERATA PRC Registered capital — 51%  Property development
RMB80,000,000
HE EMRAARS NEERE
80,000,0007C
IREEAEGRAR PRC Registered capital — 51%  Property investment
RMB91,656,147
HE EMREARE NERE
91,656,1477C
BERRHNEZERAR PRC Registered capital - 100%  Investment holding
RMB300,000,000
" EMRAARS RERR
300,000,0007T
BUTRNEZFRAR PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB30,000,000
i EMRAARS NEER
30,000,0007T
BNRNEAEZARAR PRC Registered capital — 51%  Property development
RMB30,000,000
EF EMRAARS NEERE
30,000,0007C
BUTRRREERARAA PRC Registered capital — 100% Property development
RMB30,000,000
i EAUDTIN NEER

30,000,0007C
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50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 50. TEM B QA (&)
(Continued)
Particulars of issued  Attributable portion of the
Place of incorporation/ and paid up capital/ issued share capital/registered
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activity
BRTR RAAMBERT
2R/ BEHRA/ BA/ERRE
WEARER B33t B S RAFE Bt = TEEH
Directly Indirectly
E# B#
BLUTREEZERAF (note ) (Hiti) PRC Registered capital — 100% Property development
USD50,000,000
H FEff % 850,000,000 NEERE
e
BENRREZARAA PRC Registered capital — 100% Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE HRRAARS NEERE
50,000,0007t
BMNRFEZERAF (note vi) (Hitvi) PRC Registered capital — 51% Property development
RMB2,000,000
HE HHBRAARE NEER
2,000,000t
ENRREHEREERAR PRC Registered capital = 100% Property development
RMB30,000,000
HE HRRAARS NEERE
30,000,0007%
ENRRERHEREBR A PRC Registered capital — 75%  Property development
RMB100,000,000
HE Bl IN NERR
100,000,0007T
BNREEZERAF PRC Registered capital - 100% Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE FMEAARE NEERE
50,000,0007t
ENRENEHEREARAR PRC Registered capital — 85%  Property development
RMB30,000,000
HE BRI IN NEER
30,000,000t
BLTREEXERAF PRC Registered capital — 100% Property development
RMB30,000,000
HE FMERARE NEERE

30,000,0007C
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50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Name of subsidiary

50. T EMB AT (&)

Particulars of issued

Attributable portion of the

Place of incorporation/ and paid up capital/ issued share capital/registered

establishment

registered capital

capital held by the Company

Principal activity

BRITR ARAMFERT
EREL/ EARE/ RE/ERER
WEAREH B3t B TMRAFE Bkt = TEEH
Directly Indirectly
EE B
ENRFEBEHEREERAR PRC Registered capital — 80% Property development
RMB 100,000,000
HE EMRAARS NEER
100,000,0007T
BNTRANEZEHEREARAA PRC Registered capital — 70%  Property development
RMB88,926,900
HE EMRAARS NEERE
88,926,9007C
RITRANEHEREERRA PRC Registered capital - 100%  Investment holding
RMB 100,000,000
HE HHRAARS REER
100,000,0007T
ATRANESEHEREER DA PRC Registered capital = 70%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
P ERAARS NEER
50,000,0007t
EGRIBHEHEREERAR PRC Registered capital — 100% Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE HRRAARS NERR
50,000,0007C
RAENEHEREFRAR PRC Registered capital - 66.50%  Property development
RMB100,000,000
e EMRAARS NEER
100,000,0007T
RANEMEREEERERAR PRC Registered capital — 66.50% Hot spring operation
RMB3,000,000
HE HRRAARS BERR
3,000,000
EBRNEHEREFRAR PRC Registered capital — 66.50%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE EMRAARE NEER

50,000,0007C
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50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Name of subsidiary

“E-NEFR

50. T EM B QA (8)

Particulars of issued

Attributable portion of the

Place of incorporation/ and paid up capital/ issued share capital/registered

establishment

registered capital

capital held by the Company

Principal activity

BRTR ARAMEERT
HEREL/ BfRE/ BA/ERRE
WELREH B33t B EMRAFE Bt = TEEH
Directly Indirectly
EE &
EGRTEARHEREERAR PRC Registered capital — 66.50% Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE EMRAARE NEER
50,000,0007
EGRABREHEREARAA PRC Registered capital — 51%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
i HRRAARS NEER
50,000,0007T
EGRNEREHEREGRAR PRC Registered capital — 50% Property development
RMB50,000,000
h HMBRAARE NEER
50,000,000t
BEGBERFBZERDA (hote v) (Hi7tv) PRC Registered capital — 35% Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE ERAARS NEER
50,000,0007%
ERIRTRREHEREERAA PRC Registered capital — 58% Property development
(MRHRE)) (note iv) (W itiv) RMB100,000,000
HE HRRAARS NEERE
100,000,0007T
RAIEZEERRIFRAA PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
T E EMREARS NEER
50,000,000t
RRERNEHESABEERRELA PRC Registered capital — 51%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
H HRRAARS NEERE
50,000,0007t
RRERERMEERERARA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB20,000,000
i EMREARE NEER

20,000,0007C

303
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50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 50. T EMIB AT ()
(Continued)

Particulars of issued  Attributable portion of the
Place of incorporation/ and paid up capital/ issued share capital/registered

Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activity
BRITR KAAFRERT
ZREL/ BEHRA/ RE/ERER
WEARER B3t B TR RAFE Bt = TEEH
Directly Indirectly
EE B#
RREEERMERRARAR PRC Registered capital — 100% Property development
RMB20,000,000
EP EMRAARS NEER
20,000,0007%
RREEREHEERRARAA PRC Registered capital — 100% Property development
RMB20,000,000
i HRRAARS NERR
20,000,0007T
RRERNEEHEREERAT PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB20,000,000
HE HHREARS NEER
20,000,0007T
RRERZMESHHREER A PRC Registered capital = 100% Property development
RMB10,000,000
i HRRAARS NEERE
10,000,0007T
HRIREEXERAH PRC Registered capital — 100% Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE HRRAARS NERR
50,000,0007C
RELREXEEERAF PRC Registered capital — 100%  Investment holding
RMB340,000,000
HE HMEAARE RERR
340,000,0007T
WRRFZEEZERAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
H HRRAARS NERR
50,000,0007T
WRRAEERHEREFRAR PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB10,000,000
HE FMEAARE NEERE

10,000,0007T
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50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 50. T EMB AT (B)

(Continued)

Particulars of issued  Attributable portion of the
Place of incorporation/ and paid up capital/ issued share capital/registered
establishment registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activity

BRTR AR MFE R

Name of subsidiary

HEREL/ BfRE/ BA/ERRE
WELREH B33t B EMRAFE Bkt = TEEH
Directly Indirectly
EE &
IWRRFREEHEREERAA PRC Registered capital — 100% Property development
RMB 10,000,000
HE EMRAARE NEER
10,000,0007T
BRRIEZERAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB237,306,206
HE EMRAARS NEER
237,306,207
ERRIEHEREERAR PRC Registered capital — 85% Property development
RMB200,000,000
HE HMBRAARS NERR
200,000,0007t
EaRMNEZARAR PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB100,000,000
P EMRAARS NEER
100,000,0007C
EafZEXARAR PRC Registered capital — 55%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE BRIl IN NEER
50,000,0007t
HERNEZARAF PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
RMB100,000,000
e EMRAARS NEER
100,000,0007T
BN EXERAR PRC Registered capital — 70%  Property development
RMB30,000,000
HE AMRAARS NEER
30,000,0007¢
BRRAHERERAA PRC Registered capital — 80% Property development
RMB50,000,000
e EMRAARE NEER

50,000,0007C
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50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 50. T EMIB AT ()
(Continued)

Particulars of issued  Attributable portion of the
Place of incorporation/ and paid up capital/ issued share capital/registered

Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activity
BRITR ARAMFERT
EREL/ BEHRA/ RE/ERER
WEAREH B3t B TMRAFE Bt = TEEH
Directly Indirectly
EE B
ERRABEERAR PRC Registered capital — 70% Property development
RMB35,500,000
i EMRAARS NEER
35,500,0007%
BRRNXEEXARAR PRC Registered capital — 60%  Property development
RMB16,670,000
i HRRAARS NEERE
16,670,0007T
EREFIEXERAR PRC Registered capital — 51% Property development
RMB10,000,000
HE HHRAARS NEER
10,000,0007T
BERAEZERAF PRC Registered capital — 75%  Property development
RMB100,000,000
i HRRAARS NEER
100,000,0007T
BagNEXERAR PRC Registered capital — 70%  Property development
RMB100,000,000
HE HHRAARS NERR
100,000,0007T
HERNEZERAF PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
RMB 10,000,000
e EMRAARS NEER
10,000,0007T
HEAREZERAR PRC Registered capital — 65%  Property development
RMB10,000,000
i HRRAARS NEER
10,000,0007T
HERNAKEZARAR PRC Registered capital — 65%  Property development
RMB 10,000,000
HE EMRAARE NEER

10,000,000
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50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 50. TEM B QA (&)
(Continued)
Particulars of issued  Attributable portion of the
Place of incorporation/ and paid up capital/ issued share capital/registered
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activity
BRTR RAAMBERT
2R/ BEHRA/ BA/ERRE
WEARER B33t B S RAFE Bt = TEEH
Directly Indirectly
E# B#
RNEMEXERAR PRC Registered capital — 100%  Investment holding
RMB 180,000,000
HE HRRAARS REER
180,000,0007T
RAUZEEHEREGRAR PRC Registered capital - 80% Investment holding
RMB100,000,000
T FMEAARE REER
100,000,0007T
ZRERFIGHEREBRARA PRC Registered capital — 80% Property development
RMB 10,000,000
HE HHERARE NEER
10,000,000
EREHFHEREBERAR PRC Registered capital - 90%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE BRIl IN NEER
50,000,000t
RERFBREERAA PRC Registered capital — 100% Property development
RMB10,000,000
HE HRBRAARS NEER
10,000,0007C
ERRAEHEREERAR PRC Registered capital = 73%  Property development
RMB100,000,000
P HRRAARS NEERE
100,000,000
ERRBEHEREGRAR PRC Registered capital - 90% Property development
RMB100,000,000
HE HRRAARS NEERE
100,000,0007T
BERAEZEEERAA PRC Registered capital - 100%  Investment holding
RMB250,000,000
e FMEAARE REZR

250,000,0007¢
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50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Name of subsidiary

50. T EMB AT (&)

Particulars of issued

Attributable portion of the

Place of incorporation/ and paid up capital/ issued share capital/registered

establishment

registered capital

capital held by the Company

Principal activity

BRITR ARAMFERT
EREL/ EARE/ RE/ERER
WEAREH B3t B TMRAFE Bkt = TEEH
Directly Indirectly
EE B
BERRNEHERREELR PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
RMB150,000,000
HE EMRAARS NEERE
150,000,0007T
HENRANEHEGRAR PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
RMB 10,000,000
HE EMRAARS NEER
10,000,0007T
HEMMREEHEGRAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB10,000,000
HE EMRAARS NEERE
10,000,0007T
ERRTENEEERERARA PRC Registered capital — 100% Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE EMREARE NEER
50,000,0007C
MNENEZERAF PRC Registered capital — 100% Property development
RMB100,000,000
HE EMRAARS NEEE
100,000,0007T
EREEREGRAR PRC Registered capital — 100%  Investment holding
RMB 10,000,000
HE HHBRAARS REER
10,000,0007T
BERAEENEHERRAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB1,000,000
HE EMRAARS NEER
1,000,0007T
ERAREHEGRAR PRC Registered capital — 100% Property development
RMBS5,000,000
HE Bl IN NEER

5,000,0007C
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50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Name of subsidiary

“E-NEFR

50. T EM B QA (8)

Particulars of issued

Attributable portion of the

Place of incorporation/ and paid up capital/ issued share capital/registered

establishment

registered capital

capital held by the Company

Principal activity

BRTR ARAMEERT
HEREL/ BEHRA/ BA/ERRE
WEARER B33t B S RAFE Bt = TEEH
Directly Indirectly
E# B#
ERENEHEGRAR PRC Registered capital — 100% Property development
RMBS5,000,000
HE EMRAARE NEER
5,000,007
BRER=-FREBRLA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB10,000,000
HE HRRAARS NEERE
10,000,0007T
BERRNEAREARAA PRC Registered capital — 83.5% Property development
RMB200,000,000
HE EMBRAARE NEER
200,000,0007t
BERTAHEEERAA PRC Registered capital — 83.5% Property development
RMB10,000,000
HE HRRAARS NEER
10,000,0007C
ERERABREERAT PRC Registered capital - 83.5% Property development
RMB10,000,000
HE BRIl IN NEER
10,000,0007T
ERRAEZBRRAA (note ) (i) PRC Registered capital — 100% Property development
HK$1,459,000,000
HE BAULES NEER
1,459,000,0007% 7T
ERREEZARAA PRC Registered capital — 100% Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE HRBRAARS NERR
50,000,0007t
ERREEXERAA PRC Registered capital — 100% Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE EMBREARE NEER

50,000,0007C
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50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 50. T EMIB AT ()
(Continued)

Particulars of issued  Attributable portion of the
Place of incorporation/ and paid up capital/ issued share capital/registered

Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activity
BRITR ARAMFERT
ZREL/ BEHRA/ RE/ERER
WEARER B3t B TR RAFE Bt = TEEH
Directly Indirectly
EE B#
ERRHEHERAT PRC Registered capital — 100% Property development
RMB1,000,000
EF EMRAARS NEER
1,000,0007T
EERNEXARAR PRC Registered capital — 100% Property development
RMB262,665,000
i HRRAARS NERR
262,665,0007T
EEREEXARAR PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB10,000,000
HE HHREARS NEER
10,000,0007T
RRRAEZERA PRC Registered capital = 100% Property development
HK$1,100,000,000
i Rl NEERE
1,100,000,0007% 7
REEHEMEXERAF PRC Registered capital — 100%  Investment holding
RMB1,600,000,000
HE Bl YN REZER
1,600,000,0007T
EMNRANEHEREFRAA PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
RMB1,200,000,000
HE HMEAARE NEER
1,200,000,0007T
ENRAEAEZERAA PRC Registered capital — 100%  Property development
RMB328,623,800
i HRRAARS NERR

328,623,800
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50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 50. EEM B~ A ()
(Continued)
Particulars of issued  Attributable portion of the
Place of incorporation/ and paid up capital/ issued share capital/registered
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital capital held by the Company Principal activity
BRAR RAAMFERT
HEREL/ BHRA/ RE/ERRAR
WEARER R % EMRAFE ikt TEER
Directly Indirectly
EE &
EMNRANEBERERAA PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
RMB329,108,480
HE EMRAARS NEER
329,108,4807T
ENAREZARAR PRC Registered capital - 100%  Property development
RMB50,000,000
HE EMRAARE NEER
50,000,0007c
HBMRTIEREZER D Alfnote ) (H#i) PRC Registered capital — 100% Property development
HK$380,000,000
i BAULES NEER
380,000,000/ 7t
BERRERERAF (note ) (i) PRC Registered capital — 100% Property development
US$35,000,000
i BAULES NEER
35,000,000 7t
BETEEZBRAE (note ) (H1iti) PRC Registered capital — 100% Property development
HK$280,000,000
i BAULES NEER
280,000,000/ 7
The above table only lists those subsidiaries of the EERR LREJNLHAEEXE -
Company which, in the opinion of the directors, BENBEBEAXEZARRAWEAR
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of 7] - WRAI G E ALK B A F 2 B R A
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries Sl - 2@ ERBRITEK -

would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.
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50. PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Notes:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

These companies are a wholly foreign owned enterprise in the
PRC.

PPL is a Sino-foreign joint venture company established in the
PRC for a renewal term of 50 years commencing 9 July
2003.

Polystar is a Sino-foreign joint venture company established
in the PRC for a term of 20 years commencing 18 December
2000.

{RFRAR is a Sino-foreign joint venture company established
in the PRC for a term of 20 years commencing 29 December
2004.

The Group holds 50% equity interest in & [5 (R Fl & 1% 5= th &
MEBRAF ("ERRERFIERKR"), which holds 70% equity
interest in BERFNEXFR QA (“EBHRIRF"). As a result,
the Group holds 35% effective equity interest in 3% 5 {R .
According to the articles of association of & 5 {R # #{%& and
EEIRF|, the Group is entitled to appoint three out of five
directors in the board of directors of each of such
companies. As a result, the Group has control over & [5{R 7
#1% and EE{RF, which were accounted for as subsidiaries
of the Company in November, 2015.

On 19 November 2019, E/M{RF| &% E R 27 has reduced
its registered capital from RMB101,800,000 to RMB2,000,000.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that
none of the Group’s non wholly-owned subsidiaries
with non-controlling interests are material to the

consolidated financial

statements as a whole and

therefore, the financial information in respect of these

subsidiaries are not presented.

50. T EMB AT (&)

Wit -

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

"

Z2ERAIDRPBEZIEBEEDRE -

Tl

RAREDRPBEKZZPIEGERLERT
REFHR_TT=F L ANREFRPA L
F o

RIMEDRFBRKIZZFIIREREAR K&
EHH_TTTF A+ N\BRFARHA=T+
Fo

RIS B ERKL 2 PISEABAT -
EEME—TENE+-A=+AARHA
=t -

ARERHFEGRIEREHEREFRA
A ([ERRAMEIR]) 50%A % - EERFER
FHABERMNEZERAR ([BERFI)70%
Bt o EIE - AR B AERRFS5RE KK
B-REEGRANERRERRIOERA
B AEBEERNEAARZEEFENLEA
BEEPhZE=REF - At  AEEHEES
ERRAERREERT ERAATAR-F
—hAFE+t—AARABAAFNMEBARG -

RZZB-NAF+—AtIA BENRANEXSE
PR A 7] # H & & AR B A K %101,800,0007T
B ZE A R #2,000,0007T °

ARBEERAR/AEEFZEMB LA

)

4= AR

REMBHRRERMN S BEANIFE

Pt UL ZEMBRARNMEENL
EE27 -



51.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Reportable segments

For management purposes, the Group is organised
into four operating divisions. These divisions are the
basis on which the Group reports its segment
information.

Principal activities are as follows:

Property development — property development

business

Property investment — property investment and
and management management

Hotel operations — hotel and restaurant

business and its related
services

Other operations — manufacturing and sales of
digital discs and others

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the
Group’s senior executive management monitors the
results, assets and liabilities attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets
and current assets with the exception of interests in
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax assets and
other corporate assets. Segment liabilities included
trade payable, accruals and deposited received
attributable to the individual segments and other
borrowings managed directly by the segments with
the exception of other corporate liabilities.

RAEZEEARAA
“E-NEFR

. B EE R

CIE =g

BAEER ASBHSANELES
B ARBEUESBRFILTEHBA
B

EBEHWT

MEBRER — EER

NERERERE — MERENER

BEEEE — BEREBEBR
H ARG

Hit e & — BERHERSE
S R A

A EOBRARZDBEZIERS KM
EOARBESRITHRERABRTIIEE
EREEABE N EE EERA

& :

NHEEBRMEEN BREEMRY
BE HERBEARREZELEZES
BEFRAEEREMEEEERI - D&
BERREESHZENE SR - Bt
ERRBEREZSREMEANDBEREEL
B8 EER D BEE 2Rt XA ER
S o
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51.

SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Reportable segments (Continued)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to sales
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise arise
from the depreciation or amortisation of assets

attributable to those segments.

The measure used for reporting segment result is
“adjusted EBIT" i.e. adjusted earnings before interest
and taxes. To arrive at adjusted EBIT, the Group’s
earnings are further adjusted for
specifically attributed to individual segments, such as

items not

share of results of associates and joint ventures, gain
on disposal of interests in subsidiaries, directors’ and
auditors’ remuneration and other head office or
corporate administration costs.

In addition to information

concerning adjusted EBIT, management is provided

receiving segment
with segment information concerning revenue
(including inter-segment sales), interest income and
expense from cash balances and borrowings
managed directly by the segments, depreciation,
amortisation, impairment losses and additions to non-
current segment assets used by the segments in their
operations.

51.

o RPE R (4B)

] & 2 &f (48)
WARFR IS EARE D BEEZ HE
RAEZAZMORETREDE - &
SESREEAEZ FERBBEEEZH
ZMEDE -

RARBEDBEBZ T EARKHE 2R
MERBERMBHN([EHEREHAA
M) BFFELBEREBABTN - K&
[ 2 & F3E — 2 330 FF B R 57 X 18 Bl 9
ZBEBEFELHRAE D EBERTREE
CRZEE HEMBARERD 2 K
EERRHUM MR E BN RT
B A o

BRESERSHERERAENZ D EE
o ERENEREABRA(BERA

HEHEE)  FMBMARBDBEREE
CEEHEBRREERS WE i R
EEBERNSBEETRAERZIERS DA
BENEZDRER -



51. SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Reportable segments (Continued)
Information about these segments is presented
below:

For the year ended 31 December 2019

51.

RAEZEEARAA

L
2EHER(E)
&2 & (E)
ERALESHZERZ5WT :

BE-Z-NF+-A=+-HLFE

Property Property
development  investment and
business  management Hotel operations Other operations Eliminations Total
E n%
BRER RERER BEEE AfpEE bl £t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn TEn Thn TEn Thn TEn
Revenue from contracts L ool ONE
with customers:
— Recognised at point in time —NE-BERER 37,868,376 - - 100,289 - 37,968,665
— Recognised overtime — N-BEBRED - 929,690 354,573 - - 1,284,263
Revenue from other sources: A RBHRA
— Rental income —R2hA - 691,050 - - - 691,050
External revenue A 37,868,376 1,620,740 354,573 100,289 - 39,943,978
Inter-segment revenue* LN - 109,769 - - (109,769) -
Total revenue B 37,868,376 1,730,509 354,573 100,289 (109,769) 39,943,978
Segment results RS 9,109,872 279,730 (124,036) 79,204 - 9,344,770
Unallocated income AARKA 227,804
Unallocated expenses FIERX (365,547)
Finance costs BERK (1,473,608)
Share of results of associates PEBENAEE (20,630) - - - - (20,630)
Share of results of joint ventures MAELERE 497,639 - - 702 - 498,341
Gain on step-up acquisition of subsidiaries  SZEHER A 2 Ka 478,617 - - - - 478,617
Profit before income tax expense BAEH A AR 8,689,747
Income tax expense FIERAY (4,901,118)
Profit for the year FEREH 3,788,629
S Inter-segment revenue were charged with reference to prices S A ED UL A T 2 & S R 4 R SR AR 7% =k B

charged to external parties for similar services or products.

P YR BR 2 B 48 T U B @
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51. SEGMENT INFORMATION 51. 2 EBER (&)
(Continued)
Reportable segments (Continued) A 3R & 2 & (4E)
Assets and liabilities EERERE

As at 31 December 2019 —E-hE+=ZHA=+-—H

Property Property
development investment and Hotel Other
business  management operations operations Total
BRE¥  REREE BEEE RrgE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TiER TER TiEn
Assets BE
Segment assets NEEE 104,750,412 12,544,281 3,265,821 739,645 121,300,159
Interests in associates YN 5 289,820 - - 2,080 291,900
Interests in joint ventures RegtkzEn 7,421,532 - - 2,127 7,429,659
Unallocated corporate assets ~ AAREXEE 30,261,919
Total assets BEHE 159,283,637
Liabilities 8
Segment liabilities PHAE 50,790,262 1,310,839 184,355 23,162 52,308,618
Unallocated corporate liabilities A EE%EE 72,057,880
Total liabilities RELE 124,366,498
Other information AN
Capital expenditure EARREY 23,257 9,954 6,903 1,240 41,354
Depreciation e 26,174 24,486 118,116 1,781 170,557
Depreciation of right-of-use RRAEEECHE
assets 6,037 1,027 9,725 134 16,923




(Continued)

51. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Reportable segments (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Revenue from contracts
with customers:
— Recognised at point in time
— Recognised overtime
Revenue from other sources:
— Rental income

External revenue
Inter-segment revenue*

Total revenue

Segment results

Unallocated income

Unallocated expenses

Finance costs

Share of results of associates
Share of results of joint ventures

Profit before income tax expense
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

*

charged to external parties for similar services or products.

EFANMEA :

— RE-BEER
— R—BRARER

EMRFARA -
—HeA

E5//ON
AEIELON

LN

GEES
EV L ON
ADERX
BERA
AMEBERARE

PMERELERE

B FA 15 BB 2 A )
R

EREMN

51.

RABEEEERAT
T NEEH

7o RE R (4B)

R E D (E)

BE-2—\F+-A=+-HILFE

Inter-segment revenue were charged with reference to prices

Pt W BR 22 {8 4% i Y BR

Property
Property investment
development and Hotel Other

business  management operations operations  Eliminations Total

ES ES
BEREB RERER BELE EthEE Eilhzd at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT TR TAT FET TR
21,300,382 - - 82,918 - 21,383,300
— 934,017 236,009 - - 1,170,026
— 680,318 — - — 680,318
21,300,382 1,614,335 236,009 82,918 — 23,233,644
— 188,054 — - (188,054) -
21,300,382 1,802,389 236,009 82,918 (188,054) 23,233,644
6,126,651 579,979 (55,938) 21,573 - 6,672,265
161,898
(330,078)
(1,275,566)
(53,882) - - (72) - (53,954)
249,824 - — 545 — 250,369
5,424,934
(2,823,486)

2,601,448

AR R R A Ty 2 551 1 4 [R) 2R AR S SR EE dR
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51. SEGMENT INFORMATION 51. 2 EBER (&)
(Continued)
Reportable segments (Continued) A 3R & 2 & (4E)
Assets and liabilities EERERE

As at 31 December 2018 —Z2-N\F+=ZH=+-—H

Property Property
development  investment and Hotel Other
business  management operations operations Total
NEBREB NERERER BEEE EeE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET TEL TET THEL
Assets BE
Segment assets NEEE 94,004,362 13,082,711 3,395,323 715,853 111,198,249
Interests in associates N NG 3 261,508 — - 3,068 264,576
Interests in joint ventures ReEEhEER 7,771,429 - - 1,966 7,773,395
Unallocated corporate assets ~ AAEG%:EE 29,427,202
Total assets EER®E 148,663,422
Liabilities 8
Segment liabilities HHaE 55,309,590 1,498,595 203,337 24,076 57,035,598
Unallocated corporate liabilities FAEE%EE 59,068,411
Total liabilities BEAE 116,104,009
Other information AN
Capital expenditure ERREY 12,711 7,044 101,512 2,217 123,484
Depreciation ik 21,800 23,976 87,753 4,676 138,205
Amortisation of prepaid lease B EFIEE
payments 1,287 1,063 8,277 137 10,764
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51. SEGMENT INFORMATION 51. 2 HEHR (48)

(Continued)
Reportable segments (Continued) A 3R & o & (4E)
An analysis of the Group's revenue by geographical REBZWAREFFAEM 2 HHT25 10
location of its customers is presented below: T s

Hong Kong PRC Total

N HE &3t
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

“g-h%F ZT-NF SB-AE ZE-NE SE-AE ZTNE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TERT TR TER  TER T#R

Revenue WA 9,758,597 10,611 30,185,381 23,223,033 39,943,978 23,233,644
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of TS TEERDEE  HHEERBE
specified non-current assets, segment assets and RERAFAXIREEMEMZ DT -

capital expenditure analysed by the geographical
area in which the assets are located.

Hong Kong and others PRC Total
FEREM G At
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018

“B-hE -F-\F “B-hE -T-N\E -B-hE -F-\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THE  TERT  TER  TER  TER  TER

Specified non-current assets BEFRYEE 4,274,267 4303528 22,826,697 22,695,087 27,100,964 26,998,615
Segment assets PHEE 12,113,428 20,060,839 139,448,650 120,564,613 151,562,078 140,625,452
Capital expenditure BERRX 2,736 1,410 38,618 122,074 41,354 123,484
The Group's customer base is diversified and no AEEEPERZ T UHMERTPZ
customer with whom transactions have exceeded REBBAEEBAZ210%(=F — N

10% of the Group’s revenue (2018: none). F o 4E) o
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52. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 52. WEBFH B X A
In 7 January 2019, the Group acquired additional RZE—NF—AtH AEEUREA
35.7% equity interest of MEE G B NEERZEAR R #195,000,0007T (£)219,101,0007& 7T)
BRAFE ("BVEREEGE ") at the consideration of WEREEGBENEHEREZAR QA
RMB 195,000,000 (approximately HK$219,101,000). & (IR = E & MEN]) BEIN35.7%[% 7% - B %
EHBE N was previously a joint venture of the BRBALMAEASEEGE D - RIE
Group. After the acquisition, the Group held 100% of & AEEFABREFTEREN100%
equity interest in B )E 5 E 1. TE -
Details of the net assets acquired are summarised WENEEFEFBERALDT
below:
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHTT FAT
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment ME  WE KRR 138
Deferred tax assets RIETIE & = 5,952
Properties under development and BRPRBEHEME
held for sales 2,522,360
Trade and other receivables FEUE 5 K B fib BR 3K 90,048
Amount due from an intermediate JE U — R AR A
holding company YNGIF | 1,585,862
Taxation recoverable A 4 B 56 18 76,401
Bank balances, deposits and cash WITHET FRkR2 873,672
Liabilities a8\
Trade and other payables FETE 5 K B i BR 3K (292,580)
Contract liabilities AEHaE (1,969,648)
Taxation payable JE ) 750 T8 (88,730)
Bank borrowings RITIEE (2,019,504)
Deferred tax liabilities RERIEE & (158,034)
Net assets acquired WEBEEEFEE 625,937
Transferred from interests previously EE EBEAFFRHEE
held and classified as joint venture & &% 2 (354,106)
Gain on step-up acquisition of a A B AR 2 s
subsidiary
— Gain on remeasurement of joint — EFIEAELES
venture to acquisition date fair WERRAFEEZ
value Uz (48,372)
— Gain on bargain purchase — BERE K& (4,358) (52,730)
219,101
Total consideration satisfied by: BREZAFFR:
Cash RE 219,101
Net cash outflow on acquisition ke — B AR RELE
of a subsidiary: Bemd R
Cash paid EfEE (219,101)
Cash and bank balances in the KEMBAFAMNIEE R
subsidiary acquired WITHET 873,672

654,571




52. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Gain on bargain purchase was mainly due to the fact
that the seller had the intention to exit from his
investment in the acquired business due to his
business reasons.

The receivables acquired (which principally comprised
trade and other receivables and amount due from an
intermediate holding company) with a fair value of
HK$1,675,910,000 at the date of acquisition. None of
these receivables have been impaired and it is
expected that the full contractual amounts can be
collected.

Included in the profit for the year is HK$269,770,000
attributable to the additional business generated by
the acquirees. Revenue for the year includes
HK$1,936,477,000 generated from the acquirees. Had
the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2019,
the Group’s revenue for the year would have been
HK$39,943,978,000, and profit for the year would
have been HK$3,788,629,000. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 January 2019, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

Acquisition-related costs were immaterial and had
been excluded from the consideration transferred
and had been recognised as an expense in the year
of acquisition, within the administrative expenses line
item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

In 23 September 2019, the Group acquired
additional 36.8% equity interest of EFRFIEFIKE
BRAA ("ERERFEFE") at the consideration of
RMB550,000,000 (approximately HK$617,978,000). &
FA{RF|<E5E was previously a joint venture of the
Group. After the acquisition, the Group held 83.5%
of equity interest in & FA{R FI<EF.

RAEZEEARAA
“E-NEFR

52. Wik B A (&)

ZERBZUATERETREBRAM
BEREURBEBHHE -

RURERE FTRENERZE(EER
IR E 5 & H At BR 30 K 8 e — 8 AR Rl 42
f& A B FE) B A F(EE &1,675,910,000
BIC o X S RGBT B E - FBHEIA 2
HEALEFE-

FN @A B EFENE S EENBINESE
15269,770,0007% 7T © F UL A B 18 1% U g
77 FT151,936,477,000/8 7T » B WEE R
TE-NE—-FA—HBRK AEBFERK
A i 539,943,978,00058 7T © 1M 4 A3 A
15 £3,788,629,00078 T ° 55 B RHE (R
B AURBKEBER=-ZE—LF—F—
HEXNBERLT  AEEERESHKA
REEEE NTBREBRREENTE
i

WHERBKAL TER  YECDEENRE
HEERREBEFEIR/A  JIAKE
BRROTHASA -

RZEBE-NFARAZ+T=R0 " AEEUR
& A R #550,000,0007T (#617,978,0007%
TTOWREEARMNEFSREERQA(E
PR SR 55 1) B 51N36.8% A% 42 © J& 78 1R 7
BAEUMAAEESZRE - RREBE
R B R A B PR B HI83.5% M ©
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52. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 52. WiEK B2 A (&)
(Continued)
Details of the net assets acquired are summarised WENEEFEFBERANT
below:
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment M BB KRB 196
Properties under development BERAPYE 6,407,865
Trade and other receivables FEWE 5 R E fib BR 3K 571,139
Amount due from an intermediate JE W — il AR 4 IR
holding company YNCIFQ] 1,188,956
Taxation recoverable A 4 B 718 163,421
Contract cost )N 112,542
Deferred tax assets R IE & ZE 12
Bank balances, deposits and cash RITEF  FRERE 990,691
Liabilities &\
Trade and other payables FERTE 5 Kk B b BR K (1,677,328)
Contract liabilities BHAE (4,057,438)
Taxation payable JE A 15 18 (138,192)
Bank borrowings RITEE (952,809)
Deferred tax liabilities EIEFIE & & (928,093)
Net assets BEEFE 1,680,962
Less: Non-controlling interests o FEE R E R (277,358)
Net assets acquired WEEEZFE 1,403,604
Transferred from interests previously ®EHE S BEAFEEEHEE
held and classified as joint venture ~ A& ¥ 2 (359,739)
Gain on step-up acquisition of a WA B AR s
subsidiary
— Gain on remeasurement of joint — EFFIEALLES
venture to acquisition date fair KEAAFEEZ
value Y z8 (425,270)
— Gain on bargain purchase — BERE WS (617) (425,887)
617,978

Total consideration satisfied by: BREXFAFN:
Cash Be 617,978

Net cash outflow on acquisition W &8 — [ Bt B8 2 | P

of a subsidiary: SRS EH TR
Cash paid BB (617,978)
Cash and bank balances in the W BB B A FIAIR & &

subsidiary acquired RITHETE 990,691

372,713




52. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

Gain on bargain purchase was mainly due to the fact
that the seller had the intention to exit from his
investment in the acquired business due to his
business reasons.

The receivables acquired (which principally comprised
trade and other receivables and amount due from an
intermediate holding company) with a fair value of
HK$1,760,095,000 at the date of acquisition. None of
these receivables have been impaired and it is
expected that the full contractual amounts can be
collected.

The non-controlling interests recognised at the
acquisition date was measured by reference to the
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of net
assets of the subsidiary and amounted to
HK$277,358,000.

Included in the profit for the year is HK$542,825,000
attributable to the additional business generated by
the acquirees. Revenue for the year includes
HK$3,023,092,000 generated from the acquirees. Had
the acquisition been completed on 1 January 2019,
the Group's revenue for the year would have been
HK$41,825,358,000, and profit for the year would
have been HK$4,218,996,000. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 January 2019, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

Acquisition-related costs were immaterial and had
been excluded from the consideration transferred
and had been recognised as an expense in the year
of acquisition, within the administrative expenses line
item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

RAEZEEARAA
“E-NEFR

52. Wik B A (&)

ZERBZUATERETREBRAM
BEREURBEBHHE -

RURERE FTRENERZE(EER
IR E 5 & H At BR 30 K 8 e — 8 AR Rl 42
f& A B FE) B A F(EE &1,760,095,000
BIC o X S RGBT B E - FBHEIA 2
HEALEFE-

RUHE B B R A SE IR i T 2 E [ B
REIMBEEREEFEEGLAGE B
277,358,0007% Tt °

F A B IEENE S EENBEINESE
15542,825,0007% 7T © F UL A B 15 1% U g
75 P 153,023,092,0005% T © &2 WHE R
TE-NE—-FA—HBmK AEBERK
A i A41,825,358,00058 7T © 1M 4 A3 A
15 £4,218,996,00078 T ° 55 B RHE (1
B AURBKEBER=-ZE—LF—F—
HEXNERLT  AEEERESHKA
REEEE NTBRIEBRREENTE
i

WHERBKAL TER  YECDEENRE
HEERREBEFEIR/A  JIAKE
BRROTHASA -
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52. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 52. WEBFT B A 7] (58)

(Continued)

On 8 January 2018, the Group entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with a third party to
acquire 100% equity interest in Active Success
Consultants Limited at a consideration of
HK$3,749,739,000.

Details of the net assets acquired are summarised
below:

RZZE—NEFE—ANB AEBHRFE=FH
I BE W - LA (E3,749,739,000% 7T
s B Active Success Consultants Limited
2 EP IR HE -

WENEEFEFBERANT :

HK$'000
FET

Net assets acquired: WEEERE:
Interest in a joint venture R—HEeaEtE2ERE 3,708,967

Amount due from a joint venture B & & IE 40,772

Amount due to a shareholder FE — R IR R K E (169,079)
3,580,660
Total consideration satisfied by: BREZXAFHFX:
Cash Be 3,749,739
Amount due to immediate holding company FERT B #EER A RIRIE (169,079)
3,580,660
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition of a WE—EHWEBARMEEZ
subsidiary: RERHFHE:
Cash paid EENEENS 3,749,739

Included in the loss for the year is HK$598,000
attributable to the additional business used by the
acquiree. No revenue for the year generated from
the acquiree. Had the acquisition been completed on
1 January 2018, the Group’s revenue for the year
would have been HK$23,233,644,000, and profit for
the year would have been HK$2,601,448,000. The
proforma information is for illustrative purposes only
and is not necessarily an indication of revenue and
results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been
completed on 1 January 2018, nor is it intended to
be a projection of future results.

G 518 B IR UL EE 5 BT B B BE N TS TE
15598,000/8 7t ° W £ B 4 W EE B BB F
ABA - BREURBER=-ZFE—N\F—H—
BHEAXR AEEBNFARAKRAB A
23,233,644,0007% T F N & fl #& &
2,601,448,0008 T - EE B RHEMHF A -
ARVRMKBER-_E—N\F—HA—H=
BEERLT  AEEERSSHRARLE
BEE ST REARKREENTEA -



53. ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL
INTEREST OF A SUBSIDIARY

In 6 December 2018, the Group has entered into a
share purchase agreement for acquisition of 20% of
the issued share capital of E/ME BEERZEHR
A A("EIMEFE"). The vendor of the acquisition was
RAEE (L&) CEERARDAF ("RAEE") which
was the legal and benefit owner of 20% of the issued
share capital of E/M 5. The consideration of the
acquisition was RMB121,426,000 (equivalent to
HK$139,571,000). The carrying amount of the net
assets in /N5 attributable to {RF|&E at the
acquisition date was RMB56,510,000 (equivalent to
HK$64,954,000). The Group originally owned 55% of
the issued capital of E /I . Upon completion of
the acquisition, the Group holds 75% of the equity
interest of &I 5.

share of net assets in & /! 38 acquired

54. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Since the outbreak of the Novel Coronavirus
(COVID-19) disease in China, ongoing prevention and
control measures have been carried out throughout
the PRC. The epidemic will impact business
operations of certain industries as well as the overall
economy. The Company’s operations and revenue
may be affected to a certain extent depending on
the effects of the prevention and control measures,
duration of the outbreak and implementation of
various policies.

The Company will closely monitor the situation, and
assess its impacts on our financial position and
operating results. As at the date of this report, such
assessment is still ongoing.

AT EMN R BE EFE
Consideration KRE

RAEZEEARAA
“E-NEFR

53. W —MINE AR ZEIE
I

RZZE—NE+ZANE "REBF Y —
TE %17 B8 B 1o e R B N SR B o 7 B
BERAR(NEMERE]20%2 B 2 17 /%
Ko WEZBEHRGE(LE) CEERE
BR AR (MEHEE]) R A EMNEFE20%
BRTBRAZEATCESHEBA - KIERE
B AN R 121,426,000t (/8 & »
139,571,000/ 1) * R UL EE B R 7 & 12 f&
HEMNRBEEFEZREAEAARE
56,510,0007C (#8 & 1264,954,0005% JT) °
ANEE R LA EMNERFE55% .2 B 31T
RoRWEERE  AEBERFEREMNFEE
ZT5%MARREZS o

HK$’000
TAET

64,954
(139,571)

(74,617)

54. EHRER

#1258 51k 75 & (COVID-19) & 5 1E + Bl &
BUK  BHEICKEEZEEERNE
T REBHEBOTENERLERER
REBTERFE RFHEIENR
R BEERIZBEENEREBERL &
RANEERBAREZFTRZENE
@,

RRREEIREBBIBN - W HHESH
ARBFBRARELEEENTE - BE
ARNEBH R TERAEETER -
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XAT [Eaz)
st 2
Year ended 31 December
BZE+-A=t+-ALEE
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
—E-hF ZE-R"f ZE—+tf ZE-\F ZE-AF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHEL THT FET FTHEL THER
RESULTS £
Revenue A 24,933,367 30,580,326 31,703,042 23,233,644 39,943,978
Profit/(loss) before income tax BR BT 15 W B 2 Al
expense wH/ (B18) (1,235842) 2,233,221 4,889,189 5424934 8,689,747
Income tax expense TSR % (1,536,449)  (2,012,049)  (2,322,549)  (2,823,486)  (4,901,118)
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEF/ (BE) (2,772,291) 221172 2,566,640 2,601,448 3,788,629
Attributable to: T LG
Owners of the Company ARAHE A (2,817,149) 80,745 2,462,061 2,241,590 3,832,948
Holders of perpetual capital XABARIA
instruments BEA 131,812 72,325 — — —
Non-controlling interests FERER (86,954) 68,102 104,579 359,858 (44,319)
Profit/(loss) for the year EERM/(BE) (2,772,291) 221172 2,566,640 2,601,448 3,788,629
At 31 December
Rt=-A=+-AH
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019
“F-Rf ZE-RF ZEtF ZE-\F ZB-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET TET FTET FTHET THT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Total assets BEELE 129,578,533 122,073,037 128,778,484 148,663,422 159,283,637
Total liabilities AERE (100,152,585)  (95,090,978)  (97,961,903) (116,104,009) (124,366,498)
29,425,948 26,982,059 30,816,581 32,559,413 34,917,139
Equity attributable to owners ARAEEA
of the Company JE 1 iz 25,560,015 24,696,715 28,296,364 29,889,095 32,552,160
Perpetual capital instruments KABEARTA 1,227,472 — — — —
Non-controlling interests FEPE R HE = 2,638,461 2,285,344 2,520,217 2,670,318 2,364,979

29,425,948 26,982,059 30,816,581 32,559,413 34,917,139
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES
FRAEREYRBER

At 31 December 2019
R-F-AF+=A=+—H

Details of the Group’s properties held for investment ASEBR-_ZT—NF+-_A=+—HZFHIE

purposes at 31 December 2019 are as follows: KEMEZFBWT :

Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
i B ZAHR JiiR: SEER
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES:
KEYF :
Room 2502C and Room 2508 of Long lease Commercial 100%
25th Floor Admiralty Centre Tower |
18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong
BB ERBI8H REBZH [EES
8= LS —Hi2518
2502C = [ 2508%=
3 apartments of Legend Garden Villas Held under a land use right Residential 100%
89 Capital Airport Road, Beijing for a term expiring on
The People’s Republic of China 31 December 2042
REARKE RETMERER F=
bR & # 5 BR895 —EM=—f+=ZRA=+—H

BRIEERZ3MERABEN
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES
REERAEMRHR

At 31 December 2019
RoF-AF+=A=1—H

Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest

ith B ZHBR RE SEER

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REWE : (8)

Portions of Basements 1, Portions of 1st Floor, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
NO02, NO3 & NO04, 11th Floor, North Tower, for a term expiring on
NO2, NO3 & NO04, 12th Floor, North Tower, 14 November 2043
Whole of 14th, 15th, 16th, 17th and 18th Floors,

South Tower, N04, NO5 & NO06, 16th floor of

North Tower, NO7, 19th Floor, North Tower,

S01, S02, S03, S04, S07, S08 & S09,

20th Floor, South Tower, N02, NO3, N06, NO7, N0O8, N09,

20th Floor, North Tower, Whole of 21st, 22nd, 23rd, 24th,

25th and 27th Floors, South Tower and North Tower,

Whole of 26th Floor, North Tower,

Shanghai Stock Exchange Building,

No. 528 Pudong Road South, Lujiazui,

Pudong, Shanghai, The People’s Republic of China

hEAREME BB RERE BetinERER [EES
B R BR528%% LB ESFANE —EWM=%+—A+mWmA
R E1EE S - 1B &4 - LAZ11EN02 - NO3&NO04 -

Jb EE12/2N02 « NO3NO04 * FgFE14 ~ 1516~ 17}

1822 E « L FE16[ZN04 + NO5 & NO06 ~ 4t EE19/ZN07

79 FE20/ZS01 * S02 * SO3 * S04 * SO7 * S08%2S09 *

Jb BE20/2N02 * NO3 * N06 * NO7 * NO8 * NO9

A B N Jb EE21 22 2 23 24 ~ 25027

2ERIEWEZE

4 houses, 4 apartments, a commercial centre, Held under a land use right Commercial/ 51%
a club house, a kindergarten and an extension for a term expiring on Residential

and a stadium, Legend Garden Villas, 31 December 2042

89 Capital Airport Road, Beijing,

The People’s Republic of China

REARLME RAELHERERS BE/EE
b B #5895k B R L E A Z —EM-_f£+-A=+—H

AERIE MEALBEM  —EAFEFL -
—Eem —AHERRIRE—EREE
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“E-NFFR
Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
o B ZHHR iR SEED
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REYE (&)
Office Tower of Poly Plaza, The land use right for the Commercial 75%
No. 14 Dongzhimen Nandajie, property has been granted
Dong Cheng District, Beijing, for a term of 50 years
The People’s Republic of China commencing on
27 October 2003

REARKNE METMEAEELEE B BE
L RTREE TZE=F+A=-t+tHE A
REMBAEH14% A+
CIPNE PN
Commercial/Office buildings at Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
No. 465 Luo Shi Lu, for a term expiring on
Hong Shan District, Wuhan, Hubei Province, 12 May 2047
The People’s Republic of China
REARKLNE RAETMERER [GES
ML E RS R —EMEFERA+TZH
BMBRASTE 2 HE WMAKE
5 commercial units Held under a land use right Commercial/ 100%
at Zhuo Dao Quan Bei Lu, for a term expiring on Residential
Hong Shan District, Wuhan, Hubei Province, 16 January 2075
The People’s Republic of China
REARLNE RELMERES HE/EE
ML A REMH R E —Z+RF—-HA+RH
ST RILESER X EM
Various commercial units, cultural centre, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%

exhibition centre, theatre, museum, cinemas and for a term expiring on
car parking spaces, Shenzhen Poly Cultural Plaza, Hou Hai 15 January 2054

Bin Lu, Nan Shan District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

REARKANE RAELHERER [GES
BRERY AR —EINFE-A+AA

fE R RYRA LB S
ZEBEEN XLES REFL -
Blfe - BYfR ¥l RFEM
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES
REERAEMRHR

At 31 December 2019
RoE—NF+-H=1+—H

Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
it B ZYHR iR SEED
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REWE : (&)
Golf training centre together with its ancillary Held under a long lease Commercial 40%
accommodations and an adjoining piece of land, for a term expiring on
89 Capital Airport Road, Beijing, 30 September 2026
The People’s Republic of China
REARLNE NRBHERAZE [GES
b R B #H#I5 BK895%E 2 —E-RXFNA=TA
REAXRRE BYEERAELH
Various commercial and office units, Poly Mingmen, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
China Asean International Business District, for a term expiring on
Nanning, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region, 22 January 2076
The People’s Republic of China
REARKE RAELHERERS [GES
BRMREAERED —ELRF¥-HZ-t+ZH
R R E R EE
RMEFIZEHERPAEEN
Various office units, Shanghai Poly Plaza, Held under a land use right Commercial 90%
No. 18 Dong Fang Lu, for a term expiring on
Pudong New District, Shanghai, 21 July 2055
The People’s Republic of China
REARKENE RELTMERES [GES
LEBRME _ZERAF+EHAZ-+—H
R B85
FBRANESZEARREEM
Various commercial units at No. 8 Dong Wu Da Dao Te, Held under a land use right Commercial 55%
Dong Xi Hu District, Wuhan, Hubei Province, for a term expiring on
The People’s Republic of China 23 April 2042
REARKNE RELTMERER [GES
ML ERET R R —EM-_FMA=-+=H

RRERNERSRZ BEEEM



RAMNEXEEBR AR
“E-NFFR
Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
o B ZHHR A% SEER
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
KREYE : (&)
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Guiyang Poly Clouds Hill International, for a term expiring on
No. 148 Shi Bei Lu, Yun Yan District, 24 May 2048
Guiyang, Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hE AR KR BELERER EES
EMEEED —EMNERAZ+MA
EER™ L FR1485%
ESRME L B
ZEmEEM
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 66.5%
Guiyang Poly Hot Spring Newisland, for a term expiring on
Wen Quan Lu, Ye Jia Zhuang, Wu Dang District, 30 August 2046
Guiyang, Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hE AR KE BELTHERER GES
EMEEBT —EMARFNA=TH
SERERERRE
BERRMERFTHZ AR EEN
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 66.5%
Guiyang Poly International Plaza, for a term expiring on
Shi Nan Lu, Nan Ming District, 24 May 2049
Guiyang, Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REARKE BELWERER EES
BEMEEGD ZEMAFERAZTHA
EEEREE

EGRNERES
ZHEmEEN
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES

RBEEREDEMRE

At 31 December 2019
R=F—AF+=A=+—A

Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
it B ZYHR iR SEED
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REWE : (&)
Various commercial units, Guiyang Poly Spring Street, Held under a land use right Commercial 66.5%
Shui Dong Lu, Wudang District, for a term expiring on
Guiyang, Guizhou Province, 20 February 2050
The People’s Republic of China
REARLNE RELMERES [GES
EMaEED —TRTF_-_A-T1H
SEREKRE
EGRNERRNEZ EBEEN
Various commercial units, Guiyang Poly Park 2010, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Wudang District, Guiyang, Guizhou Province, for a term expiring on
The People’s Republic of China 15 March 2051
REARKLNE RELTMERES GES
BEMNEERTRER I T e R =
EGRAAE20102 Z EE % EQ
Various Office, commercial units and car parking spaces, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Wuhan Poly Plaza, for a term expiring on
No. 790 Wuchang Minzhu Road, 19 August 2049
Wu Chang District, Wuhan, Hubei Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REARLNE RELTMERES [GES
MIEERETRE R “EMAFENATAA
B & R X K790%:
RERNEBSZEBLE BEELREFEM
A commercial unit, Kunming Sunny Lake & Splendid Life, ~ Held under a land use right Commercial 80%
Da Tun Xin Qu, Lian Ran Zhen, for a term expiring on
An Ning County, Kunming, Yunnan Province, 21 May 2078
The People’s Republic of China
REARKFE RAELHERES [GES
EHERHTLER 2N \FRAA-+—H
ERERNLHE

BARMEHERE B EENL
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“E-NFFR
Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
o B ZHHR iR SEED
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued))
REYE (&)
A kindergarten, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Wuhan Poly Royal Palace, for a term expiring on
Dong Hu Kai Fa Qu Shang Ma Zhuang, 10 May 2072
Wuhan,
Hubei Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REARKNE RELTMERES [GES
& “E+-fHATH
B E T
RpmER LFH
BUR R M EH
—RPHHEE
A kindergarten, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Wuhan Poly Blue Ocean District, for a term expiring on
Hong Shan District, 26 March 2051
Wuhan, Hubei Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REARLNE RELMERES [GES

L BI|

BE T

AR
BOERFERE
—RZH R

—ERE-—F=A=1+7xH
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES
REERAEMRHR

At 31 December 2019
RoF-AF+=A=1—H

Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
i B ZYHR iR SEED
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REWE : (&)
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Jinan Poly Hyde Mansion, for a term expiring on
Zhu Shun Lu, Li Cheng District, 29 July 2080
Jinan, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REARLNE RELTMERES [GES
WREERA™ “ENEFLHA-tARA
B Y9 [ A58 5 B
ERRAEEDE
ZEBREM
Various commercial units Held under a land use right Commercial 80%
Jinan Poly Daming Lake, for a term expiring on
north of Jing Yi Lu, Li Xia District, 28 January 2050

Jinan, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China

EIN:FS BALHERRE EES
RAEET —TEEF-A-TNR

FETRE—ENAL
B R R ALK 208
ZEmEEN



FRNEXEEARRAF
“E-NFFR
Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
o B ZHHR A% SEED
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
KREYE : (&)
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
Nanning Poly City, for a term expiring on
Wuyi Xi Lu, Jiangnan District, 29 October 2050
Nanning, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,
The People’s Republic of China
REARLME BELTHERER [GES
BOEAKERREEED —“TATF+H-tAIR
LrgEA—mE
HERAMW
ZEBEEN
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 50%
Guiyang Poly The Place of A Lake, for a term expiring on
Xi Nan Xin Qu, Huaxi District, 9 August 2051
Guiyang, Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hE AR KR RAETMERER GRS
EMEEBT —ZR-FN\ANH
TERREEHNE
BB RZE M
ZEBMEEN
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 35%
Zunyi Poly Metropolis of Future, for a term expiring on
Zun Yi Da Dao, 13 May 2051
Zunyi, Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REARKEE HAETMERER EES

BEMNEEED
EBEANE
BERFRRI S
ZEmEEN

—Eh-FHAT=H
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES
REERAEMRHR

At 31 December 2019
RoF-AF+=A=1—H

Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
i B ZYHR iR SEED
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REWE : (&)
6 office units at Long Yuan Da Xia, Held under a land use right Commercial 100%
No. 24 Zhong Bei Lu, for a term expiring on
Hong Shan District, 16 May 2052
Wuhan, Hubei Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REARLNE RELTMERES [GES
ML BRI R —ER-FHHATARH
mh b B5 2457
BERAEGMEM A EEN
Various commercial units, Held under a land use right Commercial 68%
Wuhan Poly City for a term expiring on
Hong Shan District, 24 October 2052

Wuhan, Hubei Province,
The People’s Republic of China

REARLME AL MERERS [GES
MILERETRILUE “ERACF+H-+WA

RERMB cZEREEN



Location

it B

Term of lease

ZHHBR

RAEZEEARAA

“E-NFFR

Group's

Type of use interest
iR SEED

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REYFE : (8B)

Various commercial units and carparking spaces,
Tai Bei Feng Qing Jie, Jiading New City,
Jiading District, Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China

REARLME

tEEERETHHN
pltEBEHSZEREEMREEN

Various commercial and office units and
carparking spaces,

Shanghai Poly Felicity,

Chang Jiang Xi Lu, Song Nan Zhen,
Bao Shan District, Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China
REARLM

FEglE

NS AN

BRI 5k
ZHEBEIB A EEMREEN

A commercial unit,

Poly Joy-Zone,

Long Guan Dong Lu and Qing Long Lu,
Long Hua Xin District, Shenzhen,

The People’s Republic of China
hEARAME

AT

RENREHREKLBRER

R A 5% #BIE E

—EmEEM

Held under a land use right
for a term expiring on
29 March 2077

RAELTMERER
—EHt+E=HA=-+NH

Held under a land use right
for a term expiring on
7 July 2060

BRELWERER
—ERNTFELHLR

Held under a land use right
for a term expiring on
12 December 2083

RELERREE
—EN=fF+=-HA+=H

Commercial  100%

[GES

Commercial  100%

[GES

Commercial  70%

[GES
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES
REERAEMRHR

At 31 December 2019
RoF-AF+=A=1—H

Group's
Location Term of lease Type of use interest
i B ZYHR iR SEED
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES: (Continued)
REWE : (&)
A commercial unit, Held under a land use right Commercial  85%
Jinan Poly Center, for a term expiring on
Bei Da Huai Shu region, 11 April 2052
Huaiyin District,
Jinan, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REARKE BRELMERES [GES
WREEET “ER-5WA+—H
VS PNy
VR 4R A R L
— B R EM
A commercial unit, Held under a land use right Commercial  100%
Poly Central Park, for a term expiring on
the north of Shunde New City, 28 July 2053

Shunde District,
Foshan, Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China

REARAME RAELHERER Ax
BREGHLUD —ERA=FtH-t+/NH

VB 5 [ VB 4 % 35k b BB
RAPRDE
— AR REN



RAEZEEARAA 39
“E-NEFR

SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT
FHAERRYRBE

At 31 December 2019
R-F-AF+=A=+—H

Details of the Group’s properties held for development AEEBR-_T—NF+-_A=+—HZFHIE

purposes at 31 December 2019 are as follows: BROMEZFBENOT :
Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area Type of use interest
hEE®R/
it 2 T IMHR BAxEIHH BEEE AR SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT:

HEEZRYE
A parcel of land in Chai Lin Tou Village, Under December 2020 27,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 51%
He Ping Xiang, Hong Shan District, construction 136,000 sq.m. Residential

Wuhan, Hubei Province,
The People’s Republic of China

AR LME BER —E-ZE4+-f 27,000F 5%,/ #EE/
WA R Em 136,000 5K F=E
RIUBATH

RMBRZ— R

A parcel of land on No. 20 Yong Wu Lu, Under March 2021 465,000 sq.m./  Residential 100%
Xing Ning District, construction (Phase V) 541,000 sg.m.
Nanning, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,

The People’s Republic of China

REAREME B —E-—%=F§ 465,000F 5%/ E%
BB AERED (1) 541,000 75 %
HEE

ER K205 2 — L0

A parcel of land on San Huan Lu, Under October 2020 632,000 sq.m./ Residential 58%
Song Bei District, construction 672,000 sg.m.

Harbin, Heilongjiang Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEAREME BiEH —E-ZF A 632,000 5K/ EZE
EETERBED 672,000 77 £

RIEB=RKz R



POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO. , LIMITED
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

FEFERMEME

At 31 December 2019
RoF-AF+=A=1—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area Type of use interest
BLER/
it B 7T IHRR Fstx I HH BEEE A2 SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT: (Continued)
HEEEREYE (&)
A parcel of land on Under May 2020 403,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 66.5%
Shui Dong Lu, construction (Phase V) 620,000 sg.m. Residential
Wu Dang District,
Guiyang,
Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
mEARANE BiEH “Z-TFIEA 403,000 77K/ E%/
BEME (FmH) 620,000 77 K £%
EBm
FER
KRB Z
— R
A parcel of land in Wu Dang pasture, Under May 2022 3,097,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 100%
Wu Dang District, Guiyang, construction 2,166,000 sq.m. Residential
Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME BiET TECCFRA 309700075k BE/EE
EME 2,166,000 75 &
EGHTRER

SERFHz Rt



RAMNEXEEBR AR 341
—E-NFFW
Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area Type of use interest
EHER/
it B 7 IR BEHEIAH BEEE AR SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT: (Continued)
HEEERNE (&)
Five parcels of land in Dong Ao Zhen, Under March 2022 398,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 100%
Shenzhou Peninsula, Wanning City, construction (Phase IlI) 479,000 sq.m. Residential
Hainan Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME BiET ZTZZFZA 398,000 7K/ EE/EE
BEA (£=H) 479,000 75
BETHM+S
RREABLTH
Various parcels of land at junction of Under September 2023 369,000 sq.m./ Residential/ 100%
Guo Xiang Bei Lu and construction 1,043,000 sgq.m. Commercial
Yin Shan Lake Lu,
Suzhou Wuzhong Economic
Development Zone,
Suzhou City, Jiangsu Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARANE B ZTZ=FNA 369,000 77K/ fEE/HE
LEEEHEMT 1,043,000 75
HNRAEERER
BELBERFIHBRRZ
LR
A parcel of land at Dong Fang Da Under December 2020 293,000 sq.m./ Residential 100%
Dao and Dushu Lake Da Dao, construction 376,000 sq.m.
Suzhou Wuzhong Economic
Development Zone,
Suzhou City, Jiangsu Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME & “EoEFEF-R 0 2930007 5K/ fE
IEREEHEMD 376,000 75

FNRPEERER
RORERBEHKEL
— 1
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

FEFERMEME

At 31 December 2019
RoF-AF+=A=1—H

Stage of
Location completion
i B ZIRR

Expected
completion date

Bi=IEH

Site area/Gross
floor area
EHER/
BEER

Type of use

ik

Group's
interest

SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT: (Continued)
HEERRYE  (B)

Under

construction

A parcel of land in Wu Kang Zhen,
De Qing County, Huzhou,

Zhe Jiang Province,

The People’s Republic of China
AR SKAE

HTE

N T 125 %

REEZ R

BET

Under

construction

A parcel of land in Zhenhai
New City, Ning Bo City,
The People’s Republic of China

mEARAME BiEH
BERT

HEHMH 2

—HTi

A parcel of land in Tie Ji Village, Under

Hong Shan District, Wuhan, construction

The People’s Republic of China

REAREME BT
RO E

BENZ —RTH

A parcel of land in Ma Chi Lu, Under

Dong Xi Hu District, Wuhan,
The People’s Republic of China
REARAME

B T R 78 R

Sk —%Li

construction

B

December 2023
(Phase V)

—E-=%+_H
(ERH)

March 2022
(Phase V)

—E-—&£=H
(M)

December 2022
(Phase VI)

December 2022

—ZE-—&#+=H

164,000 sq.m./
498,000 sg.m.

164,000 7 % /
498,000 77 £

326,000 sq.m./
906,000 sg.m.

326,000 75 K/
906,000 75 K

390,000 sq.m./
1,797,000 sqg.m.

390,000 J7 £/
1,797,000 75 %
59,000 sq.m./

297,000 sg.m.

59,000 77 K/
297,000 75 3

Office/
Commercial/

Residential

ey

WAZ/
HE/fFE

X

Commercial/

Residential

BE/EE

Office/
Commercial/
Residential
N
mE/EE

Commercial/

Residential

EEVE %=

100%

100%

68%

55%



Stage of
Location completion
o B ZIRR

Expected
completion date

B =IAH

Site area/Gross
floor area
EEE/
BEER

RAEZEEARAA 343
“E-NEFR

Type of use

ik

Group's
interest

SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT: (Continued)
HEMERROR (&)

Under
construction

Four parcels of land

in Tu Hu Cun Xia Liao, Danshui,
Huiyang District, Huizhou,
Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
HREARLME

EREEMT

BHRKK

THRTRIBRZ

7935 £ 3

Under

construction

A parcel of land at east of
Cheng Dong Lu and South of
Tan Jia Ling Dong Lu,

Li Zhou Jie Dao,

Yu Yao County,

Zhejiang Province,

The People’s Republic of China
HEARLME

TH

R

MM E
HRBEARRERIRE AR 2
—JR L

December 2020
(Phase V)

March 2022
(Phase )

—E--%=f
(=)

187,000 sq.m./
873,000 sg.m.

187,000 75 % /
873,000 5 3K

208,000 sg.m./
586,000 sg.m.

208,000 75 5K /
586,000 77 2K

Residential

Commercial/

Residential

BE/EE

70%

100%
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

FEFERMEME

At 31 December 2019
RoF-AF+=A=1—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area Type of use interest
EHEE/
it B 7 IikR BT IHH BEEE A2 SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT: (Continued)
HEEEREYE (&)
Four parcels of land at east of Hua Xi Da Dao,  Under April 2022 348,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 51%
Nan Ming District, construction 1,577,000 sq.m. Residential
Guiyang, Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME BiET —T--FMA 348,000 7K/ EE/HEE
EMEER™ 1,577,000 75
HAREENERA
ALY
A parcel of land in Dong Jiao Village Under April 2023 109,000 sq.m./  Office/ 75%
Li Wan District, Guangzhou, construction (Phase II) 546,000 sq.m. Commercial/
Guangdong Province, Residential
The People’s Republic of China
hEARANE B —F-=4mA 109,000¥ 77K/ MAE/
EREEMD (5=8) 546,000 77K HE/EE
#»ERRAN
Z—HLi
Various parcels of land at Under October 2020 157,000 sq.m./ Residential 100%
Rongjiang Lu, Langjiang Lu, construction 610,000 sg.m.
Qunli No. 1 Da Dao and
Qunli No. 2 Da Dao,
Qunli Xin Qu, Daoli District,
Harbin, Heilongjiang Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAANE gt it et 3805 157,000¥ 5%/ H%E
RETERBED 610,000 75 %
EERENNE

BT R BILRE
BOE—RERBHFZ-_KE
a2 )



RAMNEXEEBR AR 345
—E-NFFW
Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area Type of use interest
EHER/
it B 7 IR BEHEIAH BEEE AR SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT: (Continued)
HEEERNE (&)
A parcel of land at Under March 2021 45,000 sq.m./  Office/ 100%
Ming Xiu Lu East, construction (Phase II) 298,000 sg.m. Commercial/
Xixiangtang District, Residential
Nanning, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARAANE BiEh —F--%ZH 450007 K/ BMRE/
EEMKRARREED (£=#) 2980007 7k EE/HE
EHERRAR K
Z—HRE
Two parcels of land near Under April 2020 619,000 sq.m./ Residential 50%
Luo Ping reservoir, construction 860,000 sg.m.
Xi Nan Xin Qu, Huaxi District,
Guiyang, Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME g “Z-Z2FNA 619,000 7K/ =%
EMEERT 860,000 75 K

EEREEHE
BYKEFZ
MRL i
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

FEFERMEME

At 31 December 2019
RoF-AF+=A=1—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area Type of use interest
BLER/
it B 7T IHRR Fstx I HH BEEE A2 SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT: (Continued)
HEEEREYE (&)
Various parcels of land at Under December 2022 1,326,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 35%
west of Zun Yi Da Dao, construction 5,171,000 sq.m. Residential
Zunyi, Guizhou Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARANE BET SZEZZFFZA 0 132600075k BE/MEE
EMEEED 5,171,000 75 K
EREREREAZ
ZHLH
A parcel of land at Under February 2021 120,000 sq.m./  Office/ 73%
Xiao Tun Cun, construction (Phase IV) 702,000 sq.m. Commercial/
Wu Hua District, Residential
Kunming, Yunnan Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARATE it —F--#=F 120000F 5%/ BWRAE/
EMERHAT (M) 702,000F 5K HE/EE
RER/NEM
2RI
A parcel of land at Under June 2020 8,000 sq.m./ Residential 100%
Tuen Mun Town Lot 542, construction 17,000 sg.m.
Castle Peak Road - Castle Peak Bay,
Area 48, Tuen Mun,
New Territories, Hong Kong,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME & “E-TFERA 8000F 5%,/ HE
BEMAALFIFE 17,000 77 K
FURK-FILER
0P 3 B SE5425%

LRI
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—E-NFFW
Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area Type of use interest
EHER/
it B 7 IR BEHEIAH BEEE AR SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT: (Continued)
HEEERNE (&)
A parcel of land in Shi Nan Da Dao, Under November 2021 198,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 85%
Nansha District, Guangzhou, construction (Phase VI) 806,000 sg.m. Residential
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME BiET TEC-F+-f 198000FF K/ BE/EE
ERE (BRH) 806,000 7
EMTEY R
MEABZ R
A parcel of land in east of Haibo Lu, Under April 2022 71,000 sq.m./ Residential 70%
north of Cheng Dong Da Jie, construction 203,000 sg.m.
Gaoxin District,
Yantai, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARKME g —E--4NA 71,0008 5%/ HF%E
IWREESD 203,000 75 K
BH R RAGIL
BEERz LM
Two parcel of lands at south of Jinniu Jie, Under May 2021 102,000 sq.m./ Residential 60%
Hai Zi Wa, Wenchang Street Office, construction 184,000 sqg.m.
Changging District, Jinan, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
GEINPIE BET —2--%5A 102,000F 5%/ H%E
WREERT 184,000 75 K
RERXEHEMER
B EeFaEE M

MR
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

FEFERMEME

At 31 December 2019
RoF-AF+=A=1—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area Type of use interest
BLER/
it B 7 IikR BT IHH BEEE A2 SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT: (Continued)
HEEEREYE (&)
A parcel of land in Da Shi Zi Yuan Village, Under May 2021 58,000 sq.m./ Residential 51%
Wenchang Street Office, construction 147,000 sqg.m.
Changging District, Jinan, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARANE g —E--%5A 58,0007k / HE
WREEED 147,000 7 K
RERXEHEMER
AT B
Z— R
A parcel of land at west of Yinuo Lu, Under December 2020 48,000 sq.m./ Residential 65%
north of Qilu International Plastic Chemical City, construction 158,000 sqg.m.
Linzi District, Zibo, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME BT “E-RE+-R 48,000F 5K/ HE
WREEED 158,000 77 7%
B — IR AT
BE BRI
LRI
A parcel of land at north of Zhenzhu Hu Lu, Under September 2020 57,000 sq.m./ Residential 100%
east of Feicui Lu, Weitang Town, construction 150,000 sqg.m.
Xiangcheng District,
Suzhou, Jiangsu Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARANE gl “Z-EFAA 57,0007k / %
TEAEEHMD 150,000 75 K
BREEREA

DIRRIL  HRER
2Rt
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“E-NFFR
Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area Type of use interest
EHER/
i B 7 IR BEHEIAH BEEE AR SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT: (Continued)
HEEERNE (&)
A parcel of land in Shi Nan Da Dao, Under December 2020 28,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 100%
Nansha District, Guangzhou, construction 142,000 sq.m. Residential
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME BiET S A 28,000¥ 7%/ HEE/MEE
EREEMTEYE 142,000 73 K
MEABZ R
Various parcels of land at eastern region of Under August 2026 339,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 100%
Dongmeng Business Zone in Qingxiu District of ~ construction 1,769,000 sq.m. Residential
Nanning, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARANE it “Z-RENR 339,000¥ 77K/ EE/HEE
ERtREEERED 1,769,000 75
EARREEBERD
ZER T
A parcel of land at Huangdu Town, Under December 2020 47,000 sq.m./  Residential 100%
Jiading District, Shanghai, construction 159,000 sq.m.
The People’s Republic of China
PEARKME B “ERETCA 0 47100075k HE
IBETR 159,000 75 &

BRAZ-RIH
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

FEFERMEME

At 31 December 2019
RoF-AF+=A=1—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area Type of use interest
BLER/
it B 7 IikR BT IHH BEEE A2 SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT: (Continued)
HEEEREYE (&)
A parcel of land in Shishan Street, Under May 2021 30,000 sq.m./ Residential 100%
High-tech Zone, construction 81,000 sqg.m.
Suzhou, Jiangsu Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME et —T--%%A 30,000F 5%/ HE
LEAEHMD 81,000 73 &
BHEBLEE
2R
A parcel of land at Fuxi Street, Under June 2020 43,000 sq.m./ Residential 100%
Old City Center, construction 85,000 sg.m.
Deging, Zhejiang Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARANE it —E-RERA 43,000¥ 5%/ HE
HTEBED 85,0007 77 &
ZPORERREE
Z— Wi
A parcel of land at the junction of Daliang Under June 2021 23,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 100%
Subdistrict and Lunjiao Subdistrict, construction 108,000 sq.m. Residential
The East of the first people’s hospital of
Shunde,
Foshan, Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME BiET —E_-FRA B000F7K/ BE/MEE
BERAEHILD 108,000 73 &

IRREARGEMBAEERELR
E-ARBRRA
Z— %t
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—E-NFFW
Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area Type of use interest
EHER/
it B 7 IR BEHEIAH BEEE AR SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT: (Continued)
HEEERNE (&)
A parcel of land in Jiangnan New District, Under July 2021 159,000 sq.m./ Residential 100%
Mudanjiang, construction 341,000 sg.m.
Heilongjiang Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME et —E=—FtA 159,000F 5%/ H%E
BRIAHAIM 341,000 77 K
TR E
2RI
A parcel of land in the west of Qunli New Under October 2022 46,000 sq.m./ Commercial/ 100%
District, construction 148,000 sq.m. Residential
Daoli, Harbin,
Heilongjiang Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARKME BT ik Sk 2 46,0007 7%/ BE/EE
RETERBED 148,000 75 K
BERENHEAN
b’ b
A parcel of land in the west of Qunli New Under August 2021 45,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 100%
District, construction 146,000 sq.m. Residential
Daoli, Harbin,
Heilongjiang Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME BiET —Z--fN\A 450008 77K/ BE/EE
RETIERBED 146,000 73 K
EERRNHEAD
Z—HRLi
A parcel of land in the area of West Railway Under October 2026 125,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 75%
Station, construction 638,000 sq.m. Residential
Huaiyin District, Jinan
Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME BT —E-NE+E 125,000 7K/ BHE/MEE
WREBEED 638,000 75 K
RERAZWA R

LRI
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

FEFERMEME

At 31 December 2019
R=F—AF+=A=+—A

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area Type of use interest
EHEE/
it B 7 IikR BT IHH BEEE A2 SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT: (Continued)
HEEEREYE (&)
A parcel of land in the core business circle of ~ Under September 2021 65,000 sq.m./ Residential 65%
the central district of Zibo, construction 232,000 sg.m.
Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARANE it —TZ-FAA 65,000F 5%/ HE
WRE BT 232,000 75
RORERLEE
Z— R
A parcel of land in Yau Tong, Kwun Tong, Under December 2024 4,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 70%
Kowloon East, Hong Kong, construction 42,000 sq.m. Residential
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAMNE gty “E-EETA 400077k BE/EE
ERANERBREELEIE 42,000 77 &
Z— R
Various parcels of land at Fangwang Area, Under December 2022 189,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 90%
Guandu District, Kunming, construction (Phase ) 1,071,000 sq.m. Residential
Yunnan Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME giEh TE-CFFZR 0 1890007 5K/ BE/EE
EHERHAD (B—H#) 1,071,000 75 K
BEERFERE
ZHRLH
A parcel of land at Shengmei Road, Under planning  August 2022 70,900 sq.m./ Residential 100%
in the core business circle of Eastern New City, 190,000 sq.m.
Ningbo, Zhejiang Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARANE e+ —TZZF)\A 709007 %/ FE
HTEER™ 190,000F 75 &

REBFABRGOBARF BRIEHR
Z—HiH
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—E-NFFW
Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area Type of use interest
EHER/
it B 7 IR BEHEIAH BEEE AR SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT: (Continued)
HEEERNE (&)
A parcel of land in High-Speed Railway Under planning  July 2023 73,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 60%
New District, Taian, 269,000 sg.m. Residential
Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME E L it S S 7300077k EE/EE
WREFZH 269,000 75
2RI
A parcal of land in Lunjiao Street, Under planning  January 2022 75,000 sq.m./ Commercial/ 100%
Shunde District, Foshan, 256,000 sq.m. Residential
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARAME REH —R-f—f 75000F 5%/ BE/fEE
BERAEHLD 256,000 75
B % fr 2 8
2RI
A parcal of land in Jiaoyu Street, Under planning  May 2022 31,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 100%
Shunde District, Foshan, 124,000 sq.m. Residential
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARAANE REH “Z--FER 31000F 5K/ BE/EE
BEREHILD 124,000 75 K
BB % A 5%

2RI



POLY PROPERTY GROUP CO. , LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT 2019

SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT

FEFERMEME

At 31 December 2019
RoF-AF+=A=1—H

Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area Type of use interest
EHEE/
it B 7 IikR BT IHH BEEE A2 SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT: (Continued)
HEEEREYE (&)
A parcal of land in northwest of the Under planning  October 2022 34,000 sq.m./ Residential 100%
interesection of Shangye Avenue and 153,000 sq.m.
Fenghuang Road,
Xinhua Town, Huadu District, Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME REH “E-CF1A 3400077/ HE
BEREEMD 153,000 77 K
TE 0 2 3 3 S 78 5 K 48 BB B B A B i 7 1t f
2Rt
A parcal of land in Wuhan Airport Under planning  June 2022 63,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 100%
Economic Zone, 225,000 sq.m. Residential
Jinghe Road, Wuhan, Hubei Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME RE “R--FXA 63000F 7K/ BE/fEE
LA R ET 225,000 75 K
150 ¥
FOERR B BRI R
2RI
A parcal of land in Wuhan Airport Under planning  December 2022 47,000 sq.m./ Commercial/ 100%
Economic Zone, 179,000 sq.m. Residential
Jingxi Ba Road, Wuhan,
Hubei Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARKAANE e+ TEoCFFTCR 0 400075k BE/EE
WA RE T 179,000 77 7K
(ETEUAN S

RERZEAEERMAEZR
LRI
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—E-NFFW
Stage of Expected Site area/Gross Group's
Location completion completion date floor area Type of use interest
EHER/
it B 7 IR BEHEIAH BEEE AR SEER
PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT: (Continued)
HEEERNE (&)
A parcal of land in Bai Sha Zhou Da Dao, Under December 2023 157,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 100%
Hong Shan District, construction 809,000 sg.m. Residential
Wuhan, Hubei Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARAME BiET ZEZZFFZA 0 15700085k BE/EE
LB ED 809,000 7
HILEBDMNARE
2RI
A parcal of land in the centre of Shuikou, Under planning  June 2022 60,000 sq.m./ Commercial/ 100%
Huicheng District, Huizhou, 230,000 sq.m. Residential
Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARANE REH it S 2Y 60000F 5k, HW¥/fEE
BEREEMD 230,000 75 %
BHEKOTLE
2RI
Various parcels of land at eastern region of Under June 2023 331,000 sq.m./  Commercial/ 83.5%
Dongmeng Business Zone in Qingxiu District of ~ construction (Phase V) 1,730,000 sq.m. Residential
Nanning, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,
The People’s Republic of China
hEARANE B —EB-=&XA 331,000F 5%/ HEE/fEE
BERAMERAERER (EnH) 1,730,000 75

FERREABERE
Z5%R1H
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
FRAEHEEMERE

REZF—NF1+=—A=1—H

Details of the Group’s properties held for sale at 31 ASBER-_ZT—NF+_A=+—HBZFHIE

December 2019 are as follows: SHEWMEXZFFBOT
Location Gross floor area Type of use Group's interest
i B BEEEHE AR EEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE:
HEEHEYF -

160 carparking spaces, N/A Residential 100%
Poly Garden,

Gao Xin District,

Suzhou, Jiangsu Province,

The People’s Republic of China

REARHKEM i
T kA BN T

=

R HE 58 2

1601E 1% & fiz

(et
I8
[re
)

Various commercial units 8,708 sg.m Commercial 100%
and carparking spaces,

Nanning Poly Upper House,

Zhu Jin Lu,

China Asean International Business District,

Nanning, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARAME 8,708F 77K EE

BRLEERREED

H B R BR BB A =

NS

MERERE LR

ZAmEEBMRIEEM

Various villas, commercial units 15,177 sgq.m. Commercial/ 58%
and carparking spaces, Residential

Harbin Poly The Water's Fragrant Dike,

San Huan Lu, Song Bei District,

Harbin, Heilongjiang Province,

The People’s Republic of China

FEARKME 15177F 5Kk EE/fE=E
BRIEAWMMAED

b B =R &

MERERMNKERE

ZEMNE BEBEMREEM
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Location Gross floor area Type of use Group'’s interest

1 B BEEER RE

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various carparking spaces, N/A Residential 100%
Nanning Poly Century,

China Asean International Business District,

Nanning, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARANE TER Ex

ErlAtKEBEAREEM

TERAERLER

MERM2IERZ

% (B{= 8 AL
Various villas, residential units, 12,300 sg.m. Commercial/ 66.5%
commercial units and carparking spaces, Residential

Guiyang Poly Hot Spring Newisland,
Wen Quan Lu, Ye Jia Zhuang,

Wu Dang District, Guiyang,

Guizhou Province,

The People’s Republic of China
hEARKME 12,300F K BE ME=E
EME

EETRER

ERIARIE

BB RNR R Z

ZEMNE TEBEA HEEUREEML
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
FHBEHEMEME

At 31 December 2019

RoF-AF+=A=1—H

Location Gross floor area Type of use Group's interest

i B BEEEE AR SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various commercial units and 6,528 sq.m. Commercial 100%
a business centre,

Wuhan Poly Royal Palace,

Dong Hu Kai Fa Qu Shang Ma Zhuang,

Wouhan,

Hubei Province,

The People’s Republic of China

REARKME 6,528 F 7oK mE%E
it &

BE

RAFEE LS

BOE R ZEH 2

ZEREEMR

— AR P O

Various commercial units and 35,389 sgq.m. Commercial 100%
carparking spaces,

Shanghai Poly Town,

Zhong Fang Cun,

Ma Lu Zhen,

Jiading District,

Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China

hEE ARAME 35,389 F 5K B
Bsis]

5 € B

55 B R

RN

FPERMKEZ

ZEmEBELRIFEL
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“E-NEFR

Location Gross floor area Type of use Group'’s interest

1 B BEEER RE

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various commercial units and carparking spaces, 2,277 sgq.m. Commercial 100%
Nanning Poly Landscape,

Jing Guan Da Dao,

West of Zhu Gan Dao,

Dong Gou Ling, Xingning District,

Nanning, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,

The People’s Republic of China

RE ARHKTME 2277 F 7K @M%
BRI B AR ED

B2 2 RIS

EHEA

REBKRE

MERMILKGHEZ

ZEMEEMRIEEM

Various commercial units and 4,891 sq.m. Commercial 100%
carparking spaces,

Guiyang Poly Clouds Hill International,

No. 148 Shi Bei Lu, Yun Yan District,

Guiyang, Guizhou Province,

The People’s Republic of China

REARKEAME 4891 F 5K HWE
EMEEGT

== @Mk B 1485%

EBRHE LR 2

ZEmEEMR

=B AL

Various commercial units, office units and 1,069 sq.m. Commercial 100%
carparking spaces,

Shanghai Poly Plaza, No. 18 Dong Fang Lu,

Pudong New District, Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China

REARLMEA 1,069F 7K
SRR

R BI85 LBRAESZ
LEMEEL MAZTEMREBM
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

FHBEHEMEME
At 31 December 2019
RoF-AF+=A=1—H

Location

i B

Gross floor area

BEEEE

Type of use
A

Group's interest

SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various residential units, commercial units and
carparking spaces,

Shanghai Poly Lakeside Garden,

Ma Lu Zhen, Jiading District, Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China
FEARKEME

FEEEREFEE

BB R T BE 5 50 2

ZEAEEEMN BmFEBEMREEN

Various carparking spaces, Guangzhou City of
Poly,

East of Hua Gang Da Dao, Xin Hua Zhen,
Hua Du District, Guangzhou,

Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
hEARANE

BRAE

J& N T EHD I

MEHERANER

J& N AR M3 2

ZAFEBEL

Various villas, residential units,
commercial units and carparking spaces,
Huizhou Poly Deutch Kultur, Luo Yang Zhen,
Boluo, Huizhou, Guangdong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REARHKEM

B®RABMT

BERERSE

BMAR A L K3, 2

ZEBE FEEM -

BB RFEEMN

346 sq.m.

346 77 K

N/A

iE A

5,765 sq.m.

5,765 75 K

Commercial/
Residential

BmEMEE

Residential

Commercial/
Residential

BEEE

100%

51%

80%
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Location Gross floor area Type of use Group'’s interest

1 B BEEER RE

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various villas and residential units, 16,170 sg.m. Residential 100%
and carparking spaces,

Nanning Poly Crescendo,

No. 20 Yong Wu Lu,

Xing Ning District,

Nanning, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,

The People’s Republic of China

RE AR HKME 16,170F 7k (=E
BRI B AR ED
& B8 205%

MERMLUEEZ
ZEMNE ETEEMRIFEM

Various villas, residential units, commercial units 18,834 sg.m. Commercial/ 66.5%
and carparking spaces Residential
Guiyang Poly Spring Street,

Shui Dong Lu, Wu Dang District,

Guiyang, Guizhou Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARKME 18,834F K mE /1E=E
EMEEBGT

5&®RIKRE

EBRAMERKREZ

ZEARE  FEBEMN BEBEMLKREEMN
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

FHBEHEMEME
At 31 December 2019
RoF-AF+=A=1—H

Location

i B

Gross floor area

BEEEE

Type of use
A

Group's interest

SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various residential units,
commercial units and carparking spaces,
Jinan Poly Daming Lake,

north of Jing Yi Lu, Li Xia District,
Jinan, Shandong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
hEARAME

IWERAE BT

FE T @ A8 — B& LA L
BERMNKEMZ

ZETEEMN WmEECREEMQ

Various houses and commercial units of
Chongging Poly Spring Villa,
No. 90 Xiao Quan,

Nan Quan Village,

Ba Nan District,

Chongging, Sichuan Province,
The People’s Republic of China
REARKEA

mlEEEM

gl == )

/N R 905

BERERMNNRZ
ZERERFESM

Various commercial units and carparking spaces,
Foshan Poly Prestige City,
Donghua Road,

Longjiang, Shunde District,
Foshan City,

Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
hEARKM

BRA

Bl

JIg 128 [ & )T

RER

BILR A £ 2
ZEMFENRFEMN

5,097 sg.m.

5,097 7 K

15,277 sqg.m.

15,277 75 K

130 sg.m.

130F 7 K

Commercial/
Residential

BmEMEE

Residential

T

Commercial

CES

100%

51%

100%
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Location Gross floor area Type of use Group'’s interest

1 B BEEER RE

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various commercial units 60 sgq.m. Commercial 100%
and carparking spaces,

Nanning Poly Sincere Garden,

Feng Lin Lu,

Nanning, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,

The People’s Republic of China

P EARKME 60FH K mEE
EOMtREEREEED

ERN

MERNELGZ

ZEMFEMRIEFEMN

Various residential units, commercial units and 154,970 sgq.m. Commercial 100%
carparking spaces,

Liuzhou Poly Merization World,

No. 2 Bai Sha Lu,

Liuzhou, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,

The People’s Republic of China

R AR AAME 154,970 F 75k  mHE
E POt ik B B A0 T
B B 255

MR R AT AR 2
ZEETEM BEEMLREFEEL

Various residential units and carparking spaces, 912 sq.m. Residential 66.5%
Guiyang Poly International Center,

Shi Nan Lu, Nanming District, Guiyang,

Guizhou Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hiE A\ RHEFE 2F K F=E
EMEEGT
A BA [ Th A BE

BEERMNBERESZ
ZEETEMREFEEL
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
FHBEHEMEME

At 31 December 2019

RoF-AF+=A=1—H

Location Gross floor area Type of use Group's interest

i B BEEEE AR SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various villas, residential units, 89,800 sq.m. Commercial/ 100%
commercial units and carparking spaces, Residential

Guiyang Poly Park 2010,

Wudang District,

Guiyang, Guizhou Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARALME 89,800 X mE ME=E
BEMNEEGT

ES R AE20102
ZEME FEEMN BEBLREFEM

Various residential units, commercial units and 1,641 sg.m. Commercial/ 51%
carparking spaces, Residential
Harbin The Tsinghua Summer Palace of Poly,

Zi Xing Jie, Gong Dian Lu,

Nangang District,

Harbin, Heilongjiang Province,

The People’s Republic of China

FEARKME L6MEF K BEE=E
EERIEWBAET

A fidl [

TERBA Y

MERERNBEREREZ

ZEEEEM AXEURFEEM
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Location Gross floor area Type of use Group'’s interest

1 B BEEER RE

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various commercial units and carparking spaces, 4,344 sg.m. Commercial 100%
Nanning Poly City,

Wuyi Xi Lu,

Jiangnan District,

Nanning, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARAME 4,344F 77K mEE
Bt kE cEEET

THER AR

MERNMZ

ZEmEBLRIFEEM

Various residential units, commercial units 3,518 sg.m. Commercial/ 100%
and carparking spaces, Residential
Jinan Poly Hyde Mansion,

Zhu Shun Lu,

Li Cheng District,

Jinan, Shandong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

AR EME 3518 F 5K m¥ MEE
1| 3R 4

JE 958 [ 400 5% B

EERTGEAEZ

ZEFEEMN HEBEUREEMN

Various commercial units and carparking spaces, 605 sg.m. Commercial 100%
Weihai Poly Triumph Mansion,

north of Wa Shan, Qi Jia Zhuang,

Huan Cui District,

Weihai, Shandong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARKXME 605 75 K X
WREBAEN

RERBFHEZLIL
B8 R A S IE D B 2
ZEBEEMRIFEL
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
FHBEHEMEME

At 31 December 2019

RoF-AF+=A=1—H

Location Gross floor area Type of use Group's interest

i B BEEEE AR SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various residential units, commercial units 2,856 sq.m. Residential/ 100%
and carparking spaces, Commercial

Yantai Poly Champs Elysees Mansion,

west of Hu Shan Nan Lu,

north of Feng Huang Nan Lu,

Lai Shan District,

Yantai, Shandong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

REARKEME 2,856F H K FE EE
ILERAEET

IR ILERIATERBREBREIAIL
BERANBHERELZ
ZETEEM BEELREEM

Various residential units, commercial units and 25,117 sq.m. Residential/ 100%
carparking spaces, Commercial
Suzhou Poly Lake Mansion,

junction of Guo Xiang Bei Lu and

Yin Shan Lake Lu,

Suzhou Wuzhong Economic Development Zone,

Suzhou, Jiangsu Province,

The People’s Republic of China

REARKME 25, M7F¥ 75K EE/HE
T8k A &N T

FRN R AR B R

&L B o F 1L B &2 SR

&R LR A B BB 2

ZEFEEMN HEEUREEM

Various carparking spaces, N/A Residential 100%
Shanghai Poly Elegant Mansion,

Jiading New City,

Jiading District, Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARKME TER Ex
i
5 E R 3= E HTM

ERRMRIEEL
ZEFEEM



RAEZEEARAA 367
“E-NEFR

Location Gross floor area Type of use Group'’s interest

1 B BEEER RE

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various residential units, 70 sg.m. Residential 100%
Shanghai Poly Grace Garden,

Nanxiang Zhen,

Jiading District, Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China

hEANRAME 70K E%E

/!

*ERBEAER

EERF AL 2

Z @ F 8L

Various commercial units 16,945 sg.m. Commercial 100%
and carparking spaces,

Deqing Poly Origin,

De Qing County,

Zhe Jiang Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hiE ARAEFE 16,945 5 K @
HLAE

B %
RIBRFANRE 2
ZERMEEMRIEEMN

Various commercial units, 12,461 sg.m. Commercial 100%
Wuhan Poly Blue Ocean District,

Hong Shan District,

Wuhan, Hubei Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARKME 12,461 F K B%
i)
BE O L R

HERMNEBE
4 EISES-Rivi
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FHBEHEMEME

At 31 December 2019

RoF-AF+=A=1—H

Location Gross floor area Type of use Group's interest

i B BEEEE AR SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various commercial units and carparking spaces, 2,568 sg.m. Commercial 100%
Foshan Poly Cullinan Garden,

Chan Cheng District, Foshan City,

Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARKAME 2,568F 77K EE
BERA
85 1Ly 7 K [

BILRMNRELEREZ
ZEMEEMRFEN

Various villas, residential units, commercial units 7,586 sg.m. Commercial/ 51%
and carparking spaces, Residential

Guangzhou Poly Golf Shire,

Hua Du District, Guangzhou,

Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hiE ARLEFE 7586 F K BEE/EE
ERE

JE M T 7E A
EMERMESEREZ
ZERNE FEEMN BEBUREEM

Various commercial units and 281 sgq.m. Commercial 100%
carparking spaces,

Guangzhou Poly Zephyr City,

Hua Du District, Guangzhou,

Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARKME 28155 K EE
ERE

J& M T 7E B [
BEINR M IE 2
ZEMEEMRIEFEMN
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Location Gross floor area Type of use Group'’s interest

1 B BEEER RE

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various residential units, commercial units, 5,346 sg.m. Commercial/ 100%
office units and carparking spaces, Residential

Kunming Poly Lakeside Mansion,

An Ning County, Kunming,

Yunnan Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hE AR AME 53467 K R¥EEE
ERmEZE%

ERRMNENZHR
ZEFTTEM BEREL BAZEBEMRESM

Various villas, residential units, commercial units 42,367 sq.m. Commercial/ 100%
and carparking spaces, Residential

Ningbo Poly City,

Ningbo,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARJME 42367 F F K BE/EE

=R T

R AR 2

ZEARBIE - - FEEMN BESBMREEM

Various villas, residential units 13,966 sq.m. Residential 100%
and carparking spaces,

Suzhou Poly West Bank Villa,

Dong Fang Da Dao and

Dushu Lake Da Dao,

Suzhou Wuzhong Economic Development Zone,

Suzhou, Jiangsu Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARKME 13,966F 77K =%
L #R & BN T

MR AP EERER

RARNBRBERKNE

HMNRMNBEARFZ

ZERE FEEMREEMN
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FHBEHEMEME
At 31 December 2019
RoF-AF+=A=1—H

Location

i B

Gross floor area

BEEEE

Type of use
A

Group's interest

SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various residential units, commercial units and
carparking spaces,
Jinan Poly Center,
Bei Da Huai Shu region,
Huaiyin District,
Jinan, Shandong Province,
The People’s Republic of China
FEE AR
IR & EmEm
Ly A AN X Tl
BERMPOZ
ZEEESBEM mEBEUREEN

Various residential units and carparking spaces,

Ningbo Poly Jordan International,

east of Cheng Dong Lu and

south of Tan Jia Ling Dong Lu,

Li Zhou Jie Dao,

Yuyao, Zhejiang Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARAME

T E R

VIRl

WMRBEARRERBERE AR

ERRANBERBRIERZ
ZREEETEMRFENM

Various villas and residential units,
Hainan Poly Peninsula No. 1,
Dong Ao Zhen, Shenzhou Peninsula,
Wanning, Hainan Province,
The People’s Republic of China
PEARKEME
BEESED
1M S
BB 8
BERMFEERZ

ZE R E REEEA

31,604 sq.m.

31,604 75 oK

12,469 sg.m.

12,469 75 &

2,778 sqg.m.

2,778 75 K

Commercial/
Residential

BmEMEE

Residential

Residential

85%

100%

100%
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Location Gross floor area Type of use Group'’s interest

1 B BEEER RE

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various residential units, commercial units, 45,643 sq.m. Commercial/ 100%
office units and carparking spaces, Residential

Shanghai Poly Star Island

Jiading New City,

Jiading District, Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China

hEE AR AFME 45,643 K EEEE

tEEERRETE M

FERANEBESE

SEETEM BAEEL PRAZEURFEM

Various commercial units and carparking spaces, 5,713 sg.m. Commercial 100%
Shanghai Poly Felicity,

Chang Jiang Xi Lu,

Song Nan Zhen

Bao Shan District, Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARKME 5713 5K ®%
tBBILER
AR ROT 78 8%

EBRFE®Z
ZEMEEMRIEFEMN

Various residential units, commercial units, 39,258 sgq.m. Commercial/ 90%
office units and carparking spaces, Residential
Kunming Poly Sky and Earth,

Yu Chi Lu community,

Zong Shu Ying sub-district office,

Xishan District,

Kunming, Yunnan Province,

The People’s Republic of China

AR FEME 39,258F FK EEMEE
EEEE®RT

2o 1L &

R EEENEE

AR

ERARMNNERH 2

ZREETEM BESEN PAEENREEN
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
FHBEHEMEME

At 31 December 2019

RoF-AF+=A=1—H

Location Gross floor area Type of use Group's interest

i B BEEEE AR SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various residential units, 46,814 sg.m. Commercial/ 70%
commercial units and carparking spaces, Residential
Huizhou Poly Sunshine Town,

Tu Hu Cun Xia Liao,

Danshui, Huiyang District,

Huizhou, Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

FEARKME 46,814F K B /EE
BRABMT

HI5 & %K

TR T R MR

BINRF B S 2

ZHEEETEM BEECLREEL

Various residential units, 108,175 sq.m. Commercial/ 51%
commercial units and carparking spaces, Residential

Guiyang Poly Phoenix Bay,

Hua Xi Da Dao,

Nanming District,

Guiyang, Guizhou Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARKLME 108,175F K Mm% ME=E
EMEEGT

FMEAEEEKNE

&5 R A B2 &

ZEETELNL AEEUREEMN

Various villas, residential units, 6,155 sg.m. Commercial/ 50%
commercial units and carparking spaces, Residential
Guiyang Poly The Place of A Lake,

Xi Nan Xin Qu, Huaxi District,

Guiyang, Guizhou Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARANE 6,155F F K mEE EE
EMEERBT

TER 12 X #7 @

EERAMERZ

ZEANE FTEBEA HEEMRESEM
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Location Gross floor area Type of use Group'’s interest

1 B BEEER RE

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various villas, residential units, 91,146 sg.m. Commercial/ 35%
commercial units, office units and Residential
carparking spaces,

Zunyi Poly Metropolis of Future,

Zun Yi Da Dao,

Zunyi, Guizhou Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARANE 9 146F FK BE MEE
EMEEED

EEAB

BERRMARRIMT 2

ZMEAE ETTEM BESALL -

MAEEMRIFEM

Various residential units, 1,667 sq.m. Commercial/ 80%
commercial units and carparking spaces, Residential

Jinan Poly Elegant Garden,

Lixia District,

Jinan, Shandong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

EARFME 1,667 F K BEMEE
I 3R 4 A

T &

BERMEE 2

ZEFEEMN FEEUREEMN
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FHBEHEMEME
At 31 December 2019
RoF-AF+=A=1—H

Location

i B

Gross floor area

BEEEE

Type of use
A

Group's interest

SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various residential units, commercial units
and carparking spaces,

Yantai Poly Blossom Garden,

Zhi Fu District,

Yantai, Shandong Province,

The People’s Republic of China
FREE AR R AEY

IWREES™

CRE

EARTERE 2

ZEFEEMN FEEUREEM

Various residential units, commercial units,
office units and carparking spaces,

Wuhan Poly City

Hong Shan District,

Wuhan, Hubei Province,

The People’s Republic of China
REARKFME

LB RET

AL R

B R 2

ZEFTTEM BEREML RAEZBEMLRESM

Various carparking spaces,
Poly Aegean Sea,
Northwest of Yongwu Overpass,

Nanning, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,

The People’s Republic of China
hEE ARHEME
BAAEERREED

SR VR A

RANBER 2

% BfF B

4,495 sq.m.

4,495 77 oK

66,930 sg.m.

66,930F 77 3K

N/A

iE A

Commercial/
Residential

BmEMEE

Commercial/
Residential

BmEMEE

Residential

(E=2

55%

68%

100%
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Location Gross floor area Type of use Group'’s interest

1 B BEEER RE

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various residential units, commercial units 24,449 sq.m. Commercial/ 100%
and carparking spaces, Residential

Poly Deluxe Mansion,

Jiading New City, Jiading District, Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARKME 28449F F K BE/EE

LFEREEREE M

RAIRBFEZ

ZETEEAMN HEEUREEMN

Various residential units, commercial units and 8,235 sgq.m. Commercial/ 85%
carparking spaces, Residential

Nansha Poly City,

Nansha District, Guangzhou,

Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

2 AR £ 1B 8.235F 1Kk MR MEE
ERA

BN E
AR
ZETEEM BEEMLMESM

Various commercial units and 295 sgq.m. Commercial 100%
carparking spaces,

Poly Up House,

Hua Du District, Guangzhou,

Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

REE AR ZEE 295 5K M
ERE

BN T A B

RAE L 2

ZEREEMRIEFEM
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
FHBEHEMEME

At 31 December 2019

RoF-AF+=A=1—H

Location Gross floor area Type of use Group's interest

i B BEEEE AR SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various residential units, commercial units and 75,164 sq.m. Commercial/ 100%
carparking spaces, Residential

Poly Central Park,

the north of Shunde New City,

Shunde District,

Foshan, Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARALME 75164 F 7K B¥ MEE
EREEE#H LT

JNE: 12 (52 I8 422 37 5% At BB
FRAFRAEZ
ZEEEEMN BEEMREFEBEL

Various residential units and commercial units, 1,073 sq.m. Commercial/ 70%
Poly Joy-Zone, Residential
Long Guan Dong Lu and Qing Long Lu,

Long Hua Xin District,

Shenzhen,

The People’s Republic of China

FEARAME 1,073F FK BEMEE
R

RENRBETRE MBRER

TR A 1 ERIEE 2

ZEEEE A R EEAL

Various residential units, commercial units and 5,832 sg.m. Commercial/ 100%
carparking spaces, Residential
Poly Hearty,

Ming Xiu Lu East,

Xixiangtang District,

Nanning, Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARKNE 5832F F ok mE EE
ERfAKREAREER

PIAsIE R B B R B

RAL B

ZEEEEMN BEEMREFEEL



RAEZEEARAA 377
“E-NEFR

Location Gross floor area Type of use Group'’s interest

1 B BEEER RE

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various commercial units and carparking spaces, 1,501 sq.m. Commercial 100%
Poly City,

Rongjiang Lu, Langjiang Lu, Qunli No. 1 Da Dao

and Qunli No. 2 Da Dao, Qunli Xin Qu,

Daoli District, Harbin, Heilongjiang Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARKME 1,501 F 7K B%
ERIENRMAED

BERBENMERMIE BULE BNR-AER

HOE-_KE

R 2

SEmEBLRIFEM

Various residential units, commercial units and 15,775 sg.m. Commercial/ 75%
carparking spaces, Residential

Guangzhou Poly Gratified West Bay,

Li Wan District, Guangzhou,

Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARANE 15,775F 5Kk ®EfE=E

BREREMNT R

J& N R A 78 15 &

SEETEM BEEMRFEMN

Various residential units, 6,472 sq.m. Residential 100%
Shanghai Poly Phili House,
Song Jiang District,

Shanghai,

The People’s Republic of China

REARHAFME 6472 F AR E=E
FERIE

LERMNEBRE L
ZEEEEM
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Location

i B

Gross floor area

BEEEE

Type of use
A

Group's interest

SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various residential units, commercial units and
carparking spaces,

Kunming Poly One Family One World
Wu Hua District,

Kunming, Yunnan Province,

The People’s Republic of China

RE AR

TEERAT

hER

ERRFIARZ

ZEFEEMN FEEUREEM

Various residential units, commercial units and
carparking spaces,

Ningbo Poly Wonderland,

Eastern New City,

Ningbo, Zhejiang Province,

The People’s Republic of China
hEAREM

AL & ER T

B AR # ok

ERRAMENIE 2

ZEETEM BEENRFEMN

Various residential units, commercial units and
carparking spaces,

Guangzhou Poly Jade Hills,

Huadu District, Guangzhou,

Guangdong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEARKME
BRAE

JE T 7E A&
BRI 252 L
ZEETEMN BEEMREFEEQ

67,871 sq.m.

67,871 77 K

11,063 sg.m.

11,063F 5 K

11,249 sqg.m.

11,249 7 K

Commercial/
Residential

BmEMEE

Commercial/
Residential

BmEMEE

Commercial/
Residential

BEMEE

73%

100%

100%
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1 B BEEER RE

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various residential units, commercial units and 1,325 sq.m. Commercial/ 70%
carparking spaces, Residential

Weihai Poly Maple Valley,

Huancui District,

Weihai, Shandong Province,

The People’s Republic of China

hEE AR AFME 1,325F F K % /MEE

IWRERETRZEE

Bk 8 AR I AT T A

SEETEM BEEURFEMN

Various residential units and carparking spaces, 10,207 sg.m. Residential 100%
Vibe Centro,

Kai Tak,

Hong Kong,

The People’s Republic of China

hiE A RAFMBE 10,207 F 5 K =

BB

i

EE

ZREETEMRFEENMN

Various residential units, commercial units and 19,866 sq.m. Commercial/ 100%
carparking spaces, Residential

Wuhan Poly Up Town,

Hong Shan District,

Wuhan, Hubei Province,

The People’s Republic of China

REARKEME 19,866 H K ¥,/ *=
LA B E ot L =
EERF B2

ZETEEM BEELREEM
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SUMMARY OF PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
FHBEHEMEME

At 31 December 2019

RoF-AF+=A=1—H

Location Gross floor area Type of use Group's interest

i B BEEEE AR SEER

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE: (Continued)
HEEHEYE : (F)

Various residential units, commercial units and 5,532 sq.m. Commercial/ 83.5%
carparking spaces, Residential
Nanning Poly Town,

Eastern region of Dongmeng Business Zone

in Qingxiu District of Nanning,

Guangxi Zhuang Autonomous Region,

The People’s Republic of China

FEARANE 5532F 75K MEMEE
ERtkEE eREEED

FEERREAKERS

MERMEBFIRZ

ZEFTEEM BEBEMLRESM



Poly Property Group Co., Limited
RABXEEHFR A A

Room 2503, Admiralty Centre, Tower 1,
18 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong

AWEBHE 18 9%
WRPLE W 2503 %
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